
NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING AND AGENDA 

ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

THURSDAY, MARCH 11, 2021 

2:00 P.M. 

This meeting will be conducted by Teleconference  

        Written public comments may be submitted PRIOR to the meeting (Deadline March 10th at 5:00 P.M.) 

Public comments DURING the meeting:  

See COVID-19 – Notice of Meeting Procedures on page 4 of the Agenda 

Sblend Sblendorio, Chair –– Nate Miley – David Haubert – Karla Brown– Bob Woerner –Ralph Johnson – Ayn Wieskamp  

 Wilma Chan, Alternate – Melissa Hernandez, Alternate –Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 

Join Teleconference Meeting Virtually (computer, tablet, or smartphone): click on the link below: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86557520959?pwd=U0NHZ0w3OTJyWk9QMDFPR0F2d3RaUT09 

Meeting ID: 865 5752 0959 

Password (if prompted): lafco 

Join Teleconference Meeting by Telephone: 

Dial (669)-900-9128 

Follow the prompts: Meeting ID: 865 5752 0959 

Password (if prompted): 278160 

Please avoid the speakerphone function to prevent echoing. 

If you need assistance before the meeting, please contact Executive Officer, Rachel Jones at: 

rachel.jones@acgov.org  

1. 2:00 P.M. – Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Welcome New Commissioners – The Commission will acknowledge the appointment of regular

Commissioner Brown and Woerner, and Alternate Commissioner Hernandez, by the Alameda County

Mayors’ Conference on February 10, 2021.

4. Public Comment:  Anyone from the audience may address the Commission on any matter not listed on

the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Alameda LAFCO.  The Commission cannot act upon

matters not appearing on the agenda.  Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes.

LAFCO  

Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86557520959?pwd=U0NHZ0w3OTJyWk9QMDFPR0F2d3RaUT09
mailto:rachel.jones@acgov.org


ALAMEDA LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 6

5. Consent Items

a. Approval of Meeting Minutes: January 14, 2021 Regular Meeting

b. Special Meeting Request for April 1, 2021

c. Budget Update for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 and Third Quarter Report

6. Concurrent Sphere of Influence Amendment and Annexation | Terrace View and Keller Property

to Oro Loma Sanitary District (Public Hearing) – The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission

(LAFCO) will consider a change of organization proposal filed by the Oro Loma Sanitary District

(OLSD) to annex approximately 65.1 acres of territory located within the unincorporated area of Eden

Township. The purpose of the proposal is to provide wastewater services in support of the development

of 25 single-family residences. The affected territory lies outside the established sphere of influence for

the District and a concurrent amendment is necessary to facilitate an annexation.

LAFCO Staff Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval.

7. Presentation from the Tri-Valley Conservancy District (Regular) – Alameda LAFCO will receive an

overview on the current agricultural and open space issues facing the Tri-Valley region provided by the

Tri-Valley Conservancy and presented by Executive Director Laura Mercier of the agency. A

PowerPoint Presentation will be provided at the time of the meeting.

LAFCO Staff Recommendation: The item is being presented for information only and Commission

discussion.

8. Lamphier-Gregory | Contract for Planning Services and Special Studies (Regular) – Alameda

LAFCO will consider entering into three new contracts for planning services and special studies with

planning consultant, Lamphier-Gregory and in partnership with the planning firm Economic Planning

Systems (EPS), at a not-to-exceed cost of $103,000 over a three-year period. Alameda LAFCO obtains

planning services on an as-needed basis to provide the maximum amount of flexibility to conduct its

day-to-day operations, including special projects or studies to fulfill its growth management duties

within the region.

LAFCO Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval.

9. Contract Award | Fire Protection and Emergency Services Municipal Service Review (Regular) –

Alameda LAFCO will consider awarding a service contract to PCA and Berkson Associates to perform

work associated with LAFCO’s Fire Protection and Emergency Medical Services Municipal Service

Review and relevant sphere of influence updates, for the contract period of twelve months, starting in

April or May 2021; in an amount not to exceed $99,710.

LAFCO Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval.

10. Agricultural Conservation Planning Grant with the Department of Conservation | Approval of

Contract Agreement with ACRCD (Regular) – The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission

(LAFCO) has been awarded $249,988 for the agricultural planning grant with the Department of

Conservation and its Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation (SALC) Program. Alameda LAFCO

applied for the SALC grant to serve as the lead applicant and partner with the Alameda County Resource

Conservation District (ACRCD) as the project manager to create an Alameda County Agricultural

Resiliency Project that would establish a Countywide coalition of agricultural preservation policies and

urban agricultural land use opportunities. The Commission will review the draft grant agreement with

2



ALAMEDA LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Regular Meeting Agenda Page 3 of 6

the Department of Conservation and consider approving a contract agreement with ACRCD. 

LAFCO Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval.  

11. Adoption of Proposed Budget and Workplan for FY 2021-2022 (Public Hearing) – The Alameda

Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will consider adopting a draft budget and workplan for

fiscal year 2021-2022 in anticipation of taking final action at its next regular meeting. Proposed budget

expenses total $655,335 and represents a decrease of $1,557 or 0.2% from the current fiscal year.

LAFCO Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approving 45-day public review and comment

period.

12. San Diego LAFCO’s Legislative Initiative to Amend Government Code Section 56133(e) (Regular)

Alameda LAFCO will consider preliminary support for San Diego LAFCO’s legislative initiative to

clarify that LAFCOs must determine whether out of area service agreements (OASAs) are exempt from

LAFCO approval under Government Code Section 56133(e). Staff recommends that the Commission

give its preliminary support, pending a review of the final bill language. Once the final bill language is

received, staff will return the item at a future meeting for Commission consideration.

LAFCO Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends preliminary support.

13. Alternate Public Member | Selection Process (Regular) – The Commission Chair will appoint an ad

hoc public member selection committee consisting of a City Member, County Member and Special

District Member. The ad hoc committee will evaluate applications, select candidates to interview,

conduct interviews of selected candidates, and then make a recommendation to the full Commission.

LAFCO Staff Recommendation: Appoint a City, County and Special District Member to the Ad Hoc

Selection Committee for the Alternate Public member selection process.

14. Matters Initiated by Members of the Commission

15. Executive Officer Report

▪ Commission Clerk Recruitment (verbal update)

▪ Policy and Budget Committee Appointments at next regular meeting (verbal update)

16. Informational Items

a. Current and Pending Proposals

b. Progress Report on Work Plan

c. Legislative Update

d. CALAFCO Quarterly and Annual Reports

e. Alameda County Civil Grand Jury Nominations for 2021-2022 Term

f. Form 700 and Conflict of Interest: Due April 1

g. Commissioners with terms ending May 2021

1. Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold

2. Karla Brown

17. 1

5

Adjournment of Regular Meeting 

 

3



ALAMEDA LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Regular Meeting Agenda Page 4 of 6

.

Next Meetings of the Commission 

CANCELLATION of Policy and Budget Committee Meeting 

Thursday, April 1, 2021 at 2:00 pm  

Regular Meeting 

Thursday, May 13, 2021 at 2:00 p.m. 

It is anticipated both meetings will be held remotely due to COVID-19 pandemic. 

DISCLOSURE OF BUSINESS OR CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTIONS TO COMMISSIONERS 

Government Code Section 84308 requires that a Commissioner (regular or alternate) disqualify herself or himself and not participate 

in a proceeding involving an "entitlement for use" application if, within the last twelve months, the Commissioner has received $250 or 

more in business or campaign contributions from an applicant, an agent of an applicant, or any financially interested person who 

actively supports or opposes a decision on the matter. A LAFCo decision approving a proposal (e.g., for an annexation) will often be an 

"entitlement for use" within the meaning of Section 84308.  Sphere of Influence determinations are exempt under Government Code Section 

84308. 

If you are an applicant or an agent of an applicant on such a matter to be heard by the Commission and if you have made business or 

campaign contributions totaling $250 or more to any Commissioner in the past twelve months, Section 84308(d) requires that you disclose 

that fact for the official record of the proceeding. The disclosure of any such contribution (including the amount of the contribution and the 

name of the recipient Commissioner) must be made either: l) In writing and delivered to the Secretary of the Commission prior to the hearing 

on the matter, or 2) By oral declaration made at the time the hearing on the matter is opened. Contribution disclosure forms are available at 

the meeting for anyone who prefers to disclose contributions in writing. 

Pursuant to GC Section 84308, if you wish to participate in the above proceedings, you or your agent are prohibited from making a campaign 
contribution of $250 or more to any Commissioner. This prohibition begins on the date you begin to actively support or oppose an application 
before LAFCO and continues until 3 months after a final decision is rendered by LAFCO.  If you or your agent have made a contribution 
of $250 or more to any Commissioner during the 12 months preceding the decision, in the proceeding that Commissioner must disqualify 
himself or herself from the decision. However, disqualification is not required if the Commissioner returns that campaign contribution within 
30 days of learning both about the contribution and the fact that you are a participant in the proceedings. Separately, any person with a 
disability under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) may receive a copy of the agenda or a copy of all the documents constituting the 
agenda packet for a meeting upon request. Any person with a disability covered under the ADA may also request a disability-related 
modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in a public meeting. Please contact the LAFCO 
office at least three (3) working days prior to the meeting for any requested arrangements or accommodations. 

Alameda LAFCO Administrative Office 
224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110 

Hayward, CA 94544 

T: 510.670.6267 

W: acgov.org/lafco

4



ALAMEDA LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Regular Meeting Agenda Page 5 of 6

MEETING INFORMATION 

CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) – Notice of Meeting Procedures 

TELECONFERNCING MEETING 

In order to slow the spread of the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, the Commission will conduct this meeting 

as a teleconference in compliance with the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20 and Alameda County Shelter in 

Place Order issued March 16, 2020, and members of the Commission or Commission staff may participate in this 

meeting telephonically or electronically. Members of the public may participate in the meeting as described 

below: 

Join Teleconference Meeting Virtually (computer, tablet, or smartphone): click on the link below: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86557520959?pwd=U0NHZ0w3OTJyWk9QMDFPR0F2d3RaUT09 

Meeting ID: 865 5752 0959 

Password (if prompted): lafco 

Join Teleconference Meeting by Telephone: 

Dial (669)-900-9128 

Follow the prompts: Meeting ID: 865 5752 0959 

Password (if prompted): 278160 

Please avoid the speakerphone function to prevent echoing. 

If you need assistance before the meeting, please contact Executive Officer, Rachel Jones at: 

rachel.jones@acgov.org  

SUBMITTING WRITTEN COMMENTS TO BE READ AT THE MEETING 

Any member of the public may submit a written comment to the Commission before the meeting by March 10, 

2021 at 5:00 P.M. by email to rachel.jones@acgov.org or by mail to Alameda LAFCO 224 West Winton Avenue, 

Suite 110, Hayward, CA 94544. If you are commenting on a particular item on the agenda, please identify the 

agenda item number and letter. Any comments of 500 words or less (per person, per item) will be read into the 

record if: (1) the subject line includes “COMMENT TO COMMISSION – PLEASE READ”, and (2) it is received 

by the Executive Officer prior to the deadline of March 10, 2021 at 5:00 P.M.  

SUBMITTING SPOKEN COMMENTS DURING THE COMMISSION MEETING 

Electronically: 

1. We request that you identify yourself by name as this will be visible online and will be used to notify you

that it is your turn to speak.

2. When the Commission calls for the item on which you wish to speak, click “participants,” a menu will

appear, click on the “raise hand” icon. Staff will activate and unmute speakers in turn.

3. When called, please limit your remarks to the time limit allotted (3 minutes).

By phone (landline): 

1. Your phone number will appear but not your name.

2. When the Commission calls for the item on which you wish to speak, press *9 to “raise your hand”. Staff

5

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86557520959?pwd=U0NHZ0w3OTJyWk9QMDFPR0F2d3RaUT09
mailto:rachel.jones@acgov.org
mailto:rachel.jones@acgov.org


ALAMEDA LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Regular Meeting Agenda Page 6 of 6

will activate and unmute speakers in turn. You will be called upon using the last four digits of your phone 

number, since your name is not visible. 

3. When you are called upon to speak please provide your name for the record.

VIEWING RECORDING OF THE TELECONFERENCE MEETING 

The Commission’s teleconference meeting will be recorded. Members of the public may access the teleconference 

meeting and other archived Commission meetings by going to lafco.acgov.org/meetings.page?.  

ADA ACCESIBILITY:  Meetings are accessible to persons with disabilities. Requests for assistive listening 

devices or other considerations should be made 72 hours in advance through the Executive Officer at (510) 670-

6267 or rachel.jones@acgov.org. 

6

../../../Library/Containers/com.microsoft.Word/Data/Downloads/lafco.acgov.org/meetings.page?
mailto:rachel.jones@acgov.org


 

 

SUMMARY ACTION MINUTES 

ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

Hosted by Zoom Video-Conference Service 

 

January 14, 2021 

 

1. Call to Order  

Chair Sblendorio called the meeting to order at 2:13 p.m.   

 

2. Roll Call.   

 Roll was called. A quorum was present of the following commissioners: 

County Members:    David Haubert and Nate Miley  

City Members:    

Special District Members:   Ayn Wieskamp and alternate Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold 

Public Members:    Sblend Sblendorio  

Not Present: Ralph Johnson and Alternate County Member Wilma Chan 

Staff present:  Rachel Jones, Executive Officer and Andrew Massey, Legal 

Counsel 

 

3. Public Comment 

 Chair Sblendorio invited members in the audience to address the Commission on any matter not 

listed on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Commission.   

 

There were none.  

 

4. Consent Items –  

a. Approval of Meeting Minutes: November 12, 2020 Regular Meeting  

b. Budget Update for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 and Second Quarter Report 

 

 Upon motion by Commissioner Haubert, second by Commissioner Wieskamp, the item is 

approved. 

 

AYES:  4 (Haubert, Sblendorio, Vonheeder-Leopold, and Wieskamp) 

 NOES:  0 

 ABSENT:  Miley  

 ABSTAIN:  0 

 

5.  Proposed Out of Area Service Agreement | APN (425-0280-005-03) to the City of Hayward 

(Public Hearing) 

 

Staff provided an overview to the Commission on the proposed out of area service agreement. The 

proposal before the Commission was submitted by the City of Hayward, seeking approval to 

extend public water services outside of its jurisdictional boundary to one affected legal lot 

located along Fairview Avenue and Amyx Court with the parcel identified number of 425-

02800-005-03 in the unincorporated community of Fairview.  

7



 

 

The primary purpose for the City to request this out of area service agreement for the property 

in question is to facilitate the extension of public water services. A water main extension will 

be paid for by the landowners of the affected territory with sufficient capacity to serve the site.  
    

Upon motion by Commissioner Vonheeder-Leopold, second by Commissioner Wieskamp, the 

Commission opened the public hearing. 

 

 There were no comments from the public.  

 

Upon motion by Commissioner Wieskamp, second by Commissioner Vonheeder-Leopold, the item 

is approved and the Commission closed the public hearing. 

 

AYES:  4 (Haubert, Sblendorio, Vonheeder-Leopold, and Wieskamp) 

 NOES:  0 

 ABSENT:  Miley 

 ABSTAIN:  0 

 

 

6. Permanent Approval Request | Out of Area Service Agreement for 3608 Vine with the 

City of Pleasanton (Public Hearing)   
 

Staff provided an overview on the proposed out of area service agreement. The item was for the 

Commission to make a temporary administrative approval by the Executive Officer permanent 

of an out of area service agreement between the affected territory and the City of Pleasanton.  

 

Upon motion by Commissioner Sblendorio, second by Commissioner Haubert, the Commission 

opened the public hearing. 

 

 There were no comments from the public.  

 

Upon motion by Commissioner Wieskamp, second by Commissioner Vonheeder-Leopold, the item 

is approved and the Commission closed the public hearing. 

 

AYES:  5 (Haubert, Miley, Sblendorio, Vonheeder-Leopold, and Wieskamp) 

 NOES:  0 

 ABSENT:  0   

 ABSTAIN:  0 

 

7. Request for Proposals | Ad Hoc Committee for Fire Protection and Emergency Services 

Municipal Service Review (Regular)   
 

The Commission selected Commissioners Johnson and Vonheeder-Leopold to serve on the Ad Hoc 

Selection Committee to review Request for Proposals (RFP) initiating a municipal service 

review (MSR) on fire protection and emergency services and provide a recommendation to the 

Commission at its next regular meeting.  

 

Upon motion by Commissioner Sblendorio, second by Commissioner Haubert, the item is approved 

and the Commission closed the public hearing. 

 

AYES:  5 (Haubert, Miley, Sblendorio, Vonheeder-Leopold, and Wieskamp) 

 NOES:  0 

8



 

 

 ABSENT:  0 

 ABSTAIN:  0 

  

 

8. Proposed Amendment to Study Schedule FY 2019-2024 (Regular 
 

The Commission considered amendments to the study schedule from FY 2019-2024 to add 

two additional studies to begin this current fiscal year. The two projects involve two special 

studies examining the impacts of Measure D on agricultural lands and community and a 

LAFCO review of South Livermore Valley Area Plan. 

 

Commissioner Miley noted the need for these two studies during this time to better understand 

any current agricultural issues in the region. 
 

Upon motion by Commissioner Miley, second by Commissioner Wieskamp, the item is approved. 

 

AYES:  5 (Haubert, Miley, Sblendorio, Vonheeder-Leopold, and Wieskamp) 

 NOES:  0 

 ABSENT:  0   

 ABSTAIN:  0 

 

 

9. Commission Officers | Chair Appointment (Regular) –  

 

The Commission appointed Commissioner Sblendorio to act as Chair and fill the remainder of 

the vacant seat of the appointment ending in May 2021.  

 

A member from the public, Kelley Bloom, commented to the Commission that a board seat 

should not be exploited for private gains.  
 

Upon motion by Commissioner Haubert, second by Commissioner Vonheeder-Leopold, the item 

is approved. 

 

AYES:  5 (Haubert, Miley, Sblendorio, Vonheeder-Leopold, and Wieskamp) 

 NOES:  0 

 ABSENT:  0   

 ABSTAIN:  0 

 
 

10.        Matters Initiated by Members of the Commission 
 

 Commissioner Miley commented that the LAFCO Executive Officer, Rachel Jones, provided a 

presentation and met with District’s 4 Agricultural Advisory Committee meeting last month. 

Commissioner Miley invited the Executive Officer to provide a follow-up presentation on 

Community Services District at the Unincorporated Services Committee meeting in February.  

 

 

11. Executive Officer Report – 

  The LAFCO Executive Officer provided an update to the Commission on a new targeted hire date 

for the Commission Clerk position that is April of this year. The LAFCO Executive Officer 

noted that there was a miscommunication with the County on the original recruitment process 

and that the April hire date is the new proposed deadline.  

9



 

 

 

11. Informational Items –  Staff offered brief remarks on the following items. 

a. Current and Pending Proposals 

b. Progress Report on Work Plan 

c. Annual Report from Alameda County Vector Control Services District 

d. CALAFCO 2021 Program Schedule  

e. Commissioners with terms ending May 2021 

1. Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold 

2. City Member (Vacant) 

   

12.  Adjournment of Regular Meeting 

 

 Chair Sblendorio adjourned the meeting at 3:05 p.m. 

 

13. Next Meetings of the Commission 

Policy and Budget Committee Meeting 

Thursday, February 4, 2021 at 2:00 pm at City of Dublin, 100 Civic Plaza, Dublin, CA  

 

Regular Meeting 

Thursday, March 11, 2021 at 2:00 p.m. at City of Dublin, 100 Civic Plaza, Dublin, CA  

 

It is anticipated both meetings will be held telephonically due to COVID-19 pandemic.  

 

10



     
  

 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 
 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110 
Hayward, California 94544 
T:  510.670.6267 
www.acgov.org/lafco 
 

Karla Brown, Regular 
City of Pleasanton 
 
Bob Woerner, Regular 
City of Livermore  
 
Melissa Hernandez, Alternate 
City of Dublin 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 
Ayn Wieskamp, Regular  
East Bay Regional Park Dsitrict 
 
Geogean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Regular 
Public Member  
 
Vacant Seat, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

David Haubert, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Wilma Chan, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

March 11, 2021   

Item No. 5b 
TO:  Alameda  Commissioners  
   

FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Special Meeting Request for April 1, 2021 
 

 

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will consider holding a special meeting 

on Thursday, April 1, 2021 at the request of the City of Livermore to review the proposal on the 

proposed annexation of North Livermore Avenue to the City of Livermore. The purpose of the proposal 

is for the development of a 4,740 square foot drive-through restaurant referred to as the Chick-fil-A 

project. The City will also pay LAFCO’s $1,500 special meeting processing fee. Staff recommends 

approval.  

 

Background 

 

Staff received a proposal submitted by the City of Livermore to annex 22.8 acres of unincorporated 

territory located along North Livermore Avenue to the City of Livermore. The purpose of the 

proposal is for the development of a 4,740 square foot drive-through restaurant referred to as the 

Chick-fil-A project.  

 

The application was scheduled to be considered by the Commission at its March regular meeting, 

but it is missing a property tax exchange agreement between the City of Livermore and the County 

of Alameda. Commission action cannot be taken until a property tax exchange agreement has been 

reached. The County expects to have a property tax exchange agreement completed by March 9 th, 

and due to LAFCO’s noticing requirements, the application must be delayed until the 

Commission’s next regular meeting, or if a special meeting is held.   

 

Due to the time constraints and budget of the proposed development, the City requests that  

LAFCO hold a special meeting on April 1, 2021 to consider the potential annexation and 

provide LAFCO with the $1,500 processing fee.  
 

 

Discussion 
 

This item is for the Commission to consider holding a special meeting on April 1, 2021 to review the 

proposal on the proposed annexation of North Livermore Avenue to the City of Livermore.    

 

 

 

 

11



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 5b 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e  

 

Alternatives for Action  
 

 

The following alternatives are available to the Commission:  

 

Alternative One (Recommended):  

Approve for Alameda LAFCO to hold a special meeting on Thursday, April 1, 2021 to consider the 

proposed annexation of North Livermore Avenue to the City of Livermore.  

 

Alternative Two:  

Continue consideration of the report to a future meeting and provide direction to staff as needed. 

 

Alternative Three:  

Deny the request. 

 

Recommendation  

 

It is recommended the Commission proceed with Alternative Action One.  

 
 
Respectfully,  

 
Rachel Jones 
Executive Officer 
  

Attachments:  

1. Alameda LAFCO Application Status Letter 

2. City of Livermore Special Meeting Request Letter 

 
 

12



  

LAFCO 

Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110 
Hayward, California 94544 
T:  510.670.6267 
www.acgov.org/afco 

Bob Woerner, Regular 
City Member 

Karla Brown, Regular 
City Member  

Melissa Hernandez, Alt.
City Member 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
Ayn Wieskamp, Chair  
East Bay Regional Park Dsitrict

Sblend Sblendorio, Regular 
Public Member  
Vacant Seat, Alternate 
Public Member 

Geogean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

David Haubert, Regular  
County of Alameda  

Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  

Wilma Chan, Alternate 
County of Alameda  

STATUS OF APPLICATION

February 23, 2021

DELIVERED BY E-MAIL 
Andy Ross 

City of Livermore 

1052 S Livermore Avenue 

Livermore, CA 94550 

aaross@cityoflivermore.net 

SUBJECT: Status of Application | LAFCO 2020-3 

Annexation of Chick-fil-A North Livermore Avenue to City of Livermore 

Mr. Ross: 

This letter serves as notice that the Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) must 

delay the hearing of the application filed by the City of Livermore seeking annexation of 

approximately 22.8 acres of unincorporated territory to the City for the provision of municipal 

services. The application was scheduled to be considered by Alameda LAFCO on March 11, 2021 

as part of a noticed hearing. The application is missing the following item: 

▪ Property Tax Exchange Agreement

Commission action cannot be taken until a property tax exchange agreement has been reached 

between the City and County of Alameda. 

Should you have any questions or need additional clarification concerning the application process, 

please contact me at 510.670.6267 or rachel.jones@acgov.org. 

Respectfully, 

Rachel Jones 

Executive Officer

Attachment 1

13

mailto:rachel.jones@acgov.org


City Hall 1052 South Livermore Avenue www.cityoflivermore.net 
Livermore, CA  94550 TDD:  (925) 960-4104 

March 1, 2021 

Rachel Jones 
Executive Officer 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission 
224 West Winton, Suite 110 
Hayward, California 94544 

Subject:    LAFCO Application 2020-3; North Livermore Annexation; Chick Fil A 
development project 

Dear Ms Jones: 

Thank you for your letter, dated February 23, 2021, regarding the current status of the 
subject application referenced above. Based on the contents of your letter, Livermore 
would like to request a special meeting of the Commission during the first week of April 
to hear the proposed annexation.  

The Commission is unable to take action on the application at its March 11th Regular 
meeting due to the inability to obtain a Property Tax Share Agreement from Alameda 
County in a timeframe that complies with noticing requirements. It is the City’s 
understanding that the Alameda County counsel is preparing the resolution reflecting 
the standard property tax agreement that is typically used for annexations and is 
scheduled to bring the item to the March 9th Board of Supervisors meeting.  

LAFCO's next regular meeting is scheduled for Thursday, May 13th. The City requests 
the Commission hold a special meeting in the first week of April. The City will provide 
the $1,500 processing fee via US mail. 

If you have any questions, please feel free to email me at: aaross@cityoflivermore.net. 

Respectfully, 

Andy Ross 
Senior Planner 

Attachment 2

14

mailto:aaross@cityoflivermore.net


     
  

 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 
 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110 
Hayward, California 94544 
T:  510.670.6267 
www.acgov.org/lafco 
 

Karla Brown, Regular 
City of Pleasanton 
 
Bob Woerner, Regular 
City of Livermore  
 
Melissa Hernandez, Alt.  
City of Dublin 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 
Ayn Wieskamp, Regular  
East Bay Regional Park Dsitrict 
 
Geogean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Regular 
Public Member  
 
Vacant Seat, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

David Haubert, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Wilma Chan, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

March 11, 2021   

Item No. 5c 
TO:  Alameda  Commissioners  
   

FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Budget Update for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 and Third Quarter Report  
 

 

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will review a report comparing 

budgeted to actual transactions for fiscal year 2020-2021 through the third quarter. Actual expenses 

processed through the first eight months totaled $201,412 an amount representing 30.6% of the 

budgeted total with two-thirds of the fiscal year complete. The report is being presented to the 

Commission to accept and file and to provide direction to staff as needed. 

 

Information  

 

Alameda LAFCO’s adopted final budget for 2020-2021 totals $656,892. This amount represents the 

total approved operating expenditures for the fiscal year divided between three active expense units: 

salaries and benefits; services and supplies; and internal services. A matching revenue total was also 

budgeted to provide a year-end balance of $0 and with a purposeful aid of a planned $180,000 transfer 

from reserves. Budgeted revenues are divided between three active units: intergovernmental 

contributions, application fees, and investments.  

 

Discussion 

 

This item is for the Commission to receive an update comparison of (a) budget to (b) actual expenses 

and revenues through the month of February. The report provides the Commission the opportunity to 

track expenditure trends accompanied by year-end operating balance projections from the Executive 

Officer. The report is being presented to the Commission to formally accept and file and provide related 

direction as needed.  
 

 

 

          
          

Budgeted Expenses    Budgeted Revenues   Budgeted Year End Balance 

FY 20-21   FY 20-21   FY 20-21 

       

$656,892    $656,891    ($1)  

 

 

 

 

15



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 5c 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e  

 

Summary of Operating Expenses 

 

The Commission’s budgeted operating expense total for 2020-2021 is $656,892. Actual expenses 

processed through the first eight months totaled $201,153 an amount representing 30.6% of the 

budgeted total with two-thirds of the fiscal year complete. 

 

Actuals through the eight months and related analysis suggest the Commission is on pace to finish the 

fiscal year with an operating surplus of approximately $205,000 in total expenses. A discussion on 

budgeted and actual expenses through the first eight months and related year-end projections follow. 

 

Expense Units   Adopted    Actuals Percent Expended Remaining Balance 

              

Salaries and Benefits  357,157  144,909 40.6% 212,248 

 
Services and Supplies 

 
186,662 

  
35,832 

 
19.2% 

 
150,830 

 
Internal Service Charges 

  
63,073 

 
20,412 

 
32.4% 

 
42,661 

 
Contingencies 

 
50,000 

 
0 

 
0% 

 
50,000 

    $656,892   $201,153 30.6% $455,739 

 

Staffing Unit  

 

The Commission budgeted $357,157 in Staffing or Salaries and Benefits Unit for 2020-2021. Through 

the first eight months the Commission’s estimated expenses within the affected accounts totaled 

$144,909 or 40.6% of the budgeted amount. It is projected the Commission finish the fiscal year with 

a surplus of approximately $70,000 due to the recruitment delay of the Commission Clerk position.  

 

Services and Supplies Unit 

 

The Commission budgeted $186,662 in the Services and Supplies Unit for 2020-2021 to provide 

funding for direct support services necessary to operate Alameda LAFCO. Through the first eight 

months the Commission’s actual expenses within the affected 14 accounts totaled $35,832 or 19.2% 

of the budgeted amount. Only one of the affected accounts – Memberships – finished with balances 

exceeding the proportional 66.0% threshold with explanations provided below. It is projected the 

Commission will finish the fiscal year with a surplus of approximately $75,000 in response to cost 

savings on professional services and consultants, mileage and travel, and staff workshops and 

conferences.  

 

▪ Memberships 

This account covers the Commission’s annual dues for ongoing membership with several 

outside agencies and organizations as previously authorized by the members. This includes 

CALAFCO and the California Special Districts Association memberships. The Commission  

16



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 5c 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

3 | P a g e  

 

budgeted $10,762 in this account for 2020-2021 based on recent actual trends. Actual expenses 

through February totaled $10,662 or 99.0% of the budgeted amount and tied to providing full 

payment of all budgeted costs. Staff projects no additional expenses to this account.  

Internal Services and Supplies 

 

The Commission budgeted $63,073 in the Internal Services and Supplies Unit for 2020-2021 to provide 

funding for indirect support services necessary to operate Alameda LAFCO. Through the first eight 

months the Commission’s actual expenses within the four affected accounts totaled $20,412 or 32.4% 

of the budgeted amount. None of the affected accounts finished with balances exceeding the 

proportional 66.0% threshold, and staff estimates to finish the fiscal year with a balanced budget.   

 

Summary of Operating Revenues 

 

The Commission budgeted operating revenue total for 2020-2021 at $656,891. Actual revenues 

collected through the first eight months totaled $446,817. This amount represents 68.0% of the 

budgeted total with 66.0% of the fiscal year complete. A summary comparison of budgeted to actual 

operating revenue follows.  

 

Actuals through the first eight months and related analysis suggest the Commission’s year-end revenue 

totals will tally at $656,891 and result in a balanced budget. An expanded discussion on the budgeted 

and actual revenues through the first eight months follows.   

 
 

Revenue Units   Adopted    Actuals 
Percent 

Expended 
Remaining Balance 

              

Agency Contributions  656,891  421,019 96% 18,872 

Application Fees  30,000  19,225 64% 10,775 

Interest  7,000  6,573 94% 427 

Fund Balance Offset  180,000  0 0% 180,000 

    $656,891   $446,817 68% $210,074 

 

Agency Apportionments 

 

The Commission budgeted $656,891 in the Agency Apportionments Unit for 2020-2021. This total 

budgeted amount was to be divided in three equal shares at $146,630 and invoiced among the County 

of Alameda, 14 cities, and 15 independent special districts as provided under State statute. Alameda 

LAFCO has received 95.7% of the agency apportionments. A third invoice to the remaining agencies 

has been forwarded from the County Auditor’s Office.  

 

 

 

17



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 5c 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

4 | P a g e  

 

Application Fees Unit 

 

The Commission budgeted $30,000 in the Application Fees Unit for 2020-2021. Through the first eight 

months, $19,225 has been collected in this unit. Staff anticipates – and at least for budgeting purposes 

– the account ultimately tallying at $25,000 and result in a year-end shortfall of $5,000. 

 

Interest Unit  

 

The Commission budgeted $7,000 in the Interest Unit for 2020-2021. Through the first eight months, 

$6,573 has been collected in this unit by the County Treasurer. Staff anticipates – and at least for 

budgeting purposes – the account accruing at the current rate and ultimately tallying at $7,000.  

 

Alternatives for Action  

 

The following alternatives are available to the Commission:  

 

Alternative One (Recommended):  

Accept and file the report as presented and provide direction as needed to staff with respect to any 

related matters for future consideration.  

 

Alternative Two:  

Continue consideration of the report to a future meeting and provide direction to staff as needed. 

 

Recommendation 

 

It is recommended the Commission proceed with Alternative Action One.  

 
 
Respectfully,  

 
Rachel Jones 
Executive Officer 
  

Attachments: 

1. 2020-2021 General Ledger through February 28, 2021 

 

18



z

Expense Ledger FY2017-2018 FY2018-2019 FY2019-2020

Adopted Actuals Adopted Actuals Adopted Actuals Adopted Actuals Difference Percent of Budget
As of 02-28-21

Salary and Benefit Costs 
Account Description 
60001 Staff Salaries - - 321,692 263,373 308,307 263,373 234,254 100,980 (133,274)              43.1%
- Employee Benefits and Retirement (ACERA) - - 149,961 149,961 175,275 149,961 122,903 43,929 (78,974) 35.7%

472,385 383,228 471,653 413,334                483,581 324,575               357,157 144,909 (212,248)             40.6%

Service and Supplies

Account Description 

- Intern 1,600 - 1,600 0 1,600 0 1,600 - - -

610077 Postage 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 - - -

610141 Copier 2,000 2,503 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 - - -

610191 Pier Diems 7,500 7,300 7,700 7,700 7,800 7,800 8,000 4,000 (4,000) 50.0%

610211 Mileage/Travel - 89 200 2,628 1,300 1,300 1,300 - - -

610461 Training (Conferences and Workshops) 20,000 17,171 20,000 20,000 13,000 6,000 5,000 - - -

610241 Records Retention 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 199 (801) 19.9%

610261 Consultants 75,000 75,000 96,000 90,000 90,000 90,000 96,000 21,436 (74,564) 22.3%

610261 Mapping - County 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 - -

610261 Planning Services 25,000 10,000 25,000 5,000 5,000 6,000 5,000 - -

610261 Legal Services 40,000 35,000 40,000 40,000 30,000 21,775 25,000 -

610311 CAO/CDA - County - Services 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 1,000 -

610312 Audit Services 7,500 - 10,000 7,500 7,700 10,000 10,000 - -

610351 Memberships 8,675 8,774 9,000 9,026 10,476 10,476 10,762 10,662 (100) 99.1%

610421 Public Notices 5,000 2,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 305 (4,695) 6.1%

610441 Assessor - County - Services 5,000 - 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 - -

610461 Special Departmental 500 500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 284 (1,216) 18.9%

620041 Office Supplies 3,000 500 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 683 (3,317) 17.1%

218,775 176,837 243,500 215,854                200,876 187,351                186,662 35,832 (150,830)             19.2%

Internal Service Charges

Account Description 

630051 Office Lease/Rent 3,200 3,200 3,200 3,200 25,000 3,200 32,500 5,837 (26,663) 18.0%

630021 Communication Services 3,218 3,218 3,878 3,878 3,950 3,950 100 - - -

630061 Information Technology 18,081 18,081 21,578 23,370 27,373 27,373 27,373 12,935 (14,438) 47.3%

630081 Risk Management 2,686 2,686 3,034 3,034 3,100 3,100 3,100 1,640 (1,460) 52.9%
27,185 27,185 31,690 37,482 59,423 37,482 63,073 20,412 (42,661)               32.4%

Contingencies 50,000 50,000 - 50,000 - 50,000 - - -

Account Description 

- Operating Reserve - - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -

EXPENSE TOTALS 768,345 587,250               796,843 666,670               793,880 549,408               656,892 201,153 (455,739)            30.6%

FY2020-2021

ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISION
Regional Service Planning | Subdivision of the State of California 

Attachment 1

19



Revenue Ledger FY2017-2018 FY2018-2019 FY2019-2020

Adopted Actuals Adopted Actuals Adopted Actuals Adopted Actuals Difference Percent of Budget
As of 02-28-21

Intergovernmental 

Account Description

- Agency Contributions 

    County of Alameda 196,115                   196,114                196,948                   196,948                192,127                   192,127                146,630 146,631 1                          100.0%

     Cities 196,115                   196,114                196,948                   196,948                192,127                   192,127                146,630 - - -
     Special Districts 196,115                   196,114                196,948                   196,948                192,127                   192,127                146,630 - - -

588,345                   588,344                590,844                  590,844               576,380                  576,380               439,891 421,019 (18,872)               95.7%

Service Charges

- Application Fees 30,000                     16,000                  30,000                    10,000                  30,000                    25,000                 30,000 19,225 (10,775)                64.1%

Investments

- Interest -                           4,000                    -                          11,531                   7,500                      7,500                   7,000 6,573 (427)                   93.9%

Fund Balance Offset 150,000                   150,000                176,000                   176,000                180,000                   180,000                180,000 - - -

REVENUE TOTALS 768,345                  758,344               796,844                  788,375               793,880                  788,880               656,891 446,817 (210,074)             68.0%

OPERATING NET -                           171,094                -                           246,268                -                           239,472                (1)                           245,664 - -

UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 594,309 788,976

   As of June 30th

FY2020-2021

20



     
  

 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 
 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110 
Hayward, California 94544 
T:  510.670.6267 
www.acgov.org/lafco 
 

Bob Woerner, Regular 
City of Livermore 
 
Karla Brown, Regular 
City of Pleasanton  
 
Melissa Hernandez, Alt.  
City of Dublin 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 
Ayn Wieskamp, Regular  
East Bay Regional Park Dsitrict 
 
Geogean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Regular 
Public Member  
 
Tom Pico, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

David Haubert, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Wilma Chan, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

March 11, 2021   

Item No. 6 

TO:  Alameda  Commissioners  
   

FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Concurrent Sphere of Influence Amendment and Annexation |  

Terrace View (Tract 6869) and Keller Property to Oro Loma Sanitary District  
 

 

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will consider a change of organization 

proposal filed by the Oro Loma Sanitary District (OLSD) to annex approximately 65.1 acres of territory 

located within the unincorporated area of Eden Township. The purpose of the proposal is to provide 

wastewater services in support of the development of 25 single-family residences. The affected 

territory lies outside the established sphere of influence for the District and a concurrent amendment is 

necessary to facilitate an annexation. Staff recommends approval of a concurrent sphere amendment 

and proposed annexation with standard terms. The subject parcels are identified by the County of 

Alameda Assessor’s Office as (085A-6000-004-00;028-00). 

 

Background 

 

Alameda LAFCO has received a request from OLSD for a change of organization proposal to annex 

approximately 65.1 acres of unincorporated territory to the District. As submitted, the affected territory 

consists of vacant land currently owned by RBC Real Estate Finance, Inc., referred to as “Tract 6869” 

and a property adjacent to Tract 6869, referred to as the Keller property.  The Keller property currently 

uses an onsite septic system, and includes a single-family residence, and llama farm. The affected 

territory – Tract 6869 and the Keller property – include approximately 56.1 and 9.0 acres, respectively.  

The affected territory includes 27 parcels and a private roadway in the unincorporated area of Eden 

Township.  Approval of the project would supply public wastewater services to the affected territory 

and would facilitate the development of 25 single-family residences on Tract 6869 for the development 

of the Terrace View subdivision. The subject parcels are identified by the County of Alameda 

Assessor’s Office as (085A-6000-004-00;028-00). 

 

Other Affected Agencies 

 

The affected territory lies entirely within the unincorporated area. It also lies within the boundaries of 

the following special districts subject to Commission oversight: 

 

• East Bay Municipal Utility District  

• Eden Township Hospital District 

• East Bay Regional Park District 

• Alameda County Mosquito Abatement District 

21



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 6 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e  

 

• Fairview Fire Protection District 

• Hayward Area Recreation District 

• Alameda County Emergency Medical Services County Service Area  

• Alameda County Vector Control Service District 

*    The affected territory also lies within the Castro Valley Unified School District and lies within 

County Supervisorial District No. 4 (Supervisor Nate Miley).  

 

Discussion 

 

This item is for the Commission to consider approving – with or without modifications – the applicant’s 

submitted change of organization proposal to annex the affected territory to USD. The Commission 

may also consider applying conditions to an approval so long as it does not directly regulate land use, 

property development, or subdivision requirements.  

 

Purpose of Proposal   
 

The primary purpose of the proposal is to facilitate the establishment of public wastewater services 

on the affected territory in step with the development of 25 residential housing units (Tract 6869) 

and provide public wastewater to a single-family residence and farm (Keller property).  

 

Development Potential  
 

 

The affected territory as proposed and detailed in Appendix B is zoned by the County of Alameda 

as “Planned Development” for Tract 6869 and as “Agriculture” for the Keller property. There are 

no proposed zoning changes for either Tract 6869 and the Keller property. The county zoning 

designation for Planned Development allows for a single-family residence with limited agricultural 

uses (R-1-L-B-E). Any intensity improvements of the affected territory would require County 

approval. The Terrace View subdivision development of 25 single-family residences on Tract 6869 

was approved by the County in 2006.    

 

Analysis   

 

Staff has identified three central policy items for the Commission in considering the merits of the 

proposal under Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act of 2000 (“CKH”). These policy items ultimately take the 

form of Commission determinations and orient the membership to consider stand-alone merits of (a) 

amending OLSD’s sphere of influence, (b) timing of the annexation itself, and (c) applying discretionary 

boundary amendments or approval terms aimed at perfecting the action relative to member preferences 

in administering LAFCO law in Alameda County. A summary of the three sequential policy issues for 

the Commission to consider follows.  

 

 

 

22



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 6 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

3 | P a g e  

 

Amending OLSD’s Sphere of Influence 

 

The affected territory as proposed lies outside of OLSD’s sphere of influence (SOI) and therefore 

necessitates an amendment to include the subject lands to allow for an annexation. This specifically 

includes considering the factors prescribed by the State Legislature as detailed in the following sections 

given that CKH specifies all boundary changes comply with the affected agencies’ SOIs with limited 

exceptions (Government Code Section 56375.5 and 56742). Staff believes an amendment to OLSD’s 

SOI to include the affected territory as proposed is sufficiently justified and supported by deference to 

three related policy factors. First, the affected territory lies adjacent to OLSD’s existing wastewater 

main and therefore the amendment to the SOI to include subject lands would be responsive to the 

District’s existing infrastructure system. Second, amending OLSD’s SOI to include the affected territory 

would memorialize the Commission’s preference to direct developed or developing lands, which by 

practice includes low-density residential units to urban services. An expanded justification addressing 

the factors required for review under State law is provided as Appendix A. 

 

▪ The current sphere designation for OLSD was established by the Commission 1979 and was 

last updated in June 2013.  

 

▪ Consistent with State law, it is the policy preference of the Commission to inform SOI changes 

by preparing municipal service reviews to independently assess the availability, adequacy, and 

performance of the subject services relative to local needs. The Commission is expected to 

complete a Countywide Wastewater, Water, Stormwater and Flood Control Municipal Services 

Review and assess the capacities and demands of all wastewater districts in Alameda County.  

Amending the OLSD’s SOI appears merited given the inclusion of the affected territory marks a 

reasonable and orderly expansion of the District’s service area. Amendment would be consistent with 

past actions of the Commission – and appropriately aligns with uses, needs, and communities of 

interests.  

 

Annexation Timing 

 

The timing of the proposed change of organization appears appropriate and is highlighted by the 

analysis of the factors required for consideration under LAFCO law anytime a jurisdictional change 

is proposed. The majority of the prescribed factors focus on the impacts of the proposed annexation  

on the service and financial capacities of the receiving agency, OLSD. No single factor is 

determinative, and the intent is to provide a uniform baseline for LAFCOs in considering all 

jurisdictional changes in context to the Commission’s own adopted policies and practices. A 

summary of key conclusions generated in the review of these factors for the boundary change 

proposal follows with a complete analysis provided in Appendix B.  

 

 

 

23



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 6 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

4 | P a g e  

▪ OLSD’s wastewater system has available treatment capacities to accommodate projected 

service demands of the affected territory at its projected maximum uses. 

 

▪ Annexation of the affected territory to OLSD is consistent with adopted land use policies 

of the County of Alameda. These policies were comprehensively reviewed and 

memorialized in the adoption of the Alameda County Fairview Specific Plan. These 

planned uses for the affected territory are planned development with limited agricultural 

uses for Tract 6869, and agriculture uses for the Keller Property, and compatible with 

municipal wastewater service. 

 

▪ Annexation to OSLD would provide a permanent wastewater solution for the affected 

territory’s planned development potential of single-family residences and is most cost-

effective option available to the applicant.  

 

The timing of the change of organization of the affected territory appears sufficient given the 

referenced (a) planning consistency, (b) service need, and (c) agency capacity considerations tied to 

extending public wastewater to the affected territory at its maximum allowable uses.   

 

Staff has not identified any potential boundary amendments to the proposal that merit Commission 

consideration at this time. Accordingly, no further conditions of approval for the annexation are 

proposed.   

 

Other Mandated Considerations 

 

Property Tax Exchange  

 

California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 99(b)(6) requires the adoption of a property tax 

exchange agreement by the affected local agencies before LAFCO can consider a jurisdictional 

change. Both the Oro Loma Sanitary District and County of Alameda have agreed to a “no” 

exchange agreement for this proposal – i.e., OLSD will not receive any new property tax allocation 

if annexation is approved and recorded with or without amendments.  

 

Environmental Review 

 

OLSD serves as the lead agency for assessing potential impacts of the proposal under the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) given the jurisdictional change is intended to facilitate the 

development of a county-approved development project. OLSD has determined the action qualifies 

as a project under CEQA and a draft Environmental Impact Report (EIR) and Supplemental 

Addendum was prepared to further evaluate potential and significant proposal impacts. The 

addendum accounts for the proposed annexation and sewer connections and concludes that the 

impacts the project would have are less than significant. Staff independently concurs OLSD on the 

proposed annexation and that it has made appropriate determinations.  

24



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 6 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

5 | P a g e  

 

The contemplated sphere amendment involving the affected territory into OLSD’s sphere of influence 

are exempt from further review under the “general rule” given it can be seen with certainty the spheres 

are planning policies and any adjustments therein do not make changes to the environment or authorize 

new uses or services. 

 

Conducting Authority Proceedings (Protest Hearings) 

 

Protest proceeding for the change of organization may be waived by Alameda LAFCO under 

Government Code Section 56663 should the Commission proceed with approval. The waiver 

appropriately applies under this statute given the affected territory is uninhabited as defined under 

LAFCO law and the subject landowners have provided their respective written consent to the 

underlying proceedings.  

 

Alternatives for Action  

 

The following alternatives are available to the Commission:  

 

Alternative One (Recommended):  

Adopt the draft resolution identified as Attachment 1 approving the corresponding sphere of influence 

amendment to OLSD to include Tract 6869 and the Keller Property with or without any additional 

changes; and  

 

Adopt the draft resolution identified as Attachment 2 approving the annexation to OLSD involving 

Tract 6869 and the Keller Property with standard terms with or without any additional changes. 

 

Alternative Two:  

Continue consideration of the report to a future meeting and provide direction to staff for additional 

information as needed. 

 

Alternative Three:  

Disapprove the proposal. Disapproval would statutorily prohibit the initiation of a similar proposal for 

one year unless a request for reconsideration is filed and approved by the Commission within 30 days. 

 

Recommendation 

 

It is recommended the Commission proceed with Alternative Action One.  

 

 

 

 

 

25



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 6 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

6 | P a g e  

 

Procedures for Consideration 

 

This item has been placed on the agenda for action as part of a noticed public hearing. The following 

procedures are recommended for consideration.  

 

1) Receive a verbal report from staff; 

2) Invite questions from the Commission; 

3) Open the public hearing and invite comments from audience (mandatory); and 

4) Close the public hearing, discuss item, and consider recommendation 

 

Respectfully,  

 
Rachel Jones 

Executive Officer 

 

Attachments: 

1. Draft Resolution of Approval 

2. Vicinity Maps  

3. Application Materials 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

26



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 6 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

7 | P a g e  

 

APPENDIX A 

SPHERE OF INFLUENCE AMENDMENT 

ANALYIS OF MANDATORY FACTORS 

GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 56425 

 

1) The present and planned land uses in the area, including agricultural and open space lands. 

 

The affected territory as proposed is approximately 65.1 acres in size and includes 26 undeveloped legal 

lots, and one legal lot developed with a single-family residence and llama farm.  The planned use for 

Tract 6869 is to develop single-family residences relative to current County of Alameda land use policies. 

The Keller property will remain with the agriculture designation. There are no changes to agricultural or 

open space lands as defined under CKH.   

 

2)  The present and probable need for public facilities and services in the area. 

 

The affected territory currently does not have a wastewater source. Expansion of OLSD’s SOI to include 

the affected territory would facilitate an annexation under State law to grant wastewater with the 

connection to the District’s existing public wastewater system. 

 

3)  The present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services that the agency 

provides or is authorized to provide. 

 

In step with the review of the proposed annexation of the affected territory and OLSD’s Sewer System 

Management Plan of 2019, staff has confirmed OLSD’s existing service facilities have sufficient 

capacity to meet projected demands at maximum potential use.  

 

4)  The existence of any social or economic communities of interest in the area if the commission 

determines they are relevant to the agency. 

 

The affected territory is bordering OLSD’s existing jurisdictional boundary and lies adjacent to the 

District’s wastewater main located along Five Canyons Parkway.  These factors signals emerging social 

and economic ties between the affected territory and OLSD.   

 

5)  For agencies providing water, sewer, or fire protection, the present and probable need for those 

services within any disadvantaged unincorporated communities within the agency’s existing 

sphere of influence.  

 

There is no existing evidence indicating the presence of disadvantaged unincorporated communities 

within OLSD’s sphere of influence that lack public wastewater services. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

27



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 6 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

8 | P a g e  

 

APPENDIX B 

 

BOUNDARY CHANGE 

ANALYSIS OF MANDATORY FACTORS 

GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 56668 

 

1) Population and population density; land area and land use; per capita assessed valuation 

topography, natural boundaries, and drainage basins; proximity to other populated areas; the 

likelihood of significant growth in the area, and in adjacent areas during the next 10 years. 

 

The affected territory consists of 27 parcels totaling 65.1 acres and is considered uninhabited due 

to the area containing less than 12 registered voters. The affected territory zoning designations are 

defined by the County of Alameda as planned development with limited agricultural uses for Tract 

6869 and agricultural land for the Keller property. The affected territory lies adjacent to the Five 

Canyons residential community that is currently served by OLSD.  The affected territory is 

consistent with the County’s Fairview Specific Plan and subsequent actions taken by the Alameda 

County Planning Commission. The Terrace View subdivision on Tract 6869 is expected to support 

large single-family lots and medium density residential development. The assessed value of the 

affected territory totals $6,926.747.  

 

2) The need for organized community services; the present cost and adequacy of municipal 

services and controls in the area; probable future needs for those services and controls; 

probable effect of the proposed incorporation, formation, annexation, or exclusion and of 

alternative courses of action on the cost and adequacy of services and controls in the area and 

adjacent areas.  

 

The current provision of municipal services to the affected territory is limited to emergency 

medical and law enforcement services provided by the County of Alameda. This also includes 

community planning, roads, and public safety. Public water services are provided by the City of 

Hayward and fire protection services are provided by the Fairview Fire Protection District. Needs 

for additional municipal services are emerging within the affected territory to support planned 

residential uses such as wastewater. The proposed annexation would not extend any new major 

roadways or stimulate development in the surrounding undeveloped areas. Alameda County has 

recognized the intent to urbanize the affected territory (Tract 6869) with its land use designation 

and the proposed annexation will follow the designated land use.  

 

3) The effect of the proposed action and of alternative actions, on adjacent areas, on mutual 

social and economic interests, and on local government structure of the county.  

 

Approving the annexation to OLSD would recognize and strengthen existing economic and social 

ties between the District and the affected territory. The adjacent Five Canyons residential 

28



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 6 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

9 | P a g e  

community is served by OLSD and would be an orderly extension of services to the Keller 

property and to Tract 6869, a subdivision that had been previously approved by the County of 

Alameda.  

 

4) The conformity of the proposal and its anticipated effects with both the adopted commission 

policies on providing planned, orderly, efficient patterns of urban development, and the 

policies and priorities set forth in Government Code Section 56377.   

 

The affected territory is proposed for 25 single-family residences and one already developed 

single-family residence and farm that would receive wastewater collection and treatment from 

OLSD. Approving the proposed change of organization would facilitate the establishment of 

public wastewater services to the proposed development in accordance with the County of 

Alameda’s residential planning policies. One of the lands included in the affected territory qualify 

as agriculture and will remain as such and does not conflict with G.C. Section 56377. The 

proposed annexation follows Commission policies to match municipal services with planned 

development and limited agricultural uses.   

 

5) The effect of the proposal on maintaining the physical and economic integrity of 

agricultural lands, as defined by Government Code Section 56016.  

 

The affected territory that includes Tract 6869 does not qualify as “agricultural land” under CKH. 

Specifically, the affected territory is not used for any of the following purposes: producing an 

agricultural commodity for commercial purposes; left fallow under a crop rotational program; or 

enrolled in an agricultural subsidy program. The proposed annexation will not affect the physical 

and economic integrity of agricultural lands. The Terrace View subdivision was previously 

approved for residential use by the County of Alameda for planned development and is surrounded 

to the north, south and west with similar uses. The Keller property will remain as agricultural land.   

 

6) The definiteness and certainty of the boundaries of the territory, the nonconformance of 

proposed boundaries with lines of assessment or ownership, the creation of islands or 

corridors or unincorporated territory, and other similar matters affecting the proposed 

boundaries.   

 

Alameda LAFCO is in receipt of a draft map and geographic description of the affected territory 

that details the proposed boundaries consistent with the standards of the State Board of 

Equalization for mapping proposed jurisdictional changes. Approval would be conditioned on a 

final map and description conforming to the referenced standards. No lines of assessment are 

crossed.  

 

 

 

 

29



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 6 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

10 | P a g e  

 

7) Consistency with the city or county general plans, specific plans and adopted regional 

transportation plan. 

 

The County of Alameda has found the proposed project of the Terrace View subdivision is 

consistent with the Fairview Specific Plan and designated the affected territory as “Planned 

Development” for residential uses. The Keller property has been identified by the County as 

“Agriculture” and will remain with that current designation. These planned land uses are 

consistent with the proposal’s immediate and future purpose to provide public wastewater service 

to the affected territory. 

 

The proposal does not conflict with the regional transportation plan maintained by the 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission. The area does not lie within a Priority Conservation 

Area as identified by the Association of Bay Area Governments.  

  

8) The sphere of influence of any local agency affected by the proposal. 

 

The proposal to annex Tract 6869 and the Keller property to OLSD necessitates a concurrent 

sphere amendment and has been incorporated in the staff analysis. No other agency spheres 

necessitate amendments to accommodate the proposal.  

 

9) The comments of any affected local agency or other public agency. 

 

Staff provided notice of the proposal and invitation to provide comments or request approval 

conditions to other interested agencies. No substantive comments or term requests were received 

as of date of the agenda report.  

 

10) The ability of the newly formed or receiving entity to provide the services which are the 

subject of the application to the area, including the sufficiency of revenues for those services 

following the proposed boundary change.  

 

Information collected and reviewed as part of this proposal indicates OLSD appears to have established 

sufficient financial resources and administrative controls to provide public wastewater to the affected 

territory without adversely impacting existing ratepayers. Information collected and analyzed in the 

District’s financial statements concluded that OLSD has developed overall adequate financial 

resources and controls relative to their service commitments.  

 

11) Timely availability of water supplies adequate for projected needs as specified in 

Government Code Section 65352.5.  

 

The proposed annexation of the affected territory to OLSD is not expected to have an impact on the 

timely availability of water supplies as the City of Hayward is identified as the viable water service 

30



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 6 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

11 | P a g e  

provider to the proposed Terrace View subdivision, and the City has adequate water supplies to service 

the project.  

 

12) The extent to which the proposal will affect a city or cities and the county in achieving 

their respective fair shares of the regional housing needs as determined by the appropriate 

council of governments.   

 

The proposed annexation will add 25 single-family residences to the County of Alameda’s regional 

housing needs and assist in the County’s ability to achieve its regional housing need allocation as 

determined by the Association of Bay Area Governments due to its land use designation as planned 

development. The proposal, if approved, would not change the designation assignment.  

 

13) Any information or comments from the landowner or owners, voters, or residents of the 

affected territory. 

 

The affected territory is uninhabited as defined by LAFCO law (11 registered voters or less). The 

landowners support the annexation underlying the change of organization and have provided their 

written consent to the proceedings.  

 

14) Any information relating to existing land use designations.   

 

The County of Alameda General Plan designates the affected territory as “Planned Development” 

for Tract 6869 and as “Agriculture” for the Keller property.  

 

15) The extent to which the proposal will promote environmental justice.   

 

There is no documentation or evidence suggesting the proposal will have a measurable effect with 

respect to promoting environmental justice.  

 

16) Whether the proposed annexation will be for the interest of the landowners or present or 

future inhabitants within the district and within the territory proposed to be annexed to the 

district.  

 

Approval of the change of organization would benefit current and future landowners and residents by 

providing the affected territory and its existing and planned residential and agricultural uses access to 

public wastewater service.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

31



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 6 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

12 | P a g e  

 

17) Information contained in local hazard mitigation plan, information contained in a safety 

element of a general plan, and any maps that identify land as a very high fire hazard zone 

pursuant to Section 51178 or maps that identify land determined to be in a state responsibility 

area pursuant to Section 4102 of the Public Resources Code, if determined that such 

information is relevant to the area that is subject of the proposal.   

 

The affected territory does lie within a high fire area according to the County of Alameda’s Fire and 

Resource Assessment Plan and is considered an “S-5 High Fire Area.” 

32



ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-XX 

APPROVAL ANNEXATION OF TERRACE VIEW AND THE KELLER PROPERTY 

TO THE ORO LOMA SANITARY DISTRICT, SPHERE OF INFLUENCE 

AMENDMENT AND  WAIVER OF PROTEST PROCEEDINGS 

WHEREAS, the Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission, hereinafter referred to as 

the “Commission,” is responsible for regulating boundary changes affecting cities and special 

districts under the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000; and  

WHEREAS, a resolution of application dated February 20, 2007 was filed by the Oro Loma 

Sanitary District (“District”), with the Executive Officer of the Alameda Local Agency 

Commission, pursuant to Title 5, Division 3, commencing with Section 56000 of the California 

Government Code; 

WHEREAS, said application shall be referred to as the Terrace View No. 1 Change of 

Organization; and  

WHEREAS, the purpose of requesting approval of an annexation and sphere of influence 

amendment is to provide wastewater services to 65.1 acres of unincorporated territory in Alameda 

County; and 

WHEREAS, the subject territory is uninhabited as it contains three registered voters under 

Government Code Section 56046 in which all the landowners have provided their written consent 

to the annexation and that no affected agency has submitted written opposition to a waiver of 

protest proceedings; and  

WHEREAS, the District agreed to no exchange of property taxes pursuant to Revenue and 

Taxation Code Section 99; and  

WHEREAS, the Executive Officer has reviewed the proposal and prepared a report with 

recommendations; and  

WHEREAS, the Executive Officer’s report and recommendations on the proposal have been 

presented to the Commission in the manner provided by law; and  

WHEREAS, the Commission considered all factors required by law under Government Code 

Section 56668 and adopted local policies and procedures;  

WHEREAS, annexations are projects and subject to the provisions of the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and 

WHEREAS, the Commission has determined that, pursuant to CEQA, it is the responsible 

agency for the proposed change of organization; and  

Attachment 1

33



WHEREAS, the Commission has reviewed and considered a Draft Environmental Impact 

Report (“EIR”) and Addendum approved by the lead agency, Oro Loma Sanitary District; and 

WHEREAS, a public meeting was held on March 11, 2021, Alameda LAFCO heard and 

received all oral and written protests, objections, and evidence which were made, presented or 

filed and all persons present were given an opportunity to appear and be heard with respect to any 

matter pertaining to said application.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COMMISSION DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE 

AND ORDER as follows:  

1. The Commission’s determinations on the proposal incorporate the information and analysis

provided in the Executive Officer’s written report presented on March 11, 2021.

2. The Commission certifies it has reviewed and considered the environmental effects of the

Terrace View No. 1 Change of Organization, and feasible mitigation measures and

alternatives within the Commission’s powers contained in the Draft Environmental Impact

Report (EIR) and Addendum and related environmental documentation prepared for the

Terrace View subdivision development and certified by the District (Lead Agency), and,

finding them to be adequate for its purposes in reviewing and approving the proposed

change of organization, the Commission in exercise of its independent judgement adopt as

its own the findings and determinations outlined in the EIR and Addendum to conclude

that based upon substantial evidence in the record as a whole that the Terrace View No. 1

Change of Organization shall not have any significant environmental effects.

3. The Commission finds the sphere of influence amendment to the Oro Loma Sanitary District

to include the affected territory as described qualifies as a project under CEQA but exempt

from further review under the “general rule” provision provided under State CEQA

Guidelines Section 15601(b)(3). This exemption appropriately applies given it can be seen

with certainty spheres of influence are planning policies and any amendments do not make

any changes to the environment or authorize any new uses or services.

4. The Commission APPROVES the following sphere of influence amendment subject to

successful recordation of the associated change of organization and in doing so makes the

statements required under Government Code Section 56425 and provided in “Exhibit A.”

5. The Executive Officer is the custodian of the records of these environmental

proceedings on which this determination is based. The records upon which these

findings and determination are made are located at the office of the Commission at 224

West Winton Avenue, Suite 110, Hayward, California 94544.

6. The agreement will permit the provision of wastewater services to the Terrace View Estates

and the Keller property located in the unincorporated area of Eden Township in the County

of Alameda.

34



7. Approval would be conditioned on a final map and geographic description conforming

to the standards of the State Board of Equalization.

8. The subject territory is uninhabited as it contains three registered voters under Government

Code Section 56663 in which all the landowners have provided their written consent to the

annexation and that no affected agency has submitted written opposition to a waiver of

protest proceedings; therefore, LAFCO does hereby waive the protest proceedings for this

annexation action in accordance with the provisions of Government Code Section 56663;

and

9. As allowed under Government Code 56107, the Commission authorizes the Executive

Officer to make non-substantive corrections to this resolution to address any technical

defect, error, irregularity, or omission.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission on

March 11, 2021 by the following vote: 

AYES:  

NOES: 

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT: 

APPROVED: ATTEST: 

__________________ __________________ 

Sblend Sblendorio  Rachel Jones 

Chair Executive Officer 

APPROVED TO FORM: 

__________________ 

Andrew Massey  

Legal Counsel  

35



Blank for Photocopying 

36



PROJECT SITE

FI
VE C

ANYONS P
ARKW

AY

HILLTOP ROAD

N
O

R
TH

TERRACE VIEW - ORO LOMA SEWER ANNEXATION
ADJACENT PROPERTIES MAP

Attachment 2

37



Blank for Photocopying 

38



. · ·. Appendix 62. APPLICATION QUESTIONNAIRE {updated 1/2008)

· . Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission
. . . . . . . .  

· ·· 1. · APPLICANT (Local Agency, Registered Voter, Landowner or 3 Chief Petitioners)
· ·· Ag�ncy/lndividual. Name: .·..;:;;O...;...ro�Lo=m�a....;::S;..;:;a.;.:..;n"""'ita=ry_.__.D;...;.i=st=ri-""ct,_ _________ _
. 1.a. Name of Designated Agency Contact or Chief Petrtioner. Jason J. Warner, General Manager/ 
Treasurer·. 
Address. 2655 Gra.�tAve�ue 

San Lorenzo · CA 94580-1838.
Phone. (510) 276-4700 FAX. (510) 276-1528 E.;.Mail. jwamer@orofoma.org 
1 b. Name 2. William Halsted 
Address. 2655 Grant Avenue 

San Lorenzo. CA 94580-1838 
Phone. (510} 276-4700 FAX. (510) 276-1528 E-'Mail. halsted@oroloma.org 
1 c. Name3. �-------------------------�---� 
Address.-------------------------------

2. NAME/TITLE OF APPLICATION PROPOSAL

Terrace View Annexation to Oro Loma Sanitary District No. 2007-2

3. TYPE OF PROPOSAUPROJECT (Check all that apply) 

(X) Annexation ( ) Consolidation 
( ) Formation ( ) Incorporation 
( ) Disincorporation ( ) Merger 
( ) Reorganization ( ) Special Study 
(X) SOI Amendment ( ) SOI Update 
( ) Establishment of Subsidiary District 

{ ) Detachment 
( ) Exercise of Latent Powers 
( ) Oissof ution 
( ) Municipal Service Review 
( ) Initial SOI Determination 

Describe the proposal or proposed change( s) of organization. Provide a justification for each 
proposed change. Attach extra sheets if necessary. 

This proposal is for annexation of approximately 65.10 acres to the Oro Loma Sanitary District for 
sanitary sewer services in anticipation of the development of Tract 6869 in the unincorporated area of 
Eden Township, Alameda County. California. Currently vacant land owned by RBC Real Estate 
Finance lnc .• Tract 6869 and the private road total approximately 56.14 acres. The Keller property, 
adiacent to Tract 6869, which is approximately 9 acres, is also included in this proposal for 

Attachment 3

39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



Exhibit C - Financial Disclosure Statement   

Local Agency Formation Commission of Alameda County

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 

1. List the names of all persons having any ownership interest in the property 
involved or any financial interest in the application.

2.  If any person identified pursuant to #1 is a corporation or partnership, list the 
names of all individuals owning more than 10% of the shares in the corporation 
or owning any partnership interest in the partnership.

3. If any person identified pursuant to #1 is a non-profit organization or a trust, 
list the names of any person serving as director of the non-profit organization 
or as trustee or beneficiary or trustor of the trust.

4.  Has any person identified pursuant to #1 had $250 or more worth of business
transacted with any Commissioner or Alternate or Commission staff person 
within the past 12 months? Yes / No  ____

56



5.  Has any person identified pursuant to #1, or his or her agent, contributed $250 
or more to any Commissioner or Alternate within the past 12 months?   
Yes  ____   No  ____

I HEREBY CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY THAT THE ABOVE 
INFORMATION IS TRUE AND ACCURATE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE.

Name/Title and Number of Application (Please print or type) 

Name of Applicant (Please print or type) 

Signature of Applicant Date

Signature of Applicant Date

Signature of Applicant Date 

Signature of Applicant Date 

57



Exhibit F - Landowner Consent to Annexation Form  

Local Agency Formation Commission of Alameda County 

LANDOWNER CONSENT TO ANNEXATION 

Name/Title of Proposal: Proposed Annexation to Oro Loma Sanitation District 

Project Number:  LAFCO 2021-1

Name of Applicant: RBC Real Estate

I/We, the undersigned, constitute all the owners of the following parcel(s) of land: 

Assessor’s Parcel No.  See attached               No. of Acres   57.15 

Assessor’s Parcel No.  ___________________________  No. of Acres   ___________ 

Assessor’s Parcel No.  ___________________________  No. of Acres   ___________ 

Assessor’s Parcel No.  ___________________________  No. of Acres   ___________ 

Assessor’s Parcel No.  ___________________________  No. of Acres  ___________ 

I/We, the undersigned, hereby make Application for Annexation of the 
above referenced parcels into: 

Oro Loma Sanitation District 
____________________________________________________________________ 
Name of Annexing Local Agency  

and, furthermore, hereby agree not to protest this annexation. 
Name of Property Owner 
(Please print or type) 

Signature of Property 
Owner 

Date 
Signed 

Parcel No. 

RBC Real Estate Finance, Inc. 03/02/21 See attached

Finance, Inc.

58



Landowner Consent 
APN Acres
085A-6000-003-00 3.60
085A-6000-004-00 2.88
085A-6000-005-00 1.44
085A-6000-006-00 3.69
085A-6000-007-00 1.77
085A-6000-008-00 1.00
085A-6000-009-00 1.03
085A-6000-010-00 1.00
085A-6000-011-00 1.81
085A-6000-012-00 1.06
085A-6000-013-00 1.00
085A-6000-014-00 1.02
085A-6000-015-00 1.02
085A-6000-016-00 1.83
085A-6000-017-00 2.22
085A-6000-018-00 2.59
085A-6000-019-00 3.04
085A-6000-020-00 3.09
085A-6000-021-00 3.80
085A-6000-022-00 2.73
085A-6000-023-00 1.92
085A-6000-024-00 2.39
085A-6000-025-00 3.04
085A-6000-026-00 3.28
085A-6000-027-00 3.58
085A-6000-028-00 1.32
Total  57.15

59



60



61



62



63



RESOLUTION NO. Z-03-59 OF 
THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF ALAMEDA COUNTY 

ADOPTED AT THE BEARING OF FEBRUARY 18, 2003, CONCERNING C-8108 

WHEREAS OAK rERRACE DEVELOPMENT PARTNERS have filed for 
CONDmONAL us� PERMIT, C-8108, to allow a minor modu:ication to an approved rezoning (1923rd 
ZU) in order to allow the relocation of the access road and modification of the lotting pattern, on one 
site containing approximately 56.9 acres, located east of Five Canyons Parkway, approximately 0.2 
miles east of Fairview Avenue, unincorporated Hayward (Fairview) area of Alameda County, 
bearing County Assessor's designation: 0SSA-6000-002-03; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission did hold a public hearing on said application at the 
hour of 1:30 p.m. on the 1g11t day of February, 2003, in the Alameda County Public Works Building, 
Auditorium, 399 Elmhurst Street, Hayward, California; and 

WHEREAS it satisfactorily appears from affidavits on file that proper notice of said public 
bearing was given in all respects as required by law; and 

WHEREAS this application bas been reviewed in accordance with the provisions of the 
California Environmental Quality Act and the Environmental Impact Report certified for the 1923rd Zoning 
Unit will serve u the environmental review for this stage of project approval; and 

WHEREAS a Pre-Hearing Analysis was submitted recommending the application be 
conditionally approved; and 

WHEREAS the Applicant and representatives appeared at said public hearing and presented 
testimony in support the application; and 

WHEREAS . the Planning Commission did, hear and consider all said reports, 
recommendations and testimony as hereinabove set forth; Now �fore 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission fmds that: 

(a) The use is required by the public need as there is a housing shortage in. the East Bay
Area and the proposed modification will facilitate construction of new housing.

(b) The use will be properly related to other land uses and transportation and service
facilities in the vicinity as the proposed residential site is consistent with adjacent
development. Adequate transportation and service facilities are available.

(c) The use, if permitted, under all the circumstances and conditions of this particular
case, will not materially affect adversely the health or safety of persons residing or
working in the vicinity, or be materially detrimental to the public welfare or
injurious to property or improvements in the neighborhood as conditioned herein,
Provisions of Reclassificati011t and of the -tentative map will bring the site into
compliance with applicable �ces and codes.

64

mike
Highlight

mike
Highlight



65



66



67



68

mike
Highlight

mike
Highlight



69

mike
Highlight

mike
Highlight

mike
Highlight



70



71



72



73

mike
Highlight

mike
Highlight

mike
Highlight



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



,. 
•. � .J 
·:�-- ·:. ·, THE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION OF ALAMEDA COUNTY 

HAYWARD, CALIFORNIA 

VESTING TENTATIVE MAP, TRACT 6869-ADOPTED.ON MAY 3, 2004 

RESOLUTION NO. 04-16 

WHEREAS Oak Terrace Development Partners have filed with the Alameda County 
Planning Department, Vesting Tentative Map, Tract 6869, to divide into 25 single family lots one 
site containing ·approximately 55.74 acres in a PD (Planned Development - 1923rd Zoning Unit) 
District, located at 25900 Fairview Avenue, south of I-580 and northeast of Fairview Avenue 
adjacent to and southeast of Five Canyons residential development in ·the Fairview Area of 
·unincorporated Alameda County; bearing County Assessor's Parcel Number 85A-6000-2-3; and

WHEREAS the Planning Commission is designated by the Alameda County 
Subdivision Ordinance as the Advisory Agency for takµig action on maps of this type; and 

WHEREAS this tract map has been reviewed in accordance with the provisions of 
the California Environmental Quality Act and the Environmental Impact Report certified for the 
1923rd Zoning Unit will serve as the environmental review for this stage of project approval; and 

WHEREAS prior to taking action in this Resolution, the Advisory Agency reviewed 
and considered the EIR and hereby finds as follows; 

1. The I>roj ect will have no new significant environmental impacts that were not
considered in the EIR and that no further environmental review is necessary for this approval; 

2. The BIR constitutes adequate and complete environmental documentation for
the Map under CEQA; and 

WHEREAS under conditions to be made as part of the map, it is .determined that: 

1. The proposed map and the proposed design and improvements are consistent
with applicable general and specific plans in that the area is planned and
zoned for the proposed.use.

2. The map is consistent with the applicable zoning, pursuant to the 1923rd
Zoning Unit.

3. The.site is physically suitable for the proposed development in that there are
no major limitations to conforming development.

134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



     
  

 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 
 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110 
Hayward, California 94544 
T:  510.670.6267 
www.acgov.org/lafco 
 

Bob Woerner, Regular 
City of Livermore 
 
Karla Brown, Regular 
City of Pleasanton  
 
Melissa Hernandez, Alt.  
City of Dublin 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 
Ayn Wieskamp, Regular  
East Bay Regional Park Dsitrict 
 
Geogean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Regular 
Public Member  
 
Vacant Seat, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

David Haubert, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Wilma Chan, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

March 11, 2021   

Item No. 8 
TO:  Alameda  Commissioners  
   

FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Lamphier-Gregory | Contract for Planning Services and Special Studies 
 

 

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will consider entering into three new 

contracts for planning services and special studies with planning consultant, Lamphier-Gregory and in 

partnership with the planning firm Economic Planning Systems (EPS), at a not-to-exceed cost of 

$103,000 over a three-year period. Alameda LAFCO obtains planning services on an as-needed basis 

to provide the maximum amount of flexibility to conduct its day-to-day operations, including special 

projects or studies to fulfill its growth management duties within the region. Staff recommends 

approval.  

 

Background 

 

Planning Services 
 

 

Alameda LAFCO has contracted planning services with Lamphier-Gregory since July 1, 2014. The 

Commission approved a 24-month contract with three additional one-year period extensions with the 

firm to provide professional planning services. Lamphier-Gregory has performed complex and 

specialized planning work in conjunction with a range of projects and programs, including but not 

limited to reviewing applications, proposals and various environmental reports; assisting with updates 

to spheres of influence and conducting corresponding municipal service reviews as needed; attending 

LAFCO meetings and various meetings with applicants; and providing professional planning support 

as needed. The cost of planning services of the proposed three-year period totals $25,000. 

 

Special Studies  

 

In response to Alameda LAFCO’s amendment to its study schedule at its last regular meeting held on 

January 14, 2021 to include two special studies – Impacts of Measure D and Review of the South 

Livermore Valley Area Plan – Lamphier-Gregory has been selected to conduct these two special 

studies as part of its planning services. The studies appropriately account for the existing commitments 

established by Alameda LAFCO as part of the current fiscal year with respect to a look and examination 

of LAFCO’s agricultural policies. Lamphier-Gregory in partnership with EPS on one of the studies has 

provided a budget and scope of work for Commission consideration (Attachment 1 and 2).  

 

 

151



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 8 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e  

 

A Focused Review of Measure D 

Lamphier-Gregory in conjunction with EPS will examine the economic and open space needs of the  

area and how Measure D has supported or constrained the delivery of efficient and effective services. 

The firms envision a two-phased approach in which Phase II is informed by the prior Phase I, and only 

initiated at the interest of Alameda LAFCO. Phase I will frame an understanding of current context 

and pose the following questions. 

 

▪ Has Measure D been successful in supporting LAFCO’s mission to ensure efficient municipal 

services and conserve the environment and public resources such as prime agricultural and 

open space land? 

 

▪ Are the provisions of Measure D consistent with Alameda LAFCO’s policies that support the 

viability of agriculture and open space? 

 

▪ Are Measure D regulations pertaining to agricultural use more or less restrictive as compared 

to comparable regulations of other Bay Area counties? Do Measure D regulations disadvantage 

Alameda County’s agricultural businesses to a greater degree than the agricultural rules and 

regulation of other locations? 

Phase II would provide a more rigorous economic analysis to be fully scoped at Alameda LAFCO’s 

request and in response to the questions that may arise from Phase I. It would examine how potential 

changes to Measure D may or may not support open space and agricultural lands.  

 

The proposed budget of the Phase I work program is at a not-to-exceed cost of $48,000. Lamphier-

Gregory and EPS expect a final report documenting their findings and conclusions to be complete 

within 10 weeks and presented at Alameda LAFCO’s July 8th regular meeting.   

 

The Review of South Livermore Valley Area Plan 

Lamphier-Gregory, on behalf of Alameda LAFCO will initiate a special study to review the South 

Livermore Valley Area Plan (SLVAP) from the perspective of LAFCO’s own mission to ensure the 

delivery of efficient municipal services and highlight any changes of importance to LAFCO’s interests 

that have occurred in the South Livermore Valley since approval, such as the following: 

 

▪ The status of vineyard acreage and number of wineries in South Livermore as of year 2020, 

compared to year 1993 

 

▪ Acres of permanent open space and agricultural lands preserved in conservation easements 

and/or land trusts in South Livermore in 2020, as compared to year 1993 

 

▪ Acres of annexations into the City of Livermore as of 2020, as compared to year 1993  

 

 

152



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 8 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

3 | P a g e  

 

▪ Acres of land in South Livermore with municipal service agreements for sewer and other 

services in 2020, compared to year 1993 

 

▪ Requests of LAFCO to consider changes in Spheres of influence changes, or municipal 

service boundary adjustments, based on increased demand since 1993 

Lamphier-Gregory anticipates that these LAFCO perspectives on the relative success of the South 

Livermore Valley Area Plan will also serve to highlight current and emerging issues, specifically 

related to potential extension of municipal services – especially wastewater service, agricultural land 

preservation and other potential jurisdictional annexations.  

 

The proposed budget of the SLVAP study is at a not-to-exceed cost of $30,000. Lamphier-Gregory 

expects a final report documenting their findings and conclusions to be complete within 10-12 weeks 

and presented at Alameda LAFCO’s July 8th regular meeting.  

 

Discussion 

 

On June 30, 2021, Alameda LAFCO’s contract with Lamphier-Gregory will expire. Staff recommends 

entering into three new contract agreements with Lamphier-Gregory from the period of March 15, 

2021 to June 30, 2024 with an option of three one-year extensions at a not-to-exceed amount of 

$103,000. The cost of service reflects the Commission’s workplan for the upcoming fiscal year. The 

description of services and rates are listed in Exhibit A and B of Attachment 3, 4, and 5.  

 

Staff would like to continue its relationship with Lamphier Gregory through this contract because of 

the firm’s general approach and experience doing LAFCO work, its extensive familiarity with Alameda 

County, and its experience with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). A draft contract 

agreement for planning services is attached (Attachment 3).  Staff would also like to enter into a new 

contract with Lamphier-Gregory in conjunction with EPS as a part of the completion of LAFCO’s 

special study on Measure D. A draft contract of the special study on Measure D is attached (Attachment 

4). Lastly, the Commission would enter into a contract with Lamphier-Gregory for the South 

Livermore Valley Area Plan Study that can be found in Attachment 5. 

 

Financing 
 

Funding to cover the proposed increase is available through savings in services and supplies, and staff 

salaries and benefits charges. An increase in funds required to support the proposed work can be drawn 

from the Commission’s fund balance; however, it is expected no net increase in the LAFCO budget 

will occur as a result of these contract agreements.  

 

 

 

 

153



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 8 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

4 | P a g e  

 

Alternatives for Action  
 

 

The following alternatives are available to the Commission:  

 

Alternative One (Recommended):  

Approve the contract with Lamphier-Gregory for as-needed-planning services at a not-to-exceed cost 

of $25,000 as shown in Attachment 3; approve a new contract with Lamphier-Gregory in partnership 

with EPS for the special study on Measure D at a not-to-exceed cost of $48,000 as shown in Attachment 

4; approve a new contract with Lamphier-Gregory for the special study on the South Livermore 

Specific Area Pan at a not-to-exceed cost of $30,000 as shown in Attachment 5; and authorize the 

Executive Officer to negotiate additional terms and conditions as needed with the advise of Legal 

Counsel.  

 

Alternative Two:  

Continue consideration of the report to a future meeting and provide direction to staff as needed. 

 

Alternative Three:  

Take no action. 

 

Recommendation  

 

It is recommended the Commission proceed with Alternative Action One.  

 
 

Respectfully,  

 
Rachel Jones 
Executive Officer 
  

Attachments:  

1. Proposal of the Measure D Study  

2. Proposal of the Review of South Livermore Valley Area Plan Study 

3. Draft Contract with Lamphier-Gregory for Planning Services 

4. Draft Contract with Lamphier-Gregory for Measure D Study 

5. Draft Contract with Lamphier-Gregory for SLVAP Study 

 

 
 

154



L A M P H I E R - G R E G O R Y

Lamphier-Gregory  4100 Redwood Road, Suite 20A #601, Oakland, CA 94619  Phone: 510-530-9930 

February 26, 2021 

Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
Alameda LAFCo  
Via email at: Rachel.Jones@acgov.org 

Re: Focused Review of Measure D 

Dear Rachel, 

Lamphier-Gregory and Economic & Planning Systems are pleased to provide you with this joint proposal 
for conducting a special study to review how Measure D has affected agricultural and open space lands 
and its surrounding communities, as directed by your Board at its January 2021 meeting. We have 
appreciated the conversation and suggested guidance that you have provided to us as we have prepared 
our attached proposal, and hope we have hit the mark in understanding both why and how Alameda 
LAFCo would like to conduct this study. 

The attached summarizes our understanding of assignment and a perspective on the issues to be 
addressed, as well as our proposed approach scope, budget and schedule.  Also attached are brief 
qualifications materials of both Lamphier-Gregory and EPS, as well as resumes of key people who would 
be involved in this work.  

If you would like to clarify or discuss any of the details of our proposal, please contact me directly at my 
home office number listed below. Thank you for contacting us about this opportunity, and we look 
forward to working with you on this very interesting and challenging study.  

Respectfully, 

Scott Gregory, President 
LAMPHIER-GREGORY 

Attachment 1

155

mailto:Rachel.Jones@acgov.org


156



Lamphier-Gregory and EPS Proposal – Alameda LAFCo Review of Measure D page 1 

Our Understanding of the Assignment 

At its January 2021 meeting, Alameda LAFCo considered amendments to its upcoming study schedule, 

and added a special study for the current fiscal year to review how Measure D has impacted agricultural 

and open space lands and its surrounding communities. This special study is intended to examine the 

economic and open space needs of the area, and how Measure D has supported or constrained the 

delivery of efficient and effective services. The Alameda County LAFCo Executive Director has requested 

that Lamphier-Gregory, having served as staff consultants to Alameda LAFCo for several years, prepare a 

proposal for preparation of this special study. We have teamed with the economics and finance firm of 

Economic and Planning Systems (EPS), who also has substantial experience and expertise in LAFCo-

related issues, to provide this proposal for preparation of a special study on Measure D. Resumes and 

qualifications for Lamphier-Gregory and EPS are included at the end of this proposal.  

Our Perspective on the Issues 

2000 - Measure D 

In November of 2000, the voters of Alameda County adopted a ballot initiative known as Measure D, 

amending the County’s General Plan land use element (the East County Area Plan, or ECAP) and other 

General Plan documents. The primary components of Measure D included increasing restrictions on 

building intensity, minimum parcel sizes and permitted uses in rural areas of the County; amending the 

County’s Urban Growth Boundary; establishing that all County planning policies and zoning regulations 

must be consistent with provisions of Measure D; and mandating that any changes to the land use 

designations, building intensity, and minimum parcel sizes established by Measure D be subject to a 

vote of the County electorate.  

The provisions of Measure D established an Urban Growth Boundary intended to be permanent (only 

changed by majority vote of the people, or by annexation to a city subject to LAFCo approval), largely 

eliminated unincorporated County development in East County, but also raised concerns about impacts 

on the economic viability of agricultural operations. 

2013 – LAFCo Special Meeting 

In July of 2013, Alameda LAFCo held a Special Meeting on agriculture and open space preservation, with 

the primary purposes of reviewing Alameda LAFCo’s existing agriculture and open space policies, better 

understanding LAFCo’s role in agriculture and open space preservation, and understanding how 

Alameda County’s Measure D Urban Growth Boundary applies to Alameda LAFCo’s decisions. As 

indicated in information presented at that 2013 special meeting,1 Alameda LAFCo’s primary policies 

pertaining to agriculture and open space include:  

                                                           
1  IPA Planning Solutions Inc., and Alameda County Community Development Agency, July 2013 
  

157



Lamphier-Gregory and EPS Proposal – Alameda LAFCo Review of Measure D page 2 

 Supporting urbanization in cities, not on prime agricultural land or important open space 

(Policies 4.3 & 4.4)  

 Identifying important agricultural lands and open space included in annexation and Sphere of 

Influence proposals, and protecting adjacent agricultural lands (Policy 4.9) 

 Establishing incentives to support agricultural and open space viability (Policy 4.10) 

 Conditioning approvals of annexations and Sphere of Influence changes on the retention of 

Measure D restrictions, as applicable (Policy 4.11), and 

 Including only those territories within existing Spheres of Influence for urbanization needed 

within 10-15 years (Policy 13.13) 

The 2013 presentation concluded that Alameda LAFCo has no direct land use regulatory authority, but 

as a State-mandated agency that acts on boundary matters as an independent agency (not part of the 

County), it is empowered to adopt local policies to reflect local conditions, and to seek a balance 

between competing interests.  

Among the potentially competing interests that were identified at that time, were those of the drafters 

and supporters of the original Measure D language who view Measure D (as written) as critical to the 

preservation of agricultural and open space lands and who do not believe that any changes to Measure 

D can be initiated without a countywide vote of the people; and those interests of certain Alameda 

County agricultural property owners, local wineries and equestrian facility operators that seek remedies 

to what they see as restrictions that are too prohibitive and that do not support the county’s agricultural 

businesses.  

2017-2020 Measure D Stakeholders 

In September of 2017, the Alameda County Board of Supervisors directed the County’s Community 

Development Agency to convene a group of stakeholders, consisting of members of the public 

representing a variety of interests, to discuss issues related to Measure D and to identify potential 

approaches to address these issues. That stakeholders group met in 2017 and 2018 to discuss two major 

issue areas: the existing floor-area-ratio (FAR) that limits the amount of development that can occur on 

agricultural parcels; and land use restrictions on property designated Resource Management. By June of 

2019, this stakeholder group had not reached agreement on any of the critical issues, they had not 

found agreement on the means by which these issues might be resolved (i.e., via a new ballot measure, 

or by technical amendments to Measure D), and no formal recommendations had been brought to the 

Alameda County Board of Supervisors. 

In October of 2019, the Alameda County Board of Supervisors directed the Community Development 

Agency staff to prepare a draft ballot measure to amend Measure D to increase the building intensity 

allowed for agricultural buildings located on rural properties. In January 2020, staff proposed 

amendments to Measure D limited to the issue of FAR requirements, and initiated a series of meetings 

with East County stakeholders and various public advisory committees to obtain public input on the 

proposed amendments. Included among those public advisory committees is the Alameda County 

158



Lamphier-Gregory and EPS Proposal – Alameda LAFCo Review of Measure D page 3 

Agricultural Advisory Committee, which includes experts in viticulture, ranching and cannabis 

production. Alameda County is now moving forward with plans to place a measure on the November 

2020 ballot to increase the building intensity allowed for agricultural buildings located on rural 

properties in those areas of the County controlled by Measure D. Such a ballot measure is expected to 

require presenting a draft of the measure at additional public meetings in all of the affected 

communities, CEQA review, and approval by the Board of Supervisors. 

Our Approach and Scope to the Assignment 

Lamphier-Gregory and EPS understand that substantial effort has been invested in this topic over a 

number of years, and that many opinions and positions on this topic are well established. We 

understand that we are already behind the curve of many others, including the County’s Community 

Development Agency staff who has been working on this topic for years. As such, we do not see our role 

in conducting this study on behalf of Alameda LAFCo as providing any recommendations about potential 

solutions, nor do we anticipate to weigh-in on the merits of one position or the other. Rather, we 

understand this study to be an Alameda LAFCo effort to better understand the economic and open 

space needs of the area, and whether Measure D supports and/or constrains these needs, including 

through the delivery of efficient and effective services (i.e., the “problem statement” that we 

understand Alameda LAFCo wishes to see addressed).  

As such, the following work program envisions a two-phased approach in which Phase II is informed by 

the prior Phase I, and only initiated at the interest of Alameda LAFCo.  We envision Phase I as framing an 

understanding of the current context, and seeking to provide answers to a number of possible 

questions: 

 Has Measure D been successful in supporting Alameda LAFCo’s mission to, “work for the citizens 

and government agencies of Alameda County to ensure efficient municipal services, balance 

infrastructure needs for sustainable growth, and to conserve the environment and public 

resources such as prime agricultural and open space land”? 

 Are the provisions of Measure D consistent with Alameda LAFCo’s policies that support the 

viability of agriculture and open space? 

 Are the Measure D regulations pertaining to agricultural use more or less restrictive as 

compared to comparable regulations of other Bay Area counties? Do Measure D regulations 

disadvantage Alameda County's agricultural businesses to a greater degree than the agricultural 

rules and regulation of other locations?  

Phase II is a more rigorous economic analysis to be fully scoped at Alameda LAFCO’s request and in 

response to the questions that may arise from Phase I work. 

159



Lamphier-Gregory and EPS Proposal – Alameda LAFCo Review of Measure D page 4 

Phase I: Understanding the Context and Framing the Economic Analysis 

Task 1:  Evaluation of Measure D Effectiveness 

Lamphier-Gregory and EPS will work with LAFCo staff to identify a list of criteria to establish a 

benchmark of how effective Measure D has been in ensuring efficient municipal services, balancing 

infrastructure needs for sustainable growth, and conserving the environment and public resources such 

as prime agricultural land and open space land. We assume that these criteria may include: 

 How much prime agricultural land and important open space has been lost in unincorporated 

East County since implementation of Measure D? 

 How many extensions of municipal services (e.g., service district annexations) have been 

requested and/or approved in unincorporated East County since implementation of Measure D? 

 Has Measure D’s intent for city-centered growth within the established Urban Growth Boundary 

accommodated the need for sustainable growth? 

Task 2: Evaluation of Measure D Effects on Agricultural Business 

Lamphier-Gregory and EPS will work with LAFCo staff to identify a list of criteria to establish a 

benchmark of how Measure D has affected agricultural businesses that rely on the County’s agricultural 

lands (i.e., has the land been preserved at the expense of the agricultural businesses that rely on this 

prime agricultural land?) We assume that these criteria may include: 

 How many acres of cultivated vineyards were in production in year 2020 (not counting the South 

Livermore Valley, which is under separate regulatory controls), as compared to cultivated acres 

of vineyards in year 2000. Similarly, what was Alameda County’s cash value of grape production 

in 2000 versus 2020? 

 How have other cash crops in Alameda County faired over the past 20 years in terms of cash 

value of product produced? 

 Can we measure a change in the number of horse stables, riding facilities and other equestrian-

based businesses in unincorporated Alameda County over the past 20 years?  

 How has the establishment of cannabis-based agriculture relied on, and utilized the County’s 

important agricultural lands? Has Measure D affected the establishment or viability of these 

businesses? 

 How much rangeland is currently grazed in unincorporated Alameda County as compared to 

grazed land in year 2000, and how do the numbers of grazing livestock compare between these 

two periods?    

Task 3: Comparison of Measure D Regulations with Other Counties 

Lamphier-Gregory will work with LAFCo staff to identify a list of criteria to establish a benchmark of how 

those zoning regulations that apply to development and use of the unincorporated East County lands 

designated as Agriculture and Resource Management pursuant to Measure D, compare to similar zoning 

160



Lamphier-Gregory and EPS Proposal – Alameda LAFCo Review of Measure D page 5 

regulations of other Bay Area counties. For purposes of this study, we have assumed this comparative 

assessment will include three other Bay Area counties of Napa, Sonoma and Contra Costa. However, this 

comparisons could be expanded to all nine Bay Area counties, or could include other important wine 

and agriculture-based counties such San Luis Obispo, Amador, San Joaquin and/or Stanislaus. We 

assume that this comparison will focus on the following types of regulations: 

 Minimum parcel size 

 Number of residential dwellings permitted, as well as secondary units, accessory dwelling units 

or caretakers units  

 Maximum building site within a parcel, and minimum building separations 

 Maximum floor-to-area ratio (FAR) for non-residential buildings 

 List of permitted and/or conditionally permitted accessory uses (e.g., bed-and-breakfast, tasting 

rooms, production facilities, on-site sales activities, special events such as banquets and 

weddings, etc.) 

Task 4: Identification of Key Issues 

Building off of the results of Task 3, EPS will select key differences between Alameda County’s Measure 

D and comparable measures in other Bay Area counties, and evaluate the opportunity costs from a land 

use and economic perspective. Up to seven interviews with Alameda County stakeholders, including 

landowners and business operators, will be used to identify the extent to which Measure D may be 

restricting business growth/expansion that is otherwise consistent with Measure D objectives. EPS also 

will interview similar types of landowners/business owners in other counties (up to three) in an effort to 

understand how their business would be impacted if their land was subject to Alameda County’s 

Measure D requirements. These series of interviews will allow Alameda LAFCo to pinpoint the most 

critical issues for subsequent Phase II analysis (if Alameda LAFCo decides to continue to this subsequent 

phase). 

Phase II: Economic Analysis 

Should Alameda LAFCo decide to move forward with Phase II work, Lamphier-Gregory and EPS would 

examine how potential changes to Measure D may or may not support LAFCo’s mission to ensure 

efficient municipal services, balance infrastructure needs for sustainable growth, and conserve the 

environment and public resources such as prime agricultural and open space land. We would seek to 

identify answers to the following types of questions: 

 Are there minor revisions to Measure D that could reduce restrictions on the use of agricultural 

land by agricultural businesses, without compromising Measure D’s effectiveness in 

preservation of agricultural land and open space? This could include selected testing of Alameda 

County Planning’s proposal for an increase in allowed FAR. 

 What might be the induced development potential under alternative scenarios? For example, if 

Measure D regulations were to be less restrictive, how much additional agricultural business 

161



Lamphier-Gregory and EPS Proposal – Alameda LAFCo Review of Measure D page 6 

activity and agriculture-accessory development might be expected? Can we find a "best guess" 

method to narrow down the likely locations where such less restrictive regulations would most 

likely result in increased economic development? Would this be throughout Livermore Valley? 

North Livermore? South Livermore? Sunol? Castro Valley? 

 What might be the economic benefit associated with increased agricultural development 

potential? For example, can we measure the economic implications (in dollars) of current 

Measure D regulations (i.e., lost opportunity costs) on local agricultural businesses, as compared 

to economic benefits that businesses in other counties may currently be receiving?  - Or 

conversely, can we measure the economic benefits that might accrue to Alameda County 

agricultural businesses with less restrictive regulations? 

 Fiscal impacts and Public Service Impacts: If economic development activities were to increase 

as a result of changes in regulations, would there be a commensurate increase in the need for 

public services (fire, law enforcement, wastewater, water, etc.)? Would the economic benefits 

outweigh potentially increased service costs? 

 Would an increase in economic activity on agricultural lands adversely affect the preservation of 

open space and natural resource values?   

Budget 

Our proposed budget for Phase I of this work program is based on a time and materials estimate with a 

total not-to-exceed budget of $48,000. This budget estimate includes $18,000 for EPS’s work pursuant 

to Tasks 2 and 4 (above), and $30,000 for Lamphier-Gregory’s work pursuant to Tasks 1 and 3 (above), 

as well as overall project management efforts and final presentation of the results of our analyses to 

Alameda LAFCo staff and Board. Lamphier-Gregory and EPS will bill only for work completed, and any 

remaining budget not needed for these studies will not be invoiced.  

Schedule 

Our team is prepared to begin immediately upon Alameda LAFCo’s authorization to proceed. We expect 

the work will take between 8 to 10 weeks to complete, including preparation of a final report 

documenting our findings and conclusions.  

Staffing and Qualification 

Brief qualifications of our respective firms, and resumes of key persons assigned to this project are 

attached.  

162



Statement of Qualifications - Alameda County LAFCo Page 1

A. LAmphier-GreGory QuALificAtions

Lamphier-Gregory is a professional services firm 
specializing in urban planning, environmental analysis 
and project management. Our services include 
preparation of Initial Studies, Mitigated Negative 
Declarations, Environmental Impact Reports (EIRs) and 
other environmental review documents. Our firm also 
provides on-call professional planning assistance to 
local planning or community development agencies 
related to project review, permit processing and 
project management for large complex, and often 
controversial projects.

Alameda LAfco

Since 2015, Lamphier-Gregory has been serving as 
the Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission‘s 
land use and environmental planning consultant,  
providing a range of professional planning and 
environmental services to the LAFCo Executive Officer 
and Commission on an as-needed basis. We have 
worked closely with the Alameda LAFCo Executive 
Officer on often complex and specialized planning 
assignments related to matters over which LAFCo has 
governmental responsibility and decision-making 
authority. These assignments have included:

•	 Reviewing and analyzing LAFCo applications

•	 Processing actions requiring LAFCo approval, 
including sphere of influence adjustments, 
annexations, incorporations, detachments, 
dissolutions and other forms of organizational 
changes 

•	 Evaluating environmental documents prepared by 
other agencies (e.g., cities, special districts, acting 
as Lead Agencies under CEQA) for projects that 
would subsequently require LAFCo action

•	 Preparing environmental documents for LAFCo 
projects

•	 Assisting with Sphere of Influence (SOI) updates 
and Municipal Service Reviews (MSRs)

•	 Attending meetings, LAFCo hearings, and 
providing professional planning support on an as-
needed basis. 

Sanitary District Sphere, Service Area

other LAfco experience

Contra Costa LAFCo

Lamphier-Gregory was selected from among other 
candidates in early 2008 to serve as the planning and 
environmental consultant to Contra Costa LAFCo. Our 
original contract was renewed in 2011 and extended 
in 2013. During the six years of our involvement we 
have become familiar with the wide variety of matters 
that come before LAFCo and how the state and locally 
adopted policies and procedures guide LAFCo’s 
determinations and decisions. We have developed 
a close and effective working relationship with the 
Executive Officer where our involvement in reviewing 
and providing input on various matters is provided 
quickly and cost effectively. While not a precise 
accounting of all of our work for Contra Costa LAFCo 
the following indicates where most of our effort has 
been focused:

•	 Reviewing proposals and assisting in drafting 
staff reports and resolutions for over 100 matters 
requiring action by the Commission, including 
annexations, SOI amendments, Out of Agency 
Service requests and incorporations.

•	 Reviewing CEQA documents for various 
development projects, General Plan Updates and 
other activities throughout the County involving 
matters requiring subsequent LAFCo action. The 
CEQA documents include Initial Studies/Negative 
Declarations and EIRs. We provide comments 

163



Statement of Qualifications - Alameda County LAFCoPage 2

and input to the LAFCo Executive Officer and 
collaborate on the drafting of comment letters 
sent to the Lead Agency. 

•	 Selecting and managing third-party environmental 
consultants who, under contract to LAFCo, prepare 
CEQA documents for projects which LAFCo has 
become Lead Agency (i.e., proposed expansion of 
the Spheres of Influence of the cities of Pittsburg 
and Antioch, the Contra Costa Water District and 
the Delta Diablo Sanitation District).

•	 Assisting on an update/revision of Contra Costa 
LAFCo’s local policies and procedures for Sphere 
of Influence amendments and for LAFCo’s 
requirements for CEQA compliance.

•	 Preparing addendums to a previously adopted 
CEQA documents to ensure that LAFCo issues are 
specifically addressed 

el Dorado hills incorporation

In 2004 - 2005, prior to our work for Contra Costa LAFCo, 
we were selected by El Dorado LAFCo to manage the 
process for the proposed incorporation of El Dorado 
Hills as a new city. Incorporation proponents had 
become embroiled in arguments with LAFCo staff over 
various issues and the friction and distrust escalated 
to the point of the proponents filing a lawsuit against 
LAFCo. 

Folsom
Lake

Deer C reek

W
eber C reek

N
ew

Y
o
rk

C
re
ek

D
eer C

reek

US HWY 50

LATROBE
RD

GREEN VALLEY RD

DEER VALLEY RD

SA
LM

ON
FA

LL
S

RD

BASS
LAKE

RD

CAM
BRIDG

E
RD

SERRANO PKY

COUNTRY CLUB DR

CAMERON
PARK

DR

STARBUCK
RD

SILVA
VALLEY

PKY

WHITE ROCK RD

FRANCISCO
DR

JU
RG

EN
S

RD

LAKEHILLS
DR

MEDER RD

EL
DO

RADO
HILLS

BLVD

MALCOLM DIXON RD

SOUTH
SHIN

GLE
RD

PALMER DR

DUROCK RD

SH
IN

G
LE

LI
M

E
M

IN
E

RD

HASTING
S

DR

Bass
Lake

Cameron
Park
LakeEL DORADO HILLS

SA
C

R
A

M
EN

TO
 C

O
U

N
TY

CITY OF FOLSOM

CAMERON 
PARK

SOURCE: EL DORADO COUNTY

LEGEND

INCORPORATION BOUNDARY

MAJOR ROADS

RIVERS AND CREEKS

0 0.5 1 2

MILES

EL DORADO HILLS INCORPORATION BOUNDARY

EL DORADO HILLS INCORPORATION PROJECT

El Dorado Hills is an unincorporated community of 30,000 residents in El Dorado County, some 30 miles 
east of Sacramento on U.S. Highway 50. A group of local El Dorado Hills residents wished to incorporate 
their area as a new city in order to strengthen local control over land use, accelerate needed traffic improve-
ments, and make local government more accountable to area residents. �e legal process of incorporation is 
administered by the El Dorado Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) in accordance with the 
Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000.  

El Dorado Local Agency Formation Commission

THE PROJECT:

LAMPHIER-GREGORY’S ROLE:

THE OUTCOME:

LAMPHIER GREGORY
URBAN PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS

An earlier attempt at incorporation in the late 1990s resulted in litigation between the incorporation propo-
nents and El Dorado LAFCO. �e lawsuit was resolved with the mutual approval of a Settlement Agreement 
which specified hiring an independent third-party Project Manager to manage the process. 

Lamphier-Gregory was selected to manage the overall process, coordinating with LAFCO staff and legal coun-
sel, the Incorporation Proponents, and County staff to keep the complex process on target.  We prepared and 
managed a Master Task List, Time Schedule and 
Budget and oversaw contracts with other firms for the 
required documentation and analysis. We coordi-
nated the Revenue Neutrality negotiations between 
the incorporation proponents and the County. In our 
role as the environmental consultant, we also prepared 
a focused EIR that identified both direct and indirect 
effects that would result from incorporation.

Between June 2004 and June 2005 Lamphier-
Gregory oversaw the completion of all required steps 
in the incorporation process and brought the matter 
to a final LAFCO hearing on June 8, 2005 where the 
Commission approved the terms of incorporation by 
a unanimous vote.  �e matter was submitted to the 
voters of the incorporation area for the November 8, 
2005 ballot. No challenges were filed against either 
the EIR or the proposed incorporation itself.  How-
ever, a vigorous campaign by incorporation oppo-
nents cast doubt on the merits of incorporation, and 
the measure failed by 57% - 43%. 

El Dorado Hills - Proposed Incorporation Boundary

Golden Gate National Seashore, Marin County

Lamphier-Gregory was retained under the auspices 
of the Court as a neutral party to manage the 
process, oversee the preparation of the required 
comprehensive fiscal analysis and prepare an 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for compliance 
with CEQA.  The incorporation process was successfully 
completed in time for the placement of the proposal 
on the upcoming ballot (June 2005) at which time the 
proposal was defeated. 

Marin LAFCo

Other LAFCo experience by Lamphier-Gregory 
includes work for Marin LAFCo in 1999 – 2000 where 
we provided assistance to LAFCo staff on a range of 
activities similar to our work for Contra Costa LAFCo, 
including:

•	 Project Management and Coordination

•	 Interagency Coordination

•	 Data Collection

•	 CEQA Document reviews

164



Mr. Gregory brings over 35 years of professional experience in the preparation of 
environmental documents, serving as environmental consultant to cities, counties, other 
governmental agencies and private developer clients. His wide range of environmental work 
has provided him with a high level of competency and knowledge of both the CEQA process 
and the substantive requirements of CEQA documents. Throughout his career, Mr. Gregory 
has developed a strong interest in working with communities to resolve complex land use 
and environmental issues.

Project Management

Mr. Gregory is especially adept at navigating the complexities of the CEQA process to achieve 
legal compliance, identify sound strategic approaches to the environmental review process,  
and meeting client objectives. His responsibilities at Lamphier-Gregory have included serving 
as Project Manager on a number of large projects with planning services budgets exceeding 
$1 million. As Project Manager, Mr. Gregory’s role has included managing overall schedules 
and budgets to ensure successful completion of planning and environmental review. He 
has also coordinated technical input from a variety of disciplines to ensure that these issues 
are adequately and appropriately addressed. As a Project Manager, Mr. Gregory essentially 
serves as an extension of the client’s staff to advocate and/or represent the client’s interests 
throughout the planning and environmental review process.

Representative Projects:

•	 Oakland Army Base Reuse Plan and Redevelopment Plan EIR, City of Oakland and the 
Oakland Base Reuse Authority

•	 Kaiser Oakland Medical Center and Replacement Hospital Project, and Alta Bates Summit 
Hospital Master Plan, City of Oakland 

•	 Oak Knoll Mixed-Use Community Plan, Contract Planning Services, City of Oakland

•	 Genentech Master Plan and EIR, Genentech and City of South San Francisco

Preparation of Complex Environmental Documents

Mr. Gregory is skilled and experienced in preparing clear and concise environmental 
documents that communicate to technical audiences as well as public decision-makers and 
the community. Mr. Gregory has written numerous CEQA documents ranging from initial 
studies and negative declarations to complex combined EIR/EIS reports. His role has also 
required an ability to interpret technical details into easy to understand, publicly accessible 
and comprehensive documents that have enabled city councils, county supervisors and 
planning commissions to make informed decisions on proposed projects.

Representative Projects:

•	 Buena Vista Wind Energy Repowering Project EIR, County of Contra Costa

•	 West Oakland Specific Plan and EIR, and Coliesum Area Specific Plan and EIR, City of 
Oakland 

•	 Napa Oaks Project EIR, City of Napa 

•	 Contra Costa Comprehensive Transportation Plan EIR, Contra Costa Transportation 
Authority 

Education

Master of Regional Planning 
and Landscape Architecture, 
University of Massachusetts, 
Amherst – 1982

Bachelor of Environmental 
Design, University of Colorado, 
Boulder – 1980

Employment History

2007 – Present
President,  
Lamphier-Gregory

1997 – 2007
Principal,  
Lamphier-Gregory

1992 – 1997
The Planning Collaborative

1989 – 1992
Sedway Cooke Associates

1984 – 1992
Resource Concepts, Inc. 
Carson City, Nevada

Scott Gregory, President sgregory@lamphier-gregory.com

L a m p h i e r - G r e g o r y  1 9 4 4  E m b a r c a d e r o ,  O a k l a n d ,  C a  9 4 6 0 6  5 1 0 - 5 3 5 - 6 6 9 0  l a m p h i e r - g r e g o r y . c o m

165



 

 

Statement of Qualifications 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

166



 

 

ABOUT ECONOMIC & PLANNING SYSTEMS, INC. 

 The Firm Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) is a land 
economics consulting firm experienced in the full 
spectrum of services related to real estate 
development, the financing of public infrastructure 
and government services, land use and conservation 
planning, and government organization. 

 Guiding Principle EPS was founded on the principle that real estate 
development and land use-related public policy should 
be built on realistic assessment of market forces and 
economic trends, feasible implementation measures, 
and recognition of public policy objectives, including 
provisions for required public facilities and services. 

Areas of Expertise  Real Estate Market and Feasibility Analysis 
 Public Finance 
 Fiscal and Economic Impact Analysis 
 Reuse, Revitalization, and Redevelopment 
 Real Estate Transactions and Negotiations 
 Regional Economics and Industry Analysis 
 Land Use Planning and Growth Management 
 Open Space and Resource Conservation 
 Government Organization 
 Transportation Planning and Analysis 
 Asset Valuation and Repositioning 

 Clients Served Since 1983 EPS has provided consulting services to 
hundreds of public- and private-sector clients in 
California and throughout the United States.  Clients 
include cities, counties, special districts, multi-
jurisdictional authorities, property owners, developers, 
financial institutions, and land use attorneys. 

 Staff Capabilities The professional staff includes specialists in public 
finance, real estate development, land use and 
transportation planning, government organization, 
and computer applications.  The firm excels in 
preparing concise analyses that disclose risks and 
impacts, support decision making, and provide 
solutions to real estate development and land use-
related problems. 

 EPS Locations Oakland, Los Angeles, and Sacramento, California 
Denver, Colorado 

 EPS Web Site www.epsys.com 

167



 
 

 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 3 Z:\Shared\Proposals\Oakland\211000s\211017_Alameda County Measure 

D\SOQSTD_Oak.docx 

PUBLIC FINANCE 

Serv i c es  P rov ided  

EPS provides a range of services necessary to fund and build community facilities and capital 
improvements, including needs assessment, arranging for funding, and the development and 
administration of comprehensive financing programs.  EPS’s goal is to ensure successful 
development of projects and land use plans by preparing feasible financing plans that respond to 
public and private objectives and make creative use of available financing mechanisms.  EPS also 
provides a range of services necessary to fund ongoing operations of services and facilities for 
public entities.  

Specific services provided by EPS include forecasting demand to assist in infrastructure design, 
sizing, and timing; identifying and forecasting potential funding sources; allocating capital costs 
among participating entities; and assessing the impacts of capital financing alternatives on 
project feasibility and public finance negotiations, including drafting development agreements.  
Additional EPS services include formulating assessment rates, special tax formulas, and fee 
ordinances and developing funding strategies for the ongoing costs of operations and 
maintenance for public services and facilities. 

Repres enta t i ve  P ro j ec ts  

 North Natomas Community Plan Financing and Nexus Study, Sacramento, California 

 Fort Ord Financial Leverage/ Credit Enhancement Study, Monterey, California 

 Rocklin Unified School District Facilities Financing, Rocklin, California 

 Stapleton Airport Reuse Financing Plan, Denver, Colorado 

 Railyards/Richards Boulevard Redevelopment Areas Infrastructure Financing Plan and Nexus 
Study, Sacramento, California 

 Entrance to Aspen Financing Program, Aspen, Colorado 

 Joint Unified School District Long-Range Facilities Master Plan, Davis, California 

 Regional Transportation Impact Fee Program, San Joaquin County, California 

 Southeast Woodland Specific Plan Infrastructure and School Financing Plan, Woodland, 
California 

 Community Partnership Financing Plan, Snowmass, Colorado 

 Mountain House Community Financing Plan, San Joaquin County, California 

 Regional Sports Facility Financing Plan, Stanislaus County, California 

 Santa Monica Civic Center Financing Plan, Santa Monica, California 

 Sacramento Public Library Authority Financing Plan, Sacramento, California 

 Stanford Ranch Mello-Roos Financing Plan, Rocklin, California 

 Sewer Rate Analysis, Modesto, California 

168



 
 

 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 4 Z:\Shared\Proposals\Oakland\211000s\211017_Alameda County Measure 

D\SOQSTD_Oak.docx 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Serv i c es  P rov ided  

In nearly 30 years of operation, EPS has developed a wide variety of technical areas of expertise 
that are critical to planning and implementing business and economic development strategies, 
including market, fiscal impact, and socioeconomic impact analyses and development and 
operational feasibility assessments.  Our public- and private-sector clients have benefited from 
our objective and interdisciplinary analysis, identifying opportunities for physical and economic 
development, creating strategies for successful implementation, and assessing the impacts of 
such developments or programs on the social, economic, and fiscal conditions of the impacted 
communities.   

 Economic Development Plans/Strategies—EPS has conducted numerous studies focused 
on efforts to attract, retain, and promote business and industry in specific subareas and in 
larger city/regions.  Recent examples have included communitywide economic development 
plans and strategies for San Francisco and Sacramento as well as Arvada and Parker in the 
Denver metro area.  We have also prepared economic development plans for resort/tourist 
destinations including Glenwood Springs, Pagosa Springs, Steamboat Springs, and 
Carbondale, Colorado.   

 Market Analysis for Targeted Industries—EPS has conducted market analysis to identify 
constraints and opportunities for specific desired industries and business clusters.  Examples 
include green technology studies in Denver and San Francisco; film production studies in 
Albuquerque and San Francisco; health and biosciences in Aurora, Colorado, and Alameda, 
California; light industrial/transportation industries in Tucson, San Francisco and Stockton, 
California; as well as wine industries in Sonoma and Mendocino Counties, California.   

 Real Estate Market and Feasibility Analyses—EPS’s experience and expertise in the field 
of land use economics and development brings an added dimension to our work on economic 
strategic plans, particularly where facilities such as business and industrial park development 
are under consideration and where the related land use and community impacts of primary 
business development need to be considered.  This market and feasibility information is used 
in a variety of applications including project-specific feasibility, downtown revitalization and 
redevelopment, comprehensive land use planning, and economic analysis of impact fees and 
other public finance programs.   

 Outreach to Local Business Representatives—EPS frequently participates in focus 
groups, advisory committees, and similar workshops to solicit input from representatives of 
local industry sectors regarding their challenges and needs.  Recent examples include work 
for San Francisco’s Industrial Land Study and Economic Development Strategy, a large 
industrial development area in San Jose, and a Transit-Oriented Corridor Development 
Strategy for Tempe, Arizona.   

  

169



 
 

 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 7 Z:\Shared\Proposals\Oakland\211000s\211017_Alameda County Measure 

D\SOQSTD_Oak.docx 

ECONOMIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Serv i c es  P rov ided  

EPS evaluates the economic impact of a wide range of public and private sector activities, 
including land use projects, industry sector output, and government programs and policies.  The 
firm’s economic impact analysis generally focuses on quantifiable variables such as regional 
employment, output, property values, regional dollar flow, and industry sales.  Our analysis 
estimates the direct, indirect, and induced effect of a project or policy on these variables. 

Economic impact studies are often completed within the context of land use plan review, 
environmental impact reports, regulatory evaluation and compliance, resource management 
plans, and general economic assessments.  Our economic analysis employs a wide variety of 
tools, from market analysis and consumer surveys to input-output analysis and economic 
modeling. 

Repres enta t i ve  P ro j ec ts  

 Economic Impact of Federal Endangered Species Critical Habitat Designation, California 

 East Bay Regional Parks District Economic Impact Analysis, Alameda County, California 

 Mather Airport Economic Impact Analysis, Sacramento, California 

 Economic Impact of Napa Center for Wine, Food, and the Arts, Napa, California 

 Wal-Mart Site Economic Impact Analysis, Woodland, California 

 Economic Impact of California Clean Air, Jobs, and Transportation Act (CALTEA), California 

 Economic Impact of Tracy Growth Control Measure, Tracy, California 

 Economic Impact of Sears Point Raceway Expansion, Marin County, California 

 Economic Impact of Gulch Redevelopment, Nashville, Tennessee 

 Socioeconomic Impact of University of California Merced Campus, Merced County, California 

 Economic Impact of Sonoma County Construction Industry, Sonoma County, California 

 Economic Impact of Public Utility Commission Energy Conservation Program, San Francisco, 
California 

 Colorado Housing Trust Fund Economic Impact Analysis, Colorado 

 Tracy Gateway Economic Benefit Study, Tracy, California 

 Davis Technology Center Fiscal and Economic Review, Davis, California 

 Lincoln Agricultural Land Value Analysis, Lincoln, California 

 Yolo County Economic and Revenue Analysis, Yolo County, California 

170



 
 

 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 10 Z:\Shared\Proposals\Oakland\211000s\211017_Alameda County Measure 

D\SOQSTD_Oak.docx 

REGIONAL ECONOMICS AND INDUSTRY ANALYSIS 

Serv i c es  P rov ided  

EPS evaluates regional economic conditions and industrial trends as a basis for comprehensive 
planning, facility programming, and economic development efforts.  Our services integrate an 
understanding of market forces on local, regional, and national levels to ensure that our findings 
have broad, long-term relevance.  Our analysis takes into account emerging industry, 
demographic, and/or technological trends that affect the economic relationships within and 
between the various sectors under consideration. 

EPS’s services in this practice are often designed to provide information on the future growth and 
performance of particular industries and/or regions.  The firm provides expertise on such 
industries as biotechnology, telecommunications, environmental technology, agriculture, tourism, 
trade, and entertainment.  EPS also evaluates the competitiveness and specialization of regions 
and submarkets, including the geographic distribution of various economic “clusters.”  Specific 
technical methods employed include the analysis of industry-specific research and surveys, 
regional growth and commute patterns, and interviews with local officials and industry experts. 

Repres enta t i ve  P ro j ec ts  

 Rocky Flats Base Reuse Target Industry Study, Golden, Colorado 

 Analysis of Wine and Timber Industry, Sonoma and Mendocino Counties, California 

 Civic Auditorium Market Assessment, Santa Monica, California 

 Stapleton Airport Market Creation Strategies, Denver, Colorado 

 Stockton Airport Industry Analysis/Special Purpose Plan, Stockton, California 

 Oakland Produce District Feasibility Study, Oakland, California 

 Home Improvement Market Study, Santa Rosa, California 

 Mission Valley Rock Aggregate Production Market Analysis, Alameda, California 

 Del Norte Plaza Multiplex Cinema Market Analysis, El Cerrito, California 

 Los Positas Community College Workforce Training and Conference Center Feasibility Study, 
Livermore, California 

 Regional Economic Growth and Linkages Analysis, Alameda County, California 

 Sierra Region Demographic and Economic Profile, Sierra Nevada 

 Route 24/Caldecott Tunnel Corridor Study, Alameda and Contra Costa Counties, California 

 Clovis Research and Technology Park Feasibility Analysis, Clovis, California 

 Biotech Industry Study for Fitzsimons Army Medical Center, Aurora, Colorado 

 Alameda Science and Technology Center Market Analysis, Alameda, California  

171



 
 

 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 11 Z:\Shared\Proposals\Oakland\211000s\211017_Alameda County Measure 

D\SOQSTD_Oak.docx 

LAND USE PLANNING AND GROWTH MANAGEMENT 

Serv i c es  P rov ided  

EPS combines a thorough working knowledge of land use planning and regulation practices with 
its real estate and economic expertise to contribute to land use planning and growth 
management strategies.  The firm's roles in land use planning programs typically include 
economic and demographic forecasts; land use information and market inputs to plan 
formulation; fiscal and financial evaluation of plan alternatives; and land use policy 
implementation.  EPS’s integrated approach to land use, transportation, market, fiscal, and 
financial issues results in plans and programs that effectively guide future development. 

EPS provides a range of services related to land use planning and growth management.  We 
evaluate the physical and economic linkage between jobs and housing and the economic impacts 
of land use and growth control measures.  We analyze the effect of employment growth on the 
provision of City services and amenities as well as the opportunities and constraints presented by 
regional growth patterns.  Our services are also frequently applied to the preparation of 
Comprehensive Plans, Subarea Plans, Housing Elements, growth projection studies, and 
jobs/housing linkage or in-lieu of fee programs. 

Repres enta t i ve  P ro j ec ts  

 Snyderville Basin Growth Management Report, Summit County, Utah 

 Sonoma Workforce Housing Analysis, Sonoma County, California 

 El Dorado County Growth Forecast, El Dorado County, California 

 Conaway Ranch Specific Plan Regional Growth Forecast and Market Analysis, Woodland, 
California 

 Interstate 5 Corridor Population and Employment Forecasts, San Joaquin County, California 

 Comprehensive General Plan Update, El Cerrito, California 

 Land Use/Transportation Corridor Plan, San Mateo County, California 

 Sonoma/Marin Land Use and Transportation Study, Sonoma County, California 

 Denver Regional Council of Governments Urban Centers Pilot Project, Denver, Colorado 

 Bay Area Partnership Regional Land Use Data Analysis, San Francisco Bay Area, California 

 McCarthy Ranch General Plan Amendment Fiscal and Financial Impact Analysis, Milpitas, 
California 

 Longmont Area Comprehensive Plan Update, Longmont, Colorado 

 Nashville Gulch Comprehensive Plan Economic Impact Analysis, Nashville, Tennessee 

172



 
 

 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 12 Z:\Shared\Proposals\Oakland\211000s\211017_Alameda County Measure 

D\SOQSTD_Oak.docx 

OPEN SPACE AND RESOURCE CONSERVATION 

Serv i c es  P rov ided  

EPS prepares financing and implementation strategies that support active and passive open 
space and conservation projects.  EPS provides financial analysis for Open Space Elements, Park 
and Recreation Master Plans, Agriculture Preservation Strategies, and Habitat Conservation 
Plans.  The firm’s broad knowledge of public facility and open space financing techniques and 
land use planning and regulatory practices, combined with our experience in resolving land use 
conflicts, allows EPS to develop feasible conservation programs that achieve conservation goals 
in a financially sound manner. 

EPS believes that habitat and recreational open space offer broad economic and quality of life 
benefits and therefore should be funded by broad-based and equitable financing techniques 
similar to those used for other community facilities.  Our studies identify the economic benefits 
to landowners participating in comprehensive conservation plans as opposed to completing time-
consuming individual mitigation projects.  EPS believes that it is important to provide funding 
mechanisms that best suit the conservation, acquisition, and management goals, while 
accounting for the development and landownership patterns and the sources and types of 
supplemental funding.  

Repres enta t i ve  P ro j ec ts  

 Yolo County Habitat Conservation Plan, Yolo County, California 

 Economic Analysis of the Natomas Basin Habitat Conservation Plan, Sacramento, California 

 South Sacramento Habitat Conservation Plan, Sacramento County, California 

 Economic Feasibility Study for the El Dorado County Ecological Preserves, El Dorado County, 
California 

 Contra Costa Biodiversity Study, Contra Costa County, California 

 Santa Rosa/Rohnert Park Community Separator Preservation Strategies, Sonoma County, 
California 

 Longmont Residential Open Space Study, Longmont, Colorado 

 South Livermore Valley Vineyard Area Plan, Livermore, California 

 Recreation and Parks Master Plan Update, Santa Monica, California 

 City of Brentwood’s Parks Master Plan Financial Review, Brentwood, California 

 San Jose Parks and Recreation Master Plan, San Jose, California 

 Davis Open Space Element Revision Financing Plan, Davis, California 

 Agricultural Buffer and Farmland Mitigation Ordinance, Davis, California 

 County Farmland Preservation Program, San Joaquin County, California 

 Natomas Basin Habitat Conservation Plan, Sacramento, California 

 Green Valley Area Transfer of Development Program, Solano County, California 

173



 
 

 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 13 Z:\Shared\Proposals\Oakland\211000s\211017_Alameda County Measure 

D\SOQSTD_Oak.docx 

GOVERNMENT ORGANIZATION 

Serv i c es  P rov ided  

EPS evaluates the costs, benefits, and feasibility of local government reorganization.  Completion 
of government organization studies draws upon EPS’s expertise in fiscal analysis, public finance, 
and land use planning, along with a thorough knowledge of local government forms and options. 

EPS’s services generally are required as a part of state annexation law or negotiations between 
existing entities involved in reorganizations or common purpose efforts.  These proceedings and 
efforts include the formation of new government entities including annexations, municipal 
incorporations, special district formations, and joint exercise of powers organizations.  As part of 
its work, EPS typically prepares detailed pro forma budget forecasts for the new jurisdiction, 
documentation or alternative organizational options, and estimates of impacts on existing 
entities. 

Repres enta t i ve  P ro j ec ts  

 Los Angeles Reorganization, San Fernando Valley, California 

 Goleta Valley Incorporation Feasibility Analysis and Tax Sharing Agreement, Goleta, 
California 

 Sacramento County Interim Open Space Commission, Sacramento, California 

 County Reorganization Analysis, Santa Barbara County, California 

 Windsor Incorporation Feasibility Study, Sonoma County, California 

 Governance Study, Pitkin County, Colorado 

 Annexation Study, Rancho Murieta, California 

 Tassajara Area Annexation, Alameda County, California 

 Pleasant Grove Incorporation Comprehensive Fiscal Analysis, Yolo County, California 

 Tahoe Incorporation Feasibility Study, Douglas County, Nevada 

 Templeton Incorporation Feasibility Study, San Luis Obispo County, California 

 Orange County Fire District Detachment Feasibility Study, Orange County, California 

 Northstar Annexation Study, Nevada County, California 

 City Parks Master Plan and Organizational Options, Brentwood, California 

 Evaluation of Truckee Incorporation Feasibility Studies, Nevada County, California 

 El Dorado Hills Incorporation Comprehensive Fiscal Analysis, El Dorado Hills, California 

 Feasibility Analysis/Comprehensive Fiscal Analysis for Incorporation, Rancho Cordova, 
California 

 Incorporation Fiscal and Feasibility Review and Comprehensive Fiscal Analysis, Elk Grove, 
California 

174



 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 16 Z:\Shared\Proposals\Oakland\211000s\211017_Alameda County Measure 

D\SOQSTD_Oak.docx 

REPRESENTATIVE CLIENTS 

Cities 
Anaheim, California 
Aspen, Colorado 
Auburn, California 
Austin, Texas 
Berkeley, California 
Boulder, Colorado 
Chico, California 
Citrus Heights 
Concord, California 
Davis, California 
Denver, Colorado 
Folsom, California 
Fremont, California 
Los Angeles, California 
Merced, California 
Modesto, California 
Napa, California 
Oakland, California 
Orlando, Florida 
Phoenix, Arizona 
Pleasanton, California 
Redding, California 
Redmond, Washington 
Redwood City, California 
Richmond, California 
Rocklin, California 
Roseville, California 
Sacramento, California 
San Clemente, California 
San Francisco, California 
San Jose, California 
San Luis Obispo, California 
San Mateo, California 
Santa Barbara, California 
Santa Monica, California 
Santa Rosa, California 
Seaside, California 
Seattle, Washington 
Stockton, California 
Truckee, California 
Turlock, California 
Vacaville, California 
Vallejo, California 
Ventura, California 
Walnut Creek, California 
Watsonville, California 
Winters, California 

Counties 
Alameda, California 
Contra Costa, California 
El Dorado, California 
King, Washington 
Marin, California 
Mendocino, California 
Merced, California 
Monterey, California 
Orange, California 
Placer, California 
Pitkin, Colorado 
Sacramento, California 
San Joaquin, California 
San Luis Obispo, California 
San Mateo, California 
Santa Cruz, California 
Sonoma, California 
Summit, Utah 
Sutter, California 

Yamhill, Oregon 
Yolo, California 
Yuba, California 

Public Agencies and Special Districts 
Alameda County Congestion Management 

Agency 
Alameda Reuse and Redevelopment 

Authority 
Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
Capital Area Development Authority  
Capital District Transportation Authority, 

New York 
Contra Costa LAFCO 
Denver Regional Transportation District 
East Bay Regional Park District 
El Dorado Hills CSD 
El Toro Redevelopment Authority 
Fitzsimmons Reuse Authority, Colorado 
Fort Ord Reuse Authority 
Incline Village G.I.D. 
Los Angeles Community Redevelopment 

Agency 
Mobile (Alabama) Airport Authority 
Northwest Pacific Railroad Authority 
Olivehurst Public Utility District  
Port of Los Angeles 
Port of Oakland 
Port of San Diego 
Port of San Francisco 
Roaring Fork Transit Authority 
Sacramento Area Council of Governments 
Sacramento City-County Office of 

Metropolitan Water Planning 
Sacramento Open Space Commission 
Sacramento Regional Transportation 

District 
San Joaquin Council of Governments  
Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation 

and Open Space District 
Stapleton Redevelopment Corporation, 

Colorado 
Transmission Agency of Northern 

California 
Tri-Valley Wastewater Authority 
Treasure Island Development Authority 
Inter-American Development Bank 

Nonprofit/Advocacy Organizations 
American Center for Wine, Food, and Arts 
Building Industry Association 
Downtown Spokane Partnership 
East Bay Conversion and Reinvestment 

Commission 
Marin Agricultural Land Trust 
Mountains Restoration Trust 
North Coast Builders Exchange 
San Francisco Jewish Museum 
Santa Cruz County Business Council 
The Nature Conservancy 
The Trust for Public Land 
The Wilderness Society 
Yosemite Restoration Trust 

State and Federal Agencies 
Alaska Division of Tourism 
California Attorney General 
California Coastal Conservancy 
California State Department of Fish 

and Game 
Caltrans 

National Park Service 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
U.S. Forest Service 

Private Sector 
AEW Capital Management 
Aspen Skiing Company 
A. Teichert & Son 
Beazer Homes 
Buzz Oates Enterprises 
Callahan Property Company 
Camray Development and 

Construction Co. 
Catellus Development Corporation 
Centex 
Continuum Partners LLC 
Corrie Development Corporation 
DKM Investments, Inc. 
El Dorado Hills Development Co. 
FHK/Ward Company 
First Commercial Bank 
Forest City Development 
General Growth Partners 
Graham Development Company 
Granite Power and Development Co. 
Hyatt Rickeys 
The Hofmann Company 
Jones Lang LaSalle 
JPI West Coast Construction 
KB Home 
Kaiser Permanente 
L & P Land Development 
Lennar Communities 
Lewis Homes 
McClellan Business Park 
McCuen Properties 
Morrison Homes 
Pacific Construction Company 
Pacific-Teal Development 
Pacific Telesis 
Pacific Gas & Electric Properties 
Powell Development 
Prometheus Development Company 
Prudential Development Group 
Pulte Homes, Inc. 
Resort Development Company 
Reynen & Bardis Communities 
Sears, Roebuck and Co. 
Shaffer Management Group 
Southern Pacific Transportation Co. 
Sterling Pacific Assets 
The DeSilva Group 
The Hodgson Company 
The MacDiarmid Company 
The Pivotal Group 
The RREEF Funds 
Wadsworth Golf Construction 
Waterworld Resorts, Inc. 
WCI Communities, Inc. 

Educational Institutions 
Chabot-Las Positas Community College 

District 
River Delta Unified School District 
Rocklin Unified School District 
Roseville City Elementary School District 
Sacramento State University 
Stockton Unified School District 
University of California, Berkeley 
University of California, Davis 
University of California, Merced 
University of California, 

Office of the President 
University of California, San Francisco 
University of California, Santa Cruz 
 

175



 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc.  One Kaiser Plaza, Suite 1410  Oakland, CA 94612 
T h e   E c o n om i c s   o f   L a n d  U s e   510.841.9190  akanat@epsys.com  www.epsys.com 

Ashleigh Kanat 
Principal 

 

Education 

Master of Public Policy, 
University of California, 
Berkeley, 2004 

Bachelor of Arts in American 
Studies with a concentration in 
Urban Studies, Smith College, 
1998 

Previous Employment 

Assistant Vice President, New 
York City Economic 
Development Corporation 
(2005-2007) 

Senior Associate, Rosen 
Consulting Group (2004-2005) 

Assistant Planner, City of 
Piedmont (1998–2002) 

Awards 
California American Planning 
Association 2010 – South 
Fremont/Warm Springs 
Revitalization Plan 

California American Planning 
Association 2014 – Windsor 
Station Area Plan 

Associations 
Lambda Alpha International 

San Francisco Planning and 
Urban Research Association 
(SPUR) 

ULI UrbanPlan Volunteer  

CREW, San Francisco 

ABOUT 
Ashleigh Kanat joined EPS in 2007 and has significant experience preparing and 
evaluating real estate market and financial feasibility analyses, urban revitalization and 
economic development strategies, public financing and implementation plans, and 
economic and fiscal impact analyses.  She brings this holistic understanding to her 
government organization work and is able to efficiently identify and process the critical 
data needed to produce clear and useful Municipal Service Reviews. She brings 
technical rigor, creativity, and collaborative leadership and project management 
experience to her projects. 

SELECTED PROJECT MANAGEMENT EXPERIENCE 

Contra Costa LAFCO Parks and Recreation MSR and SOI Update 
EPS is preparing the Parks and Recreation MSR and SOI Update for Contra Costa 
LAFCo, with a focus on the Park and Recreation districts, the CSDs, the CSAs and the 
cities in Contra Costa County. The outbreak of COVID-19 is affecting responses from 
the jurisdictions, and EPS is addressing the fiscal effects of the pandemic in this 
update.  

Merced County Municipal Service Reviews 
EPS has prepared numerous MSRs for Merced LAFCO. Currently, EPS is working with 
Merced LAFCO to prepare the Water and Sewer Service Providers MSR Report and the 
Ag Irrigation Service Providers MSR Report.  

Master Tax Sharing Agreement Negotiation Support 
EPS assisted the City of San Luis Obispo with technical calculations to support 
negotiation of the Master Tax Sharing Agreement with San Luis Obispo County as the 
City contemplated annexation of a significant property. The technical analysis was 
presented to LAFCo for consideration and approval. 

Solano County LAFCO Special Tax Analysis 
Solano County LAFCo retained EPS to estimate the potential special tax revenue if one 
or more of three fire districts (Suisun Fire District, Vacaville Fire District, and 
Montezuma Fire District) were to be annexed to the Cordelia Fire District. Currently the 
Cordelia Fire District charges a special tax to parcels within its boundaries. The analysis 
assumes the same tax rates currently charged by the Cordelia Fire District would apply 
to applicable parcels in the other districts. 

Solano County Property Tax Forecast 
Assessed values and property tax revenues in Solano County were improving with the 
economic recovery; however, in fiscal year 2014/15, the County was still struggling to 
work through the damage done by the Great Recession.  To help strategically plan for 
the subsequent five years, the County of Solano retained EPS to assist with its 
forecasting effort of property tax revenues to the County’s General Fund from each of 
the County’s incorporated cities as well as the unincorporated area.  

 

176



Economic & Planning Systems, Inc.  One Kaiser Plaza, Suite 1410  Oakland, CA 94612 
T h e   E c o n om i c s   o f   L a n d  U s e   510.841.9190  triceevans@epsys.com  www.epsys.com 

Teifion Rice‐Evans 
Managing Principal   

Education 
Master of Arts in Economics, 
University of Cambridge, 
1995   

Bachelor of Arts in 
Economics, University of 
Cambridge, 1992 

Selected Lectures 
California American Planning 
Association 2015 Conference:  
Regional Collaboration, 
Competitiveness, and 
Prosperity 

National Habitat Conservation 
Plan Coalition, 2014: 
Economic Benefits of Habitat 
Conservation Plans 

California Energy Commission 
Desert Renewable 
Conservation Plan Workshop, 
2011:  Economics of HCPs 

Northern California 
Conservation Partners 
Conference, 2007: Challenges 
to HCP Financing  

California League of Cities, 
2005:  Parks and Open Space  

ULI Workshop:  Real Estate 
Market and Feasibility 
Analysis, 2005  

The Nature Conservancy, 
2000 and 2002: Land 
Acquisition and Valuation 

Awards 
Association of Environmental 
Professionals 2009 –Award 
for Outstanding Resource 
Document – East Contra 
Costa County HCP/NCCP 

California American Planning 
Association 2010 –  
Paso Robles Purple Belt 

Affiliations 
Association of Environmental 
and Resource Economists 

American Planning 
Association 

ABOUT 
Teifion Rice-Evans is a land use economist with over twenty-five years of 
experience.  He directs complex consulting assignments in the areas of 
conservation planning and economics, real estate economics, economic 
development, and infrastructure financing.  Teifion has particular expertise in the 
development of conservation, agricultural preservation, and development plans 
that seek to balance a range of public priorities.  This includes financial and 
economic analysis to support the adoption of regional habitat conservation plans 
throughout California.  He is based in the EPS Oakland Office and serves clients 
throughout the western United States. 

SELECTED PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

East Contra Costs Habitat Conservation Plan 
The East Contra Costa Habitat Conservation Plan seeks to balance growth in East 
Contra Costa County with the preservation of natural habitats and agriculture.  
EPS worked as part of a consulting team with the County and the four cities to 
develop a plan that allowed for managed growth while ensuring the preservation 
of land and its ongoing management. 

Paso Robles Agricultural Preservation Plan 
The City of Paso Robles was interested in preserving the agricultural activities and 
open lands that lay on the edges of the City and in the surrounding 
unincorporated County. EPS led a consultant team that developed the Purple Belt 
Implementation Plan.  This effort identified a broad range of tools and 
partnerships available to the City to support these critical elements of its identify 
and attractiveness. 

Green Valley Specific Plan 
Solano County was interested in working with the residents and landowners of 
Green Valley to develop a plan that would predominantly support the 
preservation of this valley and promote agricultural activities, while allowing for 
modest growth and development.  EPS was part of a consulting team that 
evaluated clustered development, transfer of development rights, and other 
mechanisms for supporting and funding agricultural preservation. 

Morgan Hill Southeast Growth Area 
The City of Morgan Hill has long sought ways to preserve agriculture in this 
portion of the City/ County, while recognizing a range of existing development 
rights and some economic development opportunities close to the freeway.  
Working with City staff and a farmer/ agricultural economist, EPS provided the 
City Council with different options for managing growth and preservation. 

Economic Benefits of East Bay Regional Park District 
The East Bay Regional Park District in the San Francisco Bay Area is one of the 
largest regional park districts in the U.S.  In 2017, EPS evaluated the economic 
and public benefits of the provision of over 100,000 acres of parks, trails, and 
open space by the East Bay Regional Park District throughout Alameda and 
Contra Costa Counties.  

177



Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 
T h e  E c o n o m i c s  o f  L a n d  U s e  

One Kaiser Plaza, Suite 1410  Oakland, CA 94612 
510.841.9190  aboots@epsys.com  www.epsys.com 

 

 

Ashley Boots 
Associate 

Education 

Master of City Planning, 
University of California, 
Berkeley, 2017 

Bachelor of Environmental 
Design, University of 
Colorado, Boulder 2011 

Previous Employment 
Designer and Strategic 
Planner 
AECOM 
San Francisco, CA 

Graduate Student 
Instructor, UC Berkeley, 
Dept. of Environmental 
Science, Policy and 
Management 
Berkeley, CA 

Architectural Intern, 
Christensen & Co Arkitekter 
Copenhagen, Denmark 

Architecture & Design 
Program Assistant 
Danish Institute for Study 
Abroad 
Copenhagen, Denmark 

Affiliations 
LEED Accredited 
Professional, Building Design 
& Construction 
U.S. Green Building Council 
 
Real Estate Salesperson 
License, California 
Department of Real Estate 

  

ABOUT 

Ashley Boots is a consultant with nearly six years of experience in land use and 
urban planning. She brings a broad understanding of economic development 
strategy and real estate economics. Ashley’s work experience includes research and 
analysis for public sector planning and economic development agencies as well as 
serving as a consultant to private developers. Ashley’s skill set includes analytical 
research, qualitative interviewing, economic modeling, and land use programming, 
all of which help her to address urban economic and land use planning issues.  

Before joining EPS in 2019, Ashley also worked for AECOM (San Francisco and 
Kansas City) providing strategic planning design and advisory services to private 
sector, state, and local government clients. At AECOM, her work included large-scale 
asset management and capital planning projects, including developing City-wide 
policies, strategies and objectives related to infrastructure assets. 

 
SELECTED PROJECT EXPERIENCE 
Franks Tract Futures Economic Assessment 
The California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) engaged a team, led by 
Environmental Science Associates (ESA) and supported by UC Davis researchers, to 
prepare Franks Tract Futures, a planning study to evaluate environmental 
restoration and recreation enhancement options for Franks Tract. ESA commissioned 
EPS to prepare an Economic Assessment of local economic conditions and potential 
economic impacts from Franks Tract Futures alternatives. The analysis relied on 
local economic data and an extensive stakeholder interview process. The EPS report 
offered the planning team and stakeholders insight on local economic opportunities 
and constraints, and potential strategies to maximize the economic benefits from 
recreation improvements and ecological improvements at Franks Tract. 

Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority (VTA) Affordable Housing Land 
Value Analysis 
VTA engaged EPS to analyze the effect that requiring varying levels of affordable 
housing may have on the value of VTA’s land holdings. EPS created a housing 
development pro forma at varying affordability levels, in order to provide an 
understanding of the residual land value (RLV) for the different scenarios.  

Economic Study of San Carlos’ Housing Regulations 
The City of San Carlos retained EPS to review its inclusionary housing requirements 
and ensure that production of market rate and below market rate housing units was 
optimized. EPS conducted analyses to evaluate the feasibility of potential changes to 
the City’s affordable housing programs to inform levels of inclusionary requirements 
that may be supported with minimal adverse impact on new development. Results 
from the study will ultimately inform the update to the City’s inclusionary housing 
ordinance as well as a local density bonus incentive program, Zoning Code, and the 
City’s General Plan.

178



L A M P H I E R - G R E G O R Y

Lamphier-Gregory  4100 Redwood Road, Suite 20A #601, Oakland, CA 94619  Phone: 510-530-9930 

March 1, 2021 

Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
Alameda LAFCo  
Via email at: Rachel.Jones@acgov.org 

Re: Review of South Livermore Valley Area Plan 

Dear Rachel,  

Lamphier-Gregory is pleased to provide you with this proposal for conducting a special study to review 
and examine the relative success of the County’s South Livermore Valley Area Plan and the interrelated 
City of Livermore’s South Livermore Valley Specific Plan, and provide possible recommendations as to 
the current growth management needs of this region moving forward, as directed by your Board at its 
January 2021 meeting. We have appreciated the conversation and suggested guidance that you have 
provided to us as we have prepared our attached proposal, and hope we have hit the mark in 
understanding both why and how Alameda LAFCo would like to conduct this study. 

The attached summarizes our understanding of the assignment and a perspective on the issues to be 
addressed, as well as our proposed approach, budget and schedule.  Also attached are brief 
qualifications materials of Lamphier-Gregory’s prior work for Alameda LAFCO and other LAFCo agencies, 
as well as my resume as the key person who would be involved in this work.  

If you would like to clarify or discuss any of the details of our proposal, please contact me directly at my 
home office number listed below. Thank you for contacting us about this opportunity, and we look 
forward to working with you on this very interesting and challenging study.  

Respectfully, 

Scott Gregory, President 
LAMPHIER-GREGORY 

Attachment 2

179

mailto:Rachel.Jones@acgov.org


Lamphier-Gregory Proposal – SLVAP Review  page 1 

Introduction  

At its January 2021 meeting, Alameda LAFCo considered amendments to its upcoming study schedule, 

and added a special study for the current fiscal year to review the South Livermore Valley Area Plan 

(SLVAP). The SLVAP provides County land use policies intended to preserve existing vineyards and 

wineries, to enhance the recognition and image of the area as an important premium wine-producing 

region, and to create incentives for investment and expansion of vineyards and other cultivated 

agriculture, and was approved by the County and City of Livermore in 1993. It has now been about 27 

years since the SLVAP was adopted, and Alameda LAFCO wishes to participate with Alameda County and 

the City of Livermore in reviewing, examining and provide possible recommendations as to the current 

growth management needs of the region.  

The Alameda County LAFCo Executive Director has requested that Lamphier-Gregory, having served as 

staff consultants to Alameda LAFCo for several years, prepare a proposal to serve as Alameda LAFCo’s 

consultant pursuant to preparation of this special study, which follows. Resumes and qualifications for 

Lamphier-Gregory are included at the end of this proposal.  

Our Understanding of the Background  

The Livermore Valley is one of California’s oldest and most prestigious wine regions, and both the 

County of Alameda and the City of Livermore have adopted policies regulation to guide land use in this 

region  

1993: Alameda County South Livermore Valley Area Plan 

The SLVAP was developed by the County of Alameda, the cities of Livermore and Pleasanton, local 

interest groups, developers, wineries and growers to address issues of land use in the Livermore Valley 

and to ensure the survival and enhancement of this wine region. 

The SLVAP was approved by Alameda County in 1993, providing a 

policy framework for the County to work with local cities, 

landowners, citizen groups, developers and viticulture interest, 

principally calling for the expansion of cultivated agricultural 

acreage (particularly viticulture) from approximately 2,100 acres 

to a minimum of 5,000 acres. The SLVAP includes three methods 

for preserving agricultural lands and encouraging agricultural 

expansion, including: 

 a density bonus system that provides economic 

incentives to encourage landowners to expand viticulture 

acreage, including a reduction in minimum parcel size for 

landowners that plants wine grapes and places their land 

under a permanent agricultural easement 

180



Lamphier-Gregory Proposal – SLVAP Review  page 2 

 establishment of an agricultural land trust (the Tri-Valley Conservancy) capable of accepting 

donations or purchasing easements to permanently protect productive agricultural lands, 

thereby protecting key agricultural properties from development, and  

 requirements for  new urban development in the area to contribute to the preservation, 

promotion and expansion of viticulture by developing new vineyards, dedicating agricultural 

easements, making financial contributions to the land trust, refurbishing existing wineries, and 

including of wine country amenities such as golf courses, conference centers, and a wine 

museum. 

The continued coordination and cooperation between Alameda County, local cities, landowners and 

citizen groups is identified as essential to ensure that the South Livermore Valley regains its historic role 

as a premium wine-producing region. 

1997: City of Livermore South Livermore Valley Specific Plan 

As the first steps toward implementing Livermore’s urban development responsibilities as set forth in 

the SLVAP, the City amended its General Plan to incorporate relevant policies from the Area Plan 

(including policy support for development of up to 1,600 residential units in the South Livermore Valley 

as a means of achieving expanded 

viticulture acreage south of the city), and 

appointed a Citizens Advisory Committee 

including representatives of South Valley 

landowners, the Friends of the Vineyards, 

the Winegrowers Association, and local 

residents, to advise the City toward 

preparation of a Specific Plan to provide 

detailed land use plans.   

The City of Livermore ultimately adopted 

the South Livermore Valley Specific Plan 

(SLVSP) in 1997, providing a framework for 

future growth and development within an 

approximately 1,891-acre unincorporated area along the City of Livermore's southern boundary. The 

SLVSP provides a comprehensive land use program for this planning area, with goals, policies and 

development standards to guide future public and private actions relating to the area's development 

and the conservation of agricultural and natural resources. The SLVSP includes detailed information on 

necessary infrastructure improvements, and a strategy for insuring implementation. The SLVSP also 

provides a mechanism to insure that development proposals are coordinated and occur in an orderly 

manner. Specifically, the location of new urban development in the South Valley must: 

 be contiguous to the City's corporate limits 

 form a logical urban edge to the City's future corporate limits 

181



Lamphier-Gregory Proposal – SLVAP Review  page 3 

 facilitate creation of a permanent urban/rural boundary 

 be feasible and facilitate the logical extension of City infrastructure and services 

 minimize impacts on significant viewsheds of the South Valley area, and  

 meet the requirements for annexation specified by the Alameda County LAFCO 

2011: City Review of SLVSP - Managing the Agricultural/Urban Interface 1 

In 2011, the Livermore Community Development Director prepared a presentation that reviewed the 

effectiveness of the SLVSP in managing the agricultural/urban interface, and assessing achievement of 

the SLVSP’s original objectives. Key findings of the review found the following:  

 there were 2,100 acres in vineyards and 

11 wineries in the South Livermore 

Valley in 1993, and by 2011 there was 

over 5,000 acres of vineyards and 42 

wineries 

 371 acres had been dedicated to the 

Park District as an addition to Sycamore 

Grove Park, and 55 acres had been 

dedicated as regional open space 

 1,155 homes had been built in six new 

neighborhoods, creating a new 

agricultural/urban interface 

 consistent with LAFCO’s purposes to preserve open space and prime agricultural land, 

discourage urban sprawl and encourage infill development, the City annexed urbanized lands 

 agricultural lands were being protected by conservation easements, the establishment of the 

Tri-Valley Conservancy as a land trust, and the City’s Right-to-Farm Ordinance 

 SLVSP had stabilized the long-term viability of smaller parcels, minimized non-contiguous 

agriculture adjacent to suburban development, and reinforced the Urban Growth Boundary 

 The broad based outreach and consensus underlying the SLVSP had led to stability, with no 

significant changes to Plan since adopted in 1997 

1018-2020: Emergence of New Needs and Changes 

More recently, the County, City of Livermore and Alameda LAFCo have considered a number of changes 

to the SLVAP addressing a number of both small and other more substantial policy changes. These 

suggested changes have included:  

                                                           
1  City of Livermore, Marc Roberts - Community Development Director, September 1, 2011 

182



Lamphier-Gregory Proposal – SLVAP Review  page 4 

 Easing limitations on the size and nature of bed-and-breakfast establishments by permitting up 

to 25 such establishments (either within residences or in separate buildings) in the Cultivated 

Agriculture Overlay District, within a non-residential maximum floor area of not less than 20,000 

square feet, or 0.01 FAR. 

 Changing certain rules of the SLVAP to enable the rules for a maximum FAR of 0.25 that 

previously only applied to greenhouse buildings, to apply to all agricultural use buildings 

 Considering boundary changes or out-of-service-area municipal sewer services to realize the 

planned growth and expansion of wineries otherwise constrained by prohibitions on new septic 

systems in the area  

 Conducting a feasibility of the City of Livermore’s wastewater treatment plants’ capacity, capital 

costs and maintenance obligations for sewer improvements, as well as other underground 

utilities, to serve the viticulture areas  

Our Understanding of the Assignment 

As clearly stated in the Tri-Valley Conservancy (TVC) letter of October 2020 to Alameda County 

Supervisor Haggerty, “It has been over 25 years since [the SLVAP] was adopted, and it is an opportune 

time for a review and assessment of the efficacy of the SLVAP. We all need an objective view of whether 

the original goals have been achieved, and where possible gaps remain to be addressed. The results 

from this assessment will directly impact the success of the economic development in the County of 

Alameda, the City of Livermore, and other surrounding areas in our region.” This letter further requests 

that the County of Alameda initiate a retrospective review and assessment of the SLVAP's results and 

impacts, and deliver direction for the next 25 years, stating that, “Revitalizing and expanding local 

agriculture is the SLVAP's primary objective by which to support and achieve economic and 

environmental sustainability . . clearly aligning with strategies for the South Livermore Valley's economy 

to remain diverse, inclusive and resilient.” 

Alameda LAFCo has taken its own independent steps to initiate a special study to review the South 

Livermore SLVAP from the perspective of LAFCo’s own mission to; 1) ensure efficient municipal services, 

2) balance infrastructure needs for sustainable growth, and 3) to conserving the environment and public 

resources such as prime agricultural and open space land.  

Lamphier-Gregory’s Proposed Scope 

Task #1: Retrospective Review of LAFCo’s Mission Issues 

Lamphier-Gregory is prepared to initiate this special study on behalf of LAFCo. We envision our product 

to be a report similar to the 2011 Report prepared by the Livermore Community Development Director, 

itemizing achievements and changes of importance to LAFCo’s interests that have occurred in the South 

Livermore Valley since approval of the SLVAP, such as: 

 The status of vineyard acreage and number of wineries in South Livermore as of year 2020, 

compared to year 1993   

183



Lamphier-Gregory Proposal – SLVAP Review  page 5 

 Acres of permanent open space and agricultural lands preserved in conservation easements 

and/or land trusts in South Livermore in 2020, as compared to year 1993 

 Acres of annexations into the City of Livermore as of 2020, as compared to year 1993   

 Acres of land in South Livermore with municipal service agreements for sewer and other 

services in 2020, compared to year 1993, and   

 Requests of LAFCo to consider changes in Spheres of influence changes, or municipal service 

boundary adjustments, based on increased demand since 1993 

Lamphier-Gregory anticipates that these LAFCo perspectives on the relative success of the SLVAP will 

also serve to highlight current and emerging issues, specifically related to potential extension of 

municipal services (especially sewer service), agricultural land preservation and other potential 

jurisdictional annexations.  

Task #2: LAFCo’s Planning Representative 

Lamphier-Gregory also believe that, much like the original 1993 SLVAP, LAFCo’s partnership with a 

multi-party stakeholders group (i.e., Alameda County, the City of Livermore, the Tri-Valley Conservancy, 

Livermore Valley Winegrowers Association, Visit Tri-Valley, the Sierra Club and the Greenbelt Alliance) 

would best serve all interests, have a better chance of finding consensus, and potentially lead to 25 

more years of stability and clear expectation for the South Livermore Valley. Depending on the results of 

our initial retrospective review of issues critical to LAFCo’s mission, Lamphier-Gregory is prepared to 

serve as LAFCo’s consultant planner, to (similar to the Tri-Valley Conservancy’s offer) “stand ready to 

contribute” to a comprehensive retrospective study by serving as LAFCo’s representative in a 

partnership effort with other organizations. 

Budget 

Lamphier-Gregory’s proposed budget for our review of LAFCo’s mission-issues as to achievements and 

changes pursuant to the SLVAP is based on a time and materials estimate with a total not-to-exceed 

budget of $30,000, including research, report preparation and project management efforts, and 

presentation of the results of our analyses to Alameda LAFCo staff and Board.  

If LAFCo decides to participate in a more coordinated multi-stakeholder review and comprehensive 

update of the SLVAP, Scott Gregory of Lamphier-Gregory is prepared and excited about the opportunity 

to serve as LAFCo’s planning consultant for such an effort, and will develop a separate scope and budget 

estimate for this work at LAFCo’s request.  

Schedule 

Lamphier-Gregory is prepared to begin work upon Alameda LAFCo’s authorization to proceed, and we 

expect the work will take between 10 to 12 weeks to complete, including preparation of a final report 

documenting our findings and conclusions.  

184



Lamphier-Gregory Proposal – SLVAP Review  page 6 

Staffing and Qualification 

Brief qualifications of Lamphier-Gregory is attached.  

185



Statement of Qualifications - Alameda County LAFCo Page 1

Alameda LAFCo

Since 2015, Lamphier-Gregory has been serving as 
the Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission‘s 
land use and environmental planning consultant,  
providing a range of professional planning and 
environmental services to the LAFCo Executive Officer 
and Commission on an as-needed basis. We have 
worked closely with the Alameda LAFCo Executive 
Officer on often complex and specialized planning 
assignments related to matters over which LAFCo has 
governmental responsibility and decision-making 
authority. These assignments have included:

•	 Reviewing and analyzing LAFCo applications

•	 Processing actions requiring LAFCo approval, 
including sphere of influence adjustments, 
annexations, incorporations, detachments, 
dissolutions and other forms of organizational 
changes 

•	 Evaluating environmental documents prepared by 
other agencies (e.g., cities, special districts, acting 
as Lead Agencies under CEQA) for projects that 
would subsequently require LAFCo action

•	 Preparing environmental documents for LAFCo 
projects

•	 Assisting with Sphere of Influence (SOI) updates 
and Municipal Service Reviews (MSRs)

•	 Attending meetings, LAFCo hearings, and 
providing professional planning support on an as-
needed basis. 

LAFCo Planning Consultant 
Services

Lamphier-Gregory frequently provides short-and 
long-term staff assistance to local governments, 
including cities, counties, special districts and LAFCos.  
Our role typically involves planning services to assist 
in managing large and complex projects, and project 
that are controversial in nature.  We also provide 
certain day-to-day services, particularly to local LAFCo 
agencies, as they relate to the California Environmental 
Qality Act.  Generally these assignments place us 
in the role of providing independent and objective 
review, and of conducting established processes and 
procedures. We are neither advocates nor opponents 
of the projects for which we have been retained.

Our work typically involves coordination with staff, 
team members, other local agencies and members 
of the public. Our experience in urban planning, 
environmental review and permit processing allows us 
to prepare staff reports and other products thoroughly 
and efficiently, with a minimum of project “start-up” 
time. This is especially useful for local governments 
that have an over-loaded staff but need to keep pace 
with important planning programs. We focus our effort 
on the end goal of the process – the public hearings 
before the local planning commission and/or city 
councils where decisions on projects are made. Our 

Concannon Winery Annexation to Livermore

186



Statement of Qualifications - Alameda County LAFCoPage 2

Other LAFCo Experience

Contra Costa LAFCo

Lamphier-Gregory was selected from among other 
candidates in early 2008 to serve as the planning and 
environmental consultant to Contra Costa LAFCo.  Our 
original contract was renewed in 2011 and extended 
in 2013. During the six years of our involvement we 
have become familiar with the wide variety of matters 
that come before LAFCo and how the state and locally 
adopted policies and procedures guide LAFCo’s 
determinations and decisions. We have developed 
a close and effective working relationship with the 
Executive Officer where our involvement in reviewing 
and providing input on various matters is provided 
quickly and cost effectively.  

Folsom
Lake

Deer C reek

W
eber C reek

N
ew

Y
o
rk

C
re
ek

D
eer C

reek

US HWY 50

LATROBE
RD

GREEN VALLEY RD

DEER VALLEY RD

SA
LM

ON
FA

LL
S

RD

BASS
LAKE

RD

CAM
BRIDG

E
RD

SERRANO PKY

COUNTRY CLUB DR

CAMERON
PARK

DR

STARBUCK
RD

SILVA
VALLEY

PKY

WHITE ROCK RD

FRANCISCO
DR

JU
RG

EN
S

RD

LAKEHILLS
DR

MEDER RD

EL
DO

RADO
HILLS

BLVD

MALCOLM DIXON RD

SOUTH
SHIN

GLE
RD

PALMER DR

DUROCK RD

SH
IN

G
LE

LI
M

E
M

IN
E

RD

HASTING
S

DR

Bass
Lake

Cameron
Park
LakeEL DORADO HILLS

SA
C

R
A

M
EN

TO
 C

O
U

N
TY

CITY OF FOLSOM

CAMERON 
PARK

SOURCE: EL DORADO COUNTY

LEGEND

INCORPORATION BOUNDARY

MAJOR ROADS

RIVERS AND CREEKS

0 0.5 1 2

MILES

EL DORADO HILLS INCORPORATION BOUNDARY

EL DORADO HILLS INCORPORATION PROJECT

El Dorado Hills is an unincorporated community of 30,000 residents in El Dorado County, some 30 miles 
east of Sacramento on U.S. Highway 50. A group of local El Dorado Hills residents wished to incorporate 
their area as a new city in order to strengthen local control over land use, accelerate needed traffic improve-
ments, and make local government more accountable to area residents. �e legal process of incorporation is 
administered by the El Dorado Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) in accordance with the 
Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000.  

El Dorado Local Agency Formation Commission

THE PROJECT:

LAMPHIER-GREGORY’S ROLE:

THE OUTCOME:

LAMPHIER GREGORY
URBAN PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS

An earlier attempt at incorporation in the late 1990s resulted in litigation between the incorporation propo-
nents and El Dorado LAFCO. �e lawsuit was resolved with the mutual approval of a Settlement Agreement 
which specified hiring an independent third-party Project Manager to manage the process. 

Lamphier-Gregory was selected to manage the overall process, coordinating with LAFCO staff and legal coun-
sel, the Incorporation Proponents, and County staff to keep the complex process on target.  We prepared and 
managed a Master Task List, Time Schedule and 
Budget and oversaw contracts with other firms for the 
required documentation and analysis. We coordi-
nated the Revenue Neutrality negotiations between 
the incorporation proponents and the County. In our 
role as the environmental consultant, we also prepared 
a focused EIR that identified both direct and indirect 
effects that would result from incorporation.

Between June 2004 and June 2005 Lamphier-
Gregory oversaw the completion of all required steps 
in the incorporation process and brought the matter 
to a final LAFCO hearing on June 8, 2005 where the 
Commission approved the terms of incorporation by 
a unanimous vote.  �e matter was submitted to the 
voters of the incorporation area for the November 8, 
2005 ballot. No challenges were filed against either 
the EIR or the proposed incorporation itself.  How-
ever, a vigorous campaign by incorporation oppo-
nents cast doubt on the merits of incorporation, and 
the measure failed by 57% - 43%. 

El Dorado Hills - Proposed Incorporation Boundary

The following indicates where most of our effort has 
been focused:

•	 Reviewing proposals and assisting in drafting 
staff reports and resolutions for over 100 matters 
requiring action by the Commission, including 
annexations, SOI amendments, Out of Agency 
Service requests and incorporations.

•	 Reviewing CEQA documents for various 
development projects, General Plan Updates and 
other activities throughout the County involving 
matters requiring subsequent LAFCo action. The 
CEQA documents include Initial Studies/Negative 
Declarations and EIRs. We provide comments 
and input to the LAFCo Executive Officer and 
collaborate on the drafting of comment letters 
sent to the Lead Agency. 

Sanitary District Sphere, Service Area

•	 Selecting and managing third-party environmental 
consultants who, under contract to LAFCo, prepare 
CEQA documents for projects which LAFCo has 
become Lead Agency (i.e., proposed expansion of 
the Spheres of Influence of the cities of Pittsburg 
and Antioch, the Contra Costa Water District and 
the Delta Diablo Sanitation District).

•	 Assisting on an update/revision of Contra Costa 
LAFCo’s local policies and procedures for Sphere 
of Influence amendments and for LAFCo’s 
requirements for CEQA compliance.

•	 Preparing addendums to a previously adopted 
CEQA documents to ensure that LAFCo issues are 
specifically addressed

El Dorado Hills Incorporation

In 2004 - 2005, prior to our work for Contra Costa LAFCo, 
we were selected by El Dorado LAFCo to manage the 
process for the proposed incorporation of El Dorado 
Hills as a new city. Incorporation proponents had 
become embroiled in arguments with LAFCo staff over 
various issues and the friction and distrust escalated 
to the point of the proponents filing a lawsuit against 
LAFCo. 

187



Statement of Qualifications - Alameda County LAFCo Page 3

Golden Gate National Seashore, Marin County

•	 Project Management and Coordination

•	 Interagency Coordination

•	 Data Collection

•	 CEQA Document reviews

•	 Mapping 

•	 Planning and Environmental Analysis

•	 Public Workshops and Commission Hearings

Lamphier-Gregory was retained under the auspices 
of the Court as a neutral party to manage the 
process, oversee the preparation of the required 
comprehensive fiscal analysis and prepare an 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for compliance 
with CEQA.  The incorporation process was successfully 
completed in time for the placement of the proposal 
on the upcoming ballot (June 2005) at which time the 
proposal was defeated. 

Marin LAFCo

Other LAFCo experience by Lamphier-Gregory 
includes work for Marin LAFCo in 1999 – 2000 where 
we provided assistance to LAFCo staff on a range of 
activities similar to our work for Contra Costa LAFCo, 
including:

188



Mr. Gregory brings over 35 years of professional experience in the preparation of 
environmental documents, serving as environmental consultant to cities, counties, other 
governmental agencies and private developer clients. His wide range of environmental work 
has provided him with a high level of competency and knowledge of both the CEQA process 
and the substantive requirements of CEQA documents. Throughout his career, Mr. Gregory 
has developed a strong interest in working with communities to resolve complex land use 
and environmental issues.

Project Management

Mr. Gregory is especially adept at navigating the complexities of the CEQA process to achieve 
legal compliance, identify sound strategic approaches to the environmental review process,  
and meeting client objectives. His responsibilities at Lamphier-Gregory have included serving 
as Project Manager on a number of large projects with planning services budgets exceeding 
$1 million. As Project Manager, Mr. Gregory’s role has included managing overall schedules 
and budgets to ensure successful completion of planning and environmental review. He 
has also coordinated technical input from a variety of disciplines to ensure that these issues 
are adequately and appropriately addressed. As a Project Manager, Mr. Gregory essentially 
serves as an extension of the client’s staff to advocate and/or represent the client’s interests 
throughout the planning and environmental review process.

Representative Projects:

•	 Oakland Army Base Reuse Plan and Redevelopment Plan EIR, City of Oakland and the 
Oakland Base Reuse Authority

•	 Kaiser Oakland Medical Center and Replacement Hospital Project, and Alta Bates Summit 
Hospital Master Plan, City of Oakland 

•	 Oak Knoll Mixed-Use Community Plan, Contract Planning Services, City of Oakland

•	 Genentech Master Plan and EIR, Genentech and City of South San Francisco

Preparation of Complex Environmental Documents

Mr. Gregory is skilled and experienced in preparing clear and concise environmental 
documents that communicate to technical audiences as well as public decision-makers and 
the community. Mr. Gregory has written numerous CEQA documents ranging from initial 
studies and negative declarations to complex combined EIR/EIS reports. His role has also 
required an ability to interpret technical details into easy to understand, publicly accessible 
and comprehensive documents that have enabled city councils, county supervisors and 
planning commissions to make informed decisions on proposed projects.

Representative Projects:

•	 Buena Vista Wind Energy Repowering Project EIR, County of Contra Costa

•	 West Oakland Specific Plan and EIR, and Coliesum Area Specific Plan and EIR, City of 
Oakland 

•	 Napa Oaks Project EIR, City of Napa 

•	 Contra Costa Comprehensive Transportation Plan EIR, Contra Costa Transportation 
Authority 

Education

Master of Regional Planning 
and Landscape Architecture, 
University of Massachusetts, 
Amherst – 1982

Bachelor of Environmental 
Design, University of Colorado, 
Boulder – 1980

Employment History

2007 – Present
President,  
Lamphier-Gregory

1997 – 2007
Principal,  
Lamphier-Gregory

1992 – 1997
The Planning Collaborative

1989 – 1992
Sedway Cooke Associates

1984 – 1992
Resource Concepts, Inc. 
Carson City, Nevada

Scott Gregory, President sgregory@lamphier-gregory.com

L a m p h i e r - G r e g o r y  1 9 4 4  E m b a r c a d e r o ,  O a k l a n d ,  C a  9 4 6 0 6  5 1 0 - 5 3 5 - 6 6 9 0  l a m p h i e r - g r e g o r y . c o m

189



Page 1 of 11 

P.O./Contract # ___________________________

 ALAMEDA LAFCO, ALAMEDA COUNTY, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT  

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this_XX__day of XX 2021, by and between the
ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION, a public agency of the State of 
California, hereafter called the “Alameda LAFCo”, and Lamphier Gregory, a business duly 
qualified in the State of California, whose principal place of business is 1944 Embarcadero, 
Oakland, CA 94606, hereafter called the “Contractor.” 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, the Alameda LAFCo desires to obtain Professional Planning Services on an 
as-needed basis as described in Exhibit A hereto (“Services”); and 

WHEREAS, Contractor is professionally qualified to provide such services and is willing to 
provide same to Alameda LAFCo; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed that Alameda LAFCo does hereby retain Contractor to 
provide As-Needed Professional Planning Services, and Contractor accepts such engagement, 
on the terms and conditions hereinafter specified in this Agreement, the Additional provisions 
attached hereto, and the following described exhibits, all of which are incorporated into this 
Agreement by this reference: 

Exhibit A Definition of Services 
Exhibit B Payment Terms 
Exhibit C Insurance Requirements 

CONTRACT PERIOD will be from March 15, 2021 through June 30, 2024.  This Agreement 
may be extended for three additional one-year periods, if mutually agreed by both parties 
hereto, in writing not less than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of this Agreement. 

COMPENSATION: the Alameda LAFCo agrees to pay Contractor, pursuant to the terms set 
forth in Exhibit B, for services performed hereunder in a total amount not to exceed $25,000 
for the term of the current agreement, including all expenses and contingencies.  

General Terms and Conditions, pages 3 through 11, attached hereto constitute a part of this 
agreement. 

Attachment 3

3190



Page 2 of 11 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement as of the day 

and year first above written. 

ALAMEDA LAFCO CONTRACTOR 

By: ______________________ . 
LAFCO EXECUTIVE OFFICER Lamphier Gregory 

By: __________________ 

      __________________ 
Title 

__________________ 
Address  

Tax Payer I.D. #   __________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

______________________ 
LAFCo LEGAL COUNSEL 

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury that the Executive Officer of the Alameda LAFCo was 
duly authorized to execute this document on behalf of the Alameda LAFCo by a majority vote of 
the Commission on March 11, 2021; and that a copy has been delivered to the Chair as 
provided by Government Code Section 25103. 

Date:  ______________________ ATTEST: 

__________________________ 
LAFCo Clerk  
Alameda LAFCo  
County of Alameda  
State of California 

By:  _____________________ 

4191



Page 3 of 11 

General Terms and Conditions 

1. EMPLOYER/EMPLOYEE RELATIONSHIP:  No relationship of employer and employee is created

by this Agreement, it being understood that Contractor shall act hereunder as an independent

Contractor; that Contractor shall not have any claim under this Agreement or otherwise against the

Alameda LAFCo for seniority, vacation time, vacation pay, sick leave, personal time off, overtime,

health insurance, medical care, hospital care, retirement benefits, Social Security, disability, Workers'

Compensation, or unemployment insurance benefits, civil service protection, or employee benefits of

any kind; that Contractor shall be solely liable for and obligated to pay directly all applicable taxes,

including, but not limited to, Federal and State income taxes, and in connection therewith Contractor

shall indemnify and hold the Alameda LAFCo harmless from any and all liability which the Alameda

LAFCo may incur because of Contractor’s failure to pay such taxes; that Contractor does, by this

Agreement, agree to perform his/her said work and functions at all times in strict accordance with

currently approved methods and practices in his/her field and that the sole interest of the Alameda

LAFCo is to ensure that said service shall be performed and rendered in a competent, efficient, timely

and satisfactory manner and in accordance with the standards required by the agency concerned.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Alameda LAFCo determines that pursuant to state and federal

law Contractor is an employee for purposes of income tax withholding, the Alameda LAFCo shall,

upon two weeks notice to Contractor withhold from the payments to Contractor hereunder federal

and state income taxes and pay said sums over to the Federal and State governments.

2. HOLD/HARMLESS/INDEMNIFICATION:  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall

hold harmless, defend and indemnify Alameda LAFCo, its Commissioners, employees and agents

from and against any and all claims, losses, damages, liabilities and expenses, including but not

limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from the performance of services under this

Agreement, provided that any such claim, loss, damage, liability or expense is attributable to bodily

injury, sickness, disease, death or to injury to or destruction of property, including the loss therefrom,

or to any violation of federal, state or municipal law or regulation, which arises out of or is any way

connected with the performance of this agreement (collectively “Liabilities”) except where such

Liabilities are caused solely by the negligence or willful misconduct of any indemnitee.  Alameda

LAFCo may participate in the defense of any such claim without relieving Contractor of any

obligation hereunder. The obligations of this indemnity shall be for the full amount of all damage to

Alameda LAFCo, including defense costs, and shall not be limited by any insurance limits.

3. INSURANCE AND BOND:  Contractor shall at all times during the term of the Agreement with the

Alameda LAFCo maintain in force those insurance policies  as designated in the attached Exhibit C,

"Certificate of Insurance, Service Contracts," and will comply with all those requirements as stated

herein.

4. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION: Contractor shall provide Workers' Compensation insurance at

Contractor's own cost and expense and further, neither the Contractor nor its carrier shall be entitled

to recover from the Alameda LAFCo any costs, settlements, or expenses of Workers' Compensation

claims arising out of this agreement.

5. CONFORMITY WITH LAW AND SAFETY:

A. Contractor shall observe and comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, codes and regulations

of governmental agencies, including federal, state, municipal, and local governing bodies,

having jurisdiction over the scope of services or any part hereof, including all provisions of the

5192



Page 4 of 11 

Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1979 and all amendments thereto, and all applicable 

federal, state, municipal, and local safety regulations.  All services performed by Contractor 

must be in accordance with these laws, ordinances, codes and regulations.  Contractor shall 

indemnify and hold the Alameda LAFCo harmless from any and all liability, fines, penalties 

and consequences from any noncompliance or violations of such laws, ordinances, codes and 

regulations. If a provision of this Agreement is found to be invalid, the parties legally, 

commercially, and practicably can continue this Agreement without that provision, and the 

remainder of this Agreement shall continue in force and effect unless an essential purpose of 

this Agreement would be defeated by the loss of such provision.  In the event any of the terms, 

conditions, or provisions of this Agreement are held to be illegal or otherwise unenforceable, 

such term, condition or provision shall be deemed severable from the remainder of this 

Agreement and shall not cause any other part or provision of this Agreement to be illegal or 

unenforceable. 

B. Accidents:  If death, serious personal injury or substantial property damage occurs in

connection with the performance of this agreement, Contractor shall immediately notify the

Alameda LAFCo by telephone.  Contractor shall promptly submit to the Alameda LAFCo a

written report, in such form as may be required by County of all accidents which occur in

connection with this Agreement.  This report must include the following information:  (1) name

and address of the injured or deceased person(s); (2) name and address of Contractor's

subcontractor, if any; (3) name and address of Contractor's liability insurance carrier; and (4) a

detailed description of accident and whether any of LAFCo's equipment, tools, material, or staff

were involved.  Contractor further agrees that it shall take all reasonable steps to preserve all

physical evidence and information which may be relevant to accidents or circumstances

surrounding a potential claim, while maintaining public safety. Contractor shall provide the

Alameda LAFCo the opportunity to review and inspect such evidence, including the scene of

the accident.

6. PAYMENT: Payment to Contractor will be made only upon presentation of proper invoice by

Contractor subject to the approval of the Alameda LAFCo, and in accordance with this Agreement,

Exhibit B.

7. TRAVEL EXPENSES:  Payment to Contractor for travel expenses will be made only upon the prior

approval of the Alameda LAFCo and presentation of a proper invoice by Contractor in accordance

with this Agreement.

8. ROYALTIES AND INVENTIONS: The Alameda LAFCo shall have a royalty-free, exclusive and

irrevocable license to reproduce, publish and use the results produced in the course of or under this

Agreement; and Contractor shall not publish any such material relating to the Alameda LAFCo

without prior consent of the Alameda LAFCo.

9. CONFIDENTIALITY OF INFORMATION:  Confidential information is defined as all information

disclosed to Contractor which relates to the Alameda LAFCo’s past, present, and future activities, as

well as activities under this Agreement.  Contractor will hold all such information with the same

degree of care which Contractor utilizes to protect its own data of a similar nature.  Upon

cancellation or expiration of this Agreement, Contractor will return to the Alameda LAFCo all

written or descriptive matter which contain any such confidential information.

6193



Page 5 of 11 

10. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  No officer, member, or employee of the Alameda LAFCo and no

member of their governing bodies shall have any pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this

Agreement or the proceeds thereof.  No Contractor, nor any member of Contractor's family shall

serve on the Alameda LAFCo, or hold any such position which either by rule, practice or action

nominates, recommends, supervises Contractor's operations, or authorizes funding to Contractor.

Contractor shall immediately bring to Alameda LAFCo’s attention any situation in which its client

has, or is reasonably likely to have an application or other matter pending before Alameda LAFCo.

The provisions of this Agreement are not exclusive, and thus Alameda LAFCo may at its discretion

appoint a different firm to serve as its planner in the event of a conflict.  Contractor agrees not to

assign any of the key personnel identified in Exhibit A to any matter that is, or is likely to be pending

before Alameda LAFCo regardless of whether Alameda LAFCo in its discretion decides to hire

another firm to avoid a conflict.

11. USE OF ALAMEDA LAFCO PROPERTY:  Contractor shall not use Alameda LAFCo premises or

property (including equipment, instruments and supplies) or personnel for any purpose other than in

the performance of his/her obligations under this Agreement.

12. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PRACTICES PROVISIONS: Contractor assures   that

he/she/it will comply with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and that no person shall, on  the

grounds of race, creed, color, disability, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, age, religion, Vietnam

era Veteran’s status, political affiliation, or any other non-merit factor, be excluded from participation

in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under this Agreement.

A. Contractor shall, in all solicitations or advertisements for applicants for employment placed as a

result of this Agreement, state that it is an “Equal Opportunity Employer” or that all qualified

applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to their race, creed, color,

disability, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, age, religion, Vietnam era Veteran’s status,

political affiliation, or any other non-merit factor.

B. Contractor shall, if requested to so do by the Alameda LAFCo, certify that it has not, in the

performance of this Agreement, discriminated against applicants or employees because of their

race, creed, color, disability, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, age, religion, Vietnam era

Veteran’s status, political affiliation, or any other non-merit factor.

C. If requested to do so by the Alameda LAFCo, Contractor shall provide the Alameda LAFCo

with access to copies of all of its records pertaining or relating to its employment practices,

except to the extent such records or portions of such records are confidential or privileged

under State or Federal law.

D. Contractor shall recruit vigorously and encourage minority- and women-owned businesses to bid

its subcontracts.

E. Nothing contained in this contract shall be construed in any manner so as to require or permit any

act which is prohibited by law.

F. The Contractor shall include the provisions set forth in paragraphs A through E (above) in each

of its subcontracts.

7194



Page 6 of 11 

13. ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT:  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to permit

assignment or transfer by Contractor of any rights under this Agreement and such assignment or

transfer is expressly prohibited and void unless otherwise approved in writing by the Alameda

LAFCo.

14. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE:  Contractor and Contractor's employees shall comply with LAFCo’s

policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace.  Neither Contractor nor Contractor’s employees shall

unlawfully manufacture, distribute, dispense, possess or use controlled substances, as defined in 21

U.S. Code section 812, including marijuana, heroin, cocaine, and amphetamines, at any LAFCo

facility or work site.  If Contractor or any employee of Contractor is convicted or pleads nolo

contendere to a criminal drug statute violation occurring at a LAFCo facility or work site, the

Contractor within five days thereafter shall notify the head of the LAFCo department/agency for

which the contract services are performed.  Violation of this provision shall constitute a material

breach of this Agreement.

15. FEDERAL AND STATE AUDITS:  Until the expiration of five (5) years after the furnishing of any

services pursuant to this Agreement, Contractor shall make available, upon written request, to the

Federal/State government or any of their duly authorized representatives, this Agreement, and such

books, documents, and records of Contractor that are necessary to certify the nature and extent of the

reasonable cost of services to LAFCo.  If Contractor enters into any Agreement with any related

organization to provide services pursuant to this Agreement with value or cost of $10,000 or more

over a twelve-month period, such Agreement shall contain a clause to the effect that until the

expiration of five years after the furnishing of services pursuant to such subcontract, the related

organization shall make available, upon written request, to the Federal/State government or any of

their duly authorized representatives, the subcontract, and books, documents and records of such

organization that are necessary to verify the nature and extent of such costs.  This paragraph shall be

of no force and effect when and if it is not required by law.  LAFCo shall have access to Contractor's

financial records for purposes of auditing payments made to Contractor hereunder.  Such records

shall be complete and available for audit ninety (90) days after final payment hereunder is made to

Contractor hereunder and shall be retained and available for audit purposes for five (5) years after

said final payment hereunder.

16. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE in each and all the provisions of this agreement.

17. AMENDMENT:  No change, alteration, variation, modification of the terms, termination or

discharge of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by the parties hereto.

18. ASSURANCE OF PERFORMANCE:  If at any time the Alameda LAFCo believes Contractor may

not be adequately performing its obligations under this Agreement, that Contractor may fail to

complete the Services as required by this Agreement, or has provided written notice of observed

deficiencies in Contractor’s performance, the Alameda LAFCo may request from Contractor prompt

written assurances of performance and a written plan to correct the observed deficiencies in

Contractor’s performance.  Contractor shall provide such written assurances and written plan within

ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the Alameda LAFCo’s written request and shall thereafter

diligently commence and fully perform such written plan. Contractor acknowledges and agrees that

any failure to provide written assurances and a written plan to correct observed deficiencies, in the

required time, to diligently commence and fully perform such written plan, is a material breach under

this Agreement.

8195



Page 7 of 11 

19. KEY PERSONNEL:  Contractor shall identify key personnel assigned to perform services in Exhibit

A and obtain LAFCo approval of any substitution of the contractor.  If the contractor has

subcontractors, this requirement extends to the subcontractors as well.

20. SUBCONTRACTORS:  Contractor shall identify and obtain LAFCo approval of all subcontractors.

Nothing provided herein shall create any obligation on the part of the Alameda LAFCo to pay or to

see to the payment by Contractor of any monies to any subcontractor, supplier or vendor, nor create

any relationship in contract or otherwise, express or implied between any such subcontractor, supplier

or vendor and the Alameda LAFCo. Approval by the Alameda LAFCo of any subcontractor shall not

constitute a waiver of any right of the Alameda LAFCo to reject defective work, material or

equipment, not in compliance with the requirements of this Agreement.

21. CHOICE OF LAW:  This Agreement, and any dispute arising from the relationship between the

parties to this Agreement, shall be governed by the laws of the State of California, excluding any

laws that direct the application of another jurisdiction’s laws, and its courts shall have jurisdiction

(but not exclusive jurisdiction) to hear and determine all questions relating to this Agreement.

22. WAIVER:  Any failure of a party to assert any right under this Agreement shall not constitute a

waiver or a termination of that right, under this Agreement or any provisions of this Agreement.

23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This Agreement, including all attachments, exhibits, and any other

documents specifically incorporated into this Agreement, shall constitute the entire Agreement

between the Alameda LAFCo and Contractor relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. As

used herein, Agreement refers to any documents incorporated herein by reference and any exhibits or

attachments.  This Agreement supersedes and merges all previous understandings, and all other

agreements, written or oral, between the parties and sets forth the entire understanding of the parties

regarding the subject matter thereof.  The Agreement may not be modified except by a written

document signed by both parties.

24. TERMINATION: LAFCo may terminate this Agreement with or without cause by providing thirty

(30) days notice, in writing, to the Contractor.  Upon the expiration of said notice, this Agreement

shall become of no further force or effect whatsoever and each of the parties hereto shall be relieved

and discharged here from.  The Alameda LAFCo may terminate at any time without notice upon

material breach of the terms of this Agreement and/or in the event that the Alameda LAFCo

determines that the Contractor’s performance is substandard or unsatisfactory.

25. SURVIVAL:  The obligations of this Agreement, which by their nature would continue beyond the

termination or expiration of the Agreement, including without limitation, the obligations regarding Hold

Harmless/Indemnification (paragraph 2), Confidentiality of Information (paragraph 9), and Conflict of

Interest (paragraph 10), shall survive termination or expiration.

26. NOTICES:  All notices, requests, demands, or other communications under this Agreement shall be

in writing.  Notices shall be given for all purposes as follows:

• Personal delivery:  When personally delivered to the recipient, notices are effective on delivery.

• First Class Mail:  When mailed first class to the last address of the recipient known to the party

giving notice, notice is effective three mail delivery days after deposit in a United States Postal

Service office or mailbox.

9196



Page 8 of 11 

• Certified Mail:  When mailed certified mail, return receipt requested, notice is effective on

receipt, if delivery is confirmed by a return receipt.

• Overnight Delivery:  When delivered by overnight delivery (Federal Express/Airborne/ United

Parcel Service/DHL WorldWide Express) with charges prepaid or charged to the sender’s

account, notice is effective on delivery, if delivery is confirmed by the delivery service.

• Telex or facsimile transmission:  When sent by telex or fax to the last telex or fax number of

the recipient known to the party giving notice, notice is effective on receipt, provided that (a) a

duplicate copy of the notice is promptly given by first-class or certified mail or by overnight

delivery, or (b) the receiving party delivers a written confirmation of receipt.  Any notice given

by telex or fax shall be deemed received on the next business day if is received after 5:00 p.m.

(recipients time) or on a non-business day.

Addresses for purpose of giving notice are as follows: 

To LAFCo: 

To Contractor:  

Alameda LAFCO
224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110
Hayward, CA  94544

Lamphier..Gregory

1944 Embarcadero 

Oakland, CA  94606 

Any correctly addressed notice that is refused, unclaimed, or undeliverable because of an act or omission of 

the party to be notified shall be deemed effective as of the first date that said notice was refused, 

unclaimed, or deemed undeliverable by the postal authorities, messenger, or overnight delivery service. 

Any party may change its address or telex or facsimile number by giving the other party notice of the 

change in any manner permitted by this Agreement. 

[END OF GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS] 

10197



Page 9 of 11 

EXHIBIT A 

EXHIBIT A – DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

The scope of services for this agreement includes providing a range of planning support services in a 

timely manner to the Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo).   

The Contractor will provide, as-needed the following services: 

• Reviewing and assisting with the processing of LAFCo applications (e.g., changes of organization,

reorganizations, consolidations, dissolutions, formations, incorporations, etc.), including reviewing,

providing comments and recommendations, and assisting with preparation of staff reports.

• Coordinating with applicants, affected agencies, affected LAFCos, and the public.

• Policy and procedures development and update, as needed.

• Review and analysis of housing, fiscal, infrastructure, water availability, and open

space/agricultural land preservation and conservation issues.

• California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA):

o Reviewing and providing comment on various environmental documents received by

LAFCO (e.g., Notices of Preparation, Negative Declarations, and Environmental Impact

Reports).

o Preparing CEQA documents, including exemptions, initial studies, negative declarations,

notices of preparation and completion, environmental impact reports, findings of fact and

statements of overriding considerations, and National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA)

reviews, as needed.

• Providing planning support and technical assistance with municipal service reviews and sphere of

influence updates, as needed.

• Implementation of all aspects of LAFCo’s policies and procedures working in cooperation with

staff and Commissioners.

• Providing training, facilitation, public information workshops, negotiations, and conflict resolution,

as needed.

• Presentations or staffing at public hearings, workshops and other public meetings.

• Attending LAFCo and other meetings, as needed.

• Providing related duties as determined by LAFCo.

Assigned Key Personnel:  Scott Gregory, President

11198



Page 10 of 11 

EXHIBIT B 

EXHIBIT B – CONTRACT PAYMENT TERMS 

Contracted Service: 

1. The Alameda LAFCo will pay Contractor for services provided herein, upon submittal of an 
invoice and summary report of services performed pursuant to this agreement.  All services will be 
performed at the direction of, and with the prior authorization of, the LAFCo Executive Officer. 
Invoices will be approved by the Alameda LAFCo Executive Officer.

2. LAFCo will reimburse Contractor for miscellaneous contract-related expenses including 
telephone, supplies, postage, printing, reproduction, travel, meeting and meals.  In accordance 
with paragraph 7 of the General Terms and Conditions, travel costs must be pre-

approved to receive reimbursement.  Payments under the terms of this Agreement shall not 
exceed $25,000.  This amount includes all travel expenses and contingencies.

a. For the purposes hereof, the billing rates are as listed in the firm’s proposal and shown 
below: 

Scott Gregory, President:  $225/hour   

3. Alameda LAFCo expects Contractor to cover all costs of professional development activities,

training, and/or continuing education unless Alameda LAFCo requires such professional

development activities, training and/or continuing education of Contractor or Contractor obtains

prior written approval from LAFCo to incur the cost of such professional development activities,

training and/or continuing education.

4. The term of this Agreement is March 15, 2021 through June 30, 2024.

12199



Page 11 of 11 

EXHIBIT C 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

The Contractor shall be required to maintain at all times during the performance of the Agreement the 

following insurance coverage: 

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence

combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage, including contractual liability, personal

injury, products and completed operations.

B. Personal Automobile Liability Insurance for owned, non-owned or hired automobiles with a

combined single limit of not less than $500,000 per occurrence.

C. Workers' Compensation & Employers Liability Insurance

If Contractor does not have any employees, the requirements for evidence of workers’ compensation 

insurance is not necessary.  Otherwise: 

1. Workers' Compensation - Statutory Limits

2. Employers Liability Insurance - with a limit of not less than $100,000 per employee.

D. Professional Liability with a limit of $1,000,000 million per claim, and $1,000,000 million aggregate.

E. Additional Insured Endorsement - The policy or policies providing insurance as required above, with

the exception of personal automobile liability, professional liability, workers' compensation and employer's

liability, shall be endorsed to include the Alameda LAFCo, Alameda County, their directors, officers and

employees as Additional Insured's as respects work performed pursuant to or incidental to the Agreement.

F. Evidence of Insurance - Before commencing any operations under the Agreement, the Contractor shall

furnish the Alameda LAFCo with a Certificate of Insurance and copies of all applicable endorsements

evidencing compliance with the above insurance requirements and that such insurance will not be canceled

without thirty (30) days advance written notice.

G. Duration of Insurance Coverage - All required insurance coverages shall be maintained during the

entire term of the Agreement. Insurance coverage written on a claims-made basis shall be maintained

during the entire term of the Agreement and further until at least 6 month(s) following termination and

acceptance of all work under the Agreement, with the retroactive date of said insurance concurrent with

the commencement of activities pursuant to this Agreement.

All required insurance shall be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A: VII 

or equivalent, and with deductible amounts acceptable to the Alameda LAFCo.   

13200



Page 11 of 11

EXHIBIT C 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

The Contractor shall be required to maintain at all times during the performance of the Agreement the 
following insurance coverage: 

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence
combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage, including contractual liability, personal
injury, products and completed operations.

B. Personal Automobile Liability Insurance for owned, non-owned or hired automobiles with a
combined single limit of not less than $500,000 per occurrence.

C. Workers' Compensation & Employers Liability Insurance

If Contractor does not have any employees, the requirements for evidence of workers’ compensation 
insurance is not necessary.  Otherwise: 

1. Workers' Compensation - Statutory Limits
2. Employers Liability Insurance - with a limit of not less than $100,000 per employee.

D. Professional Liability with a limit of $1,000,000 million per claim, and $1,000,000 million
aggregate. 

E. Additional Insured Endorsement - The policy or policies providing insurance as required above,
with 

the exception of personal automobile liability, professional liability, workers' compensation and  
employer's liability, shall be endorsed to include the Alameda LAFCo, Alameda County, their directors,  
officers and employees as Additional Insured's as respects work performed pursuant to or incidental  
to the Agreement. 

F. Evidence of Insurance - Before commencing any operations under the Agreement, the Contractor
shall furnish the Alameda LAFCo with a Certificate of Insurance and copies of all applicable
endorsements evidencing compliance with the above insurance requirements and that such insurance
will not be canceled without thirty (30) days advance written notice.

G. Duration of Insurance Coverage - All required insurance coverages shall be maintained during
the entire term of the Agreement. Insurance coverage written on a claims-made basis shall be
maintained during the entire term of the Agreement and further until at least 6 month(s) following
termination and acceptance of all work under the Agreement, with the retroactive date of said
insurance concurrent with the commencement of activities pursuant to this Agreement.

All required insurance shall be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A: 
VII or equivalent, and with deductible amounts acceptable to the Alameda LAFCo.   

14201



Page 11 of 11

EXHIBIT C 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

The Contractor shall be required to maintain at all times during the performance of the Agreement the 
following insurance coverage: 

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence
combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage, including contractual liability, personal
injury, products and completed operations.

B. Personal Automobile Liability Insurance for owned, non-owned or hired automobiles with a
combined single limit of not less than $500,000 per occurrence.

C. Workers' Compensation & Employers Liability Insurance

If Contractor does not have any employees, the requirements for evidence of workers’ compensation 
insurance is not necessary.  Otherwise: 

1. Workers' Compensation - Statutory Limits
2. Employers Liability Insurance - with a limit of not less than $100,000 per employee.

D. Professional Liability with a limit of $1,000,000 million per claim, and $1,000,000 million
aggregate. 

E. Additional Insured Endorsement - The policy or policies providing insurance as required above,
with 

the exception of personal automobile liability, professional liability, workers' compensation and  
employer's liability, shall be endorsed to include the Alameda LAFCo, Alameda County, their directors,  
officers and employees as Additional Insured's as respects work performed pursuant to or incidental  
to the Agreement. 

F. Evidence of Insurance - Before commencing any operations under the Agreement, the Contractor
shall furnish the Alameda LAFCo with a Certificate of Insurance and copies of all applicable
endorsements evidencing compliance with the above insurance requirements and that such insurance
will not be canceled without thirty (30) days advance written notice.

G. Duration of Insurance Coverage - All required insurance coverages shall be maintained during
the entire term of the Agreement. Insurance coverage written on a claims-made basis shall be
maintained during the entire term of the Agreement and further until at least 6 month(s) following
termination and acceptance of all work under the Agreement, with the retroactive date of said
insurance concurrent with the commencement of activities pursuant to this Agreement.

All required insurance shall be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A: 
VII or equivalent, and with deductible amounts acceptable to the Alameda LAFCo.   

15202



3  

 

Attachment 4 
 

Page 1 of 11 
 

P.O./Contract #    
 

 

ALAMEDA LAFCO, ALAMEDA COUNTY, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT 

 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this_XX day of XX 2021, by and between the 
ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION, a public agency of the State of 
California, hereafter called the “Alameda LAFCo”, and Lamphier Gregory, a business duly 
qualified in the State of California, whose principal place of business is 1944 Embarcadero, 
Oakland, CA 94606, hereafter called the “Contractor.” 

 
WITNESSETH 

 
WHEREAS, the Alameda LAFCo desires to obtain professional consultation services to conduct a 

special study of LAFCO Review of Measure D as described in Exhibit A attached hereto (“Scope of Services”); 
and 

 
WHEREAS, Contractor is professionally qualified to provide such services and is willing to 

provide same to Alameda LAFCo; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed that Alameda LAFCo does hereby retain Contractor to 
provide As-Needed Professional Planning Services, and Contractor accepts such engagement, 
on the terms and conditions hereinafter specified in this Agreement, the Additional provisions 
attached hereto, and the following described exhibits, all of which are incorporated into this 
Agreement by this reference: 

 
Exhibit A Definition of Services 
Exhibit B Payment Terms 
Exhibit C Insurance Requirements 

 
 
CONTRACT PERIOD will be from March 15, 2021 through June 30, 2024. This Agreement may 
be extended for three additional one-year periods, if mutually agreed by both parties hereto, 
in writing not less than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of this Agreement. 

 
COMPENSATION: the Alameda LAFCo agrees to pay Contractor, pursuant to the terms set 
forth in Exhibit B, for services performed hereunder in a total amount not to exceed $48,000 
for the term of the current agreement, including all expenses and contingencies. 

 
General Terms and Conditions, pages 3 through 11, attached hereto constitute a part of this 
agreement. 

203



4  

Page 2 of 11 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement as of the day 

and year first above written. 

 

ALAMEDA LAFCO CONTRACTOR 
 

By:    . 
LAFCO EXECUTIVE OFFICER Lamphier Gregory 

 

 
By:    

 

 
 

Title 
 

 
 

Address 

 
Tax Payer I.D. #    

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 
 

LAFCo LEGAL COUNSEL 
 
 
I hereby certify under penalty of perjury that the Executive Officer of the Alameda LAFCo was 
duly authorized to execute this document on behalf of the Alameda LAFCo by a majority vote of 
the Commission on March 11, 2021; and that a copy has been delivered to the Chair as 
provided by Government Code Section 25103. 

 

 

Date:     ATTEST: 

 
 
 
 

 

Alameda LAFCo 
County of Alameda 
State of California 

 

 
By:     

204



5  

Page 3 of 11 
 

General Terms and Conditions 
 

1. EMPLOYER/EMPLOYEE RELATIONSHIP: No relationship of employer and employee is created 

by this Agreement, it being understood that Contractor shall act hereunder as an independent 

Contractor; that Contractor shall not have any claim under this Agreement or otherwise against the 

Alameda LAFCo for seniority, vacation time, vacation pay, sick leave, personal time off, overtime, 

health insurance, medical care, hospital care, retirement benefits, Social Security, disability, Workers' 

Compensation, or unemployment insurance benefits, civil service protection, or employee benefits of 

any kind; that Contractor shall be solely liable for and obligated to pay directly all applicable taxes, 

including, but not limited to, Federal and State income taxes, and in connection therewith Contractor 

shall indemnify and hold the Alameda LAFCo harmless from any and all liability which the Alameda 

LAFCo may incur because of Contractor’s failure to pay such taxes; that Contractor does, by this 

Agreement, agree to perform his/her said work and functions at all times in strict accordance with 

currently approved methods and practices in his/her field and that the sole interest of the Alameda 

LAFCo is to ensure that said service shall be performed and rendered in a competent, efficient, timely 

and satisfactory manner and in accordance with the standards required by the agency concerned. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Alameda LAFCo determines that pursuant to state and federal 

law Contractor is an employee for purposes of income tax withholding, the Alameda LAFCo shall, 

upon two weeks notice to Contractor withhold from the payments to Contractor hereunder federal 

and state income taxes and pay said sums over to the Federal and State governments. 

 

2. HOLD/HARMLESS/INDEMNIFICATION: To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall 

hold harmless, defend and indemnify Alameda LAFCo, its Commissioners, employees and agents 

from and against any and all claims, losses, damages, liabilities and expenses, including but not 

limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from the performance of services under this 

Agreement, provided that any such claim, loss, damage, liability or expense is attributable to bodily 

injury, sickness, disease, death or to injury to or destruction of property, including the loss therefrom, 

or to any violation of federal, state or municipal law or regulation, which arises out of or is any way 

connected with the performance of this agreement (collectively “Liabilities”) except where such 

Liabilities are caused solely by the negligence or willful misconduct of any indemnitee. Alameda 

LAFCo may participate in the defense of any such claim without relieving Contractor of any 

obligation hereunder. The obligations of this indemnity shall be for the full amount of all damage to 

Alameda LAFCo, including defense costs, and shall not be limited by any insurance limits. 

 

3. INSURANCE AND BOND: Contractor shall at all times during the term of the Agreement with the 

Alameda LAFCo maintain in force those insurance policies as designated in the attached Exhibit C, 

"Certificate of Insurance, Service Contracts," and will comply with all those requirements as stated 

herein. 

 

4. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION: Contractor shall provide Workers' Compensation insurance at 

Contractor's own cost and expense and further, neither the Contractor nor its carrier shall be entitled 

to recover from the Alameda LAFCo any costs, settlements, or expenses of Workers' Compensation 

claims arising out of this agreement. 

 

5. CONFORMITY WITH LAW AND SAFETY: 

 
A. Contractor shall observe and comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, codes and regulations 

of governmental agencies, including federal, state, municipal, and local governing bodies, 

having jurisdiction over the scope of services or any part hereof, including all provisions of the 

205



6  

Page 4 of 11 
 

Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1979 and all amendments thereto, and all applicable 

federal, state, municipal, and local safety regulations. All services performed by Contractor 

must be in accordance with these laws, ordinances, codes and regulations. Contractor shall 

indemnify and hold the Alameda LAFCo harmless from any and all liability, fines, penalties 

and consequences from any noncompliance or violations of such laws, ordinances, codes and 

regulations. If a provision of this Agreement is found to be invalid, the parties legally, 

commercially, and practicably can continue this Agreement without that provision, and the 

remainder of this Agreement shall continue in force and effect unless an essential purpose of 

this Agreement would be defeated by the loss of such provision. In the event any of the terms, 

conditions, or provisions of this Agreement are held to be illegal or otherwise unenforceable, 

such term, condition or provision shall be deemed severable from the remainder of this 

Agreement and shall not cause any other part or provision of this Agreement to be illegal or 

unenforceable. 

 

B. Accidents: If death, serious personal injury or substantial property damage occurs in 

connection with the performance of this agreement, Contractor shall immediately notify the 

Alameda LAFCo by telephone. Contractor shall promptly submit to the Alameda LAFCo a 

written report, in such form as may be required by County of all accidents which occur in 

connection with this Agreement. This report must include the following information: (1) name 

and address of the injured or deceased person(s); (2) name and address of Contractor's 

subcontractor, if any; (3) name and address of Contractor's liability insurance carrier; and (4) a 

detailed description of accident and whether any of LAFCo's equipment, tools, material, or staff 

were involved. Contractor further agrees that it shall take all reasonable steps to preserve all 

physical evidence and information which may be relevant to accidents or circumstances 

surrounding a potential claim, while maintaining public safety. Contractor shall provide the 

Alameda LAFCo the opportunity to review and inspect such evidence, including the scene of 

the accident. 

 

6. PAYMENT: Payment to Contractor will be made only upon presentation of proper invoice by 

Contractor subject to the approval of the Alameda LAFCo, and in accordance with this Agreement, 

Exhibit B. 

 

7. TRAVEL EXPENSES: Payment to Contractor for travel expenses will be made only upon the prior 

approval of the Alameda LAFCo and presentation of a proper invoice by Contractor in accordance 

with this Agreement. 

 

8. ROYALTIES AND INVENTIONS: The Alameda LAFCo shall have a royalty-free, exclusive and 

irrevocable license to reproduce, publish and use the results produced in the course of or under this 

Agreement; and Contractor shall not publish any such material relating to the Alameda LAFCo 

without prior consent of the Alameda LAFCo. 

 

9. CONFIDENTIALITY OF INFORMATION: Confidential information is defined as all information 

disclosed to Contractor which relates to the Alameda LAFCo’s past, present, and future activities, as 

well as activities under this Agreement. Contractor will hold all such information with the same 

degree of care which Contractor utilizes to protect its own data of a similar nature. Upon 

cancellation or expiration of this Agreement, Contractor will return to the Alameda LAFCo all 

written or descriptive matter which contain any such confidential information. 

206



7  

Page 5 of 11 

 
 

10. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: No officer, member, or employee of the Alameda LAFCo and no 

member of their governing bodies shall have any pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this 

Agreement or the proceeds thereof. No Contractor, nor any member of Contractor's family shall 

serve on the Alameda LAFCo, or hold any such position which either by rule, practice or action 

nominates, recommends, supervises Contractor's operations, or authorizes funding to Contractor. 

Contractor shall immediately bring to Alameda LAFCo’s attention any situation in which its client 

has, or is reasonably likely to have an application or other matter pending before Alameda LAFCo. 

The provisions of this Agreement are not exclusive, and thus Alameda LAFCo may at its discretion 

appoint a different firm to serve as its planner in the event of a conflict. Contractor agrees not to 

assign any of the key personnel identified in Exhibit A to any matter that is, or is likely to be pending 

before Alameda LAFCo regardless of whether Alameda LAFCo in its discretion decides to hire 

another firm to avoid a conflict. 

 

11. USE OF ALAMEDA LAFCO PROPERTY: Contractor shall not use Alameda LAFCo premises or 

property (including equipment, instruments and supplies) or personnel for any purpose other than in 

the performance of his/her obligations under this Agreement. 

 

12. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PRACTICES PROVISIONS: Contractor assures that 

he/she/it will comply with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and that no person shall, on the 

grounds of race, creed, color, disability, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, age, religion, Vietnam 

era Veteran’s status, political affiliation, or any other non-merit factor, be excluded from participation 

in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under this Agreement. 

 

A. Contractor shall, in all solicitations or advertisements for applicants for employment placed as a 

result of this Agreement, state that it is an “Equal Opportunity Employer” or that all qualified 

applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to their race, creed, color, 

disability, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, age, religion, Vietnam era Veteran’s status, 

political affiliation, or any other non-merit factor. 

 

B. Contractor shall, if requested to so do by the Alameda LAFCo, certify that it has not, in the 

performance of this Agreement, discriminated against applicants or employees because of their 

race, creed, color, disability, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, age, religion, Vietnam era 

Veteran’s status, political affiliation, or any other non-merit factor. 

 

C. If requested to do so by the Alameda LAFCo, Contractor shall provide the Alameda LAFCo 

with access to copies of all of its records pertaining or relating to its employment practices, 

except to the extent such records or portions of such records are confidential or privileged 

under State or Federal law. 

 

D. Contractor shall recruit vigorously and encourage minority- and women-owned businesses to bid 

its subcontracts. 

 

E. Nothing contained in this contract shall be construed in any manner so as to require or permit any 

act which is prohibited by law. 

 

F. The Contractor shall include the provisions set forth in paragraphs A through E (above) in each 

of its subcontracts. 

207



8  

Page 6 of 11 
 

13. ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT: Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to permit 

assignment or transfer by Contractor of any rights under this Agreement and such assignment or 

transfer is expressly prohibited and void unless otherwise approved in writing by the Alameda 

LAFCo. 

 

14. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE: Contractor and Contractor's employees shall comply with LAFCo’s 

policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace. Neither Contractor nor Contractor’s employees shall 

unlawfully manufacture, distribute, dispense, possess or use controlled substances, as defined in 21 

U.S. Code section 812, including marijuana, heroin, cocaine, and amphetamines, at any LAFCo 

facility or work site. If Contractor or any employee of Contractor is convicted or pleads nolo 

contendere to a criminal drug statute violation occurring at a LAFCo facility or work site, the 

Contractor within five days thereafter shall notify the head of the LAFCo department/agency for 

which the contract services are performed. Violation of this provision shall constitute a material 

breach of this Agreement. 

 

15. FEDERAL AND STATE AUDITS: Until the expiration of five (5) years after the furnishing of any 

services pursuant to this Agreement, Contractor shall make available, upon written request, to the 

Federal/State government or any of their duly authorized representatives, this Agreement, and such 

books, documents, and records of Contractor that are necessary to certify the nature and extent of the 

reasonable cost of services to LAFCo. If Contractor enters into any Agreement with any related 

organization to provide services pursuant to this Agreement with value or cost of $10,000 or more 

over a twelve-month period, such Agreement shall contain a clause to the effect that until the 

expiration of five years after the furnishing of services pursuant to such subcontract, the related 

organization shall make available, upon written request, to the Federal/State government or any of 

their duly authorized representatives, the subcontract, and books, documents and records of such 

organization that are necessary to verify the nature and extent of such costs. This paragraph shall be 

of no force and effect when and if it is not required by law. LAFCo shall have access to Contractor's 

financial records for purposes of auditing payments made to Contractor hereunder. Such records 

shall be complete and available for audit ninety (90) days after final payment hereunder is made to 

Contractor hereunder and shall be retained and available for audit purposes for five (5) years after 

said final payment hereunder. 

 

16. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE in each and all the provisions of this agreement. 

 
17. AMENDMENT: No change, alteration, variation, modification of the terms, termination or 

discharge of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by the parties hereto. 

 

18. ASSURANCE OF PERFORMANCE: If at any time the Alameda LAFCo believes Contractor may 

not be adequately performing its obligations under this Agreement, that Contractor may fail to 

complete the Services as required by this Agreement, or has provided written notice of observed 

deficiencies in Contractor’s performance, the Alameda LAFCo may request from Contractor prompt 

written assurances of performance and a written plan to correct the observed deficiencies in 

Contractor’s performance. Contractor shall provide such written assurances and written plan within 

ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the Alameda LAFCo’s written request and shall thereafter 

diligently commence and fully perform such written plan. Contractor acknowledges and agrees that 

any failure to provide written assurances and a written plan to correct observed deficiencies, in the 

required time, to diligently commence and fully perform such written plan, is a material breach under 

this Agreement. 

208



9  

Page 7 of 11 
 

19. KEY PERSONNEL: Contractor shall identify key personnel assigned to perform services in Exhibit 

A and obtain LAFCo approval of any substitution of the contractor. If the contractor has 

subcontractors, this requirement extends to the subcontractors as well. 

 

20. SUBCONTRACTORS: Contractor shall identify and obtain LAFCo approval of all subcontractors. 

Nothing provided herein shall create any obligation on the part of the Alameda LAFCo to pay or to 

see to the payment by Contractor of any monies to any subcontractor, supplier or vendor, nor create 

any relationship in contract or otherwise, express or implied between any such subcontractor, supplier 

or vendor and the Alameda LAFCo. Approval by the Alameda LAFCo of any subcontractor shall not 

constitute a waiver of any right of the Alameda LAFCo to reject defective work, material or 

equipment, not in compliance with the requirements of this Agreement. 

 

21. CHOICE OF LAW: This Agreement, and any dispute arising from the relationship between the 

parties to this Agreement, shall be governed by the laws of the State of California, excluding any 

laws that direct the application of another jurisdiction’s laws, and its courts shall have jurisdiction 

(but not exclusive jurisdiction) to hear and determine all questions relating to this Agreement. 

 

22. WAIVER: Any failure of a party to assert any right under this Agreement shall not constitute a 

waiver or a termination of that right, under this Agreement or any provisions of this Agreement. 

 

23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement, including all attachments, exhibits, and any other 

documents specifically incorporated into this Agreement, shall constitute the entire Agreement 

between the Alameda LAFCo and Contractor relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. As 

used herein, Agreement refers to any documents incorporated herein by reference and any exhibits or 

attachments. This Agreement supersedes and merges all previous understandings, and all other 

agreements, written or oral, between the parties and sets forth the entire understanding of the parties 

regarding the subject matter thereof. The Agreement may not be modified except by a written 

document signed by both parties. 

 

24. TERMINATION: LAFCo may terminate this Agreement with or without cause by providing thirty 

(30) days notice, in writing, to the Contractor. Upon the expiration of said notice, this Agreement 

shall become of no further force or effect whatsoever and each of the parties hereto shall be relieved 

and discharged here from. The Alameda LAFCo may terminate at any time without notice upon 

material breach of the terms of this Agreement and/or in the event that the Alameda LAFCo 

determines that the Contractor’s performance is substandard or unsatisfactory. 

 

25. SURVIVAL: The obligations of this Agreement, which by their nature would continue beyond the 

termination or expiration of the Agreement, including without limitation, the obligations regarding Hold 

Harmless/Indemnification (paragraph 2), Confidentiality of Information (paragraph 9), and Conflict of 

Interest (paragraph 10), shall survive termination or expiration. 

 

26. NOTICES: All notices, requests, demands, or other communications under this Agreement shall be 

in writing. Notices shall be given for all purposes as follows: 

 

• Personal delivery: When personally delivered to the recipient, notices are effective on delivery. 

 

• First Class Mail: When mailed first class to the last address of the recipient known to the party 

giving notice, notice is effective three mail delivery days after deposit in a United States Postal 

Service office or mailbox. 

209



10  

Page 8 of 11 

 
 

• Certified Mail: When mailed certified mail, return receipt requested, notice is effective on 

receipt, if delivery is confirmed by a return receipt. 

 

• Overnight Delivery: When delivered by overnight delivery (Federal Express/Airborne/ United 

Parcel Service/DHL WorldWide Express) with charges prepaid or charged to the sender’s 

account, notice is effective on delivery, if delivery is confirmed by the delivery service. 

 

• Telex or facsimile transmission: When sent by telex or fax to the last telex or fax number of 

the recipient known to the party giving notice, notice is effective on receipt, provided that (a) a 

duplicate copy of the notice is promptly given by first-class or certified mail or by overnight 

delivery, or (b) the receiving party delivers a written confirmation of receipt. Any notice given 

by telex or fax shall be deemed received on the next business day if is received after 5:00 p.m. 

(recipients time) or on a non-business day. 

 

Addresses for purpose of giving notice are as follows: 
 

To LAFCo: 

 

 

 
To Contractor: 

Alameda LAFCO 

224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110 

Hayward, CA  94544 

 
Lamphier Gregory 

1944 Embarcadero 

Oakland, CA  94606 
 

Any correctly addressed notice that is refused, unclaimed, or undeliverable because of an act or omission of 

the party to be notified shall be deemed effective as of the first date that said notice was refused, 

unclaimed, or deemed undeliverable by the postal authorities, messenger, or overnight delivery service. 

 

Any party may change its address or telex or facsimile number by giving the other party notice of the 

change in any manner permitted by this Agreement. 

 

[END OF GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS] 

210



11  

Page 9 of 11 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

EXHIBIT A – DEFINITION OF SERVICE 
 

In response to the Alameda LAFCo Commission’s adoption of their amended study schedule; a decision 

was made to explore the impacts of Measure D on agricultural lands and open space. 

 

Scott Gregory, of Lamphier Gregory will serve as the as key person, to conduct a study and review of 

Measure D and provide a report to the Commission setting out his findings.  

 

TASK 1: EVALUATION OF MEASURE D EFFECTIVENESS 

 

Lamphier-Gregory and Economic Planning Systems (EPS) will work with LAFCo staff to identify a list of 

criteria to establish a benchmark of how effective Measure D has been in ensuring efficient municipal 

services, balancing infrastructure needs for sustainable growth, and conserving the environment and public 

resources such as prime agricultural land and open space land. We assume that these criteria may include: 

 How much prime agricultural land and important open space has been lost in unincorporated East 

County since implementation of Measure D? 

 How many extensions of municipal services (e.g., service district annexations) have been requested 

and/or approved in unincorporated East County since implementation of Measure D? 

 Has Measure D’s intent for city-centered growth within the established Urban Growth Boundary 

accommodated the need for sustainable growth? 

TASK 2: EVALUATION OF MEASURE D EFFECTS ON AGRICULTURAL BUSINESS   

Lamphier-Gregory and EPS will work with LAFCo staff to identify a list of criteria to establish a 

benchmark of how Measure D has affected agricultural businesses that rely on the County’s agricultural 

lands (i.e., has the land been preserved at the expense of the agricultural businesses that rely on this prime 

agricultural land?)  

TASK 3: COMPARISON OF MEASURE D REGULATIONS WITH OTHER COUNTIES 

 

Lamphier-Gregory will work with LAFCo staff to identify a list of criteria to establish a benchmark of how 

those zoning regulations that apply to development and use of the unincorporated East County lands 

designated as Agriculture and Resource Management pursuant to Measure D, compare to similar zoning 

regulations of other Bay Area counties. or purposes of this study, we have assumed this comparative 

assessment will include three other Bay Area counties of Napa, Sonoma and Contra Costa. However, this 

comparisons could be expanded to all nine Bay Area counties, or could include other important wine and 

agriculture-based counties such San Luis Obispo, Amador, San Joaquin and/or Stanislaus. 

TASK 4: IDENTIFICATION OF KEY ISSUES 

 

Building off of the results of Task 3, EPS will select key differences between Alameda County’s Measure 

D and comparable measures in other Bay Area counties, and evaluate the opportunity costs from a land use 

and economic perspective. Up to seven interviews with Alameda County stakeholders, including 

landowners and business operators, will be used to identify the extent to which Measure D may be 

restricting business growth/expansion that is otherwise consistent with Measure D objectives. EPS also 

will interview similar types of landowners/business owners in other counties (up to three) in an effort to 

understand how their business would be impacted if their land was subject to Alameda County’s Measure 

211



12  

D requirements. These series of interviews will allow Alameda LAFCo to pinpoint the most critical issues 

for subsequent Phase II analysis (if Alameda LAFCo decides to continue to this subsequent phase).  

 

Phase II: Economic Analysis  

 

Should Alameda LAFCo decide to move forward with Phase II work, Lamphier-Gregory and EPS would 

examine how potential changes to Measure D may or may not support LAFCo’s mission to ensure efficient 

municipal services, balance infrastructure needs for sustainable growth, and conserve the environment and 

public resources such as prime agricultural and open space land. We would seek to identify answers to the 

following types of questions: 

 

Assigned Key Personal: 

 

Scott Gregory, President, Lamphier-Gregory 

Ashleigh Kanat, Principal, Economic Planning Systems 

Tiefion Rice-Evans, Managing Prinicpal, Economic Planning Systems 

Ashley Boots, Associate, Economic Planning Systems 

 
 

PROJECT TIMELINE 

Lamphier-Gregory with the use of subcontractor, Economic Planning Systems shall perform the services 

required under this Agreement in accordance with an estimated ten-week timeline beginning from date of 

contract approval. Upon contract execution, all parties listed under the contract will meet to establish a 

milestone schedule.  

The parties anticipate the project will be substantially completed, meaning that a draft report will be 

submitted to LAFCo staff, by July 1, 2021 at the latest.  The timeline is subject to modification by mutual 

written agreement of the Lamphier-Gregory and Economic Planning Systems and the LAFCo Executive 

Officer. 

Parties agree that the presentation of the report to Alameda LAFCo Commission will occur after the 

report has been finalized and it will be scheduled at the next available regular LAFCo meeting in 2021. 

212



13  

Page 10 of 11 

 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

EXHIBIT B – CONTRACT PAYMENT TERMS 

 
 

1. The Alameda LAFCo will pay Lamphier-Gregory for services provided in accordance with this agreement, 

upon submittal of invoices which includes a summary of services performed.  All services will be performed 

at the direction of, and with the prior authorization of, the LAFCo Executive Officer.  Invoices will be 

approved by the Alameda LAFCo Executive Officer based on work completed.   

 

2. Phase 1 of work is based on time and materials estimate with a total not-to-exceed budget of $48,000. This 

budget estimate includes $18,000 for the subcontractor, Economic Planning Systems’ work pursuant to Tasks 

2 and 4 (above), and $30,000 for Lamphier-Gregory’s work pursuant to Tasks 1 and 3 (above), as well as 

overall project management efforts and final presentation of the results of analyses to Alameda LAFCo staff 

and Commission. Lamphier-Gregory and Economic Planning Systems will bill only for work completed, 

and any remaining budget not needed for this study will not be invoiced.  

   

3. Payments under the terms of this Agreement shall not exceed $48,000.  This amount includes: one revised 

draft in response to LAFCo staff review, attendance at one LAFCo hearing, all travel expenses, 

contingencies, and other miscellaneous expenses.   

 

4. The term of this Agreement is March 15, 2021 through June 30, 2024.   

213



14  

Page 11 of 11 
 

EXHIBIT C 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 

 

The Contractor shall be required to maintain at all times during the performance of the Agreement the 

following insurance coverage: 

 

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence 

combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage, including contractual liability, personal 

injury, products and completed operations. 

 

B. Personal Automobile Liability Insurance for owned, non-owned or hired automobiles with a 

combined single limit of not less than $500,000 per occurrence. 

 

C. Workers' Compensation & Employers Liability Insurance 
 

If Contractor does not have any employees, the requirements for evidence of workers’ compensation 

insurance is not necessary. Otherwise: 

 

1. Workers' Compensation - Statutory Limits 

2. Employers Liability Insurance - with a limit of not less than $100,000 per employee. 

 
D. Professional Liability with a limit of $1,000,000 million per claim, and $1,000,000 million aggregate. 

 

E. Additional Insured Endorsement - The policy or policies providing insurance as required above, with 

the exception of personal automobile liability, professional liability, workers' compensation and employer's 

liability, shall be endorsed to include the Alameda LAFCo, Alameda County, their directors, officers and 

employees as Additional Insured's as respects work performed pursuant to or incidental to the Agreement. 

 

F. Evidence of Insurance - Before commencing any operations under the Agreement, the Contractor shall 

furnish the Alameda LAFCo with a Certificate of Insurance and copies of all applicable endorsements 

evidencing compliance with the above insurance requirements and that such insurance will not be canceled 

without thirty (30) days advance written notice. 

 

G. Duration of Insurance Coverage - All required insurance coverages shall be maintained during the 

entire term of the Agreement. Insurance coverage written on a claims-made basis shall be maintained 

during the entire term of the Agreement and further until at least 6 month(s) following termination and 

acceptance of all work under the Agreement, with the retroactive date of said insurance concurrent with 

the commencement of activities pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

All required insurance shall be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A: VII 

or equivalent, and with deductible amounts acceptable to the Alameda LAFCo. 

214



15  

Page 11 of 11 
 
 

EXHIBIT C 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 

 

The Contractor shall be required to maintain at all times during the performance of the Agreement the 

following insurance coverage: 

 

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence 

combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage, including contractual liability, personal 

injury, products and completed operations. 

 

B. Personal Automobile Liability Insurance for owned, non-owned or hired automobiles with a 

combined single limit of not less than $500,000 per occurrence. 

 

C. Workers' Compensation & Employers Liability Insurance 
 

If Contractor does not have any employees, the requirements for evidence of workers’ compensation 

insurance is not necessary. Otherwise: 

 

1. Workers' Compensation - Statutory Limits 

2. Employers Liability Insurance - with a limit of not less than $100,000 per employee. 

 

D. Professional Liability with a limit of $1,000,000 million per claim, and $1,000,000 million 

aggregate. 

 

E. Additional Insured Endorsement - The policy or policies providing insurance as required above, 

with 

the exception of personal automobile liability, professional liability, workers' compensation and 

employer's liability, shall be endorsed to include the Alameda LAFCo, Alameda County, their directors, 

officers and employees as Additional Insured's as respects work performed pursuant to or incidental 

to the Agreement. 

 

F. Evidence of Insurance - Before commencing any operations under the Agreement, the Contractor 

shall furnish the Alameda LAFCo with a Certificate of Insurance and copies of all applicable 

endorsements evidencing compliance with the above insurance requirements and that such insurance 

will not be canceled without thirty (30) days advance written notice. 

 

G. Duration of Insurance Coverage - All required insurance coverages shall be maintained during 

the entire term of the Agreement. Insurance coverage written on a claims-made basis shall be 

maintained during the entire term of the Agreement and further until at least 6 month(s) following 

termination and acceptance of all work under the Agreement, with the retroactive date of said 

insurance concurrent with the commencement of activities pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

All required insurance shall be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A: 

VII or equivalent, and with deductible amounts acceptable to the Alameda LAFCo. 

215



16  

Page 11 of 11 
 
 

EXHIBIT C 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 

 

The Contractor shall be required to maintain at all times during the performance of the Agreement the 

following insurance coverage: 

 

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence 

combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage, including contractual liability, personal 

injury, products and completed operations. 

 

B. Personal Automobile Liability Insurance for owned, non-owned or hired automobiles with a 

combined single limit of not less than $500,000 per occurrence. 

 

C. Workers' Compensation & Employers Liability Insurance 
 

If Contractor does not have any employees, the requirements for evidence of workers’ compensation 

insurance is not necessary. Otherwise: 

 

1. Workers' Compensation - Statutory Limits 

2. Employers Liability Insurance - with a limit of not less than $100,000 per employee. 

 

D. Professional Liability with a limit of $1,000,000 million per claim, and $1,000,000 million 

aggregate. 

 

E. Additional Insured Endorsement - The policy or policies providing insurance as required above, 

with 

the exception of personal automobile liability, professional liability, workers' compensation and 

employer's liability, shall be endorsed to include the Alameda LAFCo, Alameda County, their directors, 

officers and employees as Additional Insured's as respects work performed pursuant to or incidental 

to the Agreement. 

 

F. Evidence of Insurance - Before commencing any operations under the Agreement, the Contractor 

shall furnish the Alameda LAFCo with a Certificate of Insurance and copies of all applicable 

endorsements evidencing compliance with the above insurance requirements and that such insurance 

will not be canceled without thirty (30) days advance written notice. 

 

G. Duration of Insurance Coverage - All required insurance coverages shall be maintained during 

the entire term of the Agreement. Insurance coverage written on a claims-made basis shall be 

maintained during the entire term of the Agreement and further until at least 6 month(s) following 

termination and acceptance of all work under the Agreement, with the retroactive date of said 

insurance concurrent with the commencement of activities pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

All required insurance shall be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A: 

VII or equivalent, and with deductible amounts acceptable to the Alameda LAFCo. 

216



3  

 

Attachment 5 
 

Page 1 of 11 
 

P.O./Contract #    
 

 

ALAMEDA LAFCO, ALAMEDA COUNTY, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT 

 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this_XX day of XX 2021, by and between the 
ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION, a public agency of the State of 
California, hereafter called the “Alameda LAFCo”, and Lamphier Gregory, a business duly 
qualified in the State of California, whose principal place of business is 1944 Embarcadero, 
Oakland, CA 94606, hereafter called the “Contractor.” 

 
WITNESSETH 

 
WHEREAS, the Alameda LAFCo desires to obtain professional consultation services to conduct a 

special study of LAFCO Review of the South Livermore Valley Area Plan as described in Exhibit A attached 
hereto (“Scope of Services”); and 

 
WHEREAS, Contractor is professionally qualified to provide such services and is willing to 

provide same to Alameda LAFCo; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed that Alameda LAFCo does hereby retain Contractor to 
provide As-Needed Professional Planning Services, and Contractor accepts such engagement, 
on the terms and conditions hereinafter specified in this Agreement, the Additional provisions 
attached hereto, and the following described exhibits, all of which are incorporated into this 
Agreement by this reference: 

 
Exhibit A Definition of Services 
Exhibit B Payment Terms 
Exhibit C Insurance Requirements 

 
 
CONTRACT PERIOD will be from March 15, 2021 through June 30, 2024. This Agreement may 
be extended for three additional one-year periods, if mutually agreed by both parties hereto, 
in writing not less than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of this Agreement. 

 
COMPENSATION: the Alameda LAFCo agrees to pay Contractor, pursuant to the terms set 
forth in Exhibit B, for services performed hereunder in a total amount not to exceed $30,000 
for the term of the current agreement, including all expenses and contingencies. 

 
General Terms and Conditions, pages 3 through 11, attached hereto constitute a part of this 
agreement. 

217



4  

Page 2 of 11 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement as of the day 

and year first above written. 

 

ALAMEDA LAFCO CONTRACTOR 
 

By:    . 
LAFCO EXECUTIVE OFFICER Lamphier Gregory 

 

 
By:    

 

 
 

Title 
 

 
 

Address 

 
Tax Payer I.D. #    

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 
 

LAFCo LEGAL COUNSEL 
 
 
I hereby certify under penalty of perjury that the Executive Officer of the Alameda LAFCo was 
duly authorized to execute this document on behalf of the Alameda LAFCo by a majority vote of 
the Commission on March 11, 2021; and that a copy has been delivered to the Chair as 
provided by Government Code Section 25103. 

 

 

Date:     ATTEST: 

 
 
 
 

 

Alameda LAFCo 
County of Alameda 
State of California 

 

 
By:     

218



5  

Page 3 of 11 
 

General Terms and Conditions 
 

1. EMPLOYER/EMPLOYEE RELATIONSHIP: No relationship of employer and employee is created 

by this Agreement, it being understood that Contractor shall act hereunder as an independent 

Contractor; that Contractor shall not have any claim under this Agreement or otherwise against the 

Alameda LAFCo for seniority, vacation time, vacation pay, sick leave, personal time off, overtime, 

health insurance, medical care, hospital care, retirement benefits, Social Security, disability, Workers' 

Compensation, or unemployment insurance benefits, civil service protection, or employee benefits of 

any kind; that Contractor shall be solely liable for and obligated to pay directly all applicable taxes, 

including, but not limited to, Federal and State income taxes, and in connection therewith Contractor 

shall indemnify and hold the Alameda LAFCo harmless from any and all liability which the Alameda 

LAFCo may incur because of Contractor’s failure to pay such taxes; that Contractor does, by this 

Agreement, agree to perform his/her said work and functions at all times in strict accordance with 

currently approved methods and practices in his/her field and that the sole interest of the Alameda 

LAFCo is to ensure that said service shall be performed and rendered in a competent, efficient, timely 

and satisfactory manner and in accordance with the standards required by the agency concerned. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Alameda LAFCo determines that pursuant to state and federal 

law Contractor is an employee for purposes of income tax withholding, the Alameda LAFCo shall, 

upon two weeks notice to Contractor withhold from the payments to Contractor hereunder federal 

and state income taxes and pay said sums over to the Federal and State governments. 

 

2. HOLD/HARMLESS/INDEMNIFICATION: To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall 

hold harmless, defend and indemnify Alameda LAFCo, its Commissioners, employees and agents 

from and against any and all claims, losses, damages, liabilities and expenses, including but not 

limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from the performance of services under this 

Agreement, provided that any such claim, loss, damage, liability or expense is attributable to bodily 

injury, sickness, disease, death or to injury to or destruction of property, including the loss therefrom, 

or to any violation of federal, state or municipal law or regulation, which arises out of or is any way 

connected with the performance of this agreement (collectively “Liabilities”) except where such 

Liabilities are caused solely by the negligence or willful misconduct of any indemnitee. Alameda 

LAFCo may participate in the defense of any such claim without relieving Contractor of any 

obligation hereunder. The obligations of this indemnity shall be for the full amount of all damage to 

Alameda LAFCo, including defense costs, and shall not be limited by any insurance limits. 

 

3. INSURANCE AND BOND: Contractor shall at all times during the term of the Agreement with the 

Alameda LAFCo maintain in force those insurance policies as designated in the attached Exhibit C, 

"Certificate of Insurance, Service Contracts," and will comply with all those requirements as stated 

herein. 

 

4. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION: Contractor shall provide Workers' Compensation insurance at 

Contractor's own cost and expense and further, neither the Contractor nor its carrier shall be entitled 

to recover from the Alameda LAFCo any costs, settlements, or expenses of Workers' Compensation 

claims arising out of this agreement. 

 

5. CONFORMITY WITH LAW AND SAFETY: 

 
A. Contractor shall observe and comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, codes and regulations 

of governmental agencies, including federal, state, municipal, and local governing bodies, 

having jurisdiction over the scope of services or any part hereof, including all provisions of the 

219



6  

Page 4 of 11 
 

Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1979 and all amendments thereto, and all applicable 

federal, state, municipal, and local safety regulations. All services performed by Contractor 

must be in accordance with these laws, ordinances, codes and regulations. Contractor shall 

indemnify and hold the Alameda LAFCo harmless from any and all liability, fines, penalties 

and consequences from any noncompliance or violations of such laws, ordinances, codes and 

regulations. If a provision of this Agreement is found to be invalid, the parties legally, 

commercially, and practicably can continue this Agreement without that provision, and the 

remainder of this Agreement shall continue in force and effect unless an essential purpose of 

this Agreement would be defeated by the loss of such provision. In the event any of the terms, 

conditions, or provisions of this Agreement are held to be illegal or otherwise unenforceable, 

such term, condition or provision shall be deemed severable from the remainder of this 

Agreement and shall not cause any other part or provision of this Agreement to be illegal or 

unenforceable. 

 

B. Accidents: If death, serious personal injury or substantial property damage occurs in 

connection with the performance of this agreement, Contractor shall immediately notify the 

Alameda LAFCo by telephone. Contractor shall promptly submit to the Alameda LAFCo a 

written report, in such form as may be required by County of all accidents which occur in 

connection with this Agreement. This report must include the following information: (1) name 

and address of the injured or deceased person(s); (2) name and address of Contractor's 

subcontractor, if any; (3) name and address of Contractor's liability insurance carrier; and (4) a 

detailed description of accident and whether any of LAFCo's equipment, tools, material, or staff 

were involved. Contractor further agrees that it shall take all reasonable steps to preserve all 

physical evidence and information which may be relevant to accidents or circumstances 

surrounding a potential claim, while maintaining public safety. Contractor shall provide the 

Alameda LAFCo the opportunity to review and inspect such evidence, including the scene of 

the accident. 

 

6. PAYMENT: Payment to Contractor will be made only upon presentation of proper invoice by 

Contractor subject to the approval of the Alameda LAFCo, and in accordance with this Agreement, 

Exhibit B. 

 

7. TRAVEL EXPENSES: Payment to Contractor for travel expenses will be made only upon the prior 

approval of the Alameda LAFCo and presentation of a proper invoice by Contractor in accordance 

with this Agreement. 

 

8. ROYALTIES AND INVENTIONS: The Alameda LAFCo shall have a royalty-free, exclusive and 

irrevocable license to reproduce, publish and use the results produced in the course of or under this 

Agreement; and Contractor shall not publish any such material relating to the Alameda LAFCo 

without prior consent of the Alameda LAFCo. 

 

9. CONFIDENTIALITY OF INFORMATION: Confidential information is defined as all information 

disclosed to Contractor which relates to the Alameda LAFCo’s past, present, and future activities, as 

well as activities under this Agreement. Contractor will hold all such information with the same 

degree of care which Contractor utilizes to protect its own data of a similar nature. Upon 

cancellation or expiration of this Agreement, Contractor will return to the Alameda LAFCo all 

written or descriptive matter which contain any such confidential information. 

220



7  

Page 5 of 11 

 
 

10. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: No officer, member, or employee of the Alameda LAFCo and no 

member of their governing bodies shall have any pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this 

Agreement or the proceeds thereof. No Contractor, nor any member of Contractor's family shall 

serve on the Alameda LAFCo, or hold any such position which either by rule, practice or action 

nominates, recommends, supervises Contractor's operations, or authorizes funding to Contractor. 

Contractor shall immediately bring to Alameda LAFCo’s attention any situation in which its client 

has, or is reasonably likely to have an application or other matter pending before Alameda LAFCo. 

The provisions of this Agreement are not exclusive, and thus Alameda LAFCo may at its discretion 

appoint a different firm to serve as its planner in the event of a conflict. Contractor agrees not to 

assign any of the key personnel identified in Exhibit A to any matter that is, or is likely to be pending 

before Alameda LAFCo regardless of whether Alameda LAFCo in its discretion decides to hire 

another firm to avoid a conflict. 

 

11. USE OF ALAMEDA LAFCO PROPERTY: Contractor shall not use Alameda LAFCo premises or 

property (including equipment, instruments and supplies) or personnel for any purpose other than in 

the performance of his/her obligations under this Agreement. 

 

12. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PRACTICES PROVISIONS: Contractor assures that 

he/she/it will comply with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and that no person shall, on the 

grounds of race, creed, color, disability, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, age, religion, Vietnam 

era Veteran’s status, political affiliation, or any other non-merit factor, be excluded from participation 

in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under this Agreement. 

 

A. Contractor shall, in all solicitations or advertisements for applicants for employment placed as a 

result of this Agreement, state that it is an “Equal Opportunity Employer” or that all qualified 

applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to their race, creed, color, 

disability, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, age, religion, Vietnam era Veteran’s status, 

political affiliation, or any other non-merit factor. 

 

B. Contractor shall, if requested to so do by the Alameda LAFCo, certify that it has not, in the 

performance of this Agreement, discriminated against applicants or employees because of their 

race, creed, color, disability, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, age, religion, Vietnam era 

Veteran’s status, political affiliation, or any other non-merit factor. 

 

C. If requested to do so by the Alameda LAFCo, Contractor shall provide the Alameda LAFCo 

with access to copies of all of its records pertaining or relating to its employment practices, 

except to the extent such records or portions of such records are confidential or privileged 

under State or Federal law. 

 

D. Contractor shall recruit vigorously and encourage minority- and women-owned businesses to bid 

its subcontracts. 

 

E. Nothing contained in this contract shall be construed in any manner so as to require or permit any 

act which is prohibited by law. 

 

F. The Contractor shall include the provisions set forth in paragraphs A through E (above) in each 

of its subcontracts. 

221



8  

Page 6 of 11 
 

13. ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT: Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to permit 

assignment or transfer by Contractor of any rights under this Agreement and such assignment or 

transfer is expressly prohibited and void unless otherwise approved in writing by the Alameda 

LAFCo. 

 

14. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE: Contractor and Contractor's employees shall comply with LAFCo’s 

policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace. Neither Contractor nor Contractor’s employees shall 

unlawfully manufacture, distribute, dispense, possess or use controlled substances, as defined in 21 

U.S. Code section 812, including marijuana, heroin, cocaine, and amphetamines, at any LAFCo 

facility or work site. If Contractor or any employee of Contractor is convicted or pleads nolo 

contendere to a criminal drug statute violation occurring at a LAFCo facility or work site, the 

Contractor within five days thereafter shall notify the head of the LAFCo department/agency for 

which the contract services are performed. Violation of this provision shall constitute a material 

breach of this Agreement. 

 

15. FEDERAL AND STATE AUDITS: Until the expiration of five (5) years after the furnishing of any 

services pursuant to this Agreement, Contractor shall make available, upon written request, to the 

Federal/State government or any of their duly authorized representatives, this Agreement, and such 

books, documents, and records of Contractor that are necessary to certify the nature and extent of the 

reasonable cost of services to LAFCo. If Contractor enters into any Agreement with any related 

organization to provide services pursuant to this Agreement with value or cost of $10,000 or more 

over a twelve-month period, such Agreement shall contain a clause to the effect that until the 

expiration of five years after the furnishing of services pursuant to such subcontract, the related 

organization shall make available, upon written request, to the Federal/State government or any of 

their duly authorized representatives, the subcontract, and books, documents and records of such 

organization that are necessary to verify the nature and extent of such costs. This paragraph shall be 

of no force and effect when and if it is not required by law. LAFCo shall have access to Contractor's 

financial records for purposes of auditing payments made to Contractor hereunder. Such records 

shall be complete and available for audit ninety (90) days after final payment hereunder is made to 

Contractor hereunder and shall be retained and available for audit purposes for five (5) years after 

said final payment hereunder. 

 

16. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE in each and all the provisions of this agreement. 

 
17. AMENDMENT: No change, alteration, variation, modification of the terms, termination or 

discharge of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by the parties hereto. 

 

18. ASSURANCE OF PERFORMANCE: If at any time the Alameda LAFCo believes Contractor may 

not be adequately performing its obligations under this Agreement, that Contractor may fail to 

complete the Services as required by this Agreement, or has provided written notice of observed 

deficiencies in Contractor’s performance, the Alameda LAFCo may request from Contractor prompt 

written assurances of performance and a written plan to correct the observed deficiencies in 

Contractor’s performance. Contractor shall provide such written assurances and written plan within 

ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the Alameda LAFCo’s written request and shall thereafter 

diligently commence and fully perform such written plan. Contractor acknowledges and agrees that 

any failure to provide written assurances and a written plan to correct observed deficiencies, in the 

required time, to diligently commence and fully perform such written plan, is a material breach under 

this Agreement. 

222



9  

Page 7 of 11 
 

19. KEY PERSONNEL: Contractor shall identify key personnel assigned to perform services in Exhibit 

A and obtain LAFCo approval of any substitution of the contractor. If the contractor has 

subcontractors, this requirement extends to the subcontractors as well. 

 

20. SUBCONTRACTORS: Contractor shall identify and obtain LAFCo approval of all subcontractors. 

Nothing provided herein shall create any obligation on the part of the Alameda LAFCo to pay or to 

see to the payment by Contractor of any monies to any subcontractor, supplier or vendor, nor create 

any relationship in contract or otherwise, express or implied between any such subcontractor, supplier 

or vendor and the Alameda LAFCo. Approval by the Alameda LAFCo of any subcontractor shall not 

constitute a waiver of any right of the Alameda LAFCo to reject defective work, material or 

equipment, not in compliance with the requirements of this Agreement. 

 

21. CHOICE OF LAW: This Agreement, and any dispute arising from the relationship between the 

parties to this Agreement, shall be governed by the laws of the State of California, excluding any 

laws that direct the application of another jurisdiction’s laws, and its courts shall have jurisdiction 

(but not exclusive jurisdiction) to hear and determine all questions relating to this Agreement. 

 

22. WAIVER: Any failure of a party to assert any right under this Agreement shall not constitute a 

waiver or a termination of that right, under this Agreement or any provisions of this Agreement. 

 

23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement, including all attachments, exhibits, and any other 

documents specifically incorporated into this Agreement, shall constitute the entire Agreement 

between the Alameda LAFCo and Contractor relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. As 

used herein, Agreement refers to any documents incorporated herein by reference and any exhibits or 

attachments. This Agreement supersedes and merges all previous understandings, and all other 

agreements, written or oral, between the parties and sets forth the entire understanding of the parties 

regarding the subject matter thereof. The Agreement may not be modified except by a written 

document signed by both parties. 

 

24. TERMINATION: LAFCo may terminate this Agreement with or without cause by providing thirty 

(30) days notice, in writing, to the Contractor. Upon the expiration of said notice, this Agreement 

shall become of no further force or effect whatsoever and each of the parties hereto shall be relieved 

and discharged here from. The Alameda LAFCo may terminate at any time without notice upon 

material breach of the terms of this Agreement and/or in the event that the Alameda LAFCo 

determines that the Contractor’s performance is substandard or unsatisfactory. 

 

25. SURVIVAL: The obligations of this Agreement, which by their nature would continue beyond the 

termination or expiration of the Agreement, including without limitation, the obligations regarding Hold 

Harmless/Indemnification (paragraph 2), Confidentiality of Information (paragraph 9), and Conflict of 

Interest (paragraph 10), shall survive termination or expiration. 

 

26. NOTICES: All notices, requests, demands, or other communications under this Agreement shall be 

in writing. Notices shall be given for all purposes as follows: 

 

• Personal delivery: When personally delivered to the recipient, notices are effective on delivery. 

 

• First Class Mail: When mailed first class to the last address of the recipient known to the party 

giving notice, notice is effective three mail delivery days after deposit in a United States Postal 

Service office or mailbox. 

223



10  

Page 8 of 11 

 
 

• Certified Mail: When mailed certified mail, return receipt requested, notice is effective on 

receipt, if delivery is confirmed by a return receipt. 

 

• Overnight Delivery: When delivered by overnight delivery (Federal Express/Airborne/ United 

Parcel Service/DHL WorldWide Express) with charges prepaid or charged to the sender’s 

account, notice is effective on delivery, if delivery is confirmed by the delivery service. 

 

• Telex or facsimile transmission: When sent by telex or fax to the last telex or fax number of 

the recipient known to the party giving notice, notice is effective on receipt, provided that (a) a 

duplicate copy of the notice is promptly given by first-class or certified mail or by overnight 

delivery, or (b) the receiving party delivers a written confirmation of receipt. Any notice given 

by telex or fax shall be deemed received on the next business day if is received after 5:00 p.m. 

(recipients time) or on a non-business day. 

 

Addresses for purpose of giving notice are as follows: 
 

To LAFCo: 

 

 

 
To Contractor: 

Alameda LAFCO 

224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110 

Hayward, CA  94544 

 
Lamphier Gregory 

1944 Embarcadero 

Oakland, CA  94606 
 

Any correctly addressed notice that is refused, unclaimed, or undeliverable because of an act or omission of 

the party to be notified shall be deemed effective as of the first date that said notice was refused, 

unclaimed, or deemed undeliverable by the postal authorities, messenger, or overnight delivery service. 

 

Any party may change its address or telex or facsimile number by giving the other party notice of the 

change in any manner permitted by this Agreement. 

 

[END OF GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS] 

224



11  

Page 9 of 11 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

EXHIBIT A – DEFINITION OF SERVICE 
 

In response to the Alameda LAFCo Commission’s adoption of their amended study schedule; a decision 

was made to review and examine the relative success of the County’s South Livermore Valley Area Plan 

and the interrelated City of Livermore’s South Livermore Valley Specific Plan and provide possible 

recommendations as to the current growth management needs of the region moving forward.  

 

Scott Gregory, of Lamphier Gregory will serve as the as key person, to  conduct a study and review of the 

South Livermore Valley Area Plan and  provide a report to the Commission setting out his findings.  

 

Lamphier-Gregory’s Proposed Scope 

 

Task #1: Retrospective Review of LAFCo’s Mission Issues 

 

Lamphier-Gregory is prepared to initiate this special study on behalf of LAFCo. We envision our product 

to be a report similar to the 2011 Report prepared by the Livermore Community Development Director, 

itemizing achievements and changes of importance to LAFCo’s interests that have occurred in the South 

Livermore Valley since approval of the SLVAP, such as: 

 The status of vineyard acreage and number of wineries in South Livermore as of year 2020, 

compared to year 1993 

 

Lamphier-Gregory Proposal – SLVAP  

 Acres of permanent open space and agricultural lands preserved in conservation easements 

and/or land trusts in South Livermore in 2020, as compared to year 1993 

 Acres of annexations into the City of Livermore as of 2020, as compared to year 1993 

 Acres of land in South Livermore with municipal service agreements for sewer and other 

services in 2020, compared to year 1993, and 

 Requests of LAFCo to consider changes in Spheres of influence changes, or municipal service 

boundary adjustments, based on increased demand since 1993 

 

Lamphier-Gregory anticipates that these LAFCo perspectives on the relative success of the SLVAP will 

also serve to highlight current and emerging issues, specifically related to potential extension of 

municipal services (especially sewer service), agricultural land preservation and other potential 

jurisdictional annexations. 

 

Task #2: LAFCo’s Planning Representative 

 

Lamphier-Gregory also believe that, much like the original 1993 SLVAP, LAFCo’s partnership with a 

multi-party stakeholders group (i.e., Alameda County, the City of Livermore, the Tri-Valley Conservancy, 

Livermore Valley Winegrowers Association, Visit Tri-Valley, the Sierra Club and the Greenbelt Alliance) 

would best serve all interests, have a better chance of finding consensus, and potentially lead to 25 more 

years of stability and clear expectation for the South Livermore Valley. Depending on the results of our 

initial retrospective review of issues critical to LAFCo’s mission, Lamphier-Gregory is prepared to serve 

as LAFCo’s consultant planner, to (similar to the Tri-Valley Conservancy’s offer) “stand ready to 

contribute” to a comprehensive retrospective study by serving as LAFCo’s representative in a partnership 

effort with other organizations. 

 
 

225



12  

 
 

Assigned Key Personal: 

 

Scott Gregory, President, Lamphier-Gregory 

 
 

PROJECT TIMELINE 

Lamphier-Gregory shall perform the services required under this Agreement in accordance with an 

estimated ten-week timeline beginning from date of contract approval. Upon contract execution, all 

parties listed under the contract will meet to establish a milestone schedule.  

The parties anticipate the project will be substantially completed, meaning that a draft report will be 

submitted to LAFCo staff, by July 1, 2021 at the latest.  The timeline is subject to modification by mutual 

written agreement of the Lamphier-Gregory and the LAFCo Executive Officer. 

Parties agree that the presentation of the report to Alameda LAFCo Commission will occur after the 

report has been finalized and it will be scheduled at the next available regular LAFCo meeting in 2021. 

226



13  

Page 10 of 11 

 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

EXHIBIT B – CONTRACT PAYMENT TERMS 

 
 

1. The Alameda LAFCo will pay Lamphier-Gregory for services provided in accordance with this agreement, 

upon submittal of invoices which includes a summary of services performed.  All services will be performed 

at the direction of, and with the prior authorization of, the LAFCo Executive Officer.  Invoices will be 

approved by the Alameda LAFCo Executive Officer based on work completed.   

 

2. Lamphier-Gregory’s proposed budget for our review of LAFCo’s mission-issues as to achievements and 

changes pursuant to the South Livermore Valley Area Plan is based on a time and materials estimate with a 

total not-to-exceed budget of $30,000, including research, report preparation and project management efforts, 

and presentation of the results of our analyses to Alameda LAFCo staff and Commission. Lamphier-Gregory 

will bill only for work completed, and any remaining budget not needed for this study will not be invoiced.  

   

3. Payments under the terms of this Agreement shall not exceed $30,000.  This amount includes: one revised 

draft in response to LAFCo staff review, attendance at one LAFCo hearing, all travel expenses, 

contingencies, and other miscellaneous expenses.   

 

4. The term of this Agreement is March 15, 2021 through June 30, 2024.   

 

 

227



14  

Page 11 of 11 
 

EXHIBIT C 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 

 

The Contractor shall be required to maintain at all times during the performance of the Agreement the 

following insurance coverage: 

 

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence 

combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage, including contractual liability, personal 

injury, products and completed operations. 

 

B. Personal Automobile Liability Insurance for owned, non-owned or hired automobiles with a 

combined single limit of not less than $500,000 per occurrence. 

 

C. Workers' Compensation & Employers Liability Insurance 
 

If Contractor does not have any employees, the requirements for evidence of workers’ compensation 

insurance is not necessary. Otherwise: 

 

1. Workers' Compensation - Statutory Limits 

2. Employers Liability Insurance - with a limit of not less than $100,000 per employee. 

 
D. Professional Liability with a limit of $1,000,000 million per claim, and $1,000,000 million aggregate. 

 

E. Additional Insured Endorsement - The policy or policies providing insurance as required above, with 

the exception of personal automobile liability, professional liability, workers' compensation and employer's 

liability, shall be endorsed to include the Alameda LAFCo, Alameda County, their directors, officers and 

employees as Additional Insured's as respects work performed pursuant to or incidental to the Agreement. 

 

F. Evidence of Insurance - Before commencing any operations under the Agreement, the Contractor shall 

furnish the Alameda LAFCo with a Certificate of Insurance and copies of all applicable endorsements 

evidencing compliance with the above insurance requirements and that such insurance will not be canceled 

without thirty (30) days advance written notice. 

 

G. Duration of Insurance Coverage - All required insurance coverages shall be maintained during the 

entire term of the Agreement. Insurance coverage written on a claims-made basis shall be maintained 

during the entire term of the Agreement and further until at least 6 month(s) following termination and 

acceptance of all work under the Agreement, with the retroactive date of said insurance concurrent with 

the commencement of activities pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

All required insurance shall be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A: VII 

or equivalent, and with deductible amounts acceptable to the Alameda LAFCo. 

228



15  

Page 11 of 11 
 
 

EXHIBIT C 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 

 

The Contractor shall be required to maintain at all times during the performance of the Agreement the 

following insurance coverage: 

 

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence 

combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage, including contractual liability, personal 

injury, products and completed operations. 

 

B. Personal Automobile Liability Insurance for owned, non-owned or hired automobiles with a 

combined single limit of not less than $500,000 per occurrence. 

 

C. Workers' Compensation & Employers Liability Insurance 
 

If Contractor does not have any employees, the requirements for evidence of workers’ compensation 

insurance is not necessary. Otherwise: 

 

1. Workers' Compensation - Statutory Limits 

2. Employers Liability Insurance - with a limit of not less than $100,000 per employee. 

 

D. Professional Liability with a limit of $1,000,000 million per claim, and $1,000,000 million 

aggregate. 

 

E. Additional Insured Endorsement - The policy or policies providing insurance as required above, 

with 

the exception of personal automobile liability, professional liability, workers' compensation and 

employer's liability, shall be endorsed to include the Alameda LAFCo, Alameda County, their directors, 

officers and employees as Additional Insured's as respects work performed pursuant to or incidental 

to the Agreement. 

 

F. Evidence of Insurance - Before commencing any operations under the Agreement, the Contractor 

shall furnish the Alameda LAFCo with a Certificate of Insurance and copies of all applicable 

endorsements evidencing compliance with the above insurance requirements and that such insurance 

will not be canceled without thirty (30) days advance written notice. 

 

G. Duration of Insurance Coverage - All required insurance coverages shall be maintained during 

the entire term of the Agreement. Insurance coverage written on a claims-made basis shall be 

maintained during the entire term of the Agreement and further until at least 6 month(s) following 

termination and acceptance of all work under the Agreement, with the retroactive date of said 

insurance concurrent with the commencement of activities pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

All required insurance shall be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A: 

VII or equivalent, and with deductible amounts acceptable to the Alameda LAFCo. 

229



16  

Page 11 of 11 
 
 

EXHIBIT C 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 

 

The Contractor shall be required to maintain at all times during the performance of the Agreement the 

following insurance coverage: 

 

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence 

combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage, including contractual liability, personal 

injury, products and completed operations. 

 

B. Personal Automobile Liability Insurance for owned, non-owned or hired automobiles with a 

combined single limit of not less than $500,000 per occurrence. 

 

C. Workers' Compensation & Employers Liability Insurance 
 

If Contractor does not have any employees, the requirements for evidence of workers’ compensation 

insurance is not necessary. Otherwise: 

 

1. Workers' Compensation - Statutory Limits 

2. Employers Liability Insurance - with a limit of not less than $100,000 per employee. 

 

D. Professional Liability with a limit of $1,000,000 million per claim, and $1,000,000 million 

aggregate. 

 

E. Additional Insured Endorsement - The policy or policies providing insurance as required above, 

with 

the exception of personal automobile liability, professional liability, workers' compensation and 

employer's liability, shall be endorsed to include the Alameda LAFCo, Alameda County, their directors, 

officers and employees as Additional Insured's as respects work performed pursuant to or incidental 

to the Agreement. 

 

F. Evidence of Insurance - Before commencing any operations under the Agreement, the Contractor 

shall furnish the Alameda LAFCo with a Certificate of Insurance and copies of all applicable 

endorsements evidencing compliance with the above insurance requirements and that such insurance 

will not be canceled without thirty (30) days advance written notice. 

 

G. Duration of Insurance Coverage - All required insurance coverages shall be maintained during 

the entire term of the Agreement. Insurance coverage written on a claims-made basis shall be 

maintained during the entire term of the Agreement and further until at least 6 month(s) following 

termination and acceptance of all work under the Agreement, with the retroactive date of said 

insurance concurrent with the commencement of activities pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

All required insurance shall be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A: 

VII or equivalent, and with deductible amounts acceptable to the Alameda LAFCo. 

230



     
  

 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 
 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110 
Hayward, California 94544 
T:  510.670.6267 
www.acgov.org/lafco 
 

Bob Woerner, Regular 
City of Livermore 
 
Karla Brown, Regular 
City of Pleasanton  
 
Melissa Hernandez, Alt.  
City of Dublin 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 
Ayn Wieskamp, Regular  
East Bay Regional Park Dsitrict 
 
Geogean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Regular 
Public Member  
 
Vacant Seat, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

David Haubert, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Wilma Chan, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

March 11, 2021   

Item No. 9 

TO:  Alameda  Commissioners  
   

FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
   Ad Hoc Selection Committee (Commissioners Johnson and Vonheeder-Leopold) 
 
SUBJECT: Contract Award |  

Fire Protection and Emergency Services Municipal Service Review 
 

 

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will consider awarding a service 

contract to PCA and Berkson Associates to perform work associated with LAFCO’s Fire Protection 

and Emergency Medical Services Municipal Service Review and relevant sphere of influence updates, 

for the contract period of twelve months, starting in April or May 2021; in an amount not to exceed 

$99,710. Staff recommends approval.  

 

Background 

 

Alameda LAFCO’s workplan for the FY 2020-2021 includes an objective to complete a fire protection 

and emergency medical services municipal service review (MSR), and update, where necessary, any 

related spheres of influence (SOI) of the affected local agencies. Proposals for a consultant to conduct 

the MSR were received and reviewed, and the firms were subsequently interviewed by the LAFCO Ad 

Hoc Selection Committee.  

 

Selection Process 
 

The Requests for Proposals (RFP) calling for bids from experienced consultants to assist Alameda 

LAFCO with the preparation of the subject MSR and SOI updates, was issued on January 18, 2021. 

The deadline to receive proposals was February 19, 2021. LAFCO compiled a list of potential bidders 

with the help of recommendations from other LAFCO agencies and the California Association of Local 

Agency Formation Commissions (CALAFCO) to distribute the RFP.  The RFP was electronically sent 

to 30 firms and posted on the Alameda LAFCO and CALAFCO websites for approximately 30 days.  

 

An Ad Hoc Selection Committee was formed to review, and screen written proposals, conduct 

interviews, and develop a recommendation. The Committee was comprised of Commissioners Ralph 

Johnson, Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold and Executive Officer, Rachel Jones.  

 

LAFCO received proposals from two firms. Based on the review of the written proposals, the 

Committee interviewed the two firms and they were the following: 

▪ RSG 

▪ PCA and Berkson Associates  

231



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 9 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e  

 

The Committee conducted interviews on March 2, 2021 remotely through a video-conferencing 

service. The interviews were structured with questions designed to gauage the consultants’ 

understanding of SOIs and MSRs, approach to conducting required tasks, experience and familiarity 

with LAFCO, qualifications of personnel assigned to the project, and other factors to determine the 

ability of the firm to successfully complete the required MSR.  

 

The firm PCA and Berkson Associates is recommended to the Commission for the reasons including, 

but not limited to, the following: 

 

▪ The proposal presents a highly qualified team with extensive experience in conducting SOI 

updates and MSRs.  

▪ The proposed methodology and level of experience indicates that work will be implemented in 

a timely manner. 

▪ The team members have significant experience in project management, municipal services, 

working with public agencies, and public processes.  

▪ The team has sufficient experience with fire protection districts and Alameda County 

▪ The firm has worked with several LAFCOs. 

▪ The proposal presents a comprehensive scope of work and timeline.  

Financing 
 

Adequate funding is included in the FY 2020-2021 and 2021-2022 budgets to cover costs associated 

with these consulting services.  

  

Alternatives for Action  
 

 

The following alternatives are available to the Commission:  

 

Alternative One (Recommended):  

Award a service contract to PCA and Berkson Associates to conduct Alameda LAFCO’s Municipal 

Service Review on Fire Protection and Emergency Medical Services and related SOI updates for the 

contract period of approximately 12 months, starting April or May of 2021; in an amount not to exceed 

$99,710; and 

 

Authorize the Executive Officer to finalize contract negotiations and execute the consulting contract 

with PCA and Berkson Associates with the advise of Alameda LAFCO Legal Counsel.  

 

Alternative Two:  

Continue consideration of the report to a future meeting and provide direction to staff as needed. 

 

 

 

232



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 9 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

3 | P a g e  

 

Alternative Three:  

Take no action. 

 

Recommendation  

 

It is recommended the Commission proceed with Alternative Action One.  

 
 
Respectfully,  

 
Rachel Jones 

Executive Officer 
  

Attachments: Draft Contract  

 
 

233



DRAFT-DRAFT-DRAFT-DRAF Page 1 of 11 

P .0./Contract # 
-�����������

ALAMEDA LAFCO, ALAMEDA COUNTY, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this_ day of , by and between the 
ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION, a public agency of the State of 
California, hereafter called the "Alameda LAFCo", and PCA, LLC., a business duly qualified in 
the State of California, whose principal place of business is 5050 Laguna Blvd., #112-711, Elk
Grove, CA 95758, hereafter called the "Contractor."

WITNESS ETH 

WHEREAS, the Alameda LAFCo desires to obtain professional consulting services 
related to completion of the State-mandated sphere of influence updates and municipal 
service reviews for fire protection and emergency medical services as described in Exhibit A 
hereto ("Services"); and 

WHEREAS, Contractor is professionally qualified to provide such services; and 

WHEREAS, the Alameda LAFCo desires to retain and employ the services of Contractor 
in connection with such work, and Contractor is agreeable with such employment. 

WHEREAS, the Alameda LAFCo has authorized its Executive Officer to execute a 
contract with the selected Contractor. 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed that the Alameda LAFCo does hereby retain and 
employ Contractor to provide the Services in connection with such work, and Contractor 
accepts such employment, on the terms and conditions hereinafter specified in this 
Agreement, the Additional provisions attached hereto, and the following described exhibits, all 
of which are incorporated into this Agreement by this reference: 

Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Exhibit C 

Definition/Scope of Services 
Payment Terms 
Insurance Requirements 

CONTRACT PERIOD will be from April 1, 2021 through April 30, 2022. This Agreement may 
be extended for an additional six month period, if mutually agreed by both parties hereto, in 
writing not less than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of this Agreement. 

COMPENSATION: the Alameda LAFCo agrees to pay Contractor, pursuant to the terms set 
forth in Exhibit B, for services performed hereunder in a total amount not to exceed $99,710 
for the term of the current agreement, including all expenses and contingencies. 

Attachment 1

234



RAFT-DRAFT- DRAFT- DRAFT Page 2 of 11 

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS, pages 3 through 11, attached hereto constitute a part of this 
agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement as of the day 
and year first above written. 

ALAMEDA LAFCO 

By: 
Rachel Jones 
LAFCO EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Andrew Massey 
LAFCo LEGAL COUNSEL 

CONTRACTOR 

CONTRACTOR 

Title 

Address 

Tax Payer I.D. # 

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury that the Executive Officer of the Alameda LAFCo was 
duly authorized to execute this document on behalf of the Alameda LAFCo by a majority vote of 
the Commission on May 8, 2018; and that a copy has been delivered to the Chair as provided by 
Government Code Section 25103. 

ATTEST: 

Alameda LAFCo 
County of Alameda 
State of California 

By: ---------

235



236



237



238



239



240



RAFT-DRAFT- DRAFT- DRAF1i Page 8 of 11 

the recipient known to the party giving notice, notice is effective on receipt, provided that (a) a 
duplicate copy of the notice is promptly given by first-class or certified mail or by overnight 
delivery, or (b) the receiving party delivers a written confirmation of receipt. Any notice given 

by telex or fax shall be deemed received on the next business day if is received after 5 :00 p.m. 
(recipients time) or on a non-business day. 

Addresses for purpose of giving notice are as follows: 

ToLAFCo: 

To Contractor: 

Alameda LAFCo 
1221 Oak Street, Room 555 Oakland, CA 94612 

PCA
5050 Laguna Blvd, #112-711,  Elk Grove, CA 95758

Any correctly addressed notice that is refused, unclaimed, or undeliverable because of an act or omission of 
the party to be notified shall be deemed effective as of the first date that said notice was refused, 
unclaimed, or deemed undeliverable by the postal authorities, messenger, or overnight delivery service. 

Any party may change its address or telex or facsimile number by giving the other party notice of the 
change in any manner permitted by this Agreement. 

[END OF ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS] 

241



RAFT-DRAFT- DRAFT- DRAFT Page 9 of 11 

EXHIBIT A 

EXHIBIT A -DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

PCA with subcontractor, Berkson Asscoiates, will prepare a Municipal Service Review (MSR) for Fire 
Protection and Emergency Medical Services, along with information and analysis necessary for LAFCo 
to update the spheres of influence (SOis) for the subject local agencies covered in the MSR. The MSR 
will be prepared in accordance with California Government Code §56430 and Alameda LAFCo policies 
and procedures. In addition to reviewing the relevant public agencies, the scope ofworkmay involve 
reviewing private service providers or other service providers not subject to LAFCo review to the extent 
they relate to the overall provision of the municipal services under review. All work products are to be 
prepared in Word and Excel formats. Consultant will provide LAFCo with electronic copies of the 
report; one camera-ready copy for publication must be provided if requested. 

General Scope-of-Work and Task Outline is proposed as follows: 

 

242



RAFT-DRAFT- DRAFT- DRAF Page 10 of 11 

EXHIBITB 

EXHIBIT B- CONTRACT PAYMENT TERMS 

Contracted Service: 

1. The Alameda LAFCo will pay Contractor for services provided herein, upon submittal of an
invoice and summary report of services performed pursuant to this agreement. All services will be 
performed at the direction of, and with the prior authorization of, the LAFCo Executive Officer. 
Invoices will be approved by the Alameda LAFCo Executive Officer. Payments under the terms 
of this Agreement shall not exceed $99,710. This amount includes all administrative expenses 
and costs, travel expenses and contingencies. For the purposes assigned in the proposal, the 
billing rates are as listed in the firm's proposal and shown below:

Jennifer Stephenson, Principal: $155 /hour 
Oxana Wolfson, Principal: $155/hour 
Jill Hetland, Research Assistant: $50/hour 
Richard Berkson, Principal: $235 /hour 
Dennis Miller, GIS Specialist: $60/hr

2. Alameda LAFCo expects Contractor to cover all costs of professional development activities, 
training, and/or continuing education unless Alameda LAFCo requires such professional 
development activities, training and/or continuing education of Contractor or Contractor obtains 
prior written approval from LAFCo to incur the cost of such professional development activities, 
training and/or continuing education.

3. The term of this Agreement is April 1, 2021 to April 30, 2022 

243



244



     
  

 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 
 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110 
Hayward, California 94544 
T:  510.670.6267 
www.acgov.org/lafco 
 

Bob Woerner, Regular 
City of Livermore 
 
Karla Brown, Regular 
City of Pleasanton  
 
Melissa Hernandez, Alt.  
City of Dublin 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 
Ayn Wieskamp, Regular  
East Bay Regional Park Dsitrict 
 
Geogean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Regular 
Public Member  
 
Vacant Seat, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

David Haubert, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Wilma Chan, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

March 11, 2021   

Item No. 10 
TO:  Alameda  Commissioners  
   

FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Agricultural Conservation Planning Grant with the Department of Conservation 

| Approval of Contract Agreement with ACRCD 
 

 

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) has been awarded $249,988 for the 

agricultural planning grant with the Department of Conservation and its Sustainable Agricultural Lands 

Conservation (SALC) Program. Alameda LAFCO applied for the SALC grant to serve as the lead 

applicant and partner with the Alameda County Resource Conservation District (ACRCD) as the 

project manager to create an Alameda County Agricultural Resiliency Project that would establish a 

Countywide coalition of agricultural preservation policies and urban agricultural land use 

opportunities. The Commission will review the draft grant agreement with the Department of 

Conservation and consider approving a contract agreement with ACRCD. Staff recommends approval.  

 

Background 
 

The Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation (SALC) Program is a component of the Strategic 

Growth Council’s Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities (AHSC) Program. SALC is 

funded through revenue from the California Climate Investments Fund derived from quarterly cap-

and-trade auction proceeds for projects that reduce greenhouse gas emissions and provide additional 

benefits to communities. The Department of Conservation works in conjunction with the Natural 

Resources Agency and Strategic Growth Council to implement the program. The statewide program 

works to improve land conservation efforts while increasing the economic viability of agricultural 

sectors and improving public health and environmental conditions in particularly disadvantaged 

communities. The SALC grant program guidelines identify eligible applicants as counties, cities, 

councils of government, municipal planning organizations, groundwater management agencies, 

planning, land use agencies and LAFCOs. Resource Conservation Districts were not able to apply.  

 

At Alameda LAFCO’s September 10th regular meeting, the Commission authorized Alameda LAFCO 

to serve as lead applicant for the SALC agricultural conservation planning grant in partnership with 

ACRCD, who was ineligible to apply due to the grant requirements, and authorize the Commission to 

allocate 5% of the grant total ($12,500) for matching funds. The Commission also authorized the 

Executive Officer to execute the grant agreement and return to the Commission with a separate contract 

that the specifies the funding allocation with ACRCD.  

 

 

 

245



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 10 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e  

 

Information 

 

The proposal submitted to SALC involves a strategically designed Countywide agriculture and 

working lands preservation program that establishes a coalition of stakeholders to create standard 

policies to ensure the implementation of consistent agricultural opportunities in Alameda County. This 

coalition aims to develop a collected forum of agricultural and land use agencies to create a uniform 

policy on preserving agricultural lands in rural and semi-rural areas while increasing accessibility of 

such lands in urban communities through infill development opportunities.  

 

The project’s purpose is to identify, map and monitor high-priority parcels of agricultural lands within 

proximity to urban growth boundaries of cities and unincorporated areas within the County of 

Alameda, along with identifying priority sites for additional urban agricultural community gardens for 

disadvantaged low-income and or unincorporated communities. The project will enable and promote 

existing programs as well as allow transparency among the stakeholders on who is doing what for 

better coordination and collaboration to better support and improve strategies within the region. 

Alameda LAFCO will assist in creating a repository of agricultural and open space use policies from 

stakeholders throughout the County, while ACRCD will implement and manage the project’s key 

tasks.  

 

A brief overview of the project tasks and timeline is as follows: 

 

▪ Task 1. Establishment of Stakeholder Group (4 months) 

Identify Stakeholders and conduct meetings to identify Stakeholder concerns.  

 

▪ Task 2. Stakeholder Planning Process (14 months) 

With Stakeholder participation, develop a comprehensive analysis of existing regulatory 

policies and suggest strategies to account for policy gaps, inconsistencies, overlap and 

redundancies, as they relate to sustainable agricultural lands conservation in Alameda 

County.  

 

▪ Task 3. Create prioritization criteria to rank agricultural land parcels for preservation 

precedence (3 months) 

Research and gather current sources of information to develop ranking criteria needed to 

update inventories of (1) lands at risk of conversion from agricultural land use to more 

intensive GHG-emitting land-use practices, as well as of (2) lands that are protected.  

 

▪ Task 4. Create a draft map of relevant layers for land prioritization (3 months) 

Based on efforts in Task 3 and subtasks below, comprehensive priority draft maps will be 

developed. 

 

 

246



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 10 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

3 | P a g e  

 

▪ Task 5. Community Outreach (3 months) 

Plan, prepare for and conduct meetings with community groups to share ranking and 

incentive structures. 

 

▪ Task 6. Completion of final maps (2 months) 

Create and present final maps at Board of Supervisors Meetings. 

 

▪ Task 7. Final Plan Development and Review (6 months) 

Finalize summary of plan and policy recommendations and distribute to stakeholders and 

relevant State agencies.  

 

▪ Task 8. Administration (24 months) 

Grant administration (e.g., invoicing, invoice review, document signing). 

The project has a two-year timeline with the expected completion date for December of 2023. The 

workplan and budget in the draft grant agreement (Attachment 1), outline the tasks, timeline, and total 

grant funds requested for the completion of each task. The budget summarizes the required work of 

each task and the number of hours assigned between LAFCO and ACRCD. The majority of the grant 

funds will be allotted to ACRCD contingent on the work completed for each task. Within the two-year 

period, the LAFCO Executive Officer is anticipated to contribute 135 hours of staff time to the project 

resulting in a grand total of $12,500. This amount is Alameda LAFCO’s designated 5% of the grant 

total for matching funds of the project. ACRCD will utilize the remaining grant funds of $249,988 to 

complete the project. 

 

Discussion 

 

This item is for Alameda LAFCO to consider authorizing the Commission to enter into a contract with 

ACRCD for the SALC agricultural planning grant. ACRCD would serve as project manager and assist 

in coordination and implementation among participants. Alameda LAFCO would be responsible in 

administering and allocating grant funds. 

 

ACRCD will submit monthly invoices to the LAFCO Executive Officer. Alameda LAFCO will then 

provide payment to ACRCD for those services rendered. The LAFCO Executive Officer will, in turn, 

submit those invoices to the Department of Conservation to seek repayment. In the event that the 

Department of Conservation denies an invoice, Alameda LAFCO will subsequently submit an invoice 

to ACRCD to request a return of those funds and will not approve of any additional invoices until 

payment has been repaid to LAFCO.  Alameda LAFCO will create a separate account similar to a 

revolving fund to manage the grant funds. 

 

Alameda LAFCO’s statutory responsibilities and legislative intent focuses on facilitating orderly 

and efficient growth while protecting and enhancing agricultural and open space uses.   This  

247



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 10 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

4 | P a g e  

 

includes a directive for LAFCO to independently evaluate potential impacts of all proposed 

jurisdictional changes on maintaining the physical and economic integrity of agricultural 

lands.     Participating in the agricultural conservation planning grant with the ACRCD aligns with 

LAFCO’s statutory role and represents a unique and potentially pertinent pivot for the Commission 

to more directly contribute to enhancing agricultural uses and opportunities in Alameda County.  

 

Alternatives for Action  
 

 

The following alternatives are available to the Commission:  

 

Alternative One (Recommended):  

Approve the contract agreement with ACRCD as shown in Attachment 3. 

 

Alternative Two:  

Continue consideration of the report to a future meeting and provide direction to staff as needed. 

 

Alternative Three:  

Take no action. 

 

Recommendation  

 

It is recommended the Commission proceed with Alternative Action One.  

 
 

Respectfully,  

 
Rachel Jones 
Executive Officer 
  

Attachments:  

1. Draft Grant Agreement with the Department of Conservation 

2. Draft Budget Proposal 

3. Draft Contract Agreement with ACRCD 

4. Grant Award with Department of Conservation 

 
 

248



State of California - Department of Conservation 

GRANT AGREEMENT DOC6 

(revised 12/18) 

GRANT AGREEMENT NUMBER: 

3020-901 

FI$Cal NUMBER: 

1. This Grant Agreement is entered into by and between the Department of Conservation

(“Department”) and Alameda LAFCO (“Grantee”) with Alameda County Resource

Conservation District (“Partner” and “Subcontractor”)

2. The Grant Agreement

Term is:

From March 15, 2021 

(Or upon execution of this Grant 

Agreement by both parties, 

whichever is later) 

through March 14, 2023 

3. The maximum

amount of this Grant

Agreement is:

$250,000 

4. Signing this Grant Agreement means that Grantee agrees to comply with the terms and

conditions of the following exhibits which are part of the Grant Agreement:

Exhibit A, Scope of Work 4 Page(s) 

Attachment 1: Authorized Signatory Form 1 Page(s) 

Attachment 2: Work Plan 4 Page(s) 

Attachment 3: Final Report 1 Page(s) 

Exhibit B, Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 3 Page(s) 

Attachment 4: Budget Detail Worksheet 1 Page(s) 

Attachment 5: Invoice 3 Page(s) 

Attachment 6: Invoice Dispute Notification Template 1 Page(s) 

Exhibit C, General Terms and Conditions 3 Page(s) 

Exhibit D, Special Terms and Conditions 6 Page(s) 

Exhibit E, Award Letter 1 Page(s) 

Exhibit F, Guidelines 92 Page(s) 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Grant Agreement has been executed by the Parties hereto. 

GRANTEE 

GRANTEE’S NAME 

Alameda LAFCO 

BY (Authorized Signature) 



DATE SIGNED 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Rachel Jones, Chief Executive Officer 

ADDRESS 

224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 10, Hayward, CA 94544 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

Agency Name: Department of Conservation 

BY (Authorized Signature) 



DATE SIGNED 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

David Shabazian, Department Director 

ADDRESS 

801 K Street, MS 24-01, Sacramento, CA 95814 

Attachment 1

249



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 2 of 31 

 

Exhibit A, Scope of Work 

1. Program Background 

The Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program (SALC), a component 

of the Strategic Growth Council’s (Council) Affordable Housing and Sustainable 

Communities Program, supports the California’s greenhouse gas (GHG) emission 

reduction goals by making strategic investments to protect agricultural lands 

from conversion to more GHG intensive uses. Protecting critical agricultural lands 

from conversion to urban or rural residential development promotes smart 

growth within existing jurisdictions, ensures open space remains available, and 

supports a healthy agricultural economy and resulting food security. A healthy 

and resilient agricultural sector is becoming increasingly important in meeting 

the challenges occurring and anticipated as a result of climate change. 

Auction revenues from the Cap-and-Trade Program are deposited into the 

Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund (GGRF), which the Legislature and Governor 

appropriate to a variety of programs such as the SALC and which operate 

under the umbrella of California Climate Investments. All projects funded by 

GGRF monies must reduce or avoid greenhouse gas emissions. 

Agricultural Land Conservation Planning grants provide funds to cities and 

counties in collaboration with local stakeholders to develop and implement 

plans for the protection of agricultural land at risk of conversion to non-

agricultural uses.  This component of the program incentivizes local governments 

to work closely with local stakeholders to develop local and regional land use 

policies and implementation activities that integrate agricultural land 

conservation in a way that reduces greenhouse gas emissions, supports job 

creation, and benefits priority populations. 

The Council identified the California Department of Conservation (Department) 

in conjunction with the Natural Resources Agency (Agency) to administer SALC.  

The Strategic Growth Council approved the roles of the Department and the 

Agency at its July 10, 2014 meeting.  In addition, SALC has been developed in 

consultation with the California Department of Food and Agriculture.   

2. The Project is Defined by the Application and Award Letter 

The Council released the final Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation 

Program Grant Guidelines & Applications on February 25, 2020 (Exhibit F) 

(Guidelines).  In accordance with the Guidelines, Grantee applied and was 

awarded a grant to fund the project described in the application The project 

proposes to identify priority and critical areas for preservation proximal to urban 

growth boundaries, review existing ag conservation policies; identify infill 

development opportunities focused on healthy and resilient communities; and 

reduce greenhouse emissions by avoiding conversion. The project is subject to 

250



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 3 of 31 

 

any conditions contained within the Award Letter (Exhibit E).  This will be referred 

to as the “Project” throughout this Agreement. 

3. Authorized Signers 

The Department Director or designee is authorized to sign this Grant Agreement 

and grant-related documents on behalf of the Department. 

Grantee’s Authorized Signatory or designee is authorized to sign this Grant 

Agreement and grant-related documents as shown in the Authorized Signatory 

Form (Attachment 1). 

Grantee must keep Authorized Signatory Forms up to date.  Within seven (7) 

working days of any change to the authorized signatory or to the delegated 

authorized signatory, Grantee shall notify the Department in writing of the 

change.  The written notice shall be sent as an electronic mail (email) 

attachment to be filed with the Grant Agreement.   

4. Project Representatives 

The project representatives are the contact people for the Department and 

Grantee.  The project representatives during the term of this Grant Agreement 

are: 

Department 

Name Title Phone 

Number 

Email 

Melinda Kelley Grant 

Manager* 

(916) 678-

0076 

 

Melinda.kelley@conservation.ca.gov 

* Unless otherwise stated within this Grant Agreement, all correspondence and 

documents to the Department of Conservation will be sent to the Grant 

Manager as described in Document Submission (Exhibit A, Section 6). 

Grantee 

Name Title Phone Number Email 

Rachel Jones CEO (510)670-6267 rachel.jones@acgov.org 

    

Department and Grantee must keep the Project Representative(s) up to date.  

Any changes to the Project Representatives by either Grantee or Department 

shall be made by providing seven (7) working days advance written notice to 

the other party. The written notice shall be sent as an electronic mail (email) 

attachment to be filed with the Grant Agreement. 

251



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 4 of 31 

 

5. Grantee Responsibilities 

Grantee is responsible for: 

A. Using grant funds only as intended for the Project. 

B. Completing work on time and within budget.  This includes meeting all 

milestones and deliverables, as described in the Work Plan (Attachment 2) 

and in accordance with the Budget Detail Worksheet (Attachment 4), 

unless otherwise agreed to by all parties through the amendment process 

described in Exhibit B, Section 7. 

C. Submitting invoices for reimbursement using the Invoice (Attachment 5) 

template, including any supporting documents. 

D. Submitting a final report with the last invoice, using the Final Report 

template (Attachment 3). 

E. Complying with all terms and conditions of this Grant Agreement, 

including all incorporated documents. 

F. Complying with statutes, rules, and regulations applicable to this Grant 

Agreement. 

G. Maintaining an accounting system that accurately reflects all fiscal 

transactions and provides accounting information, retaining all records 

and required documents as specified in Exhibit C, Section 4, and 

providing all required documents during an audit, as specified in Exhibit C, 

Section 5. 

6. Document Submission 

A. Electronic Mail 

When this Grant Agreement requires Grantee to give invoices, reports, or other 

documents to the Department, Grantee must use email unless this Grant 

Agreement specifically requires that the document be sent by mail.  All email 

must contain the Grant Agreement number and Grantee’s name in the subject 

line.   

B. Mail Service/Courier Service 

Correspondence and documents submitted through mail, certified mail, or 

courier service must use the following address: 

Department of Conservation 

Division of Land Resource Protection 

Attn: Melinda Kelley (3020-901) 

801 K Street, 14th Floor, MS 14-15 

Sacramento, CA 95814 

252



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 5 of 31 

 

7. Reporting Requirements 

When the Project is completed, Grantee must submit a Final Report with the last 

invoice.  To complete and submit the Final Report: 

A. Submit the Final Report with the last invoice. If Grantee does not submit 

the Final Report with the last invoice, then the last invoice will be 

considered incomplete and returned following process specified in Exhibit 

D, Section 5. 

B. Use the Final Report Template, which is attached as Attachment 3. 

C. Make sure the Final Report is signed by the person authorized to sign on 

the most current Authorized Signatory Form (Attachment 1). 

D. Put enough detail in the Final Report to show that Grantee fulfilled the 

terms of the Grant Agreement and should be paid for completing the 

project.

253



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 6 of 31 

 

Attachment 1: Authorized Signatory Form 

I hereby verify that I am an authorized Grantee representative and signatory 

and, as such, can sign and/or delegate authorization to sign and bind Grantee 

as it relates to the above-referenced Grant Agreement and grant related 

documents. 

 

Grantee Authorized Signatory: 

 

Name:      Rachel Jones Title:      CEO 

Signature:       Date:        

 

Delegated Authorized Signatories: 

 

Name:        Title:       

Signature:       Date:       

Document(s) Authorized to sign:   

 All Grant Related Documents or    Grant Agreement  

       Grant Amendments   Budget Amendments    Reports  

       Invoices    Other ______ 
 

 

Name:        Title:       

Signature:       Date:       

Document(s) Authorized to sign:   

 All Grant Related Documents or    Grant Agreement  

       Grant Amendments   Budget Amendments    Reports  

       Invoices    Other ______ 

 

254



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 7 of 31 

 

Attachment 2: Work Plan    

 

Work Plan   

Task Number Performance Measure  Timeline Total 

Requested 

Grant 

Funds 

Task 1. Establishment of Stakeholder Group 

Identify Stakeholders and conduct meetings to identify 

Stakeholder concerns.  

 

Subtask A: Conduct preparatory background research. 

Subtask B: Identify key agencies with planning responsibilities 

including unincorporated areas of Alameda Co. 

Subtask C: Prepare and send introductory letter and survey. 

Subtask D: Compile and communicate responses from survey. 

Subtask E: Develop Stakeholder group, ensuring areas of 

needed expertise are integrated. 

Subtask F: Create agendas for and schedule Stakeholder 

meetings. 

Subtask G: Summarize and communicate Stakeholder 

feedback. 

Subtask H: Create announcement of SALC grant project 

commencement county-wide, including description of primary 

goals. 

Deliverables: 

• Draft list of relevant 

policies 

• List of potential 

Stakeholders 

• Invitation letter and 

questionnaire  

• Summary of survey 

responses 

• Stakeholder group 

roster 

• Meeting notes 

• Summary of 

feedback from 

Stakeholders as a 

basis for entering 

Task 2 

• Project 

announcement 

Milestones: 

• Creation of 

Stakeholder Group 

(May 2021) 

• Stakeholder 

Meetings (x 2, June 

2021) 

4 months $48,375.53 

from grant 

$3,200.00 

from match 

Task 2. Stakeholder Planning Process 

With Stakeholder participation, develop a comprehensive 

analysis of existing regulatory policies and suggest strategies 

Deliverables:  

• Final list of relevant 

regulations, policies, 

14 months $79,222.63 

from grant 

255



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 8 of 31 

 

to account for policy gaps, inconsistencies, overlap and 

redundancies, as they relate to sustainable agricultural lands 

conservation in Alameda County.  

 

Subtask A: Continue (from Task 1) to identify and review 

regulations and policy documents relevant to agricultural lands 

conservation within Alameda County. 

Subtask B: Convene committees to discuss and address 

inconsistencies in policies relevant to agricultural lands 

conservation in Alameda County. 

Subtask C: Summarize existing policy, highlighting gaps, 

overlap, and redundancies.  

Subtask D: Draft summary of findings. 

and related source 

material 

• First draft summary 

of findings 
 

Milestones: 

• Stakeholder 

Meetings 

(approximately 6: 

committees meet 

periodically, full 

Stakeholder group 

meets at beginning 

and culmination of 

mapping and 

planning steps) 

 

$6,200.00 

from match 

Task 3. Create prioritization criteria to rank agricultural 

land parcels for preservation precedence. 

Research and gather current sources of information to develop 

ranking criteria needed to update inventories of (i) lands at risk 

of conversion from agricultural land use to more intensive 

GHG-emitting land-use practices, as well as of (ii) lands that 

are protected.  

 

Subtask A: For at-risk lands inventory, effort will concentrate 

on lands along urban growth boundaries, in unincorporated 

areas, in priority development areas within urban infill, and 

those of special environmental significance, e.g., areas of high 

carbon sequestration potential. 

Subtask B: For protected lands inventory, effort will 

concentrate on lands including Williamson Act acquisitions 

and other specified open-space lands within Alameda County, 

recording term of conservation agreement per parcel.  

Subtask C: Identify pertinent characteristics for ranking 

priority acquisitions of at-risk agricultural lands in proximity 

to urban growth boundaries and unincorporated areas of 

Alameda County.  

Subtask D: Identify pertinent characteristics for ranking 

priority siting of community gardens within infill development 

areas. 

Deliverables:  

• Ranking criteria to 

use in identification 

of agricultural land 

parcels for 

preservation 

(Subtask 4a), with 

description of 

metrics informing 

ranking protocol. 

• Ranking criteria to 

use in identification 

of potential 

locations for urban 

garden placement 

(Subtask 4b), with 

description of 

metrics informing 

ranking protocol. 

3 months $10,207.28 

from grant 

$2,900.00 

from match 

256



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 9 of 31 

 

Task 4. Create a draft map of relevant layers for land 

prioritization.  

Based on efforts in Task 3 and subtasks below, comprehensive 

priority draft maps will be developed. 

 

Subtask A: Identify existing layers of GIS data, create layers 

from other pertinent digitizable information, create draft map 

with layers of GIS data for at-risk agricultural lands in 

proximity to urban growth boundaries and unincorporated 

areas within Alameda County. 

Subtask B: Identify existing layers of GIS data, create layers 

from other pertinent digitizable information, create draft map 

with layers of GIS data for priority siting of urban agricultural/ 

community gardens within infill development areas. 

Deliverables: 

• First draft map of 

high-priority parcels 

for conservation 

acquisition of 

agricultural lands in 

proximity to city 

urban growth 

boundaries and 

unincorporated 

areas within 

Alameda County. 

• First draft map of 

optimal urban 

agricultural/ 

community garden 

locations within 

potential infill 

development areas 

of Alameda County.  

• Updated inventory 

of at-risk 

agricultural lands in 

Alameda County. 

• Updated inventory 

of protected 

agricultural lands in 

Alameda County. 

 3 months $23,408.01 

from grant 

 

$2,000.00 

from match 

Task 5. Community Outreach 

 

Sub-Task A: Plan, prepare for and conduct meetings with 

community groups to share ranking and incentive structures. 

Sub-Task B: Create a summary of the second round of 

feedback from community groups as a basis for 

recommendations. 

Subtask C: Create media (e.g., press releases and web articles) 

summarizing project progress. 

Deliverables:  

• Summary of 

community 

feedback from 

meeting, and 

ensuing 

recommendations. 

• Bring community 

concerns back to 

Stakeholder group. 

• Outreach materials. 
 

Milestones: 

3 months $23,287.82 

from grant 

$3,900.00 

from match 

257



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 10 of 31 

 

• Community 

meetings (x2-3) 

Task 6. Completion of final maps 

Create and present final maps at Board of Supervisors 

Meetings. 

 

Subtask A: Create final priority parcel map of high-priority 

parcels for conservation acquisition of agricultural lands in 

proximity to city urban growth boundaries and unincorporated 

areas within Alameda County. 

Subtask B: Create final priority parcel map of optimal urban 

agricultural community garden locations within potential infill 

development areas of Alameda County. 

Deliverables:  

• Final map of high-

priority parcels for 

conservation 

acquisition of 

agricultural lands in 

proximity to city 

urban growth 

boundaries and 

unincorporated 

areas within 

Alameda County. 

• Final map of 

optimal urban 

agricultural/ 

community garden 

locations within 

potential infill 

development areas 

of Alameda County.  

 2 months $22,204.74 

from grant 

$1,000.00 

from match 

Task 7. Final Plan Development and Review 

 

Subtask A: Finalize summary of plan and policy 

recommendations. 

Subtask B: Present recommendations at three meetings: 

1) LAFCO Board of Directors 

2) Board of Supervisors  

3) ACRCD Board of Directors 

Subtask C: Distribute final document to Stakeholders and 

other relevant State agencies. 

Deliverables:  

• Final presentation of 

planning document 

and 

recommendations 

for implementation 

of new policies and/ 

or regulations. 

6 months $39.065.18 

from grant 

$3,800.00 

from match 

Task 8. Administration 

Grant administration (e.g., invoicing, invoice review, 

document signing) 

Deliverables: 

• Invoices 

• Signed contract 

documents 

24 months $4,213.60 

from grant 

$2,000.00 

from match 

258



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 11 of 31 

 

Attachment 3: Final Report 

Final Report Date Submitted: 

Grantee Name: Grant Number: 

Project Name: 

1. Based on your experiences with this grant program, please provide feedback 

about how the Department can improve future grant programs. 

2. Briefly summarize the Project’s results and outcomes, including how the goals 

and objectives were accomplished, findings or conclusions, and planned or 

potential future projects that may result from the Project. Include a list of 

other sources of funding that were secured, directly or indirectly, through this 

Project. 

3. Describe and explain any differences between the planned results, as listed 

in the Work Plan (Attachment 2 to the Grant Agreement), and the actual 

results. Include a discussion of any problems, barriers, or issues that occurred 

during the Project, corrective actions taken, and the outcomes. 

4. Explain any plans to continue funding for the Project, and/or to expand, 

modify, or replicate the Project. 

5. Attach any relevant documents to this report. If the documents cannot be 

sent electronically, notify the Grant Manager. 

I certify that this Final Report is accurate and that this project complies with the 

Agreement.  I further certify that any expenditure discussed in this report is 

allowed under the Agreement and that all funds were expended for the 

purposes of this Project. 

Agreement and that all funds were expended for the purposes of this Project. 

Name:       Title:       

Signature:       Date:       

259



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 12 of 31 

 

Exhibit B, Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

1. Payment 

A. To receive payments of grant funds, Grantee must submit an invoice.  

Advance payments are not permitted under this Grant Agreement. 

B. Upon receipt and approval of an itemized invoice and required 

supporting documentation, the Department agrees to reimburse Grantee 

for actual expenditures for work completed, in accordance with the rates 

specified in the Budget Detail Worksheet (Attachment 4). 

C. The Department may withhold final payment until all terms of the Grant 

Agreement have been satisfied. 

D. Payment shall be made within forty-five (45) days upon receipt and 

approval of an invoice.  Failure to comply with requirements may result in 

non-payment or delayed payment. 

E. For cost principles, see Exhibit B, Section 5. 

2. How to Submit Invoices 

A. Send the invoices to the Grant Manager by email.  Include the Grant 

Agreement number and Grantee’s name in the subject line. 

B. Send invoices regularly, to keep getting paid.  Grantee shall submit 

invoices no more frequently than monthly, in arrears, to the Grant 

Manager. 

C. A request for payment shall consist of: 

D. The Invoice (Attachment 5) on official letterhead and signed by the 

Authorized Signatory, or authorized designee on file with the Department 

(Exhibit A, Section 3), certifying the expenditures are for actual expenses 

for the tasks performed under this Grant Agreement. 

E. Each cost category and task must correspond to a cost category and 

task identified in the Budget Detail Worksheet (Attachment 4). 

F. Supporting documentation for reimbursement of funds. 

G. Supporting documentation (e.g., timesheets, activity logs, cancelled 

checks) for matching funds does not need to be submitted to the 

Department but should be retained by Grantee in the event of an audit 

(Exhibit C, Section 5). 

H. At any time, the Department may request hard copies of invoices, reports, 

supporting documentation, and evidence of progress. 

3. Invoice Dispute 

In the event of an invoice dispute, see Exhibit D, Section 5. 

4. Budget Contingency Clause 

A. If the Budget Act of the current year and/or any subsequent years 

covered under this Grant Agreement does not appropriate sufficient 

funds for the program, this Grant Agreement shall have no further force 

nor effect.  In this event, the Department shall have no liability to pay any 

funds whatsoever to Grantee or to furnish any other considerations under 

260



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 13 of 31 

 

this Grant Agreement, and Grantee shall not be obligated to perform any 

provisions of this Grant Agreement. 

B. If funding for any fiscal year is reduced or deleted by the Budget Act for 

purposes of this program, the Department shall have the option to either 

cancel this Grant Agreement with no liability occurring to the Department 

or offer an amendment to reflect the reduced amount. 

5. Cost Principles 

A. All costs to be reimbursed must be consistent with the Guidelines (Exhibit 

F). 

B. All costs to be reimbursed must be reasonable, as defined in the 

Guidelines (Exhibit F). 

6. Travel Reimbursement 

Travel expenses directly related to the performance of this Grant Agreement will 

be subject to the State of California travel reimbursement rates in effect during 

the term of this Grant Agreement. 

A. The Department will only reimburse for actual expenditures incurred for in-

state travel as specified in the Guidelines (Exhibit F). 

B. Grantee shall maintain, and submit upon request, detailed travel records 

and supporting documents (e.g., travel request and approval forms, 

expense claims, invoices, receipts for lodging and transportation) showing 

the date and purpose of the grant-related travel, destination, and, in the 

case of travel by automobile, the number of miles driven. 

C. Grantee shall ensure travel costs are included in the Budget Detail 

Worksheet (Attachment 4) and are tied to tasks and deliverables in the 

Work Plan (Attachment 2). 

D. Grantee and any person traveling pursuant to this Grant Agreement shall 

indemnify and hold harmless the Department and State of California for 

any liabilities resulting from such travel. 

7. Budget Modifications 

A. Grantee must keep the Budget Detail Worksheet up to date. 

B. Changes up to twenty percent (20%) between tasks shall be made by 

providing written notice with or before submission of an invoice. If 

submitted before the invoice, the written notice shall be sent as an 

electronic mail (email) attachment to be filed with the Grant Agreement. 

C. Changes of more than twenty percent (20%) between tasks shall follow 

the amendment process, specified in Exhibit B, Section 8. 

8. Amendments 

A. This section applies to any changes to this Grant Agreement, excluding 

the following: 

i. Changes to the Authorized Signatory Form (Attachment 1). For 

changes to the Authorized Signatory Form see Exhibit A, Section 3. 

261



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 14 of 31 

 

ii. Changes to project representatives, see Exhibit A, Section 4. 

iii. Changes to the Budget Detail Worksheet of up to twenty percent 

(20%) between tasks, see Exhibit B, Section 7. 

B. Except as otherwise specified, Grantee must request and obtain prior 

written approval before any change (amendment) to this Grant 

Agreement is valid.  

C. Request for amendments must: 

i. Be prepared, in writing, on official letterhead and signed by the 

Authorized Signatory or designee on file with the Department. 

ii. Be submitted to the Grant Manager at least two (2) months prior to 

when the amendment is needed. 

iii. Include the Grant Agreement number, a detailed explanation of 

the proposed amendment, reason for the amendment, and the 

effect of not approving the request. 

iv. Include a copy of the document(s) requested for amendment that 

shows the requested changes. 

D. The Grant Manager will respond in writing within fifteen (15) working days 

from receipt of request to approve or deny the request for amendment, 

including the reason for the decision.  

E. The Grant Manager will process amendments within thirty (30) days of the 

approval date. The amendment will not be in effect until both parties 

have signed the Grant Agreement amendment.

262



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 15 of 31 

 

Attachment 4, Budget Detail Worksheet 

 

 

 

Budget Item 

 

Length of 

Task 

 

 

Weeks Per Month 

 

 

Hrs Per Month 

Units (if applicable) Rate (if applicable)* Program 

Reimbursement 

Request ($250K) 

 

Grantee Match 

($25K) 

 

Grand Total 

($275K) 

# hours $/ hour 

Task 1. 

Establishment of 

Stakeholder 

Group 

 

mos 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2022/23 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2022/2 

3 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2022/23 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2022/23 

   

LAFCO Chief 

Executive Officer 
4 0.10 0.10 0.00 4 4 0 12 4 0 $      75.00 $      75.00 $      75.00 $ - $       1,200.00 $         1,200.00 

ACRCD Chief 

Executive Officer 

4 1.00 1.00 0.00 40 40 0 120 40 0 
$      97.52 

$      97.52 $      97.52 $ 14,602.65 $       1,000.00 $       15,602.65 

ACRCD Resource 

Conservationist II 

 

4 

 

1.80 

 

2.00 

 

0.00 

 

72 

 

80 

 

0 

 

216 

 

80 

 

0 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$ 17,183.28 

 

$       1,000.00 

 

$       18,183.28 ACRCD Project 

Assistant 

4 1.80 2.00 0.00 72 80 0 216 80 0 
$      41.35 

$      41.35 $      41.35 $ 12,239.60 $ - $       12,239.60 

Presentation 

Materials, Printing, 

Postage, Other 

             
 

$ 4,350.00 

 

$ - 

 

$         4,350.00 
Subtotal - - - - - - - 564 204 0 - - - $ 48,375.53 $       3,200.00 $       51,575.53 

Task 2. 

Stakeholder 

Planning Process 

 

mos 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2021/2 

2 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2022/23 

   

LAFCO Chief 

Executive Officer 

14 0.00 0.10 0.10 0 4 4 0 44 12 
$     75.00 

$      75.00 $      75.00 $ - $       4,200.00 $         4,200.00 

ACRCD Chief 

Executive Officer 

14 0.00 0.50 0.50 0 20 20 0 220 60 
$     97.52 

$      97.52 $      97.52 $ 27,304.63 $ - $       27,304.63 

ACRCD Resource 

Conservationist II 

 

14 

 

0.00 

 

1.00 

 

1.00 

 

0 

 

40 

 

40 

 

0 

 

440 

 

120 

 

$     61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$ 33,400.80 

 

$       1,000.00 

 

$       34,400.80 ACRCD Project 

Assistant 

14 0.00 0.80 1.00 0 32 40 0 352 120 
$      41.35 

$      41.35 $      41.35 $ 18,517.20 $       1,000.00 $       19,517.20 

Subtotal - - - - - - - 0 1056 312 - - - $ 79,222.63 $       6,200.00 $       85,422.63 

Task 3. Create Land 

Parcel Ranking 

Criteria 

 

mos 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2021/2 

2 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2022/23 

   

LAFCO Chief 

Executive Officer 
3 0.00 0.10 0.00 0 4 0 0 12 0 $     75.00 $      75.00 $      75.00 $ - $ 900.00 $ 900.00 

ACRCD Chief 

Executive Officer 

3 0.00 0.20 0.00 0 8 0 0 24 0 
$     97.52 

$      97.52 $      97.52 $ 2,340.40 $ - $         2,340.40 

ACRCD Resource 

Conservationist II 

 

3 

 

0.00 

 

0.80 

 

0.00 

 

0 

 

32 

 

0 

 

0 

 

96 

 

0 

 

$     61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$ 4,897.28 

 

$       1,000.00 

 

$         5,897.28 ACRCD Project 

Assistant 

3 0.00 0.80 0.00 0 32 0 0 96 0 
$      41.35 

$      41.35 $      41.35 $ 2,969.60 $       1,000.00 $         3,969.60 

Subtotal - - - - - - - 0 228 0 - - - $ 10,207.28 $       2,900.00 $       13,107.28 

Task 4. Draft 

Maps 

mos FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/2 

2 

FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2022/23 

   
ACRCD Chief 

Executive Officer 
3 0.00 0.23 0.00 0 9 0 0 27 0 $     97.52 $      97.52 $      97.52 $ 1,632.95 $       1,000.00 $         2,632.95 

ACRCD Resource 

Conservationist II 

 

3 

 

0.00 

 

0.23 

 

0.00 

 

0 

 

9 

 

0 

 

0 

 

27 

 

0 

 

$     61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$ 658.61 

 

$       1,000.00 

 

$         1,658.61 ACRCD Project 

Assistant 

3 0.00 0.23 0.00 0 9 0 0 27 0 
$      41.35 

$      41.35 $      41.35 $ 1,116.45 $ - $         1,116.45 

Subcontractor 3 0.00 0.83 0.00 0 33.33 0 0 100 0 $    200.00 $    200.00 $    200.00 $ 20,000.00 $ - $       20,000.00 

Subtotal - - - - - - - 0 181 0 - - - $ 23,408.01 $       2,000.00 $       25,408.01 

Task 5. 

Community 

Outreach 

 

mos 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

FY2021/2 

2 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2022/23 

   
LAFCO Chief 

Executive Officer 
3 0.00 0.10 0.10 0 4 4 0 8 4 $     75.00 $      75.00 $      75.00 $ - $ 900.00 $ 900.00 

ACRCD Chief 

Executive Officer 

3 0.00 0.80 0.85 0 32 34 0 64 34 
$     97.52 

$      97.52 $      97.52 $ 8,556.62 $       1,000.00 $         9,556.62 

ACRCD Resource 

Conservationist II 

 

3 

 

0.00 

 

1.00 

 

1.00 

 

0 

 

40 

 

40 

 

0 

 

80 

 

40 

 

$     61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$ 6,371.60 

 

$       1,000.00 

 

$         7,371.60 ACRCD Project 

Assistant 

3 0.00 0.80 0.80 0 32 32 0 64 32 
$      41.35 

$      41.35 $      41.35 $ 2,969.60 $       1,000.00 $         3,969.60 

Outreach Materials 

(e.g., Printing, 

Advertising, 

Postage, Other) 

             
 

 

$ 5,390.00 

 

 

$ - 

 

 

$         5,390.00 

Subtotal - - - - - - - 0 216 110 - - - $ 23,287.82 $       3,900.00 $       27,187.82 

Task 6. Final Maps mos FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/2 

2 

FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2022/23 

   
ACRCD Chief 

Executive Officer 
2 0.00 0.00 0.20 0 0 8 0 0 16 $     97.52 $      97.52 $      97.52 $ 560.26 $       1,000.00 $         1,560.26 

ACRCD Resource 

Conservationist II 

 

2 

 

0.00 

 

0.00 

 

0.20 

 

0 

 

0 

 

8 

 

0 

 

0 

 

16 

 

$     61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$ 982.88 

 

$ - 

 

$ 982.88 ACRCD Project 

Assistant 

2 0.00 0.00 0.20 0 0 8 0 0 16 
$      41.35 

$      41.35 $      41.35 $ 661.60 $ - $ 661.60 

Subcontractor 2 0.00 0.00 1.00 0 0 40 0 0 80 $    200.00 $    200.00 $    200.00 $ 16,000.00 $ - $       16,000.00 

Poster printing and 

Mounting of Maps, 

Other 
             

 

$ 4,000.00 

 

$ - 

 

$         4,000.00 Subtotal - - - - - - - 0 0 128 - - - $ 22,204.74 $       1,000.00 $       23,204.74 

Task 7. Final Plan 
mos FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/2 

2 

FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2022/23 

   
LAFCO Chief 

Executive Officer 
6 0.00 0.00 0.10 0 0 4 0 0 24 $     75.00 $      75.00 $      75.00 $ - $       1,800.00 $         1,800.00 

ACRCD Chief 

Executive Officer 

6 0.00 0.00 0.70 0 0 28 0 0 168 
$     97.52 

$      97.52 $      97.52 $ 16,382.78 $ - $       16,382.78 

ACRCD Resource 

Conservationist II 

 

6 

 

0.00 

 

0.00 

 

1.00 

 

0 

 

0 

 

40 

 

0 

 

0 

 

240 

 

$     61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$ 13,743.20 

 

$       1,000.00 

 

$       14,743.20 ACRCD Project 

Assistant 

6 0.00 0.00 0.80 0 0 32 0 0 192 
$      41.35 

$      41.35 $      41.35 $ 6,939.20 $       1,000.00 $         7,939.20 

Printing, 

Advertising, 

Postage, Other 
             

 

$ 2,000.00 

 

$ - 

 

$         2,000.00 Subtotal - - - - - - - 0 0 624 - - - $ 39,065.18 $       3,800.00 $       42,865.18 

Task 8. Admin mos FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/2 

2 

FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 

   
LAFCO Chief 

Executive Officer 
24 0.01875 0.0125 0.01875 0.75 0.5 0.75 2.25 6 6.75 $      75.00 $      75.00 $      75.00 $ - $       1,125.00 $         1,125.00 

263



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 16 of 31 

 

ACRCD Chief 

Financial Officer 

24 0.05 0.025 0.0375 2 1 1.5 6 12 13.5 $      77.59 $      77.59 $      77.59 $ 2,308.41 $ 135.68 $         2,444.09 

ACRCD Chief 

Executive Officer 

24 0.0125 0.0125 0.0125 0.5 0.5 0.5 1.5 6 4.5 $      97.52 $      97.52 $      97.52 $ 1,170.20 $ - $         1,170.20 

ACRCD Resource 

Conservationist II 

 

24 

 

0.025 

 

0.025 

 

0.025 

 

1 

 

1 

 

1 

 

3 

 

12 

 

9 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$ 735.00 

 

$ 739.32 

 

$         1,474.32 Subtotal - - - - - - - 12.75 36 33.75 - - - $ 4,213.60 $       2,000.00 $         6,213.60 

Grand Total - - - - - - - 577 1921 1208 - - - $       249,984.80 $    25,000.00 $     274,984.80 

264



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 17 of 31 

 

Attachment 5, Invoice 

Department of Conservation Date:       

Division of Land Resource Protection 

Email required invoice documents to: Grant Manager 

 Invoice Number:       

Grantee Name:       Grant Number:        

Project Name:       

Invoice Period From:       To:       

Cost Category Task #1 Task #2 Task #3 Task #4 Total 

Staff      

Current Total      

Cumulative 

Total 
     

Allocated Total      

 

Cost Category Total 

Administration (not to exceed 20%)  

Travel  

Cumulative Total  

Allocated Total  

 

Work Plan Task 

# 

Description of Work Completed 

 

265



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 18 of 31 

 

 

 

Please refer to specific deliverables in the Budget and Work 

Plan. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Status Update 

 
Work Plan 

Task # 

On 

Schedule 

(Y/N) 

Within Budget 

(Y/N) 

Corrective Plan or Action, if 

needed 

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

 

   

CERTIFICATION: By my signature below, I certify that I have full authority to 

execute this payment request on behalf of Grantee.  I declare under penalty of 

perjury, under the laws of the State of California, that this invoice for 

reimbursement, and any accompanying supporting documents, are true and 

correct to the best of my knowledge, an all disbursements have been made for 

the purposes and conditions as outlined in the Grant Agreement. 

 

266



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 19 of 31 

 

Name:  

 

Print Name: Print Title: 

Signature: Date: 

267



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 20 of 31 

 

Attachment 6, Invoice Dispute Notification 

268



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 21 of 31 

 

Exhibit C, General Terms and Conditions 

1. Approval 

This Grant Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties.  

Grantee may not commence performance until such approval has been 

obtained. 

2. Amendment 

No change to this Grant Agreement shall be valid unless made in accordance 

with Exhibit A, Section 3 or 4, or Exhibit B, Section 7.  No oral understanding or 

change not incorporated in this Grant Agreement is binding on any of the 

parties. 

3. Assignment 

This Grant Agreement is not assignable by Grantee, either in whole or in part, 

without the consent of the Department in the form of an amendment.  

4. Records Retention 

A. Grantee shall establish an official file containing adequate 

documentation of all actions taken with respect to the Project, including 

copies of the Grant Agreement, changes, amendments, letters, email 

correspondence, financial records, and required reports for a minimum of 

four (4) years following the final payment of funds or until completion of 

any action and resolution of all issues which may arise as a result of an 

audit, whichever is later. 

B. Grantee shall adequately protect all records, physical and electronic, 

from loss, damage, or destruction during the four (4) year retention period. 

5. Audit 

A. Grant funded projects are subject to audit by the State of California 

during the grant term and for up to four years following the termination of 

the grant agreement.   Grantee agrees that the Department, Department 

of Finance, Bureau of State Audits, or their designated representative shall 

have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 

documentation pertaining to the performance of this Grant Agreement.  

The audit may consist of examining and auditing pertinent books, 

documents, papers, and records including financial transactions and 

supporting documents, general accounting systems, internal controls, 

management practices, policies, and procedures pertaining to the 

performance of this Grant Agreement.  

B. At any time, the Department, Department of Finance, Bureau of State 

Audits, or their designated representative may request to review 

Grantee’s records to ensure proper grant management.  Grantee shall be 

given advance notice when the grant-funded Project is selected for an 

audit or review by the Department, Department of Finance, Bureau of 

269



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 22 of 31 

 

State Audits, or their designated representative.  Grantee agrees to allow 

the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours, 

excluding State of California holidays, and to allow interviews of any 

employees who might reasonably have information related to such 

records.  Further, Grantee agrees to include a similar right of the 

Department to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 

related to performance of this Grant Agreement in accordance with 

Government Code section 8546.7.  Grantee shall comply with the above 

and be aware of the penalties for violations of fraud and for obstruction of 

investigation as set forth in Public Contract Code section 10115.10. 

6. Indemnification 

Grantee agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State of California, 

its officers, agents, and employees from any and all claims and losses accruing 

or resulting to any and all Grantees, partners, subcontractors, suppliers, laborers, 

and any other person, firm, or corporation furnishing or supplying work services, 

materials, or supplies in connection with the performance of this Grant 

Agreement, and from any and all claims and losses accruing or resulting to any 

person, firm, or corporation who may be injured or damaged by Grantee in the 

performance of this Grant Agreement. 

7. Disputes 

Grantee shall continue with the responsibilities under this Grant Agreement 

during any dispute. 

8. Independent Grantee 

Grantee, and the agents and employees of Grantee, in the performance of this 

Grant Agreement, shall act in an independent capacity and not as officers, 

employees, or agents of the Department. 

9. Non-Discrimination Clause 

During the performance of this Grant Agreement, Grantee and its 

subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or allow harassment 

against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, 

ancestry, national origin, religion, creed, age (over 40), mental disability, 

physical disability, sex, gender (including pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding, 

or related medical conditions), sexual orientation, gender identity, gender 

expression, medical condition, genetic information, marital status, and military 

and veteran status. Grantee and subcontractors shall ensure that the evaluation 

and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from 

such discrimination and harassment. Grantee and subcontractors shall comply 

with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 

(a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California 

Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.).  The applicable regulations of 

270



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 23 of 31 

 

the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code 

Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California 

Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Grant Agreement by reference 

and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Grantee and its subcontractors shall 

give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations 

with which they have a collective bargaining or other Grant Agreement. 

Grantee shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this 

clause in all subcontracts to perform work under this Grant Agreement. 

10. Timeliness 

Time is of the essence in this Grant Agreement. The Department and Grantee 

will work collaboratively to ensure this Grant Agreement is administered in a 

timely fashion. 

11. Governing Law 

This Grant Agreement is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance 

with the laws of the State of California. 

12. Unenforceable Provision 

If any provision of this Grant Agreement is unenforceable or held to be 

unenforceable, then the parties agree that all other provisions of this Grant 

Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby.

271



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 24 of 31 

 

Exhibit D, Special Terms and Conditions 

1. Compliance with Laws and Regulations 

By signing this Grant Agreement, Grantee certifies that it shall comply fully with 

all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, and 

permits and shall secure any new permits required by authorities having 

jurisdiction over the Project(s) and maintain all presently required permits.  

Grantee shall ensure that any applicable requirements of the California 

Environmental Quality Act are met in order to carry out the terms of this Grant 

Agreement.  

2. Subcontractors 

The Department’s contractual relationship is with Grantee, and not any of its 

subcontractors.  Grantee is entitled to make use of its own staff and 

subcontractors, as identified in the Budget Detail Worksheet (Attachment 4), 

and will comply with its own competitive bidding and sole sourcing requirements 

for subcontracts that arise out of or in connection with this Grant Agreement.  

Grantee shall manage, monitor, and accept responsibility for the performance 

of its own staff and subcontractors, and will conduct Project activities and 

services consistent with professional standards for the industry and type of work 

being performed under this Grant Agreement. 

Nothing contained in this Grant Agreement or otherwise, shall create any 

contractual relation between the Department and any subcontractors, and no 

subcontract shall relieve Grantee of its responsibilities and obligations 

hereunder.  Grantee agrees to be as fully responsible to the Department for the 

acts and omissions of its subcontractors and of persons either directly or 

indirectly employed by any of them as it is for the acts and omissions of persons 

directly employed by Grantee.  Grantee's obligation to pay its subcontractors is 

an independent obligation from the Department’s obligation to make 

payments to Grantee.  As a result, the Department shall have no obligation to 

pay or to enforce the payment of any moneys to any subcontractor. 

3. No Third-Party Beneficiaries 

This Grant Agreement is not intended for the benefit of any person or entity 

other than the parties, and no one other than the parties themselves may 

enforce any of the rights or obligations created by this Grant Agreement. 

4. Project Monitoring and Oversight 

Project monitoring and oversight is essential to ensure the Project stays within 

scope and is completed on schedule and within budget in accordance with this 

Grant Agreement.   

272



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 25 of 31 

 

5. Dispute Resolution 

A. Invoice Disputes  

i. In the event of an invoice dispute, the Grant Manager will notify 

Grantee by phone and follow up in writing using the Invoice Dispute 

Notification Template (Attachment 6) within ten (10) working days of 

receipt of the disputed invoice. 

ii. During the dispute, both parties shall deal in good faith to resolve the 

dispute.  Grantee shall continue to meet its responsibilities and 

obligations under the terms of this Grant Agreement. 

iii. If Grantee contests the decision made by the Grant Manager, 

Grantee shall submit a written “Notice of Dispute” on official 

letterhead, according to Subsection C below. 

B. General Disputes 

i. In the event of a dispute unrelated to the dispute of an invoice, Grantee 

shall first attempt to resolve the dispute with the Grant Manager. 

ii. Both parties shall deal in good faith and attempt to resolve the dispute 

informally. 

iii. Grantee shall continue to meet its responsibilities and obligations under 

the terms of this Grant Agreement during a dispute. 

iv. If Grantee contests the decision made by the Grant Manager, 

Grantee shall submit a written “Notice of Dispute” on official 

letterhead, according to Subsection C below. 

C. Contesting a Dispute Decision 

i. If Grantee contests a decision made by the Grant Manager, Grantee 

may submit a written “Notice of Dispute” on official letterhead.  The 

“Notice of Dispute” shall include: 

• The Grant Agreement number 

• A complete description of the basis for the dispute 

• Legal authority or pertinent facts, supporting arguments and 

documentation 

• Action requested for resolution  

The “Notice of Dispute” shall be sent to: 

Department of Conservation 

Division of Land Resource Protection 

Attn: Division Director 

801 K Street, 14th Floor, MS 14-15 

Sacramento, CA 95814 

273



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 26 of 31 

 

ii. Within 30 days after receipt of the “Notice of Dispute,” the Division 

Director shall review the dispute and submit a written decision to Grantee, 

which shall include: 

• The decision made 

• An explanation for the decision 

• Whether the decision shall be conclusive and binding or can be 

appealed and the steps to take to appeal the decision 

6. Termination 

A. Completion of Project.  This Grant Agreement shall terminate upon 

completion of the project and payment of the last invoice. 

B. Early Termination.  Either Party may terminate this Grant Agreement upon 

thirty (30) days advance written notice by certified mail to the other Party.  

The notice shall specify the reason for early termination and may permit 

Grantee or Department to rectify any deficiency(ies) prior to the early 

termination date. 

7. Waiver of Rights 

A. Grantee waives any and all rights to any type of express or implied 

indemnity or right of contribution from the Department, its officers, agents, 

or employees for any liability arising from, growing out of, or in any way 

connected with this Grant Agreement. 

B. Grantee waives all claims and recourses against the Department, 

including the right to contribution for loss or damage to persons or 

property arising from, growing out of, or in any way connected with or 

incident to this Grant Agreement, except claims arising from the gross 

negligence of the Department, its officers, agents, and employees. 

C. None of the provisions of this Grant Agreement shall be deemed waived 

unless expressly waived in writing. 

8. Insurance Requirements 

A. Grantee that is a governmental organization may provide evidence of 

self-insurance to satisfy this requirement. 

B. If Grantee is not a governmental organization or is a governmental 

organization that is unable to provide evidence of self-insurance, then it 

shall obtain and keep in force for the term of this Agreement the following 

insurance policies that cover any acts or omissions of Grantee, its 

subcontractors, or its employees engaged in the provision of service 

specified in this Agreement: 

i. Workers’ Compensation Insurance in an amount of not less than 

$1,000,000 in accordance with the statutory requirement of the State of 

California (California Labor Code § 3700 et seq.). 

ii. Commercial general liability insurance in an amount of not less than 

$1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage 

combined. 

274



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 27 of 31 

 

iii. Motor vehicle liability insurance in an amount not less than $1,000,000 

per accident for bodily injury and property damage combined.  Such 

insurance shall cover liability arising out of any motor vehicle including 

owned or hired, and non-owned motor vehicles. 

C. The State of California, its officers, agents, and employees are included as 

additional insured, but only with respect to work performed for the State 

of California under this Grant Agreement.  The additional insured 

endorsement must accompany the certificate of insurance. 

D. Grantee shall submit proof of insurance documents referencing this Grant 

Agreement number to the Department electronically within thirty (30) 

days of signing this Grant Agreement. 

E. Grantee shall notify Department in writing within five (5) working days of 

any cancellation, non-renewal, or material change that affects required 

insurance coverage. 

F. Grantee shall submit proof of new or updated policy based on insurance 

requirements within thirty (30) days of policy cancellation or substantial 

policy change.  Failure to provide proof of insurance may result in 

termination of this Grant Agreement. 

9. Stop Work 

If it is determined, at the sole discretion of the Department, that Grantee is not 

meeting the terms and conditions of this Grant Agreement, immediately upon 

receiving a written notice through certified mail from the Department to stop 

work, Grantee shall cease all work under this Grant Agreement.  The 

Department has the sole discretion to determine that Grantee meets the terms 

and conditions after a stop work order, and to send through certified mail a 

written notice to Grantee to resume work under this Grant Agreement. 

10. Publicity 

Grantee agrees that it will acknowledge the Department’s support whenever 

activities or projects funded, in whole or in part, by this Grant Agreement are 

publicized in any news media, brochures, articles, seminars, websites, or other 

type of promotional material. 

Grantee shall also include in any publication resulting from work performed 

under this grant an acknowledgment substantially as follows: 

“The work upon which this publication is based was funded in whole or in part 

through a grant awarded by the California Department of Conservation.” 

Media: Grantee is required to identify a point of contact for all press inquiries 

and communications needs related to the Project and provide the name, 

phone number, and email address of this individual to the Department.  All press 

releases must be approved by the Department prior to distribution, and the 

275



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 28 of 31 

 

Department must be alerted and invited to participate in all press conferences 

related to the grant. 

Social Media: Grantee is encouraged to use social media to inform and share 

with the public activities under this Grant Agreement.  Furthermore, the 

Department should be tagged on all posts related to activities under this Grant 

Agreement.  

All publicity must comply with the Publicity and Confidentiality requirements set 

forth in the Guidelines (Exhibit F). 

11. Drug-Free Workplace Certification 

In signing this Grant Agreement, Grantee certifies that it will comply with the 

requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-

free workplace by taking the following actions: 

A. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, 

distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance is 

prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 

violations. 

B. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 

i. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace. 

ii. The person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free 

workplace. 

iii. Any available counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance 

programs. 

iv. Penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse 

violations.  

C. Every employee who works on this Grant Agreement will: 

i. Receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement. 

ii. Agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a 

condition of employment on this Grant Agreement. 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments 

under this Grant Agreement or termination of this Grant Agreement or both, and 

Grantee may be ineligible for award of any future State of California 

agreements if the Department determines that any of the following has 

occurred: Grantee has made false certification, or violated the certification by 

failing to carry out the requirements as noted above (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.). 

12. Americans with Disabilities Act 

Grantee assures the Department that it complies with the Americans with 

Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of 

276



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 29 of 31 

 

disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to 

the ADA (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.). 

13. Air/Water Pollution Violation Certification 

Under State of California laws, Grantee shall not be: (1) in violation of any order 

or resolution not subject to review promulgated by the California Air Resources 

Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist order not 

subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for 

violation of waste discharge requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally 

determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 

pollution. 

14. Payee Data Record Form - STD 204 

This form must be completed by all Grantees that are not another state agency 

or other governmental entity. 

277



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 30 of 31 

 

Exhibit E, Award Letter 

 

278



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  Alameda LAFCO  
Department of Conservation  3020-901 

GRANT AGREEMENT  Agricultural Land Conservation Planning Grant 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program  Page 31 of 31 

 

 

Exhibit F, Guidelines 

[Insert Guidelines here.] Will be inserted with PDF version 

 

 

279



REVISED ACRCD-LAFCO SALC Budget_20210219

Task 1. 
Establishment of 
Stakeholder 
Group

mos FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2022/23 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2022/23 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2022/23 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2022/23

LAFCO Chief 
Executive Officer

4 0.10 0.10 0.00 4 4 0 12 4 0 75.00$      $    75.00  $    75.00  $  -  $   1,200.00  $    1,200.00 

ACRCD Chief 
Executive Officer

4 1.00 1.00 0.00 40 40 0 120 40 0 97.52$      $    97.52  $    97.52  $    14,602.65  $    1,000.00  $    15,602.65 

ACRCD Resource 
Conservationist II

4 1.80 2.00 0.00 72 80 0 216 80 0 61.43$      $    61.43  $    61.43  $    17,183.28  $    1,000.00  $    18,183.28 

ACRCD Project 
Assistant

4 1.80 2.00 0.00 72 80 0 216 80 0 41.35$      $    41.35  $    41.35  $    12,239.60  $   -  $   12,239.60 

Presentation 
Materials, Printing, 
Postage, Other

 $    4,350.00  $   -  $   4,350.00 

Subtotal - - - - - - - 564 204 0  - -  -  $    48,375.53  $    3,200.00  $    51,575.53 

Task 2. 
Stakeholder 
Planning Process

mos FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2022/23

LAFCO Chief 
Executive Officer

14 0.00 0.10 0.10 0 4 4 0 44 12 75.00$        $    75.00  $    75.00  $  -  $   4,200.00  $    4,200.00 

ACRCD Chief 
Executive Officer

14 0.00 0.50 0.50 0 20 20 0 220 60 97.52$        $    97.52  $    97.52  $    27,304.63  $   -  $   27,304.63 

ACRCD Resource 
Conservationist II

14 0.00 1.00 1.00 0 40 40 0 440 120 61.43$        $    61.43  $    61.43  $    33,400.80  $    1,000.00  $    34,400.80 

ACRCD Project 
Assistant

14 0.00 0.80 1.00 0 32 40 0 352 120 41.35$      $    41.35  $    41.35  $    18,517.20  $    1,000.00  $    19,517.20 

Subtotal - - - - - - - 0 1056 312  - -  -  $    79,222.63  $    6,200.00  $    85,422.63 

Task 3. Create 
Land Parcel 
Ranking Criteria

mos FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2022/23

LAFCO Chief 
Executive Officer

3 0.00 0.10 0.00 0 4 0 0 12 0 75.00$        $    75.00  $    75.00  $  -  $   900.00  $    900.00 

ACRCD Chief 
Executive Officer

3 0.00 0.20 0.00 0 8 0 0 24 0 97.52$        $    97.52  $    97.52  $    2,340.40  $   -  $   2,340.40 

ACRCD Resource 
Conservationist II

3 0.00 0.80 0.00 0 32 0 0 96 0 61.43$        $    61.43  $    61.43  $    4,897.28  $    1,000.00  $    5,897.28 

ACRCD Project 
Assistant

3 0.00 0.80 0.00 0 32 0 0 96 0 41.35$      $    41.35  $    41.35  $    2,969.60  $    1,000.00  $    3,969.60 

Subtotal - - - - - - - 0 228 0  - -  -  $    10,207.28  $    2,900.00  $    13,107.28 

Task 4. Draft 
Maps

mos FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2022/23

ACRCD Chief 
Executive Officer

3 0.00 0.23 0.00 0 9 0 0 27 0 97.52$        $    97.52  $    97.52  $    1,632.95  $    1,000.00  $    2,632.95 

ACRCD Resource 
Conservationist II

3 0.00 0.23 0.00 0 9 0 0 27 0 61.43$        $    61.43  $    61.43  $    658.61  $    1,000.00  $    1,658.61 

ACRCD Project 
Assistant

3 0.00 0.23 0.00 0 9 0 0 27 0 41.35$      $    41.35  $    41.35  $    1,116.45  $   -  $   1,116.45 

Subcontractor 3 0.00 0.83 0.00 0 33.33 0 0 100 0  $     200.00  $     200.00  $     200.00  $    20,000.00  $  -  $   20,000.00 

Subtotal - - - - - - - 0 181 0  - -  -  $    23,408.01  $    2,000.00  $    25,408.01 

Task 5. 
Community 
Outreach

mos FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2022/23

LAFCO Chief 
Executive Officer

3 0.00 0.10 0.10 0 4 4 0 8 4 75.00$        $    75.00  $    75.00  $  -  $   900.00  $    900.00 

ACRCD Chief 
Executive Officer

3 0.00 0.80 0.85 0 32 34 0 64 34 97.52$        $    97.52  $    97.52  $    8,556.62  $    1,000.00  $    9,556.62 

ACRCD Resource 
Conservationist II

3 0.00 1.00 1.00 0 40 40 0 80 40 61.43$        $    61.43  $    61.43  $    6,371.60  $    1,000.00  $    7,371.60 

ACRCD Project 
Assistant

3 0.00 0.80 0.80 0 32 32 0 64 32 41.35$      $    41.35  $    41.35  $    2,969.60  $    1,000.00  $    3,969.60 

Outreach Materials 
(e.g., Printing, 
Advertising, 
Postage, Other)

 $    5,390.00  $   -  $   5,390.00 

Subtotal - - - - - - - 0 216 110  - -  -  $    23,287.82  $    3,900.00  $    27,187.82 

Task 6. Final 
Maps

mos FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2022/23

ACRCD Chief 
Executive Officer

2 0.00 0.00 0.20 0 0 8 0 0 16 97.52$        $    97.52  $    97.52  $    560.26  $    1,000.00  $    1,560.26 

ACRCD Resource 
Conservationist II

2 0.00 0.00 0.20 0 0 8 0 0 16 61.43$        $    61.43  $    61.43  $    982.88  $   -  $   982.88 

ACRCD Project 
Assistant

2 0.00 0.00 0.20 0 0 8 0 0 16 41.35$      $    41.35  $    41.35  $    661.60  $   -  $   661.60 

Subcontractor 2 0.00 0.00 1.00 0 0 40 0 0 80  $     200.00  $     200.00  $     200.00  $    16,000.00  $  -  $   16,000.00 

Poster printing and 
Mounting of Maps, 
Other

 $    4,000.00  $   -  $   4,000.00 

Subtotal - - - - - - - 0 0 128  - -  -  $    22,204.74  $    1,000.00  $    23,204.74 

Task 7. Final Plan mos FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2022/23

LAFCO Chief 
Executive Officer

6 0.00 0.00 0.10 0 0 4 0 0 24 75.00$        $    75.00  $    75.00  $  -  $   1,800.00  $    1,800.00 

ACRCD Chief 
Executive Officer

6 0.00 0.00 0.70 0 0 28 0 0 168 97.52$        $    97.52  $    97.52  $    16,382.78  $   -  $   16,382.78 

ACRCD Resource 
Conservationist II

6 0.00 0.00 1.00 0 0 40 0 0 240 61.43$        $    61.43  $    61.43  $    13,743.20  $    1,000.00  $    14,743.20 

ACRCD Project 
Assistant

6 0.00 0.00 0.80 0 0 32 0 0 192 41.35$      $    41.35  $    41.35  $    6,939.20  $    1,000.00  $    7,939.20 

Printing, 
Advertising, 
Postage, Other

 $    2,000.00  $   -  $   2,000.00 

Subtotal - - - - - - - 0 0 624  - -  -  $    39,065.18  $    3,800.00  $    42,865.18 

Task 8. Admin mos FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22

LAFCO Chief 
Executive Officer

24 0.01875 0.0125 0.01875 0.75 0.5 0.75 2.25 6 6.75  $    75.00  $    75.00  $    75.00  $  -  $   1,125.00  $    1,125.00 

ACRCD Chief 
Financial Officer

24 0.05 0.025 0.0375 2 1 1.5 6 12 13.5  $    77.59  $    77.59  $    77.59  $    2,308.41  $    135.68  $    2,444.09 

ACRCD Chief 
Executive Officer

24 0.0125 0.0125 0.0125 0.5 0.5 0.5 1.5 6 4.5  $    97.52  $    97.52  $    97.52  $    1,170.20  $   -  $   1,170.20 

ACRCD Resource 
Conservationist II

24 0.025 0.025 0.025 1 1 1 3 12 9  $    61.43  $    61.43  $    61.43  $    735.00  $    739.32  $    1,474.32 

Subtotal - - - - - - - 12.75 36 33.75  - -  -  $    4,213.60  $    2,000.00  $    6,213.60 

Grand Total - - - - - - - 577 1921 1208  - -  -  $    249,984.80  $    25,000.00  $    274,984.80 

Remainder to disburse  $        15.20  $                   -    $               15.20 

Total Allowed 250,000.00$      25,000.00$      275,000.00$      

*Rates for RCD staff are NICRA FY20/21, FY21/22, and FY22/23 (+4% assumed per year), adjusted to single rate across three fiscal years, maintaining original submitted budget balance (approximately)

# hours $/ hour

Program 
Reimbursement 
Request ($250K)

Grantee 
Match ($25K)

Grand Total 
($275K)

Rate (if applicable)*
Budget Item

Length of 
Task

Weeks Per Month Hrs Per Month
Units (if applicable)

Attachment 2

280



Page 1 of 19 

P.O./Contract # ___________________________

ALAMEDA LAFCO, ALAMEDA COUNTY, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
STANDARD AGREEMENT  

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 15th day of March, 2021 by and between the 
ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION, a public agency of the State of 
California, hereafter called the “Alameda LAFCO”, and Alameda County Resource Conservation 
District, a California special district duly qualified in the State of California, whose principal place 
of business is: 3585 Greenville Road, Suite 2, Livermore, CA 94550, hereafter called the 
“Contractor.” 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, the Alameda LAFCo desires to use professional services to administer and 
complete a grant project awarded by the Department of Conservation as described in Exhibit A 
attached hereto (“Scope of Work”); and 

WHEREAS, Contractor is professionally qualified to provide such services; and 

WHEREAS, the Alameda LAFCo desires to retain and employ the services of Contractor 
in connection with such work, and Contractor is agreeable with such employment. 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed that the Alameda LAFCo does hereby retain and employ 
Contractor to provide the Services in connection with such work, and Contractor accepts such 
employment, on the terms and conditions hereinafter specified in this Agreement and additional 
provisions attached hereto, and the following described exhibits, all of which are incorporated 
into this Agreement by this reference: 

Exhibit A Scope of Services & Project Timeline 
Exhibit A-1 Grant Agreement between Alameda LAFCo and the State of California 

Department of Conservation (Grant Agreement No. 3020-901) 
Exhibit B Payment Terms 
Exhibit C Insurance Requirements   

CONTRACT PERIOD will be from date executed through December 31, 2023.  This Agreement 
may be extended for an additional six months if mutually agreed by both parties hereto, in writing 
not less than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of this Agreement. 

COMPENSATION:  The Alameda LAFCo agrees to pay Contractor, pursuant to the terms set 
forth in Exhibit B, for services performed hereunder in a total amount not to exceed $249,988 for 
the term of the current agreement, including all expenses, contingencies, and other 
miscellaneous expenses.  

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS, pages 3 through 11, attached hereto constitute a part of this 
agreement. 

Attachment 3

281



 
 

 

Page 2 of 19 

 
 

282



 
 

 

Page 3 of 19 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement as of the day and 
year first above written. 
 

ALAMEDA LAFCO    Alameda County Resource Conservation District 
 
By: ______________________   ______________________  
        Rachel Jones    By: Katherine Boxer 
 LAFCO Executive Officer         Executive Director 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
      Tax Payer I.D. #   __________________ 
 
 
 
 

APPROVED TO FORM:    
 
By: ______________________    
        Andrew Massey     
 LAFCO Legal Counsel 
 
 
 
Date:  ______________________   ATTEST: 
        __________________________ 

      Alameda LAFCo  
County of Alameda  
State of California 

 
 
        By:  _____________________ 

 
 

283



 
 

 

Page 4 of 19 

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

 
1. EMPLOYER/EMPLOYEE RELATIONSHIP:  No relationship of employer and employee is created 

by this Agreement, it being understood that Contractor shall act hereunder as an independent 

Contractor; that Contractor shall not have any claim under this Agreement or otherwise against the 

Alameda LAFCO for seniority, vacation time, vacation pay, sick leave, personal time off, overtime, 

health insurance, medical care, hospital care, retirement benefits, Social Security, disability, Workers' 

Compensation, or unemployment insurance benefits, civil service protection, or employee benefits of 

any kind; that Contractor shall be solely liable for and obligated to pay directly all applicable taxes, 

including, but not limited to, Federal and State income taxes, and in connection therewith Contractor 

shall indemnify and hold the Alameda LAFCO harmless from any and all liability which the 

Alameda LAFCO may incur because of Contractor’s failure to pay such taxes; that Contractor does, 

by this Agreement, agree to perform his/her said work and functions at all times in strict accordance 

with currently approved methods and practices in his/her field and that the sole interest of the 

Alameda LAFCO is to ensure that said service shall be performed and rendered in a competent, 

efficient, timely and satisfactory manner and in accordance with the standards required by the agency 

concerned.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Alameda LAFCO determines that pursuant to state 

and federal law Contractor is an employee for purposes of income tax withholding, the Alameda 

LAFCO shall, upon two weeks notice to Contractor withhold from the payments to Contractor 

hereunder federal and state income taxes and pay said sums over to the Federal and State 

governments. 

 

2. HOLD HARMLESS/INDEMNIFICATION:  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall 

hold harmless, defend and indemnify Alameda LAFCO, its Commissioners, employees and agents 

from and against any and all claims, losses, damages, liabilities and expenses, including but not 

limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from the performance of services under this 

Agreement, provided that any such claim, loss, damage, liability or expense is attributable to bodily 

injury, sickness, disease, death or to injury to or destruction of property, including the loss therefrom, 

or to any violation of federal, state or municipal law or regulation, which arises out of or is any way 

connected with the performance of this agreement (collectively “Liabilities”) except where such 

Liabilities are caused solely by the negligence or willful misconduct of any indemnitee.  Alameda 

LAFCO may participate in the defense of any such claim without relieving Contractor of any 

obligation hereunder. The obligations of this indemnity shall be for the full amount of all damage to 

Alameda LAFCO, including defense costs, and shall not be limited by any insurance limits. 

 

3. INSURANCE AND BOND:  Contractor shall at all times during the term of the Agreement with  

Alameda LAFCO maintain in force those insurance policies as designated in the attached Exhibit C, 

"Insurance Requirements," and will comply with all those requirements as stated herein.   

 

4. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION: Contractor shall provide Workers' Compensation insurance at 

Contractor's own cost and expense and further, neither the Contractor nor its carrier shall be entitled 

to recover from the Alameda LAFCo any costs, settlements, or expenses of Workers' Compensation 

claims arising out of this agreement. 

 

5. CONFORMITY WITH LAW AND SAFETY: 

 

A. Contractor shall observe and comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, codes and 

regulations of governmental agencies, including federal, state, municipal, and local governing 

bodies, having jurisdiction over the scope of services or any part hereof, including all 

provisions of the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1979 and all amendments thereto, and 

284



 
 

 

Page 5 of 19 

all applicable federal, state, municipal, and local safety regulations.  All services performed by 

Contractor must be in accordance with these laws, ordinances, codes and regulations.  

Contractor shall indemnify and hold Alameda LAFCO harmless from any and all liability, 

fines, penalties and consequences from any noncompliance or violations of such laws, 

ordinances, codes and regulations. If a provision of this Agreement is found to be invalid, the 

parties legally, commercially, and practicably can continue this Agreement without that 

provision, and the remainder of this Agreement shall continue in force and effect unless an 

essential purpose of this Agreement would be defeated by the loss of such provision.  In the 

event any of the terms, conditions, or provisions of this Agreement are held to be illegal or 

otherwise unenforceable, such term, condition or provision shall be deemed severable from the 

remainder of this Agreement and shall not cause any other part or provision of this Agreement 

to be illegal or unenforceable. 

 

B. Accidents:  If death, serious personal injury or substantial property damage occurs in 

connection with the performance of this agreement, Contractor shall immediately notify 

Alameda LAFCO by telephone.  Contractor shall promptly submit to Alameda LAFCO a 

written report, in such form as may be required by Alameda LAFCo of all accidents which 

occur in connection with this Agreement.  This report must include the following information:  

(1) name and address of the injured or deceased person(s); (2) name and address of Contractor's 

subcontractor, if any; (3) name and address of Contractor's liability insurance carrier; and (4) a 

detailed description of accident and whether any of LAFCO's equipment, tools, material, or 

staff were involved.  Contractor further agrees that it shall take all reasonable steps to preserve 

all physical evidence and information which may be relevant to accidents or circumstances 

surrounding a potential claim, while maintaining public safety. Contractor shall provide 

Alameda LAFCO the opportunity to review and inspect such evidence, including the scene of 

the accident. 

 

6. PAYMENT: Payment to Contractor will be made only upon presentation of proper invoice by 

Contractor subject to the approval of Alameda LAFCO, and in accordance with this Agreement and 

its Exhibit B. 

 

7. TRAVEL EXPENSES:  Payment to Contractor for travel expenses will be made only upon 

presentation of proper invoice by Contractor subject to the prior approval of Alameda LAFCo, and in 

accordance with this Agreement. 

 

8. ROYALTIES AND INVENTIONS: The Alameda LAFCO shall have a royalty-free, exclusive and 

irrevocable license to reproduce, publish and use the results produced in the course of or under this 

Agreement; and Contractor shall not publish any such material relating to Alameda LAFCo without 

prior consent of Alameda LAFCO. 

 

9. CONFIDENTIALITY OF INFORMATION:  Confidential information is defined as all information 

disclosed to Contractor which relates to Alameda LAFCO’s past, present, and future activities, as 

well as activities under this Agreement.  Contractor will hold all such information with the same 

degree of care which Contractor utilizes to protect its own data of a similar nature.  Upon 

cancellation or expiration of this Agreement, Contractor will return to Alameda LAFCo all written or 

descriptive matter which contains any such confidential information.  

 

10. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  No officer, member, or employee of Alameda LAFCo and no member 

of its governing body shall have any pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the 

proceeds thereof.  No Contractor, nor any member of Contractor's family shall serve on the Alameda 

285



 
 

 

Page 6 of 19 

LAFCo, or hold any such position which either by rule, practice or action nominates, recommends, 

or supervises Contractor's operations, or authorizes funding to Contractor.  Contractor shall 

immediately bring to Alameda LAFCO’s attention any situation in which its client has, or is 

reasonably likely to have an application or other matter pending before Alameda LAFCO.  The 

provisions of this Agreement are not exclusive, and thus Alameda LAFCo may at its discretion 

appoint a different firm to serve as its consultant in the event of a conflict.  Contractor agrees not to 

assign any of the key personnel identified in Exhibit A to any matter that is, or is likely to be pending 

before Alameda LAFCO regardless of whether Alameda LAFCO in its discretion decides to hire 

another firm to avoid a conflict. 

 

11. USE OF ALAMEDA LAFCO PROPERTY:  Contractor shall not use Alameda LAFCo premises or 

property (including equipment, instruments and supplies) or personnel for any purpose other than in 

the performance of his/her obligations under this Agreement. 

 

12. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PRACTICES/PROVISIONS: Contractor assures that it 

will comply with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and that no person shall, on the grounds of 

race, creed, color, disability, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, age, religion, Vietnam era Veteran’s 

status, political affiliation, or any other non-merit factor, be excluded from participation in, be denied the 

benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under this Agreement. 

 

A. Contractor shall, in all solicitations or advertisements for applicants for employment placed as 

a result of this Agreement, state that it is an “Equal Opportunity Employer” or that all qualified 

applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to their race, creed, color, 

disability, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, age, religion, Vietnam era Veteran’s status, 

political affiliation, or any other non-merit factor. 

 

B. Contractor shall, if requested to so do by Alameda LAFCo, certify that it has not, in the 

performance of this Agreement, discriminated against applicants or employees because of their 

race, creed, color, disability, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, age, religion, Vietnam era 

Veteran’s status, political affiliation, or any other non-merit factor. 

 

C. If requested to do so by Alameda LAFCo, Contractor shall provide Alameda LAFCo with 

access to copies of all of its records pertaining or relating to its employment practices, except to 

the extent such records or portions of such records are confidential or privileged under State or 

Federal law.    

 

D. Contractor shall recruit vigorously and encourage minority- and women-owned businesses to bid 

its subcontracts.      

 

E. Nothing contained in this contract shall be construed in any manner so as to require or permit any 

act which is prohibited by law.    

 

F. The Contractor shall include the provisions set forth in paragraphs A through E (above) in each 

of its subcontracts. 

 

13. ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT:  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to permit 

assignment or transfer by Contractor of any rights under this Agreement and such assignment or 

transfer is expressly prohibited and void unless otherwise approved in writing by Alameda LAFCo.   

 

286



 
 

 

Page 7 of 19 

14. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE:  Contractor and Contractor's employees shall comply with Alameda 

LAFCo’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace.  Neither Contractor nor Contractor’s 

employees shall,  unlawfully manufacture, distribute, dispense, possess or use controlled substances, 

as defined in 21 U.S. Code section 812, including marijuana, heroin, cocaine, and amphetamines, at 

any LAFCo facility or work site.  If Contractor or any employee of Contractor is convicted or pleads 

nolo contendere to a criminal drug statute violation occurring at an Alameda LAFCo facility or work 

site, the Contractor within five days thereafter shall notify the Executive Officer of Alameda LAFCo. 

 Violation of this provision shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement. 

 

15. FEDERAL AND STATE AUDITS:  Until the expiration of five (5) years after the furnishing of any 

services pursuant to this Agreement, Contractor shall make available, upon written request, to the   

Federal/State government or any of their duly authorized representatives, this Agreement, and such   

books, documents, and records of Contractor that are necessary to certify the nature and extent of the 

reasonable cost of services to Alameda LAFCo.  If Contractor enters into any Agreement with any 

related organization to provide services pursuant to this Agreement with value or cost of $10,000 or 

more  over a twelve-month period, such Agreement shall contain a clause to the effect that until the  

expiration of five years after the furnishing of services pursuant to such subcontract, the related 

organization shall make available, upon written request, to the Federal/State government or any of  

their duly authorized representatives, the subcontract, and books, documents and records of such  

organization that are necessary to verify the nature and extent of such costs.  This paragraph shall be 

of no force and effect when and if it is not required by law.  Alameda LAFCo shall have access to 

Contractor's financial records for purposes of auditing payments made to Contractor hereunder.  Such 

records shall be complete and available for audit ninety (90) days after final payment is made to 

Contractor hereunder and shall be retained and available for audit purposes for five (5) years after  

said final payment hereunder. 

 

16. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE in each and all of the provisions of this agreement.   

 

17. AMENDMENT:  No change, alteration, variation, modification of the terms, termination or 

discharge of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by the parties hereto.  

 

18. ASSURANCE OF PERFORMANCE:  If at any time Alameda LAFCO believes Contractor may not 

be adequately performing its obligations under this Agreement, that Contractor may fail to complete 

the Services as required by this Agreement, or has provided written notice of observed deficiencies in 

Contractor’s performance, Alameda LAFCO may request from Contractor prompt written assurances 

of performance and a written plan to correct the observed deficiencies in Contractor’s performance.  

Contractor shall provide such written assurances and written plan within ten (10) calendar days of 

receipt of Alameda LAFCO’s written request and shall thereafter diligently commence and fully 

perform such written plan. Contractor acknowledges and agrees that any failure to provide written 

assurances and a written plan to correct observed deficiencies, in the required time, to diligently 

commence and fully perform such written plan, is a material breach under this Agreement. 

 

19. KEY PERSONNEL:  Contractor shall identify key personnel assigned to perform services in Exhibit 

A and obtain Alameda LAFCo approval of any substitution by the Contractor of key personnel.  If 

the Contractor has subcontractors, this requirement extends to the subcontractors as well.     

 

20. SUBCONTRACTORS:  Contractor shall identify and obtain Alameda LAFCO approval of all 

subcontractors.  Nothing provided herein shall create any obligation on the part of Alameda LAFCO 

to pay or to see to the payment by Contractor of any monies to any subcontractor, supplier or vendor, 

nor create any relationship in contract or otherwise, express or implied between any such 

287



 
 

 

Page 8 of 19 

subcontractor, supplier or vendor and Alameda LAFCo. Approval by Alameda LAFCo of any 

subcontractor shall not constitute a waiver of any right of Alameda LAFCo to reject defective work, 

material or equipment, not in compliance with the requirements of this Agreement.  

 

21. CHOICE OF LAW:  This Agreement, and any dispute arising from the relationship between the 

parties to this Agreement, shall be governed by the laws of the State of California, excluding any 

laws that direct the application of another jurisdiction’s laws, and its courts shall have jurisdiction 

(but not exclusive jurisdiction) to hear and determine all questions relating to this Agreement. 

 

22. WAIVER:  Any failure of a party to assert any right under this Agreement shall not constitute a 

waiver or a termination of that right, under this Agreement or any provisions of this Agreement. 

 

23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This Agreement, including all attachments, exhibits, and any other 

documents specifically incorporated into this Agreement, shall constitute the entire Agreement 

between Alameda LAFCo and Contractor relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. As used 

herein, Agreement refers to any documents incorporated herein by reference and any exhibits or 

attachments.  This Agreement supersedes and merges all previous understandings, and all other 

agreements, written or oral, between the parties and sets forth the entire understanding of the parties 

regarding the subject matter thereof.  The Agreement may not be modified except by a written 

document signed by both parties. 

 

24. TERMINATION: Alameda LAFCo may terminate this Agreement with or without cause by 

providing thirty (30) days notice, in writing, to the Contractor.  Upon the expiration of said notice, 

this Agreement shall become of no further force or effect whatsoever and each of the parties hereto 

shall be relieved and discharged here from.  Alameda LAFCo may terminate at any time without 

notice upon material breach of the terms of this Agreement and/or in the event that Alameda LAFCo 

determines that the Contractor’s performance is substandard or unsatisfactory.  

 

25. SURVIVAL:  The obligations of this Agreement, which by their nature would continue beyond the 

termination or expiration of the Agreement, including without limitation, the obligations regarding Hold 

Harmless/Indemnification (paragraph 2), Confidentiality of Information (paragraph 9), and Conflict of 

Interest (paragraph 10), shall survive termination or expiration. 

 

26. NOTICES:  All notices, requests, demands, or other communications under this Agreement shall be 

in writing.  Notices shall be given for all purposes as follows: 

 

• Personal delivery:  When personally delivered to the recipient, notices are effective on 

delivery. 

 

• First Class Mail:  When mailed first class to the last address of the recipient known to the party 

giving notice, notice is effective three mail delivery days after deposit in a United States Postal 

Service office or mailbox. 

 

• Certified Mail:  When mailed certified mail, return receipt requested, notice is effective on 

receipt, if delivery is confirmed by a return receipt. 

 

• Overnight Delivery:  When delivered by overnight delivery (Federal Express/United Parcel 

Service/DHL WorldWide Express/etc.) with charges prepaid or charged to the sender’s 

account, notice is effective on delivery, if delivery is confirmed by the delivery service. 

 

288



 
 

 

Page 9 of 19 

• Telex or facsimile transmission:  When sent by telex or fax to the last telex or fax number of 

the recipient known to the party giving notice, notice is effective on receipt, provided that (a) a 

duplicate copy of the notice is promptly given by first-class or certified mail or by overnight 

delivery, or (b) the receiving party delivers a written confirmation of receipt.  Any notice given 

by telex or fax shall be deemed received on the next business day if is received after 5:00 p.m. 

(recipients time) or on a non-business day. 

 

Addresses for purpose of giving notice are as follows: 

 

To LAFCO:   Alameda LAFC0 

    224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110 

    Hayward, CA  94544     

    

To Contractor:   ACRCD 

    3585 Greenville Road, Suite 2  

    Livermore, CA 94550 

     

Any correctly addressed notice that is refused, unclaimed, or undeliverable because of an act or omission 

of the party to be notified shall be deemed effective as of the first date that said notice was refused, 

unclaimed, or deemed undeliverable by the postal authorities, messenger, or overnight delivery service. 

 

Any party may change its address or telex or facsimile number by giving the other party notice of the 

change in any manner permitted by this Agreement. 

 

[END OF DOCUMENT] 

289



 
 

 

Page 10 of 19 

EXHIBIT A - SCOPE OF WORK   

 
The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) has been awarded $249,988 for the agricultural 

planning grant with the Department of Conservation and its Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation 

(SALC) Program. Alameda LAFCO applied for the SALC grant to serve as the lead applicant and partner with 

the Alameda County Resource Conservation District (ACRCD) as the project manager to create an Alameda 

County Agricultural Resiliency Project that would establish a Countywide coalition of agricultural preservation 

policies and urban agricultural land use opportunities. The project’s purpose is to identify, map and monitor 

high-priority parcels of agricultural lands within proximity to urban growth boundaries of cities and 

unincorporated areas within the County of Alameda, along with identifying priority sites for additional urban 

agricultural community gardens for disadvantaged low-income and or unincorporated communities. The project 

will enable and promote existing programs as well as allow transparency among the stakeholders on who is 

doing what for better coordination and collaboration to better support and improve strategies within the region. 

Alameda LAFCO will assist in creating a repository of agricultural and open space use policies from 

stakeholders throughout the County, while ACRCD will implement and manage the project’s key tasks.  

 

All of ACRCD’s work shall be performed in accordance with the terms and requirements of the Grant 

Agreement between Alameda LAFCo and the State of California Department of Conservation (Grant 

Agreement No. 3020-901), attached hereto as Exhibit A-1(“the Grant Agreement”), including but not limited to 

the non-discrimination requirements of paragraph 9 of Exhibit C of the Grant Agreement.  

 

 

Scope of Work and Project Timeline 

 

Work Plan   

Task Number Performance Measure  Timeline Total 

Requested 

Grant 

Funds 

Task 1. Establishment of Stakeholder Group 

Identify Stakeholders and conduct meetings to identify 

Stakeholder concerns.  

 

Subtask A: Conduct preparatory background research. 

Subtask B: Identify key agencies with planning 

responsibilities including unincorporated areas of 

Alameda Co. 

Subtask C: Prepare and send introductory letter and 

survey. 

Subtask D: Compile and communicate responses from 

survey. 

Subtask E: Develop Stakeholder group, ensuring areas of 

needed expertise are integrated. 

Deliverables: 

• Draft list of 

relevant policies 

• List of potential 

Stakeholders 

• Invitation letter 

and questionnaire  

• Summary of 

survey responses 

4 months $48,375.53 

from grant 

$3,200.00 

from match 

290



 
 

 

Page 11 of 19 

Subtask F: Create agendas for and schedule Stakeholder 

meetings. 

Subtask G: Summarize and communicate Stakeholder 

feedback. 

Subtask H: Create announcement of SALC grant project 

commencement county-wide, including description of 

primary goals. 

• Stakeholder 

group roster 

• Meeting notes 

• Summary of 

feedback from 

Stakeholders as a 

basis for entering 

Task 2 

• Project 

announcement 

Milestones: 

• Creation of 

Stakeholder Group 

(May 2021) 

• Stakeholder 

Meetings (x 2, June 

2021) 

Task 2. Stakeholder Planning Process 

With Stakeholder participation, develop a comprehensive 

analysis of existing regulatory policies and suggest 

strategies to account for policy gaps, inconsistencies, 

overlap and redundancies, as they relate to sustainable 

agricultural lands conservation in Alameda County.  

 

Subtask A: Continue (from Task 1) to identify and review 

regulations and policy documents relevant to agricultural 

lands conservation within Alameda County. 

Subtask B: Convene committees to discuss and address 

inconsistencies in policies relevant to agricultural lands 

conservation in Alameda County. 

Subtask C: Summarize existing policy, highlighting gaps, 

overlap, and redundancies.  

Subtask D: Draft summary of findings. 

Deliverables:  

• Final list of 

relevant regulations, 

policies, and related 

source material 

• First draft 

summary of findings 

 

Milestones: 

• Stakeholder 

Meetings 

(approximately 6: 

committees meet 

periodically, full 

Stakeholder group 

meets at beginning 

and culmination of 

mapping and 

planning steps) 

14 

months 

$79,222.63 

from grant 

 

$6,200.00 

from match 

Task 3. Create prioritization criteria to rank 

agricultural land parcels for preservation precedence. 

Research and gather current sources of information to 

develop ranking criteria needed to update inventories of 

Deliverables:  

• Ranking criteria 

to use in 

identification of 

3 months $10,207.28 

from grant 

291



 
 

 

Page 12 of 19 

(i) lands at risk of conversion from agricultural land use 

to more intensive GHG-emitting land-use practices, as 

well as of (ii) lands that are protected.  

 

Subtask A: For at-risk lands inventory, effort will 

concentrate on lands along urban growth boundaries, in 

unincorporated areas, in priority development areas 

within urban infill, and those of special environmental 

significance, e.g., areas of high carbon sequestration 

potential. 

Subtask B: For protected lands inventory, effort will 

concentrate on lands including Williamson Act 

acquisitions and other specified open-space lands within 

Alameda County, recording term of conservation 

agreement per parcel.  

Subtask C: Identify pertinent characteristics for ranking 

priority acquisitions of at-risk agricultural lands in 

proximity to urban growth boundaries and 

unincorporated areas of Alameda County.  

Subtask D: Identify pertinent characteristics for ranking 

priority siting of community gardens within infill 

development areas. 

agricultural land 

parcels for 

preservation 

(Subtask 4a), with 

description of 

metrics informing 

ranking protocol. 

• Ranking criteria 

to use in 

identification of 

potential locations 

for urban garden 

placement (Subtask 

4b), with description 

of metrics informing 

ranking protocol. 

$2,900.00 

from match 

Task 4. Create a draft map of relevant layers for land 

prioritization.  

Based on efforts in Task 3 and subtasks below, 

comprehensive priority draft maps will be developed. 

 

Subtask A: Identify existing layers of GIS data, create 

layers from other pertinent digitizable information, create 

draft map with layers of GIS data for at-risk agricultural 

lands in proximity to urban growth boundaries and 

unincorporated areas within Alameda County. 

Subtask B: Identify existing layers of GIS data, create 

layers from other pertinent digitizable information, create 

draft map with layers of GIS data for priority siting of 

urban agricultural/ community gardens within infill 

development areas. 

Deliverables: 

• First draft map 

of high-priority 

parcels for 

conservation 

acquisition of 

agricultural lands in 

proximity to city 

urban growth 

boundaries and 

unincorporated 

areas within 

Alameda County. 

• First draft map 

of optimal urban 

agricultural/ 

community garden 

locations within 

potential infill 

development areas 

of Alameda County.  

• Updated 

inventory of at-risk 

agricultural lands in 

Alameda County. 

• Updated 

 3 months $23,408.01 

from grant 

 

$2,000.00 

from match 

292



 
 

 

Page 13 of 19 

inventory of 

protected 

agricultural lands in 

Alameda County. 

Task 5. Community Outreach 

 

Sub-Task A: Plan, prepare for and conduct meetings with 

community groups to share ranking and incentive 

structures. 

Sub-Task B: Create a summary of the second round of 

feedback from community groups as a basis for 

recommendations. 

Subtask C: Create media (e.g., press releases and web 

articles) summarizing project progress. 

Deliverables:  

• Summary of 

community 

feedback from 

meeting, and 

ensuing 

recommendations. 

• Bring 

community 

concerns back to 

Stakeholder group. 

• Outreach 

materials. 

 

Milestones: 

• Community 

meetings (x2-3) 

3 months $23,287.82 

from grant 

$3,900.00 

from match 

Task 6. Completion of final maps 

Create and present final maps at Board of Supervisors 

Meetings. 

 

Subtask A: Create final priority parcel map of high-

priority parcels for conservation acquisition of 

agricultural lands in proximity to city urban growth 

boundaries and unincorporated areas within Alameda 

County. 

Subtask B: Create final priority parcel map of optimal 

urban agricultural community garden locations within 

potential infill development areas of Alameda County. 

Deliverables:  

• Final map of 

high-priority parcels 

for conservation 

acquisition of 

agricultural lands in 

proximity to city 

urban growth 

boundaries and 

unincorporated 

areas within 

Alameda County. 

• Final map of 

optimal urban 

agricultural/ 

community garden 

locations within 

potential infill 

development areas 

of Alameda County.  

 2 months $22,204.74 

from grant 

$1,000.00 

from match 

Task 7. Final Plan Development and Review 

 

Subtask A: Finalize summary of plan and policy 

recommendations. 

Subtask B: Present recommendations at three meetings: 

1) LAFCO Board of Directors 

Deliverables:  

• Final 

presentation of 

planning document 

and 

6 months $39.065.18 

from grant 

$3,800.00 

from match 

293



 
 

 

Page 14 of 19 

2) Board of Supervisors  

3) ACRCD Board of Directors 

Subtask C: Distribute final document to Stakeholders and 

other relevant State agencies. 

recommendations 

for implementation 

of new policies and/ 

or regulations. 

Task 8. Administration 

Grant administration (e.g., invoicing, invoice review, 

document signing) 

Deliverables: 

• Invoices 

• Signed contract 

documents 

24 

months 

$4,213.60 

from grant 

$2,000.00 

from match 

 

 
 

 

Budget Item 

 

Length of 

Task 

 

 

Weeks Per Month 

 

 

Hrs Per Month 

Units (if applicable) Rate (if applicable)* Program 

Reimbursement 

Request ($250K) 

 

Grantee Match 

($25K) 

 

Grand Total 

($275K) 

# hours $/ hour 

Task 1. 

Establishment of 

Stakeholder 

Group 

 

mos 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2022/23 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2022/2 

3 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2022/23 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2022/23 

   
LAFCO Chief 

Executive Officer 
4 0.10 0.10 0.00 4 4 0 12 4 0 $      75.00 $      75.00 $      75.00 $ - $       1,200.00 $         1,200.00 

ACRCD Chief 

Executive Officer 

4 1.00 1.00 0.00 40 40 0 120 40 0 
$      97.52 

$      97.52 $      97.52 $ 14,602.65 $       1,000.00 $       15,602.65 

ACRCD Resource 

Conservationist II 

 

4 

 

1.80 

 

2.00 

 

0.00 

 

72 

 

80 

 

0 

 

216 

 

80 

 

0 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$ 17,183.28 

 

$       1,000.00 

 

$       18,183.28 ACRCD Project 

Assistant 

4 1.80 2.00 0.00 72 80 0 216 80 0 
$      41.35 

$      41.35 $      41.35 $ 12,239.60 $ - $       12,239.60 

Presentation 

Materials, Printing, 

Postage, Other 

             
 

$ 4,350.00 

 

$ - 

 

$         4,350.00 Subtotal - - - - - - - 564 204 0 - - - $ 48,375.53 $       3,200.00 $       51,575.53 

Task 2. 

Stakeholder 

Planning Process 

 

mos 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2021/2 

2 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2022/23 

   

LAFCO Chief 

Executive Officer 

14 0.00 0.10 0.10 0 4 4 0 44 12 
$     75.00 

$      75.00 $      75.00 $ - $       4,200.00 $         4,200.00 

ACRCD Chief 

Executive Officer 

14 0.00 0.50 0.50 0 20 20 0 220 60 
$     97.52 

$      97.52 $      97.52 $ 27,304.63 $ - $       27,304.63 

ACRCD Resource 

Conservationist II 

 

14 

 

0.00 

 

1.00 

 

1.00 

 

0 

 

40 

 

40 

 

0 

 

440 

 

120 

 

$     61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$ 33,400.80 

 

$       1,000.00 

 

$       34,400.80 ACRCD Project 

Assistant 

14 0.00 0.80 1.00 0 32 40 0 352 120 
$      41.35 

$      41.35 $      41.35 $ 18,517.20 $       1,000.00 $       19,517.20 

Subtotal - - - - - - - 0 1056 312 - - - $ 79,222.63 $       6,200.00 $       85,422.63 

Task 3. Create Land 

Parcel Ranking 

Criteria 

 

mos 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2021/2 

2 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2022/23 

   
LAFCO Chief 

Executive Officer 
3 0.00 0.10 0.00 0 4 0 0 12 0 $     75.00 $      75.00 $      75.00 $ - $ 900.00 $ 900.00 

ACRCD Chief 

Executive Officer 

3 0.00 0.20 0.00 0 8 0 0 24 0 
$     97.52 

$      97.52 $      97.52 $ 2,340.40 $ - $         2,340.40 

ACRCD Resource 

Conservationist II 

 

3 

 

0.00 

 

0.80 

 

0.00 

 

0 

 

32 

 

0 

 

0 

 

96 

 

0 

 

$     61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$ 4,897.28 

 

$       1,000.00 

 

$         5,897.28 ACRCD Project 

Assistant 

3 0.00 0.80 0.00 0 32 0 0 96 0 
$      41.35 

$      41.35 $      41.35 $ 2,969.60 $       1,000.00 $         3,969.60 

Subtotal - - - - - - - 0 228 0 - - - $ 10,207.28 $       2,900.00 $       13,107.28 

Task 4. Draft 

Maps 

mos FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/2 

2 

FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2022/23 

   
ACRCD Chief 

Executive Officer 
3 0.00 0.23 0.00 0 9 0 0 27 0 $     97.52 $      97.52 $      97.52 $ 1,632.95 $       1,000.00 $         2,632.95 

ACRCD Resource 

Conservationist II 

 

3 

 

0.00 

 

0.23 

 

0.00 

 

0 

 

9 

 

0 

 

0 

 

27 

 

0 

 

$     61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$ 658.61 

 

$       1,000.00 

 

$         1,658.61 ACRCD Project 

Assistant 

3 0.00 0.23 0.00 0 9 0 0 27 0 
$      41.35 

$      41.35 $      41.35 $ 1,116.45 $ - $         1,116.45 

Subcontractor 3 0.00 0.83 0.00 0 33.33 0 0 100 0 $    200.00 $    200.00 $    200.00 $ 20,000.00 $ - $       20,000.00 

Subtotal - - - - - - - 0 181 0 - - - $ 23,408.01 $       2,000.00 $       25,408.01 

Task 5. 

Community 

Outreach 

 

mos 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

FY2021/2 

2 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2022/23 

   
LAFCO Chief 

Executive Officer 
3 0.00 0.10 0.10 0 4 4 0 8 4 $     75.00 $      75.00 $      75.00 $ - $ 900.00 $ 900.00 

ACRCD Chief 

Executive Officer 

3 0.00 0.80 0.85 0 32 34 0 64 34 
$     97.52 

$      97.52 $      97.52 $ 8,556.62 $       1,000.00 $         9,556.62 

ACRCD Resource 

Conservationist II 

 

3 

 

0.00 

 

1.00 

 

1.00 

 

0 

 

40 

 

40 

 

0 

 

80 

 

40 

 

$     61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$ 6,371.60 

 

$       1,000.00 

 

$         7,371.60 ACRCD Project 

Assistant 

3 0.00 0.80 0.80 0 32 32 0 64 32 
$      41.35 

$      41.35 $      41.35 $ 2,969.60 $       1,000.00 $         3,969.60 

Outreach Materials 

(e.g., Printing, 

Advertising, 

Postage, Other) 

             
 

 

$ 5,390.00 

 

 

$ - 

 

 

$         5,390.00 

Subtotal - - - - - - - 0 216 110 - - - $ 23,287.82 $       3,900.00 $       27,187.82 

Task 6. Final Maps mos FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/2 

2 

FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2022/23 

   
ACRCD Chief 

Executive Officer 
2 0.00 0.00 0.20 0 0 8 0 0 16 $     97.52 $      97.52 $      97.52 $ 560.26 $       1,000.00 $         1,560.26 

ACRCD Resource 

Conservationist II 

 

2 

 

0.00 

 

0.00 

 

0.20 

 

0 

 

0 

 

8 

 

0 

 

0 

 

16 

 

$     61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$ 982.88 

 

$ - 

 

$ 982.88 ACRCD Project 

Assistant 

2 0.00 0.00 0.20 0 0 8 0 0 16 
$      41.35 

$      41.35 $      41.35 $ 661.60 $ - $ 661.60 

Subcontractor 2 0.00 0.00 1.00 0 0 40 0 0 80 $    200.00 $    200.00 $    200.00 $ 16,000.00 $ - $       16,000.00 

Poster printing and 

Mounting of Maps, 

Other 
             

 

$ 4,000.00 

 

$ - 

 

$         4,000.00 Subtotal - - - - - - - 0 0 128 - - - $ 22,204.74 $       1,000.00 $       23,204.74 

294



 
 

 

Page 15 of 19 

Task 7. Final Plan 
mos FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/2 

2 

FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2022/23 

   
LAFCO Chief 

Executive Officer 
6 0.00 0.00 0.10 0 0 4 0 0 24 $     75.00 $      75.00 $      75.00 $ - $       1,800.00 $         1,800.00 

ACRCD Chief 

Executive Officer 

6 0.00 0.00 0.70 0 0 28 0 0 168 
$     97.52 

$      97.52 $      97.52 $ 16,382.78 $ - $       16,382.78 

ACRCD Resource 

Conservationist II 

 

6 

 

0.00 

 

0.00 

 

1.00 

 

0 

 

0 

 

40 

 

0 

 

0 

 

240 

 

$     61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$ 13,743.20 

 

$       1,000.00 

 

$       14,743.20 ACRCD Project 

Assistant 

6 0.00 0.00 0.80 0 0 32 0 0 192 
$      41.35 

$      41.35 $      41.35 $ 6,939.20 $       1,000.00 $         7,939.20 

Printing, 

Advertising, 

Postage, Other 
             

 

$ 2,000.00 

 

$ - 

 

$         2,000.00 Subtotal - - - - - - - 0 0 624 - - - $ 39,065.18 $       3,800.00 $       42,865.18 

Task 8. Admin mos FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/2 

2 

FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 

   
LAFCO Chief 

Executive Officer 
24 0.01875 0.0125 0.01875 0.75 0.5 0.75 2.25 6 6.75 $      75.00 $      75.00 $      75.00 $ - $       1,125.00 $         1,125.00 

ACRCD Chief 

Financial Officer 

24 0.05 0.025 0.0375 2 1 1.5 6 12 13.5 $      77.59 $      77.59 $      77.59 $ 2,308.41 $ 135.68 $         2,444.09 

ACRCD Chief 

Executive Officer 

24 0.0125 0.0125 0.0125 0.5 0.5 0.5 1.5 6 4.5 $      97.52 $      97.52 $      97.52 $ 1,170.20 $ - $         1,170.20 

ACRCD Resource 

Conservationist II 

 

24 

 

0.025 

 

0.025 

 

0.025 

 

1 

 

1 

 

1 

 

3 

 

12 

 

9 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$ 735.00 

 

$ 739.32 

 

$         1,474.32 Subtotal - - - - - - - 12.75 36 33.75 - - - $ 4,213.60 $       2,000.00 $         6,213.60 

Grand Total - - - - - - - 577 1921 1208 - - - $       249,984.80 $    25,000.00 $     274,984.80 

 

LAFCO will be responsible for administering the grant funds, invoices and attending four stakeholder 

workshop meetings and one advisory committee meeting. LAFCO will contribute 135 hours of work 

for the period of the contract agreement.  

295



Page 16 of 19 

Exhibit A-1 

The Grant Agreement 

Please refer to Attachment 1. 

296



 
 

 

Page 17 of 19 

EXHIBIT B – CONTRACT PAYMENT TERMS 

 

 

Professional fees include the design, preparation, client consultation and facilitation of the grant project 

described in the Scope of Work, as well as contractor’s own administrative costs and overhead. 

Professional fees will be billed on a monthly basis based on the staff hours and at the rates indicated in the 

scope of work and timeline. Fees are payable upon invoice following the completion of the work 

completed each month for each task. Fees may not exceed contract amount.  

 
ACRCD will submit monthly invoices to the LAFCO Executive Officer. Invoices shall be submitted in a form 

that conforms to the requirements of the Grant Agreement, and nonconforming invoices may be rejected by 

Alameda LAFCo.  Alameda LAFCO will then provide payment to ACRCD for those services rendered. The 

LAFCO Executive Officer will, in turn, submit those invoices to the Department of Conservation to seek 

repayment. In the event that the Department of Conservation denies an invoice and provides an opportunity for 

correction, Alameda LAFCo will notify ACRCD of the same and provide a reasonable amount of time for 

ACRCD to correct any deficiencies.  Alameda LAFCo will then re-submit the corrected invoice.  If, however, 

the Department of Conservation denies an invoice for which correction by ACRCD is not possible, or ACRCD 

fails to correct the deficiencies timely, Alameda LAFCO will subsequently submit an invoice to ACRCD to 

request a return of those funds and will not approve of any additional invoices until payment has been repaid to 

LAFCO.  Alameda LAFCO will create a separate account similar to a revolving fund to manage the grant 

funds. 

 

Alameda LAFCo’s obligation to pay for ACRCD’s work under this Agreement is contingent upon Alameda 

LAFCo’s ability to receive reimbursement for the cost of that work under the Grant Agreement.  Should the 

Grant Agreement be terminated or suspended by the Department of Conservation for any reason, Alameda 

LAFCo shall notify ACRCD of the same at which time ACRCD shall stop work.  Alameda LAFCo shall not be 

liable for any work performed by ACRCD subsequent to delivery of such a notice regardless of the conformity 

of that work to the terms of this Exhibit A, nor shall Alameda LAFCo be responsible for any costs associated 

with the work stoppage.  In the event of such a termination or suspension, the parties shall promptly meet and 

confer to resolve any outstanding invoices.  Alameda LAFCo shall use reasonable efforts to obtain from the 

Department of Conservation reimbursement for work performed prior to any termination or suspension of the 

Grant Agreement. 

 

 

 
 

 

Budget Item 

 

Length of 

Task 

 

 

Weeks Per Month 

 

 

Hrs Per Month 

Units (if applicable) Rate (if applicable)* Program 

Reimbursement 

Request ($250K) 

 

Grantee Match 

($25K) 

 

Grand Total 

($275K) 

# hours $/ hour 

Task 1. 

Establishment of 

Stakeholder 

Group 

 

mos 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2022/23 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2022/2 

3 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2022/23 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2022/23 

   
LAFCO Chief 

Executive Officer 
4 0.10 0.10 0.00 4 4 0 12 4 0 $      75.00 $      75.00 $      75.00 $ - $       1,200.00 $         1,200.00 

ACRCD Chief 

Executive Officer 

4 1.00 1.00 0.00 40 40 0 120 40 0 
$      97.52 

$      97.52 $      97.52 $ 14,602.65 $       1,000.00 $       15,602.65 

ACRCD Resource 

Conservationist II 

 

4 

 

1.80 

 

2.00 

 

0.00 

 

72 

 

80 

 

0 

 

216 

 

80 

 

0 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$ 17,183.28 

 

$       1,000.00 

 

$       18,183.28 ACRCD Project 

Assistant 

4 1.80 2.00 0.00 72 80 0 216 80 0 
$      41.35 

$      41.35 $      41.35 $ 12,239.60 $ - $       12,239.60 

Presentation 

Materials, Printing, 

Postage, Other 

             
 

$ 4,350.00 

 

$ - 

 

$         4,350.00 Subtotal - - - - - - - 564 204 0 - - - $ 48,375.53 $       3,200.00 $       51,575.53 

Task 2. 

Stakeholder 

Planning Process 

 

mos 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2021/2 

2 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2022/23 

   

LAFCO Chief 

Executive Officer 

14 0.00 0.10 0.10 0 4 4 0 44 12 
$     75.00 

$      75.00 $      75.00 $ - $       4,200.00 $         4,200.00 

ACRCD Chief 

Executive Officer 

14 0.00 0.50 0.50 0 20 20 0 220 60 
$     97.52 

$      97.52 $      97.52 $ 27,304.63 $ - $       27,304.63 

ACRCD Resource 

Conservationist II 

 

14 

 

0.00 

 

1.00 

 

1.00 

 

0 

 

40 

 

40 

 

0 

 

440 

 

120 

 

$     61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$ 33,400.80 

 

$       1,000.00 

 

$       34,400.80 

297



 
 

 

Page 18 of 19 

ACRCD Project 

Assistant 

14 0.00 0.80 1.00 0 32 40 0 352 120 
$      41.35 

$      41.35 $      41.35 $ 18,517.20 $       1,000.00 $       19,517.20 

Subtotal - - - - - - - 0 1056 312 - - - $ 79,222.63 $       6,200.00 $       85,422.63 

Task 3. Create Land 

Parcel Ranking 

Criteria 

 

mos 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2021/2 

2 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2022/23 

   
LAFCO Chief 

Executive Officer 
3 0.00 0.10 0.00 0 4 0 0 12 0 $     75.00 $      75.00 $      75.00 $ - $ 900.00 $ 900.00 

ACRCD Chief 

Executive Officer 

3 0.00 0.20 0.00 0 8 0 0 24 0 
$     97.52 

$      97.52 $      97.52 $ 2,340.40 $ - $         2,340.40 

ACRCD Resource 

Conservationist II 

 

3 

 

0.00 

 

0.80 

 

0.00 

 

0 

 

32 

 

0 

 

0 

 

96 

 

0 

 

$     61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$ 4,897.28 

 

$       1,000.00 

 

$         5,897.28 ACRCD Project 

Assistant 

3 0.00 0.80 0.00 0 32 0 0 96 0 
$      41.35 

$      41.35 $      41.35 $ 2,969.60 $       1,000.00 $         3,969.60 

Subtotal - - - - - - - 0 228 0 - - - $ 10,207.28 $       2,900.00 $       13,107.28 

Task 4. Draft 

Maps 

mos FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/2 

2 

FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2022/23 

   
ACRCD Chief 

Executive Officer 
3 0.00 0.23 0.00 0 9 0 0 27 0 $     97.52 $      97.52 $      97.52 $ 1,632.95 $       1,000.00 $         2,632.95 

ACRCD Resource 

Conservationist II 

 

3 

 

0.00 

 

0.23 

 

0.00 

 

0 

 

9 

 

0 

 

0 

 

27 

 

0 

 

$     61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$ 658.61 

 

$       1,000.00 

 

$         1,658.61 ACRCD Project 

Assistant 

3 0.00 0.23 0.00 0 9 0 0 27 0 
$      41.35 

$      41.35 $      41.35 $ 1,116.45 $ - $         1,116.45 

Subcontractor 3 0.00 0.83 0.00 0 33.33 0 0 100 0 $    200.00 $    200.00 $    200.00 $ 20,000.00 $ - $       20,000.00 

Subtotal - - - - - - - 0 181 0 - - - $ 23,408.01 $       2,000.00 $       25,408.01 

Task 5. 

Community 

Outreach 

 

mos 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

FY2021/2 

2 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2020/21 

 

FY2021/22 

 

FY2022/23 

   
LAFCO Chief 

Executive Officer 
3 0.00 0.10 0.10 0 4 4 0 8 4 $     75.00 $      75.00 $      75.00 $ - $ 900.00 $ 900.00 

ACRCD Chief 

Executive Officer 

3 0.00 0.80 0.85 0 32 34 0 64 34 
$     97.52 

$      97.52 $      97.52 $ 8,556.62 $       1,000.00 $         9,556.62 

ACRCD Resource 

Conservationist II 

 

3 

 

0.00 

 

1.00 

 

1.00 

 

0 

 

40 

 

40 

 

0 

 

80 

 

40 

 

$     61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$ 6,371.60 

 

$       1,000.00 

 

$         7,371.60 ACRCD Project 

Assistant 

3 0.00 0.80 0.80 0 32 32 0 64 32 
$      41.35 

$      41.35 $      41.35 $ 2,969.60 $       1,000.00 $         3,969.60 

Outreach Materials 

(e.g., Printing, 

Advertising, 

Postage, Other) 

             
 

 

$ 5,390.00 

 

 

$ - 

 

 

$         5,390.00 

Subtotal - - - - - - - 0 216 110 - - - $ 23,287.82 $       3,900.00 $       27,187.82 

Task 6. Final Maps mos FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/2 

2 

FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2022/23 

   
ACRCD Chief 

Executive Officer 
2 0.00 0.00 0.20 0 0 8 0 0 16 $     97.52 $      97.52 $      97.52 $ 560.26 $       1,000.00 $         1,560.26 

ACRCD Resource 

Conservationist II 

 

2 

 

0.00 

 

0.00 

 

0.20 

 

0 

 

0 

 

8 

 

0 

 

0 

 

16 

 

$     61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$ 982.88 

 

$ - 

 

$ 982.88 ACRCD Project 

Assistant 

2 0.00 0.00 0.20 0 0 8 0 0 16 
$      41.35 

$      41.35 $      41.35 $ 661.60 $ - $ 661.60 

Subcontractor 2 0.00 0.00 1.00 0 0 40 0 0 80 $    200.00 $    200.00 $    200.00 $ 16,000.00 $ - $       16,000.00 

Poster printing and 

Mounting of Maps, 

Other 
             

 

$ 4,000.00 

 

$ - 

 

$         4,000.00 Subtotal - - - - - - - 0 0 128 - - - $ 22,204.74 $       1,000.00 $       23,204.74 

Task 7. Final Plan 
mos FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/2 

2 

FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2022/23 

   
LAFCO Chief 

Executive Officer 
6 0.00 0.00 0.10 0 0 4 0 0 24 $     75.00 $      75.00 $      75.00 $ - $       1,800.00 $         1,800.00 

ACRCD Chief 

Executive Officer 

6 0.00 0.00 0.70 0 0 28 0 0 168 
$     97.52 

$      97.52 $      97.52 $ 16,382.78 $ - $       16,382.78 

ACRCD Resource 

Conservationist II 

 

6 

 

0.00 

 

0.00 

 

1.00 

 

0 

 

0 

 

40 

 

0 

 

0 

 

240 

 

$     61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$ 13,743.20 

 

$       1,000.00 

 

$       14,743.20 ACRCD Project 

Assistant 

6 0.00 0.00 0.80 0 0 32 0 0 192 
$      41.35 

$      41.35 $      41.35 $ 6,939.20 $       1,000.00 $         7,939.20 

Printing, 

Advertising, 

Postage, Other 
             

 

$ 2,000.00 

 

$ - 

 

$         2,000.00 Subtotal - - - - - - - 0 0 624 - - - $ 39,065.18 $       3,800.00 $       42,865.18 

Task 8. Admin mos FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/2 

2 

FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2021/22 FY2021/22 

   
LAFCO Chief 

Executive Officer 
24 0.01875 0.0125 0.01875 0.75 0.5 0.75 2.25 6 6.75 $      75.00 $      75.00 $      75.00 $ - $       1,125.00 $         1,125.00 

ACRCD Chief 

Financial Officer 

24 0.05 0.025 0.0375 2 1 1.5 6 12 13.5 $      77.59 $      77.59 $      77.59 $ 2,308.41 $ 135.68 $         2,444.09 

ACRCD Chief 

Executive Officer 

24 0.0125 0.0125 0.0125 0.5 0.5 0.5 1.5 6 4.5 $      97.52 $      97.52 $      97.52 $ 1,170.20 $ - $         1,170.20 

ACRCD Resource 

Conservationist II 

 

24 

 

0.025 

 

0.025 

 

0.025 

 

1 

 

1 

 

1 

 

3 

 

12 

 

9 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$      61.43 

 

$ 735.00 

 

$ 739.32 

 

$         1,474.32 Subtotal - - - - - - - 12.75 36 33.75 - - - $ 4,213.60 $       2,000.00 $         6,213.60 

Grand Total - - - - - - - 577 1921 1208 - - - $       249,984.80 $    25,000.00 $     274,984.80 

 

 

 

 

TOTAL CONTRACT NOT TO EXCEED $249,988 

298



 
 

 

Page 19 of 19 

EXHIBIT C - MINIMUM INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
Without limiting any other obligation or liability under this Agreement, the Contractor, at its sole cost and expense, shall secure and keep in force 
during the entire term of the Agreement or longer, as may be specified below, the following minimum insurance coverage, limits and 
endorsements: 

TYPE OF INSURANCE COVERAGES MINIMUM LIMITS 

A Commercial General Liability 
Premises Liability; Products and Completed Operations; Contractual 
Liability; Personal Injury and Advertising Liability 

$1,000,000 per occurrence (CSL) 
Bodily Injury and Property Damage 

B Commercial or Business Automobile Liability 
All owned vehicles, hired or leased vehicles, non-owned, borrowed 
and permissive uses. Personal Automobile Liability is acceptable for 
individual contractors with no transportation or hauling related 
activities 

$1,000,000 per occurrence (CSL) 
Any Auto 
Bodily Injury and Property Damage 

C Workers’ Compensation (WC) and Employers Liability (EL) 
Required for all contractors with employees 

WC: Statutory Limits 
EL: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease 

D Endorsements and Conditions: 
 

1.    ADDITIONAL INSURED: All insurance required above with the exception of Commercial or Business Automobile Liability, 
Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability, shall be endorsed to name as additional insured: the Alameda Local Agency 
Formation Commission (LAFCO), the individual members thereof, and all Alameda LAFCO officers, agents, employees, 
volunteers, and representatives. The Additional Insured endorsement shall be at least as broad as ISO Form Number CG 20 38 
04 13. 

2.    DURATION OF COVERAGE: All required insurance shall be maintained during the entire term of the Agreement. In addition, 
Insurance policies and coverage(s) written on a claims-made basis shall be maintained during the entire term of the Agreement 
and until 3 years following the later of termination of the Agreement and acceptance of all work provided under the Agreement, 
with the retroactive date of said insurance (as may be applicable) concurrent with the commencement of activities pursuant to 
this Agreement. 

3.    REDUCTION OR LIMIT OF OBLIGATION: All insurance policies, including excess and umbrella insurance policies, shall include 
an endorsement and be primary and non-contributory and will not seek contribution from any other insurance (or self- insurance) 
available to Alameda LAFCO. The primary and non-contributory endorsement shall be at least as broad as ISO Form 20 01 
04 13. Pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement insurance effected or procured by the Contractor shall not reduce or limit 
Contractor’s contractual obligation to indemnify and defend the Indemnified Parties. 

4.    INSURER FINANCIAL RATING: Insurance shall be maintained through an insurer with a A.M. Best Rating of no less than A:VII 
or equivalent, shall be admitted to the State of California unless otherwise waived by Risk Management, and with deductible 
amounts acceptable to Alameda LAFCO. Acceptance of Contractor’s insurance by Alameda LAFCO shall not relieve or decrease 
the liability of Contractor hereunder. Any deductible or self-insured retention amount or other similar obligation under the policies 
shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor. 

5.    SUBCONTRACTORS: Contractor shall include all subcontractors as an insured (covered party) under its policies or shall verify 
that the subcontractor, under its own policies and endorsements, has complied with the insurance requirements in this 
Agreement, including this Exhibit. The additional Insured endorsement shall be at least as broad as ISO Form Number CG 20 
38 04 13. 

6.    JOINT VENTURES: If Contractor is an association, partnership or other joint business venture, required insurance shall be 
provided by one of the following methods: 
–    Separate insurance policies issued for each individual entity, with each entity included as a “Named Insured” (covered 

party), or at minimum named as an “Additional Insured” on the other’s policies. Coverage shall be at least as broad as in the 
ISO Forms named above. 

–    Joint insurance program with the association, partnership or other joint business venture included as a “Named Insured”. 
7.    CANCELLATION OF INSURANCE: All insurance shall be required to provide thirty (30) days advance written notice to  

Alameda LAFCO of cancellation. 

8.    CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE: Before commencing operations under this Agreement, Contractor shall provide Certificate(s) 
of Insurance and applicable insurance endorsements, in form and satisfactory to Alameda LAFCO, evidencing that all required 
insurance coverage is in effect. Alameda LAFCO reserves the rights to require the Contractor to provide complete, certified 
copies of all required insurance policies.  The required certificate(s) and endorsements must be sent as set forth in the Notices 
provision. 

Certificate C-1            Form 2001-1 (Rev. 08/01/2017) 299



Gavin Newsom, Governor 

David Shabazian, Director 

State of California Natural Resources Agency | Department of Conservation 

801 K Street, MS 14-15, Sacramento, CA 95814 

conservation.ca.gov | T: (916) 324-0850 | F: (916) 327-3430 

January 13, 2021 

Rachel Jones 

Alameda LAFCO 

Via Email to: rachel.jones@acgov.org 

Re: Planning Grant Application for Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program 

Funding   

Dear Ms. Jones: 

Thank you for your planning grant application to the Sustainable Agricultural Lands 

Program solicitation.  The Department of Conservation received over $2.4 million in 

planning grant applications.  We are pleased to have received so many quality 

proposals demonstrating a strong commitment to local and regional planning efforts 

that protect and restore agricultural lands at risk of conversion to other uses.   

It is my pleasure to inform you that your proposal has been awarded $249,988.32 in 

project funding.  

Department of Conservation staff will work with you to complete the draft grant 

agreement.  Staff will also work with you to update the budget, work plan, or other 

elements of your grant proposal as appropriate. The grant agreement must be fully 

executed before expenses can be incurred.   

We look forward to working with you and wish you success in implementing your work 

plan. Should you have any questions, please contact Melinda Kelley, grant manager, 

via email at melinda.kelley@conservation.ca.gov. 

Thank you for your interest in our program! 

Sincerely, 

Keali`i Bright 

Director, Division of Land Resource Protection 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8A6DDEB3-FD5A-43D2-BE7C-46EC29AA3074

Attachment 4

300



     
  

 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 
 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110 
Hayward, California 94544 
T:  510.670.6267 
www.acgov.org/lafco 
 

Bob Woerner, Regular 
City of Livermore 
 
Karla Brown, Regular 
City of Pleasanton  
 
Melissa Hernandez, Alt.  
City Dublin 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 
Ayn Wieskamp, Regular  
East Bay Regional Park Dsitrict 
 
Geogean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Regular 
Public Member  
 
Vacant Seat, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

David Haubert, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Wilma Chan, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

March 11, 2021   

Item No. 11 
TO:  Alameda  Commissioners  
   

FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Adoption of Proposed Budget and Workplan for FY 2021-2022  
 

 

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will consider adopting a draft budget 

and workplan for fiscal year 2021-2022 in anticipation of taking final action at its next regular meeting. 

Proposed budget expenses total $655,335 and represents a decrease of $1,557 or 0.2% from the current 

fiscal year. The decrease is marked by savings in the Service and Supplies Unit that contribtues to a 

reduction in overheard costs such as mileage and travel, staff workshops, and a few county services. 

Proposed budget revenues are matched to expenses with a slight decrease in agency contributions by 

$6,057 or 1.4% in step with a fund balance offset of $185,000 applied in the same manner as the 

previous fiscal year with a $5,000 increase in total amount. The draft budget and fund balance offset 

would produce an estimated change in the fund balance from $882,401 to $697,401. Adoption will 

precede a formal public review and comment period, and conclude with final action taken at the next 

regular meeting scheduled for May 13, 2021.  

 

Background 

 

Alameda LAFCO is responsible under State law to adopt a proposed budget by May 1st and a final 

budget by June 15th. A mandatory review by all local funding agencies is required between the two 

adoption periods. Alameda LAFCO’s (“Commission”) annual operating costs are primarily funded by 

proceeds collected from 29 local public agencies operating within Alameda County. State law specifies 

the Commission’s operating costs shall be divided in one-third increments between the (a) County of 

Alameda, (b) 14 cities, and (c) 15 independent special districts with the latter two categories 

apportioned based on total revenues as provided in the most recent annual report published by the State 

Controller’s Office. A relatively small portion, typically representing less than one-tenth of total 

revenues, is also funded from application fees and interest earnings.  

 

Adopted 2020-2021 Budget 

 

The Commission’s adopted final budget for fiscal year 2020-2021 totals $656,892. This amount 

represents the total approved operating expenditures divided between three active expenses units: 

salaries and benefits; services and supplies; and internal service charges. A matching revenue total was 

also budgeted to provide an operating net of $0 with the purposeful transfer of $180,000 from reserves. 

Budgeted revenues are divided between three active units: agency contributions, application fees; and 

interest earnings. The total unaudited fund balance as of July 1, 2020 was $788,976.  

301



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 11 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e  

 

 

              
              

Budgeted Expenses    Budgeted Revenues   
Budgeted Year End 
Balance   Fund Balance 

FY 20-21   FY 20-21   FY 20-21   FY 20-21 

          
$656,892    $656,892   $0    $788,976  

 

 

Discussion 

 

This item is for the Commission to consider in adopting a proposed (a) operating budget and (b) 

workplan for the upcoming fiscal year. Adoption of these documents would immediately precede a 

formal public review and comment period, including providing copies of the proposed budget to the 

29 local funding agencies, with final actions scheduled for the Commission’s May 13th regular meeting. 

A summary of the proposed budget and accompanying work plan follows.  

 

Proposed Operating Budget for FY 2021-2022 

 
The proposed operating budget developed by the Executive Officer sets operating expenses at 

$655,335; a net decrease of $1,557 or 0.2% from the current fiscal year. The operating expenses total 

divided between labor and non-labor costs are at an 65% to 35% split. Proposed operating revenues 

match operating expenses and is covered by drawing down reserves consistent with the practice to help 

offset and phase sizable increases to agency contributions. The net effect would be a decrease in 

contributions of $6,057 or 1.4% from $439,392 to $433,335. 

 

 

63% 65%

33% 27%

4% 8%

 200,000

 250,000

 300,000

 350,000

 400,000

 450,000

 500,000

 550,000

 600,000

 650,000

2020 -2021 2021 -2022

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and Benefits  Services and Supplies  Internal Service Charges

302



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 11 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

3 | P a g e  

 

Operating Expenses 

 
It is proposed the Salaries and Benefits Unit will increase by $16,818 or 4.7% over the next fiscal 

year from $357,157 to $373,975. The unit covers labor costs tied to staffing 2.0 full-time employees: 

Executive Officer and Commission Clerk. Notable adjustment proposed may be reviewed below. 

 

▪ Assumes a 2.0% cost-of-living adjustment in regular salaries with the County of Alameda’s 
contract with unrepresented employees for 2021-2022.  
 

▪ Assumes the position of a full-time Clerk position filled at an annual salary of $81,254.   

 

It is proposed the Services and Supplies Unit will decrease by 17,052 or 9.1% over the next fiscal 

year from $186,662 to $169,610. The unit provides for direct support services necessary to operate 

Alameda LAFCO. Notable adjustment proposed may be reviewed below. 

 
▪ Reduces $2,000 in the copier services account; a difference of 66.7% over the next fiscal year. 

The decrease is based on actuals of the current fiscal year.   
 

▪ Reduces $4,500 in the mapping services account to decrease the total line item from $5,000 to 
$500; a difference of 90% over the next fiscal year. The decrease is based on the reduction of 
mapping services required from the County Surveyor as a result of LAFCO’s new GIS mapping 
system.  
 

▪ Reduces $5,000 in the legal services account to decrease the total line item from $25,000 to 
$20,000; a difference of 20% over the next fiscal year. The reduction is an estimate based on 
the recent demands provided by the Office of County Counsel. 
 

▪ Subtracts $2,500 in the training services account for conferences and workshops to decrease 
the total line item from $5,000 to $2,500; a difference of 50% over the next fiscal year. The 
decrease responds to the cancellation of CALAFCO’s Annual Conference and the increase of 
remote workshops due to the COVID-19 pandemic.  

 
It is proposed the Internal Service Charges Unit will decrease by $1,323 or 2.1% over the next fiscal 

year from $63,073 to $61,750. The unit provides for indirect support services necessary to operate 

Alameda LAFCO. Notable adjustment proposed may be reviewed below. 

 

▪ Subtracts $1,503 from the information technology services account to decrease the total line 

item from $27,373 to $25,870 a difference of 5.5% over the next fiscal year. The decrease is 

attributed to LAFCO relying more on the Community Development Agency for utilities and 

equipment uses.   

 

 

 

303



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 11 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

4 | P a g e

Operating Revenues 

It is proposed the Intergovernmental Unit will decrease by $1,557 or 0.2% over the next fiscal year 

from $656,892 to $655,335. The unit provides payments received from the 29 local government 

agencies responsible under State law for funding Alameda LAFCO with apportionments divided in 

three equal shares among the County of Alameda, 14 cities and 15 independent special districts. Actual 

invoice amounts for cities and special districts would be determined by the County Auditor’s Office 

consistent with the allocation formula outlined under Government Code Section 56383 and based on 

local revenue tallies.  

It is proposed the Service Charge Unit remain as is at $30,000. This unit covers payments received 

from outside applicants to process change of organizations (annexations, detachments, formations, 

etc.), outside service extensions, and sphere of influence amendments. 

It is proposed the Interest Earnings Unit will decrease by $500 from $7,500 to $7,000 over the next 

fiscal year. This reflects anticipated changes in interest earnings consistent with recent quarters.  

Proposed Work Plan for FY 2021-2022 

The proposed work plan draws on a review of Alameda LAFCO’s needs and goals by the Executive 

Officer and ahead of receiving input and direction from the Commission. It outlines 20 specific projects 

divided between statutory (legislative directives) and administrative (discretionary) activities. The 

projects are listed in sequence by assigned priority between high, moderate, and low. The majority of 

the projects are rollover from this current fiscal year with several additional items. A summary of 

notable high priority projects follows. 

General MSR on Fire Protection and Emergency Medical Services 

The project is being continued from the current fiscal year due to delays from the completion of the 

General MSR on Water, Wastewater and Stormwater services. The project involves a countywide 

study of fire protection and emergency services with a request-for-proposals (RFP) issued for 

professional consulting services to conduct the study.   

Policy Review on Agricultural Protection and Out of Area Service Agreements 

The project is being continued from the current fiscal year. This item aims to review existing policies 

relative to practices and trends, and determine whether changes are appropriate to better reflect current 

preferences. Alameda LAFCO being recently awarded with the Sustainable Agricultural Lands and 

Conservation Grant by the Department of Conservation and in partnership with the Alameda County 

Resource Conservation District should be able to update its existing policies by creating a stakeholders 

group and depository of existing agricultural practices and polices within the County. 

304



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 11 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

5 | P a g e  

 

LAFCO Study on Measure D 

The Commission will review how Measure D has impacted agricultural and open space lands and its 

surrounding community. The report will examine the economic and open space needs of the area and 

how Measure D has supported or constrained the delivery of efficient and effective services.    

 

LAFCO Review on South Livermore Valley Area Specific Plan 

In 1987, the County of Alameda in conjunction with the cities of Livermore and Pleasanton created 

the South Livermore Valley Area Plan providing land use policies aimed at preserving existing 

vineyards and wineries to enhance the recognition and image of the area as an important premium 

wine-producing region and create incentives for investment and expansion of vineyards and other 

cultivated agriculture. The plan was approved by the County and City of Livermore in 1993, and 

Alameda LAFCO proposes to review and examine and provide any recommendations to the current 

growth management needs of the region. 

 
Conclusion 

 
The proposed operating budget and work plan affirmatively responds to the feedback provided by the 

Commission along with the functional needs in meeting the agency’s existing and expanding duties 

under State law. This includes advancing the Commission’s outreach and educational opportunities 

throughout the community and region, conducting municipal service reviews to inform spheres of 

influence updates, and creating stakeholder groups to determine growth management policies. The 

principal difference in the proposed budget is largely tied to the adjustments made in salaries and 

benefits and services and supplies units to account for the modification of staffing levels for the 

Commission Clerk position and the reduction in overhead costs.  

 

Alternatives for Action  

 

The following alternatives are available to the Commission:  
 

Alternative One (Recommended):  
Adopt the attached resolution approving the proposed budget and work plan for 2021-2022 with any 
desired changes; 
 
Direct the Executive Officer to circulate the proposed budget for 2021-2022 for review and comment 
by the funding agencies and general public; and 
 
Direct staff to return with a final budget for 2021-2022 for adoption as part of a noticed public 

hearing on May 13, 2021.  
 
Alternative Two:  
Continue consideration of the item to a special meeting scheduled no later than the legislative 
deadline of May 1, 2021 and provide direction to staff with respect to any additional information 
requests.  
 

305



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 11 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

6 | P a g e  

 

Recommendation 

 

It is recommended the Commission proceed with Alternative Action One.  
 

Procedures for Consideration 

 

This item has been placed on the agenda for action as part of a noticed public hearing. The following 
procedures are recommended for consideration.  
 

1) Receive a verbal report from staff; 
2) Invite questions from the Commission; 
3) Open the public hearing and invite comments from audience (mandatory); and  
4) Close the public hearing, discuss item, and consider recommendation. 

 
Respectfully,  

 
Rachel Jones 
Executive Officer 

  

 
Attachments: 
1. Draft Resolution Adopting the Proposed Budget and Work Plan for FY 2021-2022 
2. Proposed Budget for FY 2021-2022 

3. Proposed Work Plan for FY 2021-2022 

 

306



ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION OF THE 

ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

ADOPTING A PROPOSED WORK PLAN AND BUDGET  

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 

WHEREAS, the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 

requires the Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (“Commission”) to perform certain 

regulatory and planning duties for purposes of facilitating efficient and accountable local 

government; and  

WHEREAS, the Commission is required to adopt proposed and final budgets each year by 

May 1st and June 15th, respectively; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission’s Executive Officer prepared a written report outlining 

recommendations with respect to anticipated work activities and budgetary needs in 2021-2022; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Commission has heard and fully considered all evidence on a proposed work 

plan and budget for 2021-2022 presented at a public hearing held on March 11, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, the adoption of a work plan and budget are not projects under the California 

Environmental Quality Act;  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COMMISSION DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE 

AND ORDER as follows:  

1. The proposed operating budget for 2021-2022 shown as Exhibit A is APPROVED.

2. The proposed work plan for 2021-2022 shown as Exhibit B is APPROVED

3. As allowed under Government Code 56107, the Commission authorizes the Executive

Officer to make non-substantive corrections to this resolution to address any technical

defect, error, irregularity, or omission.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission on

March 11, 2021 by the following vote: 

AYES:  

NOES: 

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT: 

Attachment 1

307



 

 

APPROVED:      ATTEST: 

 

 

 

__________________     __________________  

Sblend Sblendorio      Rachel Jones 

Chair       Executive Officer 

 

 

 

APPROVED TO FORM:       

 

 

 

__________________       

Andrew Massey      

Legal Counsel        

 

308



z

Expense Ledger FY2018-2019 FY2019-2020 FY2020-2021

Adopted Actuals Adopted Actuals Adopted Projected Proposed

Salary and Benefit Costs 

Account Description 
60001 Staff Salaries 321,692 263,373 308,307 263,373 234,254 163,254 250,564 16,310 7.0%
- Employee Benefits and Retirement (ACERA) 149,961 149,961 175,275 149,961 122,903 70,903 123,411 508 0.4%

471,653 413,334                483,581 324,575               357,157 234,157                373,975 16,818 4.7%

Service and Supplies

Account Description 

- Intern 1,600 0 1,600 0 1,600 - 0                      (1,600.00)                             -

610077 Postage 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 500 (500.00) -50.0%

610141 Copier 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 1,000 (2,000.00)             -66.7%

610191 Pier Diems 7,700 7,700 7,800 7,800 8,000 6,000 8,500 500.00 6.3%

610211 Mileage/Travel 200 2,628 1,300 1,300 1,300 - 500 (800.00) -61.5%

610461 Training (Conferences and Workshops) 20,000 20,000 13,000 6,000 5,000 - 2,500 (2,500.00)             -50.0%

610241 Records Retention 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 300 350 (650.00) -65.0%

610261 Consultants 96,000 90,000 90,000 90,000 96,000 78,000 100,000 4,000.00              4.2%

610261 Mapping - County 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 - 500 (4,500.00)             -90.0%

610261 Planning Services 25,000 5,000 5,000 6,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 - 0.0%

610261 Legal Services 40,000 40,000 30,000 21,775 25,000 21,775 20,000 (5,000.00)             -20.0%

610311 CAO/CDA - County - Services 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 1,000 2,000 1,000 - 0.0%

610312 Audit Services 10,000 7,500 7,700 10,000 10,000 - 10,000 - 0.0%

610351 Memberships 9,000 9,026 10,476 10,476 10,762 10,662 10,760 (2.00) 0.0%

610421 Public Notices 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 2,000 3,000 (2,000.00)             -40.0%

610441 Assessor - County - Services 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 - 500 (2,000.00)             -80.0%

610461 Special Departmental 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 500 1,500 - 0.0%

620041 Office Supplies 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 1,000 4,000 - 0.0%

243,500 215,854                200,876 187,351                186,662 131,237                169,610 (17,052)               -9.1%

Internal Service Charges

Account Description 

630051 Office Lease/Rent 3,200 3,200 25,000 3,200 32,500 32,500 32,500 - 0.0%

630021 Communication Services 3,878 3,878 3,950 3,950 100 100 100 - 0.0%

630061 Information Technology 21,578 23,370 27,373 27,373 27,373 27,373 25,870 (1,503) -5.5%

630081 Risk Management 3,034 3,034 3,100 3,100 3,100 3,100 3,280 180 5.8%
31,690 37,482 59,423 37,482 63,073 63,073 61,750 (1,323) -2.1%

Contingencies 50,000 - 50,000 - 50,000 - 50,000 - 0.0%

Account Description 

- Operating Reserve - - - - - - - - - 
- - - - - - - - - 

EXPENSE TOTALS 796,843 666,670               793,880 549,408               656,892 428,467               655,335 (1,557) -0.2%

Difference

FY2021-2022

ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISION
Regional Service Planning | Subdivision of the State of California 

Attachment 2 / Exhibit A

309



Revenue Ledger FY2018-2019 FY2019-2020 FY2020-2021

Adopted Astuals Adopted Actuals Adopted Projected Proposed

Intergovernmental 

Account Description

- Agency Contributions 

County of Alameda 196,948 196,948 192,127 192,127 146,464 146,464 144,445 (2,019) -1.4%

     Cities 196,948 196,948 192,127 192,127 146,464 146,464 144,445 (2,019) -1.4%
     Special Districts 196,948 196,948 192,127 192,127 146,464 146,464 144,445 (2,019) -1.4%

590,844 590,844               576,380 576,380               439,392 439,392               433,335 (6,057)                -1.4%

Service Charges

- Application Fees 30,000 10,000 30,000 25,000 30,000 25,000 30,000 - 0.0%

Investments

- Interest - 11,531 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,000 (500) -6.7%

Fund Balance Offset 176,000 176,000                180,000 180,000                180,000 - 185,000 5,000 2.8%

REVENUE TOTALS 796,844 788,375               793,880 788,880               656,892 471,892                655,335 (1,557) -0.2%

OPERATING NET - 246,268 - 239,472 - 43,425 - - -

UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 595,309 788,976 882,401 697,401

   As of June 30th

Difference

FY2021-2022

310



Priority Urgency Type Status Project Key Issues

1 High Statutory Rollover

2 High Administrative Rollover

3 High Statutory New

4 High Statutory New

5 High Statutory New

6 High Statutory New

7 High Administrative Rollover

8 Moderate Administrative New

9 Moderate Administrative Rollover

10 Moderate Administrative Rollver

11 Moderate Administrative Rollover

12 Moderate Administrative Rollover

13 Moderate Statutory New

14 Low Administrative Rollover

15 Low Statutory Rollover

16 Low Administrative Rollover

17 Low Administrative Rollover

18 Low Administrative Rollover

Implement Planning Functions; Update SOIs of Local Government Agencies; Cities MSR

Special Report on Service Delivery Feasability

Communicate LAFCO's Mission and Goals to the Community

LAFCO Annual Report on Status of County
Evaluate LAFCO's Mission and Goals Relative to Local Conditions; Identify Strategies to 
Achieve Shared Objectives 

Host Alameda County Special District Association Meeting

Informational Report on Remen Tract

Sphere Update for City of Pleasanton

SALC Grant Award Begin Two-Year Process on Grant Project

ALAMEDA LAFCO WORKPLAN | 2021-2022

Prepare Informational Report on JPAs

General MSR on Fire Protection and Emergency Services

Policy Review on Agricultural Protection and Out of Area 
Service Agreements

Measure D Study

South Livermore Valley Area Specific Plan

Community Services Municipal Service Review

Alameda County Resource Conservation District Muncipal 
Service Review

2018-2021 Audits

Establish LAFCO's Role in Housing

Prepare Informational Report on Unincorporated Islands

Update Application Packet and Mapping Requirements

LAFCO Presentations

Post Enactment of SB 1266; Enhance Repository on Local Government Services

LAFCO Agency Logo Establish New Agency Logo for Branding (Website, Publications, etc.)

Introductory Overview of LAFCO's Duties and Responsibilities to Boards, Councils, Community 
Groups

Second MSR on Fire and Emergency Services sine 2006 | Address Shared Opportunities 

Periodical review of existing policies relative to practices and trends, and determine whether 
changes are appropriate to better reflect current preferences

Review Impacts on Measure D and Provide Recommendations

Provide a LAFCO Update on Plan and Review Current Trends

Service Specific MSR | Last MSR completed in 2013

MSR on resource conservation in Alameda County 

Verify Fund Balance; Perform Regular Audits

Work  with stakeholders in determining LAFCO's role in promoting equitable housing

Map all Unincorporated Islands and Examine Island Annexation Implementation Issues in 
Alameda County

Current Application Dated; Make User Friendly

Attachment 3 / Exhibit B

311



19 Low Administrative Rollover

20 Low Administrative New Social Media Expand Alameda LAFCO's Social Media Presence 

Local Agency Directory
User-Friendly Publication Identifying and Summarizing Local Government Agencies and 
Services in Alameda County

312



     
  

 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 
 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110 
Hayward, California 94544 
T:  510.670.6267 
www.acgov.org/lafco 
 

Bob Woerner, Regular 
City of Livermore 
 
Karla Brown, Regular 
City of Pleasanton  
 
Melissa Hernandez, Alt.  
City of Dublin 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 
Ayn Wieskamp, Regular  
East Bay Regional Park Dsitrict 
 
Geogean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Regular 
Public Member  
 
Vacant Seat, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

David Haubert, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Wilma Chan, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

March 11, 2021   

Item No. 12 

TO:  Alameda  Commissioners  
   

FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: San Diego LAFCO’s Legislative Initiative to Amend Government Code Section 

56133 (e) 
 

 

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will consider preliminary support for 

San Diego LAFCO’s legislative initiative to clarify that LAFCOs must determine whether out of area 

service agreements (OASAs) are exempt from LAFCO approval under Government Code Section 

56133(e). Staff recommends that the Commission give its preliminary support, pending a review of 

the final bill language. Once the final bill language is received, staff will return the item at a future 

meeting for Commission consideration.  

 

Background 

 

Government Code Section 56133 requires cities and special districts to receive LAFCO approval 

before entering contracts to provide services outside of their jurisdictional boundaries. The statute is 

to ensure that OASAs do not circumvent LAFCO’s regulation of jurisdictional boundaries and lead to 

disorderly growth from lack of appropriate oversight. The law also includes a limited number of 

exceptions in subsection (e) that do not require formal approval, such as contract between two or more 

public agencies where the contract services are alternatives and equal substitutes for services already 

provided.  

 

In compliance with the statute’s intent, most local agencies have deferred to Alameda LAFCO in 

determining the exemption eligibility to informally ask whether their service extensions would be 

considered exempt. However, the issue has arisen for other LAFCOs within state where some agencies 

self-exempt themselves and bypass LAFCO’s authority, that in turn, lead to inaccurate assessments 

and cause inter-agency confusion. The amendment would help to eliminate the potential for disputes 

and their associated costs when local agencies proceed to self-exempt themselves. The California 

Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions (CALAFCO) Legislative Committee has 

deferred sponsoring the legislation due to lack of resources and other priorities at this time. 

 

In response to this issue, San Diego LAFCO proposes legislation that would provide statutory authority 

for all LAFCOs requiring advance approval relative to the eligibility for an exception under 

Government Code Section 56133 (e).  Their effort will include securing a bill author, performing 

stakeholder outreach and working with legislative staff in Sacramento with the goal of introducing a 

bill in the year of 2022. As of now, San Diego LAFCO seeks preliminary support from other LAFCOs, 

including Alameda LAFCO. Amending this subsection, helps ensure that local agencies check in with  

313



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 12 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e  

 

their LAFCOs, either the LAFCO Executive Officer or Commission, before providing services beyond 

their jurisdictional boundaries. Several other LAFCOs that have been following this effort closely from 

the start having already gone on record with their support (Orange, Los Angeles, Santa Clara, El 

Dorado, and Riverside). 
 

 

Discussion 
 

Upon receiving the Commission’s preliminary support for the amendment to Government Code 

Section 56133(e), staff will relay such support to San Diego LAFCO. The Commission will then have 

the opportunity to consider full support once San Diego LAFCO has obtained an author and the 

proposed bill is formalized, at which time staff will provide an additional report and recommendation.   

  

Alternatives for Action  
 

 

The following alternatives are available to the Commission:  

 

Alternative One (Recommended):  

Provide preliminary support to San Diego LAFCO, pending a review of the final bill language at a 

later date.  

 

Alternative Two:  

Continue consideration of the report to a future meeting and provide direction to staff as needed. 

 

Alternative Three:  

Take no action. 

 

Recommendation  

 

It is recommended the Commission proceed with Alternative Action One.  

 
 
Respectfully,  

 
Rachel Jones 
Executive Officer 
  

Attachments: Government Code Section 56133: Proposed Amendment (San Diego LAFCO) 

 
 

314



1

Government Code Section 56133 
Proposed Amendment Regarding Exception Determination  

56133.   
(a) A city or district may provide new or extended services by contract or agreement
outside its jurisdictional boundary only if it first requests and receives written approval
from the commission.
(b) The commission may authorize a city or district to provide new or extended services
outside its jurisdictional boundary but within its sphere of influence in anticipation of a
later change of organization.
(c) If consistent with adopted policy, the commission may authorize a city or district to
provide new or extended services outside its jurisdictional boundary and outside its
sphere of influence to respond to an existing or impending threat to the health or safety
of the public or the residents of the affected territory, if both of the following
requirements are met:
(1) The entity applying for approval has provided the commission with documentation of
a threat to the health and safety of the public or the affected residents.
(2) The commission has notified any alternate service provider, including any water
corporation as defined in Section 241 of the Public Utilities Code, that has filed a map and
a statement of its service capabilities with the commission.
(d) The executive officer, within 30 days of receipt of a request for approval by a city or
district to extend services outside its jurisdictional boundary, shall determine whether
the request is complete and acceptable for filing or whether the request is incomplete. If
a request is determined not to be complete, the executive officer shall immediately
transmit that determination to the requester, specifying those parts of the request that
are incomplete and the manner in which they can be made complete. When the request
is deemed complete, the executive officer shall place the request on the agenda of the
next commission meeting for which adequate notice can be given but not more than 90
days from the date that the request is deemed complete, unless the commission has
delegated approval of requests made pursuant to this section to the executive officer.
The commission or executive officer shall approve, disapprove, or approve with
conditions the extended services. If the new or extended services are disapproved or
approved with conditions, the applicant may request reconsideration, citing the reasons
for reconsideration.
(e) This section does not apply to any of the following as determined by the commission
or the executive officer:
(1) Two or more public agencies where the public service to be provided is an alternative
to, or substitute for, public services already being provided by an existing public service
provider and where the level of service to be provided is consistent with the level of
service contemplated by the existing service provider.
(2) The transfer of nonpotable or nontreated water.
(3) The provision of surplus water to agricultural lands and facilities, including, but not
limited to, incidental residential structures, for projects that serve conservation purposes
or that directly support agricultural industries. However, prior to extending surplus

Attachment 1

315



 2

water service to any project that will support or induce development, the city or district 
shall first request and receive written approval from the commission in the affected 
county. 
(4) An extended service that a city or district was providing on or before January 1, 2001. 
(5) A local publicly owned electric utility, as defined by Section 9604 of the Public Utilities 
Code, providing electric services that do not involve the acquisition, construction, or 
installation of electric distribution facilities by the local publicly owned electric utility, 
outside of the utility’s jurisdictional boundary. 
(6) A fire protection contract, as defined in subdivision (a) of Section 56134. 
(f) This section applies only to the commission of the county in which the extension of 
service is proposed. 

316



     
\  

 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 
 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110 
Hayward, California 94544 
T:  510.670.6267 
www.acgov.org/lafco 
 

Bob Woerner, Regular 
City of Livermore 
 
Karla Brown, Regular 
City of Pleasanton  
 
Melissa Hernandez, Alt.  
City of Dublin 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 
Ayn Wieskamp, Regular  
East Bay Regional Park Dsitrict 
 
Geogean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Regular 
Public Member  
 
Vacant Seat, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

David Haubert, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Wilma Chan, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 

AGENDA REPORT  

March 11, 2021  

Item No. 16a 
 

TO:  Alameda  Commissioners  
   

FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Current and Pending Proposals 
 

 

The Commission will receive a report identifying active proposals on file with the Alameda Local 

Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) as required under statute. The report also identifies 

pending local agency proposals to help telegraph future workload. The report is being presented 

to the Commission for information only.   

 

Information / Discussion   

 

The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (“CKH”) delegates 

LAFCOs with regulatory and planning duties to coordinate the formation and development of local 

government agencies and their municipal services. This includes approving or disapproving boundary 

changes involving the formation, expansion, merger, and dissolution of cities, towns and special 

districts as well as sphere of influence amendments. It also includes overseeing outside service 

extensions. Proposals involving jurisdictional changes filed by landowners or registered voters must 

be put on the agenda as information items before any action may considered by LAFCO at a subsequent 

meeting.  

 

Current Proposals | Approved and Awaiting Term Completions   

 

Alameda LAFCO currently has one proposal on file previously approved awaiting term completions. 

CKH provides applicants one calendar year to complete approval terms or receive extension approvals 

before the proposals are automatically terminated.   

 

▪ Annexation of Coyote Hills | Union Sanitary District   

The Commission has approved a proposal submitted by the East Bay Regional Park District 

(EBRPD) to annex approximately 182.6 acres of territory located within the City of 

Fremont to the Union Sanitary District (USD) for wastewater services. The purpose of the 

proposal is to provide wastewater services in support of restroom facilities within the 

Coyote Hills Regional Park visitor center. The Commission approved the proposal without 

amendments on at its September 20, 2020 regular meeting. Terms remain outstanding as to 

date and therefore remains active. 

 

 

 

317



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 16a 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e  

 

Current Proposals | Under Review and Awaiting Hearing    

 

There are currently three active proposals on file with the Commission that remain under administrative 

review and await a hearing as to date of this report.  

 

▪ Annexation of 720 Mockingbird Lane | City of Pleasanton  

Staff is in review of a proposal submitted by Dixon Yee on behalf of landowners, Eleanore 

Yee and Kevin Nguyen, to annex approximately 1.2 acres of territory located at 720 

Mockingbird Lane to the City of Pleasanton. The purpose of the proposal is to connect to  

public water and wastewater services due to an old well and septic system. The application 

is currently under administrative review.  

 

▪ Annexation of Chick-fil-A North Livermore Avenue | City of Livermore  

Staff received a proposal submitted by the City of Livermore to annex 22.8 acres of 

unincorporated territory located along North Livermore Avenue to the City of Livermore. 

The purpose of the proposal is for the development of a 4,740 square foot drive-through 

restaurant referred to as the Chick-fil-A project. The application is currently under 

administrative review.  

 

▪ Annexation of Terrace View | Oro Loma Sanitary District  

Staff is in review of a pending proposal submitted by the Oro Loma Sanitary District to 

annex approximately 65.1 acres of territory in anticipation of the development of Tract 

6869 in the unincorporated area of Eden Township in Alameda County. The purpose of the 

proposal is to connect to public wastewater services in support of a residential housing 

development. The application is currently awaiting Commission consideration.  

 

Pending Proposals    

 

There is currently one potential new proposals at the moment that staff believes may be submitted to 

the Commission from local agencies based on ongoing discussions with proponents within the last two 

years.   

 

▪ Annexation of Sanctuary West | Union Sanitary District   

Staff is in review of a pending proposal to be submitted by Union Sanitary District (USD) 

to annex approximately 111.7 acres of territory located within the City of Newark to USD 

for wastewater services. The affected territory located west of the southern end of 

Stevenson Boulevard, if annexed, will support the development of 469 detached single-

family homes, three parks and a bike and pedestrian access way. The application is 

currently under administrative review.  

The Commission is invited to discuss the item and provide direction to staff on any related matter as 

needed for future discussion and or action.  
 

Attachments: none 

318



     
  

 
 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 
 

 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110 
Hayward, California 94544 
T:  510.670.6267 
www.acgov.org/lafco 
 

Bob Woerner, Regular 
City of Livermore 
 
Karla Brown, Regular 
City of Pleasanton 
 
Melissa Hernandez, Alt.  
City of Dublin 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 
Ayn Wieskamp, Regular  
East Bay Regional Park Dsitrict 
 
Geogean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Regular 
Public Member  
 
Vacant Seat, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

David Haubert, Regular 
County of Alameda  
 
Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Wilma Chan, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

March 11, 2021   

Item No. 16b 

 
TO:  Alameda  Commissioners  
   

FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Progress Report on 2020-2021 Work Plan  
 

 

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will receive a progress report on 

accomplishing specific projects as part of its adopted work plan for 2020-2021. The report is being 

presented to the Commission to formally receive and file as well as provide direction to staff as needed.  

 

Background   

 

Alameda LAFCO’s current strategic plan was adopted following a planning session on December 16, 

2019. The plan defines each of LAFCO’s priorities through overall goals, core objectives and target 

outcomes with overarching themes identified as education, facilitation, and collaboration. The strategic 

plan is anchored by seven key priorities that collectively orient the Commission to proactively fulfill 

its duties and responsibilities under the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act of 2000 in a manner responsive 

to local conditions and needs. These pillars and their attendant strategies, which premise individual 

implementation outcomes, are summarized in Attachment 1.  

 

1. Education – Serve as a resource to the public and to local agencies to support orderly growth and 

logical sustainable serve provision. 

 

2. Facilitation – Encourage orderly growth and development through the logical and efficient 

provision of municipal services by local agencies best suited to feasibly provide necessary 

governmental services and housing for persons and families of all incomes. 

 

3. Collaboration – Be proactive and act as a catalyst for change as a way to contribute to making 

Alameda County a great place to live and work by sustaining its quality of life. 

 

On May 8, 2020, Alameda LAFCO adopted the current fiscal year work plan at a noticed public 

hearing. The work plan is divided into two distinct categories – statutory and administrative – with one 

of three priority rankings: high; moderate; or low. The underlying intent of the work plan is to serve 

as a management tool to allocate Commission resources in an accountable and transparent manner over 

the corresponding 12-month period that pulls from the key priorities in the Commission’s 2020-2021 

Strategic Plan. Further, while it is a standalone document, the work plan should be reviewed in  

 

319



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 16b 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e  

 

relationship to the adopted operating budget given the planned goals and activities are facilitated and 

or limited accordingly.  

 

The item provides the Commission with a status update on two-dozen plus targeted projects established 

for the fiscal year with a specific emphasis on the “top ten” projects that represent the highest priority 

to complete during the fiscal year as determined by the membership. This includes identifying the 

projects already completed, underway, or pending in the accompanying attachment. The report and 

referenced attachment are being presented for the Commission to formally receive and file while also 

providing additional direction to staff as appropriate.  

 

Discussion  

 

The Commission has initiated work on thirteen of the two-dozen plus projects and has completed seven 

projects included in the adopted work plan. This includes the completion of high priority projects and 

highlighted by completing an informational report on disadvantaged unincorporated communities, 

providing presentations on LAFCO, and the GIS Mapping Project. Other notable items underway 

include the general municipal service review on water, wastewater, and stormwater services, 2nd 

municipal service review on fire protection and emergency medical services, policy review on 

agricultural protection agreements, and the recruitment of the Commission Clerk position.  

 

Alternatives for Action  

 

The following alternatives are available to the Commission:  
 

Alternative One (Recommended):  

Accept and file the report as presented.  
 
Alternative Two:  
Continue consideration of the report to a future meeting and provide direction to staff for additional 
information as needed.  
 
Recommendation 

 

It is recommended the Commission proceed with Alternative Action One.  
 

 

Respectfully,  

 
Rachel Jones 
Executive Officer 

 

Attachments: 
1. 2020 Strategic Plan  

2. 2020-2021 Work Plan  

320



FY 2020 -2021

STRATEGIC
PILLARS

CORE
STRATEGIES

TARGET 
OUTCOMES

Unfunded liabilities in services - do more to 
encourage future planning

Coordinate with other agencies to determine 
high-need areas (DUCs)

Promote inter-agency special projects and 
partnerships

Work with stakeholders to identify issues 
under LAFCO jurisdiction related to economic 
viability of agriculture

Establish policies and standards to address 
sustainability of adequate and reliable water 
supplies, including the use of recycled water

Conduct joint LAFCO workshops

Create homelessness intiatives with other 
agencies 

Provide Presentations to City Councils, Special 
Districts, and the County on upcoming projects 
and LAFCO's role

Understand local agricultural issues and then 
consider a study

Identify emerging issues, i.e. water treatment 
changes

Educate public on service costs

Determine LAFCO's role in housing 

Regulate land use through the extension of 
services

Provide more guidance on regional issues

Create a five-year island annexation plan

Prepare comprehensive study on climate 
change

Encourage consolidations or review shared 
opportunities

Enagage with the community through LAFCO outreach 
as well as receive presentations from outside 
stakeholders and  local agencies to understand issues

Use LAFCO authority through municipal services 
reviews and change of organizations to promote the 
change in the region aligned with its mission

Always seek, determine, and question if any 
regional issues are opportunities for partnerships 

Review growth boundaries and governance

EDUCATION FACILITATION COLLABORATION

ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION

Serve as a resource to the public and to local 
agencies to support orderly growth and logical, 
sustainable service provision

Encourage orderly growth and development 
through the logical and efficient provision of 
municipal services by local agencies best 
suited to feasibly provide necessary 
governmental services and housing for 
persons and families for all incomes.

Be proactive and act a catalyst for change as 
a way to contribute to making Alameda 
County a great place to live and work by 
sustaining the quality of life. 

MISSION STATEMENT:  Alameda LAFCO provides oversight over local governments to make Alameda County a great place to live and work by 
balancing the preservation of agriculture and open space with the provision of sustainable municipal servces 

STRATEGIC PLAN

Attachment 1

321



Priority Urgency Type Status Project Key Issues

1 High Statutory Rollover

2 High Administrative Rollover

3 High Statutory Rollover

4 High Administrative New

5 High Administrative Rollover

6 Moderate Administrative Rollover

7 Moderate Administrative New

8 Moderate Administrative New

9 Moderate Administrative Rollover

10 Moderate Administrative Rollver

11 Low Administrative Rollover

12 Low Administrative Rollover

13 Low Statutory Rollover

14 Low Administrative Rollover

15 Low Statutory Rollover

16 Low Administrative Rollover

17 Low Administrative Rollover

18 Low Administrative Rollover

19 Low Administrative Rollover

ALAMEDA LAFCO WORKPLAN | 2020-2021

Prepare Informational Report on JPAs

General MSR on Water, Wastewater, and Stormwater 
Services

Staff Recruitment, Placement and Training

Policy Review on Agricultural Protection and Out of Area 
Service Agreements

Host more informative presentations from outside local 
agencies

Prepare Informational Report on Unincorporated Islands

Update Application Packet and Mapping Requirements

GIS Mapping Project

Post Enactment of SB 1266; Enhance Repository on Local Government Services

LAFCO Agency Logo Establish New Agency Logo for Branding (Website, Publications, etc.)

CDA to Create a LAFCO GIS Layer for All Local Agencies under LAFCO Purview

First Service Specific MSR since 2006 | Address Infrastructure Needs and Efficiencies and 
Sustainability

Recruitment and Training of LAFCO Commission Clerk and Analyst

Periodical review of existing policies relative to practices and trends, and determine whether 
changes are appropriate to better reflect current preferences

Current Application Dated; Make User Friendly

Evaluate LAFCO's Mission and Goals Relative to Local Conditions; Identify Strategies to 
Achieve Shared Objectives 

Host Alameda County Special District Association Meeting

Informational Report on Remen Tract

Sphere Update for City of Pleasanton

Informational Report on Fairview Fire Protection District

Master Property Tax Exchange Agreement Improve Efficiency and Effectiveness of Application Process

Implement Planning Functions; Update SOIs of Local Government Agencies; Cities MSR

Status Report on District Activites 

Special Report on Service Delivery Feasability

Communicate LAFCO's Mission and Goals to the Community

LAFCO Annual Report on Status of County

Fund Balance Establish a reserve policy

Provide more up to date knowledge on local issues

Map all Unincorporated Islands and Examine Island Annexation Implementation Issues in 
Alameda County

LAFCO Presentations
Introductory Overview of LAFCO's Duties and Responsibilities to Boards, Councils, Community 
Groups

General MSR on Fire Protection and Emergency Services Second MSR on Fire and Emergency Services sine 2006 | Address Shared Opportunities 

2018-2020 Audits Verify Fund Balance; Perform Regular Audits

Attachment 2

322



20 Low Administrative Rollover

21 Low Administrative Rollover

Local Agency Directory
User-Friendly Publication Identifying and Summarizing Local Government Agencies and 
Services in Alameda County

Digital Archiving Continue Project to Digitize LAFCO Records

323



Blank for Photocopying 

324



     
  

 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 
 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110 
Hayward, California 94544 
T:  510.670.6267 
www.acgov.org/lafco 
 

Bob Woerner, Regular 
City of Livermore 
 
Karla Brown, Regular 
City of Pleasanton  
 
Melissa Hernandez, Alt.  
City of Dublin 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 
Ayn Wieskamp, Regular  
East Bay Regional Park Dsitrict 
 
Geogean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Regular 
Public Member  
 
Vacant Seat, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

David Haubert, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Wilma Chan, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

March 11, 2021   

Item No. 16c 
TO:  Alameda  Commissioners  
   

FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Legislative Update 
 

 

The Commission will receive an update from the California Association of Local Agency Formation 

Commissions (CALAFCO) as it relates to proposals impacting Local Agency Formation Commissions 

(LAFCOs). The report is being presented for discussion and feedback only.  

 

Information 

 

This item is for Alameda LAFCO to receive a summary of bills that directly or indirectly impact 

LAFCO’s duties and or interests as identified by CALAFCO. This includes considering CALAFCO’s 

recommendations. The Commission is also invited to provide related direction on other legislative 

matters.  

 

The following are the status on bills that may be of interest to the Commission and other bills affecting 

local public agencies.  
 

 

AB 339 (Lee and Garcia) | Open Meetings 

 

This is bill sponsored by the Leadership Council of Justice and Accountability allows for continued 

remote participation in local and state hearings/meetings while adding requirements for both call-in and 

internet service-based options for all public meetings. The bill requires teleconferenced meetings to 

include caption services and for meetings to be translated into all languages for which 5% of the 

population in the area governed by the local agency is a speaker.  

 

Position: Watch; Status: Introduced on January 29, 2021 

 

AB 361 (R. Rivas) | Open Meetings  

 

This bill sponsored by the California Special District Association (CSDA) allows a local agency to 

conduct meetings using teleconference methods without complying with certain teleconferencing 

requirements if they are meeting for the purposes of declaring or ratifying a local emergency, during a 

declared state or local emergency, when state or local health official have imposed or recommended 

certain measures to promote social distancing, and during a declared local emergency provided the 

legislative body makes certain determinations by majority vote.  

 

325



Alameda LAFCO 
March 11, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 16c 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e  

 

The Legislative body must give notice of the meeting and post agendas to allow members of the public 

to access the meeting and address the legislative body, offer public comment and protect rights of the 

parties and public appearing before the legislative body. 

 

Position: Watch; Status: Referred to Committee  

 

SB 55 (Stern) | Development Prohibition in Very High Fire Hazard Zones    

 

This bill prohibits the creation or approval of a new development in a very high fire hazard severity 

zone or a state responsibility area.  

 

Position: Watch; Status: Referred to Committee  

 

SB 274 (Wieckowski) | Local Government Digital Access to Agendas and Documents 

 

This bill updates the Government Code to require a public agency to email the agenda or agenda items 

to anyone who requests it or the link to the website where the documents can be accessed. Since the 

Brown Act already requires a local agency to mail an agenda or an agenda packet, if requested, SB 274 

would provide an alternative method for local agencies to deliver requested agenda documents.  

 

Position: Support; Status: Referred to Committee on Government and Finance 

  

The Commission is invited to discuss the item and provide direction to staff on any related matter as 
needed for future discussion and or action.  

 
Attachments: 

1. CALAFCO Tracking Report 

 

 
 

326



CALAFCO Tracked Bills 
2/13/2021

  1

AB 339 (Lee D)   State and local government: open meetings.    
Current Text: Introduced: 1/28/2021   html   pdf
Introduced: 1/28/2021
Status: 1/29/2021-From printer. May be heard in committee February 28.
Location: 1/28/2021-A. PRINT
Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

Summary: Current law requires all meetings, as defined, of a house of the Legislature or a committee
thereof to be open and public, and requires all persons to be permitted to attend the meetings, except
as specified. This bill would require all meetings, including gatherings using teleconference technology,
to include an opportunity for all persons to attend via a call-in option or an internet-based service
option that provides closed captioning services and requires both a call-in and an internet-based
service option to be provided to the public.

Position  Subject 
Watch  Other 

CALAFCO Comments:  This bill allows for continued remote participant in local (and state)
hearings/meetings while adding requirements for both call-in and internet service based options for all
public meetings; requires providing closed caption services; and requires agencies to provide
language access services. 

The bill requires teleconferenced meetings to include an in-person public comment opportunity that
creates a place where members of the public can gather at a designated site to give public comment
(barring any in-person restrictions). Further, the bill requires the agenda and instructions for accessing
the meeting to be translated into all languages for which 5% of the population in the area governed
by the local agency is a speaker. 

The bill adds requirements for local agencies to employ a sufficient amount of qualified bilingual people
to provide translation services during the meeting in the language of the non-English speaking person
(consistent with all languages for which 5% of the population in the area governed by the local agency
speak). 

The bill adds similar requirements for any state legislative body. 

This bill is sponsored by the Leadership Council for Justice and Accountability.

AB 361 (Rivas, Robert  D)   Open meetings: local agencies: teleconferences. 
Current Text: Introduced: 2/1/2021   html   pdf
Introduced: 2/1/2021
Status: 2/12/2021-Referred to Com. on L. GOV.
Location: 2/12/2021-A. L. GOV.
Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

Summary: Would authorize a local agency to use teleconferencing without complying with the
teleconferencing requirements imposed by the Ralph M. Brown Act when a legislative body of a local
agency holds a meeting for the purpose of declaring or ratifying a local emergency, during a declared
state or local emergency, as those terms are defined, when state or local health officials have imposed
or recommended measures to promote social distancing, and during a declared local emergency
provided the legislative body makes certain determinations by majority vote.

Position  Subject 
Watch  Other 

CALAFCO Comments:  Executive Order No. N-29-20 suspends the Ralph M. Brown Act's requirements
for teleconferencing during the COVID-19 pandemic provided that certain requirements are met
(noticing, public access, etc.). This bill allows a local agency to conduct meetings using teleconference
methods without complying with with certain teleconferencing requirements if they are meeting for the
purposes of declaring or ratifying a local emergency, during a declared state or local emergency (as
defined in statute), when state or local health officials have imposed or recommended certain
measures to promote social distancing, and during a declared local emergency provided the legislative
body makes certain determinations by majority vote. 

Page 1/6

69

Attachment 1

327

http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=JnpieuTYqgCsRnXkzBd6b8e5%2BqNbEAW66U8wd6rA2u53%2Bu79uLzmq04I741kFa%2Fe
https://a25.asmdc.org/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills%5Casm%5Cab_0301-0350%5Cab_339_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills%5Casm%5Cab_0301-0350%5Cab_339_99_I_bill.pdf
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=vYrDgpBbSWLs56sSyyWdwofScFd%2F6E1lXWMmxtTzsSMA9NTG%2Bl1KVwEfdNiPjVVF
https://a30.asmdc.org/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills%5Casm%5Cab_0351-0400%5Cab_361_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills%5Casm%5Cab_0351-0400%5Cab_361_99_I_bill.pdf


The legislative body must give notice of the meeting and post agendas to allow members of the public
to access the meeting and address the legislative body, offer public comment, and protect rights of the
parties and public appearing before the legislative body. 

This bill is sponsored by the CA Special Districts Association (CSDA).

  2

SB 55 (Stern D)   Very high fire hazard severity zone: state responsibility area: development prohibition.

Current Text: Introduced: 12/7/2020   html   pdf
Introduced: 12/7/2020
Status: 2/3/2021-Referred to Com. on RLS.
Location: 12/7/2020-S. RLS.
Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

Summary: Would, in furtherance of specified state housing production and wildfire mitigation goals,
prohibit the creation or approval of a new development, as defined, in a very high fire hazard severity
zone or a state responsibility area. By imposing new duties on local governments with respect to the
approval of new developments in very high fire hazard severity zones and state responsibility areas,
this bill would impose a state-mandated local program.

Position  Subject 
Watch  Growth

Management,
Planning 

CALAFCO Comments:  This bill prohibits the creation or approval of a new development in a very high
fire hazard severity zone or a state responsibility area.

  3

AB 11 (Ward D)   Climate change: regional climate change authorities. 
Current Text: Amended: 1/21/2021   html   pdf
Introduced: 12/7/2020
Last Amend: 1/21/2021
Status: 1/25/2021-Re-referred to Com. on NAT. RES.
Location: 1/11/2021-A. NAT. RES.
Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

Summary: Would require the Strategic Growth Council, by January 1, 2023, to establish up to 12
regional climate change authorities to coordinate climate adaptation and mitigation activities in their
regions, and coordinate with other regional climate adaptation autorities, state agencies, and other
relevant stakeholders.

Position  Subject 
Watch  Other 

CALAFCO Comments:  As amended on 1/21/21, this bill authorizes/requires the Strategic Growth
Council (SGC) to establish up to 12 regional climate change authorities by January 1, 2023, to include
local agencies and regional stakeholders. The SGC is required to adopt guidelines that: (1) Define the
authority; (2) Include guidelines for establishing an authority via a stakeholder-driven process; (3)
Consult with OPR (and other state authorities) in development of the guidelines and award annual
grants to authorities. 

The bill outlines the regional climate change authorities in summary as: coordination, capacity-building,
and technical assistance activities within their boundaries, promote regional alignment and assist local
agencies in creating and implementing plans developed pursuant to Section 65302 of the Government
Code, other federal or state mandates, and programs designed address climate change impacts and
risks. The bill also requires the authority to submit annual reports to the SGC, with the scope of the
report outlined in the bill.

AB 428 (Mayes I)   Local government planning.    
Current Text: Introduced: 2/4/2021   html   pdf
Introduced: 2/4/2021

Page 2/6

70328

http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=9C08dqurHiktyu2sUB%2FoS%2BVYYwu0va0p2EBYKaF%2F7cIdmEIP1H52Mm0KKYg1G9aN
http://sd27.senate.ca.gov/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills%5Csen%5Csb_0051-0100%5Csb_55_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills%5Csen%5Csb_0051-0100%5Csb_55_99_I_bill.pdf
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=HDwpIPwQOfFYhdiUlIDlCRm3DBaaIAh3axjIEG9A0E%2B1GD5CB4W%2BHWkvhUZRondb
https://a78.asmdc.org/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills%5Casm%5Cab_0001-0050%5Cab_11_98_A_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills%5Casm%5Cab_0001-0050%5Cab_11_98_A_bill.pdf
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=HEN2uSOtnwP9mffYnc9VuXW8%2FCycHnM3xgUirtllwfYWy0f9TUlFvUDktumdi%2BHx
https://ad42.asmrc.org/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills%5Casm%5Cab_0401-0450%5Cab_428_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills%5Casm%5Cab_0401-0450%5Cab_428_99_I_bill.pdf


Status: 2/5/2021-From printer. May be heard in committee March 7.
Location: 2/4/2021-A. PRINT
Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

Summary: Current law, the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000,
makes certain findings and declarations relating to local government organizations, including, among
other things, the encouragement of orderly growth and development, and the logical formation and
modification of the boundaries of local agencies.This bill would make nonsubstantive changes to these
findings and declarations.

Position  Subject 
Watch 

CALAFCO Comments:  This is a spot bill.

AB 473 (Chau D)   California Public Records Act.    
Current Text: Introduced: 2/8/2021   html   pdf
Introduced: 2/8/2021
Status: 2/9/2021-From printer. May be heard in committee March 11.
Location: 2/8/2021-A. PRINT
Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

Summary: The California Public Records Act requires state and local agencies to make their records
available for public inspection, unless an exemption from disclosure applies. This bill would recodify and
reorganize the provisions of the act. The bill would include provisions to govern the effect of
recodification and state that the bill is intended to be entirely nonsubstantive in effect. The bill would
contain related legislative findings and declarations. The bill would become operative on January 1,
2023.

Position  Subject 
Watch  Public Records

Act 
CALAFCO Comments:  This bill is a redo of AB 2138 from 2020 that did not move forward. According to
the author's office, this bill and AB 474 are part of recommendations from the California Law Revision
Commissions to reorganize and restructure the CPRA based on a request by the legislature for them
to do that. CALAFCO will keep watch on the bill to ensure there are no substantive changes to the
PRA.

AB 474 (Chau D)   California Public Records Act: conforming revisions.    
Current Text: Introduced: 2/8/2021   html   pdf
Introduced: 2/8/2021
Status: 2/9/2021-From printer. May be heard in committee March 11.
Location: 2/8/2021-A. PRINT
Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

Summary: Would enact various conforming and technical changes related to another bill that
recodifies and reorganizes the California Public Records Act. The bill would only become operative if the
related bill recodifying the act is enacted and becomes operative on January 1, 2023. The bill would
also specify that any other bill enacted by the Legislature during the 2021 calendar year that takes
effect on or before January 1, 2022, and that affects a provision of this bill shall prevail over this act,
except as specified.

Position  Subject 
Watch  Public Records

Act 
CALAFCO Comments:  This bill is a redo of AB 2438 from 2020 that did not move forward. According to
the author's office, this bill and AB 473 are part of recommendations from the California Law Revision
Commissions to reorganize and restructure the CPRA based on a request by the legislature for them
to do that. CALAFCO will keep watch on the bill to ensure there are no substantive changes to the
PRA.

AB 588 (Garcia, Eduardo D)   Local government.    
Current Text: Introduced: 2/11/2021   html   pdf
Introduced: 2/11/2021
Status: 2/12/2021-From printer. May be heard in committee March 14.
Location: 2/11/2021-A. PRINT
Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

Page 3/6

71329

http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=cICNk7SuFjjKZPzBeRexPpPR5do9qK9ewK6U5Zf0jl3BcRLjWvzyoii0iOfHhvDO
https://a49.asmdc.org/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills%5Casm%5Cab_0451-0500%5Cab_473_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills%5Casm%5Cab_0451-0500%5Cab_473_99_I_bill.pdf
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=y5U40xmbEg5l4AAiMCKIzAXyvR3gaKr7bayOViv2k6k86EsKPJdQa4YcMsHjWA37
https://a49.asmdc.org/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills%5Casm%5Cab_0451-0500%5Cab_474_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills%5Casm%5Cab_0451-0500%5Cab_474_99_I_bill.pdf
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=bb7hhYqMSuDRWGLdJ%2BpfScUwMQ5Bl58VXJtlMh5R9%2Bdwp9Hbhb7VURvsIiXVg0Z9
https://a56.asmdc.org/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills%5Casm%5Cab_0551-0600%5Cab_588_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills%5Casm%5Cab_0551-0600%5Cab_588_99_I_bill.pdf


Summary: Current law, the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000,
provides the exclusive authority and procedure for the initiation, conduct, and completion of changes of
organization and reorganization for cities and districts, except as specified. This bill would make a
nonsubstantive change to the provision naming the act.

Position  Subject 
Watch  Other 

CALAFCO Comments:  This is a spot bill. According to the author's office there is no current intended
use for the bill.

SB 13 (Dodd D)   Local agency services: contracts: Counties of Napa and San Bernardino. 
Current Text: Introduced: 12/7/2020   html   pdf
Introduced: 12/7/2020
Status: 1/28/2021-Referred to Com. on GOV. & F.
Location: 1/28/2021-S. GOV. & F.
Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

Summary: The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 establishes a
pilot program under which the commissions in the Counties of Napa and San Bernardino, upon making
specified determinations at a noticed public hearing, may authorize a city or district to provide new or
extended services outside its jurisdictional boundary and outside its sphere of influence to support
existing or planned uses involving public or private properties, as provided. Current law requires the
Napa and San Bernardino commissions to submit a report to the Legislature on their participation in
the pilot program, as specified, before January 1, 2020, and repeals the pilot program as of January 1,
2021. This bill would reestablish the pilot program, which would remain in effect until January 1, 2026.
The bill would impose a January 1, 2025, deadline for the Napa and San Bernardino commissions to
report to the Legislature on the pilot program, and would require the contents of that report to include
how many requests for extension of services were received under these provisions.

Position  Subject 
Watch  CKH General

Procedures 
CALAFCO Comments:  This bill is the same as SB 799 from 2020 and seeks to re-establish and
continue the pilot program for five more years. The program ended as of January 1, 2021 but due to
the pandemic, SB 799 from 2020 to extend the sunset was not moved forward in the legislature.

SB 96 (Dahle R)   Fallen Leaf Lake Community Services District Fire Department Protection Act of 2021:
elections.    
Current Text: Introduced: 12/21/2020   html   pdf
Introduced: 12/21/2020
Status: 1/28/2021-Referred to Coms. on GOV. & F. and E. & C.A.
Location: 1/28/2021-S. GOV. & F.
Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

Summary: Would require the El Dorado County elections official, with the assistance of the Fallen Leaf
Lake Community Services District, to conduct district elections pursuant to the Uniform District Election
Law, except as otherwise provided in the bill. The bill, notwithstanding existing law, would provide that
voters who are resident registered voters of the district, and voters who are not residents but either
own a real property interest in the district or have been designated by the owner of a real property
interest to cast the vote for that property, may vote in a district election in the Fallen Leaf Lake
Community Services District, as specified. The bill would require the designations of voters and
authority of legal representatives to be filed with the El Dorado County elections official and the
secretary of the Fallen Leaf Lake Community Services District and maintained with the list of qualified
voters of the district.This bill contains other related provisions and other existing laws.

Position  Subject 
Watch  Special Districts

Governance 
CALAFCO Comments:  This bill is the same as SB 1180 from 2020 which did not move through the
legislature. It is a local El Dorado County/district bill. This bill does several things. (1) Provides that
voters who are resident registered voters of the district, and voters who are not residents but either
own a real property interest in the district or have been designated by the owner of a real property
interest to cast the vote for that property, may vote in a district election in the Fallen Leaf Lake
Community Services. (2) The bill also would authorize a voter who is not a resident of the district but
owns a real property interest in the district to designate only one voter to vote on their behalf,
regardless of the number of parcels in the district owned by the nonresident voter. (3) This bill would
prohibit the Fallen Leaf Lake Community Services District from providing any services or facilities except
fire protection and medical services, including emergency response and services, as well as parks and
recreation services and facilities.

Page 4/6

72330

http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=sXcK1y5HbflYrRnD4ON0YAVMHsGA94xk01SOwDvxdNPyPzrUvbeSHd7fHqJmeUFy
http://sd03.senate.ca.gov/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills%5Csen%5Csb_0001-0050%5Csb_13_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills%5Csen%5Csb_0001-0050%5Csb_13_99_I_bill.pdf
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=m64ecszPpZOESc%2FECWdGCavlNzbWJoA8qzikQJMmCKFzZoTnHR0RZ1qozmifE5gP
https://dahle.cssrc.us/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills%5Csen%5Csb_0051-0100%5Csb_96_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills%5Csen%5Csb_0051-0100%5Csb_96_99_I_bill.pdf


SB 273 (Hertzberg D)   Water quality: municipal wastewater agencies. 
Current Text: Introduced: 1/29/2021   html   pdf
Introduced: 1/29/2021
Status: 2/10/2021-Referred to Coms. on GOV. & F. and E.Q.
Location: 2/10/2021-S. GOV. & F.
Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

Summary: Would authorize a municipal wastewater agency, as defined, to enter into agreements with
entities responsible for stormwater management for the purpose of managing stormwater and dry
weather runoff, to acquire, construct, expand, operate, maintain, and provide facilities for specified
purposes relating to managing stormwater and dry weather runoff, and to levy taxes, fees, and
charges consistent with the municipal wastewater agency’s existing authority in order to fund projects
undertaken pursuant to the bill. The bill would require the exercise of any new authority granted under
the bill to comply with the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000. To
the extent this requirement would impose new duties on local agency formation commissions, the bill
would impose a state-mandated local program.

Position  Subject 
Watch  Municipal

Services 
CALAFCO Comments:  This bill is a redo of SB 1052 from 2020 that was not moved forward because
of the pandemic. This bill adds authority to municipal wastewater agencies as outlined in 13911(a) and
(b) relating to stormwater runoff and management. The bill authorizes this additional authority while
keeping the LAFCo process to activate these latent powers intact.

SB 274 (Wieckowski D)   Local government meetings: agenda and documents. 
Current Text: Introduced: 1/29/2021   html   pdf
Introduced: 1/29/2021
Status: 2/10/2021-Referred to Com. on GOV. & F.
Location: 2/10/2021-S. GOV. & F.
Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

Summary: The Ralph M. Brown Act, requires meetings of the legislative body of a local agency to be
open and public and also requires regular and special meetings of the legislative body to be held
within the boundaries of the territory over which the local agency exercises jurisdiction, with specified
exceptions. Current law authorizes a person to request that a copy of an agenda, or a copy of all the
documents constituting the agenda packet, of any meeting of a legislative body be mailed to that
person. This bill would require a local agency with an internet website, or its designee, to email a copy
of, or website link to, the agenda or a copy of all the documents constituting the agenda packet if the
person requests that the items be delivered by email. If a local agency determines it to be
technologically infeasible to send a copy of the documents or a link to a website that contains the
documents by mail or by other electronic means, the bill would require the legislative body or its
designee to send by mail a copy of the agenda or a website link to the agenda and to mail a copy of all
other documents constituting the agenda packet, as specified.

Position  Subject 
Watch  Public Records

Act 
CALAFCO Comments:  This bill is a modified redo of SB 931 from 2020 that did not move forward
because of the pandemic. This bill updates the Government Code to require a public agency to email
the agenda or agenda items to anyone who requests it or the link to the website where the
documents can be accessed (current law requires the mailing of such documents upon request, this bill
adds the option to email if requested).

SB 403 (Gonzalez D)   Drinking water: consolidation.    
Current Text: Introduced: 2/12/2021   html   pdf
Introduced: 2/12/2021
Status: 2/12/2021-Introduced. Read first time. To Com. on RLS. for assignment. To print.
Location: 2/12/2021-S. RLS.
Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.

Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered
1st House 2nd House

Summary: Would authorize the state board to also order consolidation where a water system serving
a disadvantaged community is at risk of failing to provide an adequate supply of safe drinking water or
where a disadvantaged community is substantially reliant on domestic wells that are at risk of failing to
provide an adequate supply of safe drinking water. This bill contains other related provisions.

Position  Subject 

Page 5/6

73331

http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=JzeaaCBnS5ckJgTA6UTpb9XGQDHPAQoSqYUyqaWtZ2WfO6dRcLT%2BnovYQAFGg4Wm
https://sd18.senate.ca.gov/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills%5Csen%5Csb_0251-0300%5Csb_273_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills%5Csen%5Csb_0251-0300%5Csb_273_99_I_bill.pdf
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=RL9nRT47yuYGSgg%2FbTb2awWcLKwFO7A4ok6OC%2Ftu%2BGcuG3AFXrutfG2hU9RKWQsD
http://sd10.senate.ca.gov/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills%5Csen%5Csb_0251-0300%5Csb_274_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills%5Csen%5Csb_0251-0300%5Csb_274_99_I_bill.pdf
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=nC9PDRdCI8a8092vw8%2BXo1EJUuXFUOxG%2FasBWMEXVtke7L5z%2B1b2v5sgmerhdjN%2F
https://sd33.senate.ca.gov/
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills%5Csen%5Csb_0401-0450%5Csb_403_99_I_bill.htm
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills%5Csen%5Csb_0401-0450%5Csb_403_99_I_bill.pdf


Watch      Disadvantaged
Communities,
Water 

CALAFCO Comments:  Current law (Health & Safety Code Section 116682) authorizes the State
Water Resources Control Board (Board) to order consolidation (physical or operational) of a public
water system or state small water system serving a disadvantaged community that consistently fails
to provide an adequate supply of safe drinking water, or a disadvantaged community (in whole or
part) that is substantially reliant on domestic wells that consistently fail to provide an adequate supply
of safe drinking water. This bill would add to that a water system or domestic well(s) that are at risk of
failing to provide an adequate supply of safe drinking water, as determined by the Board. The bill also
requires the Board, before ordering consolidation, to conduct outreach to ratepayers and residents
served by the at-risk system and to consider any petition submitted by members of a disadvantaged
community being served by the at-risk system.

Total Measures: 13 Total
 

Page 6/6

74332



A 
message 
from the 

Executive 
Director 

 

 
 

 
               Greetings from your                                                                                                     

CALAFCO Board of Directors 
and Executive Director. It 

seems that our collective 
hope for an uneventful 

start to 2021 was met with 
laughter and resistance from the 
universe. However, we remain 
undaunted and resolute to move 

forward in partnership with our members to 
make great things happen in 2021.  

 
This Quarterly Report will begin by highlighting the good news 
in our CALAFCO family first, followed by Association updates. 
Happy reading! 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Santa Clara LAFCo Receives State APA Award for 
Communication and Outreach Plan 
After receiving the American Planning Association - California 
Northern Chapter’s “Award of Excellence – Communication 
Initiative”, Santa Clara LAFCo’s project then received the 
State Chapter’s 2020 Award of Excellence.  
 
 
San Bernardino and San Diego LAFCos Awarded 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation (SALC) Grants 
San Bernardino LAFCo, in partnership with the Inland Empire 
Resource Conservation District (IERCD), were awarded a SALC 
planning grant for $220,475. The planning grant project aims 
to create a local tool for the preservation of agriculture lands, 
which does not currently exist in San Bernardino County. The 
goals of this project would be to encourage the long-term 
preservation of agricultural lands within San Bernardino 
County and develop local mitigation tools to provide a way for 
municipalities to preserve agricultural lands while continuing 
to address housing and growth needs. 
 
San Diego LAFCo, in partnership with the Resource 
Conservation District (RCD) of Greater San Diego, the San 
Diego County Farm Bureau, the County of San Diego, and San 
Diego Association of Governments (SANDAG) were also 
awarded a SALC planning grant for $250,000. The purpose 
for the funding is to develop a community vision and strategic 
plan to increase and preserve San Diego region’s agricultural 
lands and preserve its economic viability in semi-rural and 
rural communities. The plan of action is to identify and 
monitor agricultural lands and uses to inform future 
preservation and enhancement opportunities. 

 
The Strategic Growth Council (SGC) added LAFCos to the list 
of eligible entities to apply for SALC grants in January 2019 
after many years of CALAFCO trying to get LAFCos eligible for 
state-level grant funding. Since then, San Bernardino and  

 
 
 
 
San Diego LAFCos are the first two LAFCos to initiate a grant 
application.  
 
CALAFCO congratulates Santa Clara, San Bernardino and 
San Diego LAFCos on their achievements! 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CALAFCO welcomes our newest Silver Associate Member, 
Holly Owen, Certified Planner. Holly’s services include 
Municipal Service Reviews and planning and feasibility 
studies. To contact Holly, you can email her at 
holly.owen@gmail.com.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

CALAFCO BOARD CHANGES 
The Board recently welcomed three new 
Board members. In late October, two 
new members were elected to the 
Board. Representing the Coastal region 
county seat is Christopher Lopez, Monterey LAFCo 
Commissioner and County Supervisor. The central region 
county seat also has a new representative, Merced LAFCo 
Commissioner and County Supervisor Daron McDaniel. In 
January, the Board appointed a new member to fill the 
unexpired term of recently re-elected Board member Cheryl 
Brothers (who unfortunately lost her home election). Filling 
that unexpired term for the southern region city seat is San 
Bernardino LAFCo Commissioner and City of Fontana Mayor 
Acquanetta Warren.   
 

The Board also gratefully acknowledges the outgoing Board 
members whose dedicated service to CALAFCO had a great 
impact: former Monterey LAFCo Commissioner Jane Parker 
(coastal region county rep); former El Dorado LAFCo 
Commissioner Shiva Frentzen (central region county rep); 
and former Orange LAFCo Commissioner Cheryl Brothers 
(southern region city rep).  
 
 
 

NNeewwss  ffrroomm  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  

CCAALLAAFFCCOO  QQUUAARRTTEERRLLYY FFeebbrruuaarryy  22002211 

LAFCos in the News 

CALAFCO BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Welcome to Our Newest Associate Member 

333

mailto:holly.owen@gmail.com


 
 
 
 

In November, the officers of the Board for 2020-21 were 
seated as follows: 
 
Chair – Michael Kelley, Imperial LAFCo (southern) 
Vice Chair – Anita Paque, Calaveras LAFCo (central) 
Secretary – Bill Connelly, Butte LAFCo (northern) 
Treasurer – Margie Mohler, Napa LAFCo (coastal) 
Immediate Past Chair – Michael McGill, Contra Costa LAFCo 
(coastal) 
 
During their November meeting, the Board made the 
following Committee appointments: 
 
Legislative Committee Elections Committee 
Bill Connelly (North) Blake Inscore 
Gay Jones (At-Large) Gay Jones (Chair) 
Jo MacKenzie (South) Chris Lopez 
Mike McGill (Coastal) David West 
Anita Paque (Central)  
Michael Kelley (a) (South) Awards Committee 
Chris Lopez (a) (Coastal) Daron McDaniel 
Daron McDaniel (a) (Central) Jo MacKenzie 
Tom Murray (a) (At-Large) Margie Mohler 
Josh Susman (a) (North) Anita Paque (Chair) 
 Josh Susman 
  

2021 Annual Conference 
David Couch 
Tom Murray 
Daniel Parra 

David West (Chair) 
 

The CALAFCO Board met virtually for their biennial strategic 
planning session on January 21, followed by a regular Board 
meeting the next day on January 22 (also virtual). The full 
meeting packet for both sessions is located on the CALAFCO 
website (and accessible to all CALAFCO 
members). During the strategic planning 
session the Board discussed several topics 
of critical importance to the Association, 
including the current dues structure and 
population cap used, the ongoing practice of 
using 15% net profit from the Annual 
Conference to balance the budget, and the 
issue of extension of services as it relates to 
local agencies not always seeking LAFCo 
authorization of exemption or approval to extend services.  
 
After spending time connecting as a group, the strategic 
planning session began with a dashboard review of the 
Association’s work in 2020. Highlights included the 
cancellation of both the Staff Workshop and Conference (and 
the fiscal impact to the Association as a result of the 
Conference cancellation due to the reliance of the 15% net 
profit to balance the budget); the creation and delivery of a 
series of webinars offered at no cost to CALAFCO members; a 
new section on the CALAFCO website that houses these  

 
 
 
 
webinars for on-demand viewing; updates to the CALAFCO 
website; and the legislative year that wasn’t. Additional work 
accomplished that was not part of the strategic plan for 
2020 included a successful transition of the two primary 
contractors to employees and the retention of the Executive 
Director (originally set to retire in the fall of 2020). The full 
2020 dashboard review can be found on the CALAFCO 
website.  
 

The Board spent a great deal of time discussing the member 
LAFCo dues issue after receiving a full report from the dues 
ad hoc committee. After reviewing the various models 
considered by the ad hoc committee (16 in total), the Board 
received one additional model that had updated population 
figures from the Department of Finance (using the existing 
FY 2020-21 model as the base).  Again, after much 
discussion, the Board gave unanimous consent to 
maintaining all of the existing variables in the FY 2020-21 
dues model, using the required updated population 
estimates and not adding the CPI increase (estimated at 3%) 
for the FY 2021-22 dues. This decision was formally ratified 
with unanimous approval during the Board meeting on 
January 22. An announcement regarding the FY 2021-22 
dues was distributed February 9, and you can find the dues 
on the CALAFCO website.  
  
The Board then discussed the ongoing structural deficit and 
dangerous fiscal practice of using an unreliable educational 
event net profit to balance the budget. They gave unanimous 
consensus to no longer using any net profit from any 
education event to balance the budget. Underscored this 
year without a Conference, the loss of that budgeted net 
profit created a structural deficit. That decision was also 
formally ratified with unanimous approval during their Board 
meeting on January 22.  
 

Later that afternoon there was a 
discussion about the problem of local 
agencies not seeking LAFCo authorization 
to extend services. The Board 
brainstormed non-legislative ideas for 
consideration this year as an interim 
solution to a legislative fix in 2022. The 
day ended with a brief conversation about 
SMGA and the relationship between LAFCo 
and investor-owned utilities. 

 
The Board will consider adopting the next two-year strategic 
plan (for 2021-22) at their April 30 meeting.  
 
During their January 22 meeting, in addition to ratifying the 
decisions noted above, the Board received the second 
quarter financial reports and directed the Executive Director 
to create a rolling two-year budget going forward (beginning 
with the draft FY 2021-22 budget) and adopted the 2021 
legislative policies with the recommended amendment of 
the Legislative Committee.  

NNeewwss  ffrroomm  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  

CCAALLAAFFCCOO  QQUUAARRTTEERRLLYY     FFeebbrruuaarryy  22002211  
                                                    PPaaggee  22 

 

334



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
2021 STAFF WORKSHOP AND ANNUAL CONFERENCE 
Staff Workshop 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, CALAFCO’s Staff Workshop 
was once again cancelled. The workshop was scheduled for 
March 17-19 in Newport Beach.  
 
CALAFCO staff successfully negotiated a revision in the facility 
contract for 2022 at the same rates as 2021. We are still 
working with the mobile workshop vendors to try and roll over 
the deposits for that event and will keep you posted.  
 
We wish to thank our Workshop hosts, Imperial and Orange 
LAFCos who have graciously agreed to host in 2022 – third 
time is a charm they say! 
 
CALAFCO is currently polling LAFCo staff on their desire to 
have something offered for staff only in a virtual format. 
Watch for updates soon. If your LAFCo staff have not provided 
us that feedback, please do so by the deadline of February 
12.  
 
Mark your calendars for the Staff Workshop on March 23 – 
25, 2022. 
 

Annual Conference 
The Annual Conference, hosted by CALAFCO, is currently 
scheduled for October 6 - 8 at the Hyatt Regency Newport 
Beach John Wayne Airport. We are hopeful by that time we 
will be able to safely meet in person, and the Conference 
planning committee will begin their work very soon.  Watch for 
a call for program planning volunteers. 
 
 

CALAFCO UNIVERSITY 
We were pleased to offer six virtual 
sessions in 2020 between August 
and December. This year, CALAFCO is planning several 
virtual CALAFCO U sessions for the first half of the year. 
Once again, these sessions will be offered to our members 
at no cost to you. Watch for save-the-date announcements 
coming very soon. As a teaser, we are planning for a three-
part session on Fire and EMS Agency reorganizations in 
March and another session on Hiring Best Practices in May.  
 
 

CALAFCO ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE 
CALAFCO staff are working on the annual 
updates of the Membership Directory. It’s 
requested you respond to the request for 
updates when you receive them from us. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

The new two-year legislative session is in 
full swing and it is anticipated to be another 
interesting year. As the deadline to 
introduce legislation nears (Feb. 19), we 
are seeing a large number of bills relating 
to COVID-19 response, wildfire prevention, 
education, healthcare and bridging the 
equity divide.  
 

CALAFCO is sponsoring the 2021 Assembly Local 
Government Committee (ALGC) Omnibus bill and continues 
the work of the Protest Provision Rewrite Working Group as 
legislative priorities for 2021. The Working Group, consisting 
of 18 members (CALAFCO, CSDA, League, CSAC and reps 
from both local government committees) reconvened and 
has approved the submission of several obsolete special 
provisions relating to protests into the Omnibus bill. The 
group is also working on drafting language to consolidate all 
existing protest language into one section within CKH, and 
the subcommittee that is looking at the protest percentage 
threshold variances is reconvening. 
 
CALAFCO has also been working closely since last fall with 
Senator Caballero’s staff and the sponsors of SB 414 (2019-
20) on a redo of that bill. Our conversations have included 
offering amendments to write LAFCos back into the 
formation process of the new water authorities. Although the 
new bill has not yet been introduced (as of the writing of this 
Report), it is expected before the 2/19 deadline. 
 
The 2020 CKH Guide is now available to download from the 
CALAFCO website. We are also accepting orders for the hard 
copy version. Visit the CALAFCO website for details.  
 
Full 2020 legislative reports from the ALGC and Senate 
Governance & Finance Committees are also available on the 
CALAFCO website.  
 
All bills being tracked by CALAFCO can be found on the 
CALAFCO website inside the Legislation section of the site 
(log in with your member id first to access this section).  The 
CALAFCO Legislative Committee meets regularly and all 
meeting materials are located in the Legislation section of 
the CALAFCO website.  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NNeewwss  ffrroomm  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  

CCAALLAAFFCCOO  QQUUAARRTTEERRLLYY     FFeebbrruuaarryy  22002211  
                                                    PPaaggee  33 

 
CALAFCO EDUCATIONAL EVENTS CALAFCO LEGISLATIVE UPDATE  

335



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

This section is dedicated to highlighting our Associate Members. 
The information below is provided to CALAFCO by the Associate 
member upon joining the Association. All Associate member 
information can be found in the CALAFCO Member Directory. 
 

 
City of Rancho Mirage 
The City of Rancho Mirage has been 
a Silver Associate Member since July 
2010. With a population of just over 18,000, the City of 
Rancho Mirage is located in the County of Riverside. The 
City offers an ubundant amount of sunshine, great climate, 
and related resort-style living. For more information about 
the City, contact the Director of Development Services, 
Jeremy Gleim, at jeremyg@ranchomirageca.gov, or at 760-
328-2266. Learn more about the City on their website at 
www.ranchomirageca.gov.  
 

 
County Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County 

The County Sanitation 
Districts of Los 
Angeles County has 
been a Silver Associate 

Member since July 2005. They are a public agency focused 
on converting waste into resources like recycled water, 
energy and recycled materials. The agency consists of 24 
independent special districts serving about 5.6 million 
people in Los Angeles County. The service areas cover 
approximately 850 square miles and encompass 78 cities 
and unincorporated areas in the county. For more 
information on the Districts, contact Donna Curry at 
dcurry@lacsd.org, or visit their website at www.lacsd.org.  

 
 

Rancho Mission Viejo 
Rancho Mission Viejo has 
been a Silver Associate 
Member since June 2005. They are responsible for the 
development and management of a governance structure 
for a 23,000-acre, 14,000 home planned community. For 
more information, visit them at 
www.ranchomissionviejo.com or contact Michael Balsamo 
at mbalsamo@ranchomv.com.  
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
QK  
A Silver Associate Member since 
September 2010, QK (formerly Quad 
Knopf) provides planning, engineering, 
biology, environmental and survey 
services to public and private clients. Their 
planners have previous experience working for public 
agencies, including serving as LAFCo Analysts and Executive 
Officers. They specialize in the San Joaquin and Sacramento 
Valley regions. For more information on QK, visit their 
website at www.qkinc.com, or contact Jerome Keene at 
jerome.keene@qkinc.com.   
 
 

CALAFCO wishes to thank all of our Associate Members for 
your ongoing support and partnership We look forward to 
continuing to highlighting you in future Quarterly Reports.  

 
 

Did You Know?? 
CALAFCO 2020 Survey 
Did you know we recently published the 
2020 survey of member LAFCos relating to 
COVID? The survey included questions about 
current and future operations, staffing 
models, commission meeting methods, and budget impacts.   
 
Meeting Documents Online 
Did you know that all CALAFCO Board of Directors and 
Legislative Committee meeting documents are online? Visit 
the Boards & Committees pages in the Members Section of 
the site. Board documents date back to 2008 and 
Legislative Committee documents back to 2007. 
 
CALAFCO Courses Archived 
Did you know that all CALAFCO University course materials 
are now archived on the CALAFCO website? Visit the 
CALAFCO website in the CALAFCO U Course Material Archive 
section.  
 
Mark Your Calendars For These 
Upcoming CALAFCO Events 
 
 CALAFCO Legislative Committee virtual 

meeting – 2/19 
 CALAFCO Legislative Committee virtual 

meeting - 3/26 
 CALAFCO Board of Directors virtual meeting – 4/30 

 
The CALAFCO 2021 Calendar of Events can be found on the 
CALAFCO website.  

 
As we continue to face both known and unknown 
challenges, your CALAFCO Board and Staff wish all of you 
to stay safe and be healthy.  We thank you for your 
continued dedicated service to the communities you serve. 
Be well. 

NNeewwss  ffrroomm  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  

CCAALLAAFFCCOO  QQUUAARRTTEERRLLYY     FFeebbrruuaarryy  22002211  
                                                    PPaaggee  44 

 
CALAFCO ASSOCIATE MEMBERS’ CORNER 

336

mailto:jeremyg@ranchomirageca.gov
http://www.ranchomirageca.gov/
mailto:dcurry@lacsd.org
http://www.lacsd.org/
http://www.ranchomissionviejo.com/
mailto:mbalsamo@ranchomv.com
http://www.qkinc.com/
mailto:jerome.keene@qkinc.com
https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiT97Xo6qLLAhVKx2MKHYacD1UQjRwIBw&url=https://dmbinc.com/community/rancho-mission-viejo/&psig=AFQjCNE162iDBykrsQ_-dAnz70g1O6Gitw&ust=1457036689946453�


 2020 
ANNUAL REPORT 

 

CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF 
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION 
COMMISSIONS 

Email: info@calafco.org 

Website: www.calafco.org 

1020 12th Street, Ste. 222 

Sacramento, CA 95814  

Tel: 916-442-6536 

California Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions 

337



CALAFCO 2020 Annual Report  

 

2 

  

 
 

FROM THE CALAFCO EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
For just about all of us, 2020 was quite a challenge. During the year, the California 
Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions (CALAFCO) dedicated itself to 
meet the new and evolving needs of our members. As they reinvented the way they work 
and deliver services, so did we.  
 

Although we were unable to gather in person in March for our annual Staff Workshop or in October for our Annual 
Conference, we stayed connected with virtual meetings and virtual educational events. We learned from each 
other as we supported one another through a historic time. CALAFCO stood in support of our member LAFCos by 
shifting the way we provide supportive services and adjusted priorities to meet their changing needs.   
 
2020 will be remembered as the year we would all like to forget. But doing so means we also forget the many 
things we learned – about ourselves as strong, capable, and resilient beings, and about the power of collective 
support, collaborative and innovative problem solving, and about our ability to generate hope for systemic and 
sustainable change.  
 
Without missing a beat, LAFCos throughout the state continued to provide the necessary leadership in fulfilling 
their missions, and in supporting their respective local agencies and the communities they serve. I would like to 
take this opportunity to thank all of our member LAFCos for their dedicated, focused and steadfast commitment to 
the work they do and the people they serve. 
 
I also want to thank the CALAFCO regional staff for their support and contributions to the Association. A special 
thank you to our Associate member partners for their generous support of CALAFCO.  Last but certainly not least, 
I want to express my gratitude to the CALAFCO Board of Directors, all of whom worked tirelessly throughout the 
year in support of the ideals and mission of CALAFCO and all LAFCos. Through their leadership, vision and 
tenacity, the Association met the challenges of the year. 
 
I’m proud to represent the Association and all 58 LAFCos as well as our Associate Members, and present the 
2020 Annual Report, which highlights the collective work of the past year and many of the achievements we 
realized. We hope you enjoy this new format of the Annual Report. I look forward to what we can accomplish 
together in 2021. 

 
 
 
 

Pamela Miller  
Executive Director 
CA Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions  
  

338



CALAFCO 2020 Annual Report  

 

3 

 

FROM THE 2019-2020 CALAFCO CHAIR OF THE BOARD 
We are living in interesting times! 

 

Every time I think it can’t get worse; it does.  At the time I wrote this article, we were plagued by record 

heat and fires.  Often past chairs have written something like, “…it was a challenging but rewarding 

year”.  I will say it was a challenging year; I don’t think I can call it rewarding, but I have been proud 

to see how CALAFCO rose to the challenge and pivoted to address the impacts thrown on us by this 

pandemic.  We moved to virtual meetings, made Zoom available to our member LAFCos, held regular 

meetings with our member LAFCo Executive Officers/Clerks and made a series of virtual CALAFCO U classes and on 

demand webinars available free to our members; we continue to focus on “value added” to our members.  Much of the credit 

for this, and its success, is due to efforts by our Executive Director, Pamela Miller, who we were fortunate to retain, as an 

employee, after she announced her retirement; we are indebted to her.  Of course many others pitched in to make this 

possible and the CALAFCO Board provided needed support. 

 

We were forced to cancel our Annual Conference.  Many LAFCos were directly impacted as were many government 

agencies.  Many have died, the economy was rocked and many individuals struggle to meet basic needs; essential workers 

continue to provide service and others are forced to work out of economic necessity-risking their, and their family, health and 

lives. 

 

My father, the youngest of four, was born in 1927.  As I grew up, his parents from time to time, talked about the influenza 

pandemic of 1918.  I used to find those stories surreal; people confined to their homes, a red notice nailed to the door and 

many deaths.  My grandparents not only endured this pandemic but, in their lifetime, faced WWI, the Great Depression and 

WWII.  Much of this is now delegated to “just history”. My grandparents came thru it and someday 2020 will also be delegated 

to history.  

 

I’m proud that CALAFCO more than survived this challenge.  Our dues change let us avoid a structural deficit and a loss for 

the year even with the cancellation of the Annual Conference.  Our prudent reserves may allow us to cover unexpected costs, 

especially legal costs as we navigated AB 5, converting Pamela and Jeni to employees.   

 

We continue to proudly serve our member LAFCos and remain a viable and respected voice in Sacramento. 

Thanks to all of you. 

 

 

 

Michael R. McGill, P.E. 
Chair of the Board, 2019-2020 
CA Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions   

  

 

339



CALAFCO 2020 Annual Report  

 

4 

In 2019, CALAFCO began a two-year strategic plan to define the Association’s priorities and 

guide the work. There were three main strategic areas each with actionable goals for each 

of the two years.  This report highlights the achievements of the work in 2020 towards those 

goals. 
 

1. Serve as an educational resource to member LAFCo Commissioners, LAFCo staff, 

Associate Members, and stakeholders.  

2. Focus efforts on Association member development and communication.  

3. Serve as an information resource to all Association members, work as a legislative and 

policy advocate for LAFCo issues and provide information to the Legislature and other 

stakeholders. 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
1. Serve as an educational resource 
Given the COVID-19 pandemic, in-person training and educational opportunities were impossible from mid-March 
through the end of 2020. This meant the cancellation of our annual Staff Workshop and Annual Conference. 
However, in early summer, CALAFCO staff began looking at how to deliver short educational sessions virtually – 
something CALAFCO had never done before. From August through December, six webinars were successfully 
delivered at no cost to our members. Additionally, each webinar was recorded 
and a new section created on the CALAFCO website to house all webinars for 
member on-demand viewing. Webinar topics included a three-part LAFCo 101 
series (including a newly designed session specifically for 
Clerks/Analysts and another for LAFCo Commissioners), 
adaptive leadership, and two sessions on LAFCos role in 
this “new/now normal” world of ours. In total, 274 LAFCo 
staff, commissioners and Associate Members attended 
these free educational offerings.  
 
Early in January CALAFCO hosted a CALAFCO University session in Orange County focusing on legacy costs 
associated with reorganizations.  
 
We are proud to continue to offer our members AICP credits when applicable for any educational session we host.   
 
CALAFCO remains a coaching partner with Cal-ICMA and through this partnership all of our 
members receive free access to professional development webinars, one-to-one coaching and other 
professional development resources. 
 

 

 

340



CALAFCO 2020 Annual Report  

 

5 

 

2. Focus efforts on Association member development and 
communication 
 

In response to our members, CALAFCO developed a short series of News Bulletins and distributed them to the 
membership during the first three months of the State’s shutdown. The Bulletins advised members of the latest 
Executive Orders and other noteworthy news items that impacted LAFCos and other local agencies.  
 
Beginning mid-March, we hosted weekly meetings for LAFCo Executive Officers and another for LAFCo Clerks to 
allow for collaboration and information sharing. These meetings transitioned to virtual meetings and continue as 
monthly meetings into 2021, with as many as 32 Executive Officers attending the monthly meeting.  
 
Knowing many of our members struggled to find effective ways for their Commissions to meet while maintaining 
transparency and public participation, CALAFCO purchased two Zoom licenses and provided the use of one of 
those licenses to our member LAFCos, along with our toll-free conference calling system, at no cost, as a way for 
our members to continue conducting business transparently.  
 

The events of 2020 were unchartered territory for many, and 
the fiscal aftermath will long be felt by all local agencies 

across the state.  CALAFCO recognized this as a 
unique time for LAFCos to champion the support of 

local agencies and help rebuild communities. In 
partnership with several Executive officers and one of 

our Associate Member partners, CALAFCO created a 
series of messaging materials to assist our member 

LAFCos in their facilitation of local discussions on the 
revitalization of their respective communities. These resources were introduced and distributed in December.  
 
In addition to our normal communication tools of Quarterly Reports and list serves, we also hosted virtual regional 
roundtables in December for our member LAFCos (as a replacement for our in-person roundtables at the Annual 
Conference) as well as a LAFCo Legal Counsel roundtable in October. With so many of our members meeting 
virtually, our Executive Director was able to attend sixteen (16) different LAFCo meetings the second half of the 
year.  
 
In response to the membership survey in 2019, CALAFCO staff spent time this year updating several of the most 
frequently used sections of the CALAFCO website. In addition to the creation of the new webinar archive, the 
CALAFCO University archives was updated, along with several sections within the LAFCo Law section. Other 
sections were completely reorganized and updated for 
easier member access to resource information and 
materials. CALAFCO is proud to continue earning the 
GuideStar Platinum Seal of Transparency for high level of 
nonprofit transparency.    
 
 
 
 

341



CALAFCO 2020 Annual Report  

 

6 

 

3. Serve as an information resource and legislative and policy 
advocate 

 
In addition to the work of enhancing the CALAFCO website as an informational resource, CALAFCO continued to 
participate in the Department of Water Resources’ County Drought Advisory Group and lead the efforts of the 18-
member Protest Provisions Stakeholder Working Group (Working Group).  
 
The 2020 legislative year turned out to be unlike any other and the pandemic turned legislation inside-out. The 
focus of the Legislature quickly turned to COVID response as well as responding to a historic year of wildfires and 
calls for social and racial justice and equity. At the direction of the CALAFCO Board, we ended our efforts to obtain 
state-level grant funding for LAFCos through sponsored legislation and did not sponsor an Omnibus bill in 2020. 
Instead, the Board made the proposal to make changes to statute pertaining to extension of services the legislative 
priority, along with the ongoing efforts of the Working Group. After seeking feedback and consensus from 
Executive Officers as directed by the Board, in late January the Executive Committee approved moving forward 
with seeking legislation. Given the late timing, the Association was unsuccessful in securing an author. As a result, 
CALAFCO did not sponsor any bills in 2020. It is uncertain if any bills (other than Omnibus) would have 
successfully passed through the Legislature given the shift in their focus mid-year. CALAFCO continued to support 
our membership through legislative action where appropriate and fiercely guarded LAFCo authority when 
necessary, tracking 32 bills and taking positions on 7 bills. 
 

Other 2020 highlights 
There were several other highlights in 2020 that were not part of the two-year strategic plan. First, we successfully 
transitioned our two primary part-time contractors (Executive Director and Administrator) to part-time employees 
effective September 1 in compliance with AB 5. Additionally, for the first time, CALAFCO conducted a virtual 
election for the Board of Directors.  
 

CALAFCO Financials 2020 
In July, the Board of Directors 
adopted a revised budget 
without any Conference 
revenue/expenses, with new 
estimated employer costs and 
the retention of the Executive 
Director. The lack of the 
planned 15% Conference net 
profit created a structural 
deficit that can be covered by 
the net balance carryover into 
FY 2020-21, which ended up 

larger than expected at the end of FY 2019-20 due to cost savings in 
other budget areas. By the end of 2020 it appeared savings into FY 2020-21 was continuing in many areas that 
will help the Association’s financial outlook going into another uncertain fiscal year.  

12,500, 3%

221,357, 
59%30,750, 8%

38,400, 
10%

0, 0%

35,900, 
10%

1,000, 0%

13,500, 4% 3,000, 1% 19,463, 5%

FY 2020-21 EXPENSES BY CATEGORY AND 
% OF TOTAL BUDGET

Board Personnel
Professional Services Office
Conference Workshop
CALAFCO U Legislative

300,009, 
80%

8,000, 2%
0, 0%

30,000, 8%

1,000, 0%
2,700, 1% 34,161, 9%

FY 2020-21 REVENUE BY CATEGORY AND 
% OF TOTAL BUDGET

Member LAFCo Dues Assoc Member Dues
Conference Workshop
CALAFCO U Misc. Revenue
Carry over

342



CALAFCO 2020 Annual Report  

 

7 

 

Looking ahead to 2021 
Our LAFCos are strong and resilient and led with remarkable courage during 2020. CALAFCO remains committed 
to continue building a resilient and sustainable Association that supports our members in their work. To focus 
resources on our members’ highest priorities in 2021, the CALAFCO Board of Directors’ biennial strategic planning 
workshop in January will create the foundation for the Association’s next two-year strategic plan.  As we move into 
our 50th year, CALAFCO remains committed to: 
 

• Serve as an educational resource to member LAFCo Commissioners, LAFCo staff, Associate 
Members, and stakeholders.  

• Focus efforts on Association member relations, development, recognition and communication.  
• Continue development of a strong and sustainable Association.  
• Serve as an information resource to all Association members, work as a legislative and policy 

advocate for LAFCo issues and provide information to the Legislature and other stakeholders.  

CALAFCO 2019-2020 BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STAFF 
OFFICERS (Oct 2019 – Oct 2020) 
CHAIR – Michael McGill, Contra Costa LAFCo, District Member (Coastal) 
VICE CHAIR – Michael Kelley, Imperial LAFCo, County Member (Southern) 
SECRETARY – Anita Paque, Calaveras LAFCo, Public Member (Central) 
TREASURER – Bill Connelly, Butte LAFCo, County Member (Northern) 
IMMEDIATE PAST CHAIR – Josh Susman, Nevada LAFCo, Public Member (Northern) 
 
MEMBERS (Oct 2019 – Oct 2020) 
Cheryl Brothers, Orange LAFCo, City Member (Southern) 
David Couch, Humboldt LAFCo, City Member (Northern) 
Shiva Frentzen, El Dorado LAFCo, County Member (Central) 
Blake Inscore, Del Norte LAFCo, City Member (Northern) 
Gay Jones, Sacramento LAFCo, District Member (Central) 
Jo MacKenzie, San Diego LAFCo, District Member (Southern) 
Margie Mohler, Napa LAFCo, City Member (Coastal) 
Tom Murray, San Luis Obispo LAFCo, Public Member (Coastal) 
Jane Parker, Monterey LAFCo, County Member (Coastal) 
Daniel Parra, Fresno LAFCo, City Member (Central) 
David West, Imperial LAFCo, Public Member (Southern) 
 
STAFF 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR – Pamela Miller 
ADMINISTRATOR – Jeni Tickler 
LEGAL COUNSEL – Clark Alsop, Best Best & Krieger  
CPA – James Gladfelter, Alta Mesa Group  
EXECUTIVE OFFICER – Stephen Lucas, Butte LAFCo (Northern) 
DEPUTY EXECUTIVE OFFICERS – Christine Crawford, Yolo LAFCo (Central); Martha Poyatos, San Mateo 
LAFCo (Coastal); and Gary Thompson, Riverside LAFCo (Southern)  

343



CALAFCO 2020 Annual Report  

 

8 

A SNAPSHOT LOOK AT  

  

  

 

  

   

 

 
 
 

  

  
344



345



346



347



348



349



350



351


	03_11_21_Agenda
	03_11_21_AgendaItemNo5a_Minutes
	03_11_21_AgendaItemNo5b_SpecialMeetingRequest
	03_11_21_AgendaItemNo5c_Budget
	03_11_21_AgendaItemNo6_TerraceView-OroLoma
	03_11_21_AgendaItemNo6_TerraceView-OroLoma_Attachment2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	03_11_21_AgendaItemNo6_TerraceView-OroLoma_Attachment3.pdf
	2021 03 02 Land Owner Consent- RBC Real Estate.pdf
	Blank Page



	03_11_21_AgendaItemNo8_Lamphier-Gregory
	03_11_21_AgendaItemNo8_Lamphier-Gregory_Attachment1.pdf
	Boots_Resume.pdf
	Education
	Previous Employment
	Affiliations

	Blank Page


	03_11_21_AgendaItemNo9_RFPFire
	03_11_21_AgendaItemNo10_SALCPlanningGrantAgreement
	03_11_21_AgendaItemNo11_DraftBudgetWorkplan
	03_11_21_AgendaItemNo12_56133-Leg
	03_11_21_AgendaItemNo16a_Proposals
	03_11_21_AgendaItemNo16b_Workplan
	03_11_21_AgendaItemNo16c_LegislativeUpdate
	03_11_21_AgendaItemNo16d_CALAFCO
	03_11_21_AgendaItemNo16d_CALAFCO2.pdf
	In 2019, CALAFCO began a two-year strategic plan to define the Association’s priorities and guide the work. There were three main strategic areas each with actionable goals for each of the two years.  This report highlights the achievements of the wor...
	A snapshot look at 2020 by the numbers


	03_11_21_AgendaItemNo16e_GrandJuryNominations



